WASHINGTON STATE Wil

BOARDorHEALTH

Time

9:00 a.m.

9:15 a.m.

9:20 a.m.

9:25 a.m.

9:45 a.m.

10:05 a.m.

10:55 a.m.

11:10 a.m.

-

Final Agenda

Agenda Item

Call to Order & Introductions

Swinomish Land Acknowledgement and
Welcome

1. Approval of Agenda
— Possible Action

2. Approval of January 10, 2024, Minutes

— Possible Action

3. Public Comment

4. Announcements and Board Business

5. Newborn Screening Annual Report

Break

6. Request for Delegated Rulemaking —

On-Site Sewage Systems, 246-272A-110

WAC
— Possible Action

Notice of Public Meeting

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 9:00 a.m. — 5:05 p.m.

Physical meeting location:
Swinomish Casino and Lodge
12885 Casino Dr, Anacortes, WA 98221
WA Walton Conference Room
Virtual meeting: ZOOM Webinar
(hyperlink provided below)
Language interpretation available

Speaker

Patty Hayes, Board Chair

Swinomish Tribal Leader
Chairman Edwards or Designee

Patty Hayes, Board Chair

Patty Hayes, Board Chair

Please note: Verbal public comment
may be limited so that the Board can
consider all agenda items. The Chair
may limit each speaker’s time based on
the number people signed up to
comment.

Michelle Davis, Board Executive
Director

Kelly Oshiro, Board Vice Chair
John Thompson, Department of Health
Anna Howard, Department of Health

Kate Dean, Board Member
Andrew Kamali, Board Staff
Roger Parker, Department of Health

PO Box 47990, Olympia, WA 98504-7990
(360) 236-4110 » wsboh@sboh.wa.gov « www.sboh.wa.gov

Page 1 of 4


mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
http://www.sboh.wa.gov/
https://sboh.wa.gov/rulemaking/agency-rules-and-activity/site-sewage-systems
MLL0303
Highlight

MLL0303
Highlight

MLL0303
Highlight

MLL0303
Highlight

MLL0303
Highlight


WASHINGTON STATE Wil
BOARDorHEALTH

Time

11:25 a.m.

12:10 p.m.

1:20 p.m.

2:05 p.m.

2:15 p.m.

Agenda Item

7. Swinomish Tribe

e Jennifer La Pointe, SITC General
Manager

e Dr. Rachael Hogan, Swinomish
Dental Director

e Dr. Cheyanne Warren,
daxwxayabus-DT Education
Program Director

¢ Beverly Keyes, didgwali¢ Wellness
Center Director

Lunch

8. Pro Equity Anti Racism (PEAR) Plan

Break

9. State Health Report Community Panel

e Amanda Shi, Manager of Research
and Evaluation, Tubman Center for
Health and Freedom

e Dominique Horn, Community
Mobilization Coordinator,
Southwest Washington
Accountable Community of Health

e Molly Parker, Family Health
Provider and Chief Medical Officer
for Population Health, Jefferson
Healthcare

e Nyka Osteen, Director of
Innovation, North Sound
Accountable Community of Health

Notice of Public Meeting
Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 9:00 a.m. — 5:05 p.m.
Physical meeting location:

Swinomish Casino and Lodge
12885 Casino Dr, Anacortes, WA 98221
WA Walton Conference Room
Virtual meeting: ZOOM Webinar
(hyperlink provided below)

Language interpretation available

Speaker

Mindy Flores, Board Member
Swinomish Indian Tribal Community
(SITC)

Skagit Valley College (SVC)
didgwali¢ Wellness Center

Paj Nandi, Board Member
Ashley Bell, Board Staff

Mindy Flores, Board Member
Molly Dinardo, Board Staff
Hannah Haag, Board Staff

PO Box 47990, Olympia, WA 98504-7990
(360) 236-4110 » wsboh@sboh.wa.gov « www.sboh.wa.gov

Page 2 of 4


mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
http://www.sboh.wa.gov/
MLL0303
Highlight

MLL0303
Highlight

MLL0303
Highlight


WASHINGTON STATE Wil
BOARDorHEALTH

Time

3:45 p.m.

4:00 p.m.

4:35 p.m.

4:45 p.m.

5:05 p.m.

Agenda Item

Break

10. Petition for Rulemaking - WAC 246-
290-220, Group A Water Systems —
Drinking Water Materials and Additives
- Possible Action

11. 2024 Board Meeting Schedule
Review

Notice of Public Meeting
Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 9:00 a.m. — 5:05 p.m.
Physical meeting location:

Swinomish Casino and Lodge
12885 Casino Dr, Anacortes, WA 98221
WA Walton Conference Room
Virtual meeting: ZOOM Webinar
(hyperlink provided below)

Language interpretation available

Speaker

Patty Hayes, Board Chair

Andrew Kamali, Board Staff

Shelley Guinn, Department of Health
Mike Means, Department of Health

Michelle Davis, Board Executive
Director

12. Board Member Comments and
Updates

Adjournment

To access the meeting online and to register:
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_Er7t6leERpGyne-2jw4-Ag
You can also dial-in using your phone for listen-only mode:

Call in: +1 (253) 215-8782 (not toll-free)

Webinar ID: 886 3024 9315

Passcode: 682856

Important Meeting Information to Know:

Times are estimates only. We reserve the right to alter the order of the agenda.
Every effort will be made to provide Spanish interpretation, American Sign
Language (ASL), and/or Communication Access Real-time Transcription (CART)
services. Should you need confirmation of these services, please email
wsboh@sboh.wa.gov in advance of the meeting date.

If you would like meeting materials in an alternate format or a different language,
or if you are a person living with a disability and need reasonable modification,
please contact the State Board of Health at (360) 236-4110 or by email

PO Box 47990, Olympia, WA 98504-7990
(360) 236-4110 » wsboh@sboh.wa.gov « www.sboh.wa.gov

Page 3 of 4


mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
http://www.sboh.wa.gov/
https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-290-220
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_Er7t6leERpGyne-2jw4-Ag
mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
https://sboh.wa.gov/accessibility-and-americans-disabilities-act-ada
MLL0303
Highlight

MLL0303
Highlight


Notice of Public Meetin
WAS H | N GTO N STATE ' Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 9:00 a.m. — 5:095 p.m.
Physical meeting location:
BOARD ( HEALTH Swinomish Casino and Lodge
o 12885 Casino Dr, Anacortes, WA 98221

WA Walton Conference Room
Virtual meeting: ZOOM Webinar
(hyperlink provided below)
Language interpretation available

wsboh@sboh.wa.gov. Please make your request as soon as possible to help us
meet your needs. Some requests may take longer than two weeks to fulfill.
TTY users can dial 711.

Information About Giving Verbal Public Comment at Hybrid Meetings:

e For the public attending in-person: If you would like to provide public comment,
please write your name on the sign-in sheet before the public comment period
begins. We strongly encourage people to sign up with the Board by sending an
email by 12:00 Noon the last business day before the meeting to:
wsboh@sboh.wa.gov. As this is a business meeting of the Board, time available
for public comment is limited (typically 2 to 4 minutes per person). The Chair will
call on those who have signed up to speak to the Board, first. The amount of time
allotted to each person will depend on the number of speakers present. If time
remains, those who have not signed up ahead of time to speak to the Board will
be called on to speak until the scheduled time for Public Comment comes to an
end.

e For the public attending virtually: If you would like to provide public comment,
please sign up through the Zoom webinar link by 12:00 Noon, the last business
day before the meeting. Your name will be called when it’s your turn to comment.

Information About Giving Written Public Comment:
e Please visit the Board’s Meeting Information webpage for details on how to
provide written public comment.

PO Box 47990, Olympia, WA 98504-7990
(360) 236-4110 » wsboh@sboh.wa.gov « www.sboh.wa.gov

Page 4 of 4


mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
http://www.sboh.wa.gov/
mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
https://sboh.wa.gov/meeting-information

WASHINGTON STATE Yl
BOARD orHEALTH

Draft Minutes of the State Board of Health
January 10, 2024
Hybrid Meeting
ASL (or CART) and Spanish interpretation available
Washington State Department of Health
111 Israel Road S.E., Tumwater, WA 98501
Building: Town Center 2, Rooms 166 & 167
Virtual meeting: ZOOM Webinar

State Board of Health members present:

Patty Hayes, RN, MSN, Chair

Kelly Oshiro, JD, Vice Chair

Stephen Kutz, BSN, MPH

Kate Dean, MPA

Socia Love-Thurman, MD

Mindy M. Flores, MBA-HCM

Dimyana Abdelmalek, MD, MPH

Tao Sheng Kwan-Gett, MD, MPH, Secretary’s Designee

State Board of Health members absent:
Umair A. Shah, MD, MPH

State Board of Health staff present:

Michelle Davis, Executive Director Jo-Ann Huynh, Administrative Assistant
Melanie Hisaw, Executive Assistant LinhPhung Huynh, Council Manager
Michelle Larson, Communications Lilia Lopez, Assistant Attorney General
Manager Ashley Bell, Equity & Engagement
Anna Burns, Communications Consultant Manager

Molly Dinardo, Health Policy Advisor Hannah Haag, Community Engagement
Andrew Kamali, Health Policy Advisor Coordinator

Guests and other participants:

Kelly Cooper, Department of Health

Amy Ferris, Department of Health

Vicki Lowe, American Indian Health Commission

Jaime Bodden, Washington Association of Local Public Health Officials
David DelLong, Department of Health

Jeremy Simmons, Department of Health

Patty Hayes, Board Chair, called the public meeting to order at 8:36 a.m. and read from a
prepared statement (on file).




1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Motion: Approve January 10, 2024, agenda.
Motion/Second: Vice Chair Oshiro/Member Dean. Approved unanimously.

. ADOPTION OF NOVEMBER 8, 2023, MEETING MINUTES
Motion: Approve the November 8, 2023, minutes.
Motion/Second: Member Love-Thurman /Vice Chair Oshiro. Approved unanimously.

. PUBLIC COMMENT

Patty Hayes, Board Chair opened the meeting for public comment and read from a
prepared statement (on file).

Gerald Braude, Jefferson County, commented on the harm from the COVID-19 shots.
G. Braude said there are 11 more deaths from COVID-19 shots since the last Board
meeting in November, increasing from 222 to 233 deaths. G. Braude gave examples of
people from ages 16 to 65 who died from arterial fibrillation and acute aortic dissection
after receiving the COVID-19 shot.

Bill Osmunson, a dentist with a master’s in public health, talked about the authority of
the Board for dental regulations and the dangers of fluoride. B. Osmunson said the
Environment Protection Agency National Toxicology Association states that fluoride
lowers infant 1Q. B. Osmunson talked about developmental neurotoxicity and mortality
issues from fluoride in infants and children.

Natalie Chavez commented on the harm from the COVID-19 vaccine and asked for
experimental vaccines to be put on hold until more research is done. N. Chavez gave
several examples of people harmed and said that many have suffered physical,
emotional, and financial devastation from the vaccine.

Lisa Templeton talked about concerns on certain legislative bills, including House Bill
(HB) 2157. L. Templeton said there are already dozens of shots on the Centers for
Disease Control (CDC) pediatric schedule and talked about the dangers and costs of
vaccines.

. BOARD ANNOUNCEMENTS AND OTHER BUSINESS

Michelle Davis, Board Executive Director welcomed Board Members. Executive Director
Davis recognized new Board Member Paj Nandi and Ashley Bell the Board’s new Equity
and Engagement Manager. Executive Director Davis announced Shay Bauman, the
Board's new Policy Advisor, would join the team on February 1.

Executive Director Davis described the materials in the packet. Executive Director Davis
discussed the letter from the Office of Financial Management (OFM) acknowledging the
Board's letter of support for the Environmental Justice Council’s (EJC)
recommendations related to school environmental justice. Executive Director Davis
noted that the Governor’s budget described additional funding through the Climate
Commitment Act that reflects part of the EJCs recommendation.



Executive Director Davis shared additional information related to the Governor’s budget,

which was released in released in December. It maintained the budget proviso that

suspends the Board’s school environmental health and safety rules. The Governor’s

budget provided additional funding for schools:

e Capital, Sec 5007: $20,000,000 (Climate Commitment Account) and $20,000,000
(Common School Construction Fund) for Equitable Access to Clean Air and
Improving Classroom Air Quality.

Executive Director Davis noted other investments for local school districts, these
investments include:
e Capital Two-Year
o School Construction Assistance Program (SCAP). Increase in the
construction cost allocation from $272/SF to $350/SF for fiscal year (FY) 2025
— funds state matching grants for local school districts.
o $176,867,000 for the Small District and Tribal Compact Schools
Modernization Program.
o An additional $8,100,000 for School District Health and Safety.
o An additional $1,500,000 for Healthy Kids-Healthy Schools competitive grant
programs.

Executive Director Davis described the remaining materials in the Board packet
(materials on file). Executive Director Davis thanked Member Dean for serving as the
chair of the Environmental Health Subcommittee and Member Flores for sponsoring the
2024 State Health Report.

Executive Director Davis said the Health Impact Review (HIR) team recently completed
two HIRs for Engrossed Substitute House Bill 1589 (Natural Gas) and 1859 (Long-Term
Care Residents). Executive Director Davis said the HIR team has started receiving
requests for the 2024 legislative session and is currently working on updates to HIRs
completed in the 2023 legislative session. These HIRs include Senate House Bill 1368
(Zero-emission school buses) and Senate Bill 5002 (Alcohol concentration). Executive
Director Davis reminded Board Members of the short completion deadline for HIRs and
of the notification they will receive. Executive Director Davis asked Board Members to
reach out with any recommended resources or connections.

Executive Director Davis thanked panelists for participating in the meeting.
Kate Dean, Board Member, asked for clarification on the Climate Commitment Act, and

if it was earmarked for a particular use. Executive Director Davis said it pertains to
indoor air quality, equitable access to clean air, and improving classroom air quality.

Member Dean asked about the $20 million Common School Construction fund.
Executive Director Davis offered to follow up on the types of schools eligible for those
funds and the $20 million is part of the Office of Superintendent and Public Instruction
(OSPI) request.

Member Dean asked about Capital Gains. Executive Director Davis said there would be
more conversations throughout the session. Executive Director Davis reminded the




Board that the budgets begin with the Governor’s proposal, then the Senate and House
negotiations before a final budget is reached.

Steve Kutz, Board Member, asked about the Governor’s budget and schools. Executive
Director Davis said the Governor’s budget includes the suspension of the school and
environmental health and safety rules, but the legislature has had several work sessions
and focuses on school infrastructure.

. 2024 LEGISLATIVE SESSION PREVIEW

Patty Hayes, Board Chair invited the Board’s partners at the Department of Health
(Department), the Washington State Association of Local Public Health Officials
(WSALPHO), and the American Indian Health Commission (AIHC) to share their
agency’s priorities for the legislative session.

Kelly Cooper, Policy and Legislative Relations Director, Department of Health, shared
the Department’s legislative priorities. Kelly shared the Department’s three pieces of
agency request legislation, Senate Bill (SB) 5271 and House Bill (HB) 1434, SB 5982
and HB 2157, and SB 6095.

Amy Ferris, Chief Financial Officer, Department of Health, discussed the Department’s
budget priorities. Amy said the Department would be focusing on the healthcare
workforce, especially for rural and behavioral health, the opioid epidemic, and
emergency response management. Amy said the Department would also be supporting
public health infrastructure, such as the 988 Suicide and Cirisis Lifeline, and internal
technology infrastructure supporting public health work.

Jaime Bodden, Managing Director, Washington Association of Local Public Health
Officials (WSALPHO), gave a brief introduction of WSALPHO before discussing its
priorities for the 2024 legislative session (presentation on file). Jaime said the agency
has three policy focuses, SB 5982 and HB 2157, SB 6110, and SB 5983. Jaime then
shared WSALPHOQ's budget priorities around on-site septic systems and school
environmental justice.

Vicki Lowe, Executive Director, American Indian Health Commission (AIHC), introduced
the AIHC. Vicki discussed AIHC's focus on the opioid and fentanyl epidemic in Indian
Country and gave context about the first Washington State Tribal Opioid and Fentanyl
Summit in May 2023. Vicki shared AIHC policy priorities, including HB 1877 and 2075.
Vicki then spoke about AIHC's budget priorities. Vicki said these priorities are to
establish a Tribal Opioid and Fentanyl Response Task Force and to establish Tribally
operated facilities addressing opioid and fentanyl use. Vicki said the priorities also
include bolstering education and prevention through developing the For Our Native
Lives campaign, Tribal prevention models, and school-based prevention programming.
Vicki said another priority is to streamline building a Tribally operated crisis stabilization
and inpatient facility. Vicki said AIHC was also supporting several Tribal positions as
well.

Chair Hayes transitioned the Board to the question-and-answer period.



Chair Hayes thanked Vicki for their presence at the meeting. Chair Hayes said the
Board wishes to recognize AIHC's work. Chair Hayes said that the Board will discuss its
2024 Legislative Statement today, in which there are references of support to the
AIHC’s policy priorities. Chair Hayes also wanted to acknowledge Board Member Steve
Kutz’'s work advising the 2024 Legislative Statement as well. Vicki thanked Chair Hayes
for the comments.

Chair Hayes then addressed Jaime. Chair Hayes stated excitement for WSALPHO's
work around syphilis treatment and asked Jaime to speak more about SB 5983 and its
proposed amendments and funding sources. Jaime shared that the policy
recommendation came from a 2022 STI/HPV workgroup which consisted of Department
experts, local public health, reproductive healthcare partners, and providers. Jaime said
that this group made several policy recommendations, some without budget impacts
and that this was one of them. Jaime said this group targeted syphilis because of its
significant health impact on adults and infants with congenital syphilis. Jaime said that
this legislation sought to amend the revised code of Washington (RCW) regarding the
licensing of medical assistants, to allow for the temporary authority to administer
treatment under telehealth supervision. Jaime spoke about the need for this treatment
pathway due to significant spikes in syphilis cases. Jaime said this legislation would
create more efficient avenues for treatment and shared an example from a King County
program that performs health outreach at encampments.

Chair Hayes then asked Amy to confirm whether funding for Foundational Public Health
Services (FPHS) was maintained in the Governor's Supplemental Budget. Amy
confirmed that this funding was maintained.

Kate Dean, Board Member, raised the topic of HB 2070 (integrating environmental
justice considerations into certain project decisions). Member Dean said this bill tasks
local health jurisdictions to create an environmental justice impact report for any
projects associated with the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA). Member Dean
asked the speakers whether they knew about the feasibility of or funding availability for
this component of the bill. Jaime said that WSALPHO would be contributing a fiscal
note. Jaime said that the assessment components of the bill may be related to FPHS
activities. Such as WSALPHO's climate change core group, in which local health
jurisdictions and Department staff are working on building a climate and health program.
Jaime said these FPHS activities may help mitigate the costs to local health
jurisdictions. Jaime said that several local health jurisdictions are leaning into
environmental justice work and spoke about Tacoma-Pierce County as an example.
Kelly said that in the past, there have been attempts to add environmental health
components to SEPA reviews and is glad the conversation is coming up again.

Member Dean asked whether there are efforts to clarify rules around local boards of
health aside from HB 2090 and SB 5970 (modifying local board of health county
commissioner membership). Member Dean said Jefferson County is still unable to get a
Tribal representative on their Board and is concerned with non-compliance. Jaime
added context around HB 20290 and SB 5970, which was brought by Thurston County
Public Health. Jaime said that WSALPHO is currently gathering information about other
needed rule changes, such as how the Public Health Advisory Board currently excludes
some of the largest local health jurisdictions. Jaime said that currently, WSALPHO is not




bringing forth any edits but will likely do so in the future. Vicki noted to Member Dean
that Clallam County is not out of compliance as the state can’t direct Tribal Members to
hold seats on local boards of health. Vicki spoke about a recent meeting with Candice
Wilson, Tribal Policy Director at the Department, and established a goal of increasing
Tribal representation on Local Boards of Health. Vicki hopes to see Tribes receiving
funding for the first time to do public health through FPHS. Vicki said that as Tribal
public health offices get staffed, hopefully, they will be able to fill empty seats on local
boards of health.

Socia Love-Thurman, Board Member, was excited to hear about partners’ work
regarding behavioral health licensure. Member Love-Thurman spoke about the Seattle
Indian Health Board’s (SIHB) effort to open a treatment bed facility to address the opioid
and fentanyl epidemic in Indian Country. Member Love-Thurman shared their clinic’s
daily encounters with this issue, such as having to administer CPR on the sidewalk
outside of the clinic. Member Love-Thurman asked Vicki if there had been discussion
about reimbursements for traditional medicine practitioners in their work at AIHC. Vicki
said that this issue is often discussed. Vicki said that there are currently no specific bills
regarding this topic. It is a continued topic of discussion with agencies and legislators,
and the AIHC is currently focusing on Medicaid transformation with the Health Care
Authority (HCA) to tackle this issue. Vicki said there was an effort to pass a
compensated care State Plan Amendment in 2012 or 2013, but it didn’t go through.
Vicki noted that some Tribes are hesitant to participate in the reimbursement
mechanism as they view it as capitalistic and culturally inappropriate. Vicki said that the
second Washington State Tribal Opioid and Fentanyl Summit would be hosted in spring
2024, focusing on treatment and trauma-informed care. Member Kutz said that the
reimbursement issue is at the federal level and that conversations at the state level
have been supportive.

Member Love-Thurman asked Jaime whether Tribal Members are a part of childhood
mortality review teams. Jaime said it depends on the circumstances. Jaime said that if a
child comes from a Tribal or immigrant community, then a representative from that
community is involved. Jaime said that the review team coordinator is tasked with
identifying the proper participants.

. WATER RECREATION PETITION WAC 246-260 UPDATE

Patty Hayes, Board Chair, said the Board had received a petition for rulemaking in 2023
relating to barrier latch height for recreation pool facilities (memo on file). Chair Hayes
invited presenters to provide an update on how the petition has been incorporated in
ongoing rulemaking for Chapter 246-260 Washington administrative code (WAC).
Andrew Kamali, Board staff, and David DeLong, Department of Health, provided
information on the underlying issue in the rule related to the petition request, actions
taken by staff, and proposed rule language (presentation on file).

Chair Hayes asked presenters for a reminder of the timeline for revisions to Chapter
246-260 WAC. Andrew said it is tough to answer since two processes are happening
concurrently: (1) agency request legislation to revise the revised code of Washington
(RCW) and (2) rulemaking to update chapter 246-260 WAC. Andrew added that
processes will likely continue through 2024 and possibly into Summer 2025.



Michelle Davis, Board Executive Director, asked if local health has worked with the
specific facility referenced in the rule petition to address the immediate issue noted by
the petitioner. David confirmed that this had happened and said the facility needed to
install a latch with the original approved condition, which was a lower-height latch to be
compliant with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

Kelly Oshiro, Vice Chair asked if the proposed rule language about latches operated
using a key, electronic opener, or combination lock reflects requirements in the Model
Aquatic Health Code (MAHC) and the ADA. David confirmed that the proposed rule
language would be compliant with the ADA. For latch-height requirements under the
MAHC, David said there is a distinction between doors and gates. Vice Chair Oshiro
expressed gratitude for the staff's mindfulness. Vice Chair Oshiro said the Board wants
to ensure accessibility, safety for children, and compliance with various codes affecting
a water recreation facility. Stephen Kutz, Board Member asked whether staff intend to
do rulemaking to address these issues in the rule. Andrew confirmed that these issues
are being addressed in the ongoing rule making for chapter 246-260 WAC.

Paj Nandi, Board Member asked whether staff are inviting additional disability
community partners and advocates to the rule making process, how participants are
responding to the efforts, and how this rule making interacts with similar national efforts.
David said that a specific constituency is outlined in the rule and staff have invited those
groups as well as additional parties. David said rule making is a public process and staff
are doing their due diligence to engage communities who may be impacted by changes.

Kate Dean, Board Member asked staff to speak about the rule’s alignment with the
international building code, which may have different language on the same issue.
David said that the Washington State Building Code Council (SBCC) has the authority
to develop rules affecting residential swimming pools and the International Swimming
Pool and Spa Code applies to residential swimming pools in Washington. David said
state law obligates the Board and Department of Health (Department) to look at the
MAHC, so staff are modeling proposed rule (chapter 246-260 WAC) on this code.
Andrew added that there is SBCC staff serving on the technical advisory committee for
this rule making to provide information on how Board rules and SBCC rules interact.

Chair Hayes thanked presenters for the update.

. 2024 STATE HEALTH REPORT

Patty Hayes, Board Chair, invited Member Flores to introduce the topic. Mindy Flores,
Board Member, said Washington law requires the Board to submit a report to the
Governor’'s Office every two years to identify public health priorities and legislative
action for the following biennium. Member Flores said the Board’s next State Health
Report is due by July 2024 and outlined the purpose of the report and introduced staff to
discuss the topic further.

Molly Dinardo and Hannah Haag, Board staff, spoke about the report planning and
development process, including possible topic areas for the 2024 State Health Report
(presentation on file). Molly said the development process will be like the process used




in 2022, it will be iterative and will incorporate more community engagement. Hannah
shared the goal and plans for engaging communities. This includes remaining flexible
on recommendation areas as the Board actively listens to communities’ priorities and
listening to voices from communities who are overburdened or disproportionately
impacted by health inequities.

Chair Hayes thanked Member Flores for leadership on this project. Chair Hayes asked
Jaime Bodden from the Washington Association of Local Public Health Officials
(WSALPHO), who was sitting in the audience, to keep the Board'’s efforts in mind since
some local communities have completed community health assessments, which could
help inform the Board'’s report.

Dimyana Abdelmalek, Board Member, expressed gratitude for including community
voices in the report development and excitement for the community storytelling panel
scheduled for the March Board meeting. Member Abdelmalek offered to share
community health assessments from their local jurisdiction.

Paj Nandi, Board Member expressed gratitude and noted the challenges of a short
project timeline. Member Nandi asked how staff are prioritizing communities, given the
Board’s commitment to using an anti-racist lens, as well as their plan for coordinating
with partners so as not to duplicate efforts. Hannah said staff have a plan on how to
bring folks from overburdened communities into the process. Hannah said staff will
engage partners who have an established relationship with the Board, and staff will ask
partners whom else staff should speak with. Hannah added that staff are very open to
hearing Board Members’ ideas about specific groups, sectors, and methods.

Stephen Kutz, Board Member noted some challenges people face when trying to attend
a public meeting, such as transportation, weather, and geographic location. Member
Kutz asked how the Board can ensure engagement with people in Central and Eastern
Washington and said it may take more than one meeting to do this. Molly affirmed
Member Kutz’s considerations and said staff want to set up a strong foundation for
future Board processes and products.

Kelly Oshiro, Vice Chair said it is nice to see continuity between past State Health
Report topics and the proposed 2024 topics. Vice Chair Oshiro said it may be beneficial
to receive a briefing on the topic of pregnant person health and mortality prevention
since it seems the Board is addressing this topic for the first time. Vice Chair Oshiro
noted that it would be helpful as a Board Member to get an additional briefing on the
accomplishments and achievements on topics the Board is carrying over from past
reports.

Kate Dean, Board Member shared an interest in having robust community participation
in report development. Member Dean reflected on experience serving on a local board
of health and noted that the use of jargon and the creation of an echo chamber can
happen when people work in silos. Member Dean said care should be given to how
concepts are talked about in community settings, such as buying healthy food, various
ways substance use disorder is spoken about, and recognizing that the ability to
exercise is a privilege. Molly said the Governor’s Office released an executive order on




plain talking, and staff will incorporate that order as well as Board Members’ reminders
in their efforts.

The Board took a break at 10:45 a.m. and reconvened at 10:55 a.m.

. INDOOR AIR QUALITY PANEL

Patty Hayes, Board Chair, briefly introduced the topic and the panel. Chair Hayes said
that the COVID-19 pandemic highlighted the importance of indoor air quality (IAQ) to
reduce the spread of respiratory illness. Chair Hayes said that most exposure to illness
happens indoors, as most people in the United States spend 90 percent of their time
indoors. Chair Hayes said the Board needs a robust understanding to make decisions
impacting people in the state.

Andrew Kamali, Board staff, described materials, discussed the structure of the panel,
and shared a brief biography for each panelist (materials on file).

Eric Vander Mey, Delta E Consulting, gave a presentation about IAQ and mechanical
heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) system design impacts due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. Eric also presented on recent changes to the Washington State
Energy code, the Washington State Clean Buildings Act and Seattle Building Emissions
Performance Standard, and sustainability standards (presentation on file).

Brandon Kemperman, Public Health - Seattle King County, gave a presentation on the
importance of IAQ, lessons learned around IAQ in Washington from the COVID-19

pandemic, and topics of importance. Brandon also presented future needs around IAQ
work and Public Health — Seattle & King County’s IAQ programs (presentation on file).

Nancy Bernard, Department of Health, gave a presentation about the history of the
Department of Health (Department) work in school environmental health and safety, its
current work, and lessons learned from the COVID-19 pandemic. Nancy also
summarized the Department’s standards and guidance around ventilation (presentation
on file).

Ben Omura, State Building Code Council, gave a presentation about the State Building
Code Council (SBCC) and its work. Ben also presented on the 2021 code cycle, which
will come into effect on March 15, 2024, and topics of concern for the 2024 code cycle
(presentation on file).

Erin McTigue, Environmental Protection Agency Region 10, gave a presentation about
the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) role in indoor air work and its focus areas.
Eric discussed issues around housing and health disparities, Tribal and rural
communities, children’s environmental health, climate change impacts, and infectious
disease. Erin noted there are very few regulations related to indoor air quality which
means that many of their programs are voluntary and that there are a few grant
programs with funding available, including various new funds focused on Environmental
Justice (presentation on file).




Chair Hayes transitioned into the discussion.

Stephen Kutz, Board Member asked what the ideal Merv filter is. Member Kutz said
there was a lot of conversation about minimum standards, but we should look at ideal
as well as minimum. Nancy answered that Merv 13 is ideal. Nancy said the Department
tries to provide guidance above minimum standards, and there are some standards
focused on the care of machines versus human impact. Member Kutz noted not hearing
about the proper need to maintain the system and clarified that there is a difference
between filter changes and maintenance. Nancy answered yes, funding for
maintenance is always being cut, but if you don’t maintain your systems, they won't
work.

Michelle Davis, Board Executive Director asked if transient accommodations fall under
Merv 13 and if this includes restaurants. Ben answered yes, typically those occupancy
types fall under the same Merv 13 requirements, but there are some exceptions for very
small systems.

Executive Director Davis asked as the building code adopts its new standards, do those
apply just to new construction or to facilities that were constructed before the effective
date. Ben answered typically, modifications to current buildings do trigger review and a
need to meet current building codes.

Kate Dean, Board Member asked if residential cooking is a new component of the state
building code. Ben answered that this is not a new section but adds to it, this new code
differentiates space types.

Chair Hayes closed the panel with thanks to all the panelists and a reaffirmation that the
Board is taking this issue very seriously.

The Board recessed for lunch at 12:40 p.m. and reconvened at 1:30 p.m.

. RULES HEARING — ON-SITE SEWAGE SYSTEMS, CHAPTER 246-272 WAC

Kate Dean, Board Member provided a brief introduction to this agenda item. The
introduction included the Board’s rulemaking authority related to on-site sewage
systems, the purpose of the Board’s rules, and some background history on this
rulemaking work. Member Dean then introduced the Board and Department of Health
(Department) staff to provide an overview of the rule revision process, the proposed rule
for consideration, and written public comments received on the proposed rule.

Andrew Kamali, Board staff, directed Board Members to the key materials for the
hearing in their meeting packet and shared additional background information on the
rulemaking. Andrew also introduced the information that would be presented in the
presentation leading up to the public hearing and information about how the hearing
would be conducted.

Jeremy Simmons, Department of Health, presented on the revision of Chapter 246-
272A Washington Administrative Code (WAC). Jeremy started by summarizing the
history of this rulemaking, followed by the 2017 rule review process and the changes




proposed based on this work. Jeremy then presented the public comments the
Department received on the proposed rules and the adjustments that the Department
plans to make based on the comments received to date. Jeremy concluded by providing
information on the proposed implementation schedule for the proposed rules if the
Board adopts the proposed amendments (see presentation on file).

Patty Hayes, Board Chair, thanked Department staff for their presentation and

stated that the Board would open the rules hearing for Chapter 246-272A WAC. Chair
Hayes read a statement to provide additional information and instructions for the
hearing and then formally opened the hearing for public testimony. Each member of the
public was given four minutes for their testimony. Testimonies were provided in person
and via Zoom Webinar. Microphones were muted after the allotted time expired.

Eric Long gave testimony based on personal experience with on-site sewage systems
(OSS) as a homeowner in Washington. E. Long expressed concern with the proposed
rules, noting that the current rule only allows a certified professional, certified by the
Department, to install, repair, and construct the design of an on-site sewage system.
The current rules do not allow a person to make repairs to their own property. You must
hire a licensed contractor, an architect, or another licensed professional, which can be
very expensive. E. Long stated that this was wrong, and if a person can make their own
repairs and meet the standard, the law allows you to do that, but the current code
doesn’t permit this. E. Long has requested estimates from different licensed
professionals and has been quoted between $100,000 and $200,000 for repairs. E.
Long stated that if a homeowner could make their own repairs, even following all the
standards and meeting the inspection requirements, in comparison, it would cost more
like $15,000. E. Long compared this to an individual unable to file their own tax return
because they weren'’t licensed as a tax professional. E. Long concluded by saying that
with the current on-site rules, agencies are not serving the public.

Bill Dewey, Director of Public Affairs for Taylor Shellfish, spoke in support of the
proposed rules. B. Dewey shared brief comments regarding the proposed rules to
reinforce written comments they already submitted during the public comment period. B.
Dewey emphasized how important addressing on-site sewage is for their company and
the shellfish industry in Washington. Taylor Shellfish has over 14,000 acres of tidelands
that they own or lease and farm in six different counties. As the Director of Public
Affairs, B. Dewey's role has been dedicated to addressing water quality issues because
it impacts Taylor Shellfish’s ability to produce safe shellfish for the public. On-site
sewage is one of the primary areas of concern. B. Dewey has been involved in prior on-
site sewage system rule updates over the years for both residential and large on-site
septic systems. B. Dewey commended Jeremy and Jeremy’s staff for the process they
follow for the on-site sewage rulemaking, stating that the team takes the time to hear
and respond to everyone’s comments and that it is a thorough process. B. Dewey
concluded by urging Board Member adoption of the rule.

Michael Thomas spoke in opposition to the proposed rules based on their personal
experience with on-site sewage systems as a homeowner in King County. M. Thomas
expressed several concerns with the rule revisions, first related to per capita water use.
From M. Thomas personal experience, they are using only 26 to 30 gallons per day per
person. M. Thomas noted they could take more measures, like using a toilet that uses




1.0 gallons per flush or using water recycling technology in their shower like Orbital
Systems. M. Thomas stated that this is a key parameter in on-site sewage design. M.
Thomas says this propagates to the sizes of things like minimum tank size, field size,
and all kinds of very expensive items that are needed for an OSS or even a revised
OSS. M. Thomas also shared that they have a 30-year OSS that functions flawlessly.

M. Thomas stated that the 45 gallons per capita per day referenced in the proposed rule
is ancient and would appreciate it if the Board discussed the last time this requirement
was revised. M. Thomas also expressed concern with guidance and clarity around the
distance from public sewers, which is 200 feet, questioning the feasibility of this
requirement. M. Thomas expressed another concern related to the reduction in
minimum surface area in the rule, stating that this would increase the re-permitting costs
if ever needed and additional inspection requirements. M. Thomas also stated support
for the comments heard earlier in testimony related to the exorbitant costs of
professional replacement, saying that well-informed and educated citizens should be
able to make their own repairs.

Chair Hayes closed the public testimony portion of the rules hearing and asked if there
was a motion and second from Board Members to begin questions and discussion.

Motion: The Board adopts the proposed amendments to chapter 246-272A WAC, On-
Site Sewage Systems, as published in WSR 23-22-062 with the revisions agreed upon
at today’s meeting, if any, and directs staff to file a CR-103, Order of Adoption, and
establish an effective date for the rules.

Motion/Second: Member Kutz/Member Kwan-Gett. Member Flores abstained.

Stephen Kutz, Board Member, asked staff to clarify if the rule requires every on-site
system to have a plan for review and approval. Member Kutz noted in the Department’s
presentation, there was mention that the rule requires a review of plans every five
years. Jeremy clarified that part of the presentation referred to local management plans
that primarily help Puget Sound counties design their inspection programs and inventory
septic systems. Jeremey stated that it doesn’t refer to individual septic systems, these
local management plans are only for counties. Jeremy said septic systems do not need
to have plans for review and approval every five years.

Member Kutz inquired about the proposed changes to small lot sizes and whether pre-
existing lots will be grandfathered in. Jeremy responded that the minimum lot size is
12,500, and the proposed rules increased that and other lot sizes by their respective soil
types in a range of 500 to 1,000. Jeremy stated that for small lot sizes, the requirement
changed from 12,500 to 13,000, and asked Member Kutz if this answered the question.
Member Kutz confirmed that it did.

Member Kutz asked if all lots require reserved areas that remain unbuildable and
unmodified. Jeremy said this was correct and that if a person is going to install a septic
system on a new lot, this was a long-standing requirement in the rule. Jeremy clarified
that an individual cannot build, subdivide, or pave this area.

Kelly Oshiro, Vice Chair inquired about the language in the definitions section of WAC
246-272A-0010, number 72, Puget Sound County, and where it says King County and




Tacoma-Pierce whether the rule is referring to the City of Seattle or King County as a
whole. Jeremy clarified that this language refers to the local health jurisdictions in these
counties.

Vice Chair Oshiro noted that this was a bit unclear when reading the rule. Vice Chair
Oshiro also commented that in future rulemaking staff should look at removing
unnecessary use of acronyms and abbreviations to make the rule easier to read and
simplifying language where possible.

Member Kutz asked staff to clarify rule requirements around on-site sewage self-
installation, which the first public testifier spoke to during the hearing.

Jeremy shared that, in general, counties can allow owners to do installs on their own
properties and that the public testimony was referencing the parts of the rule where it
says resident owner and installations and design. Jeremy clarified that the state code
says if you own a property and you live there, you can do that install and design, but
local health jurisdictions often restrict that further and say not for proprietary products
and not for repairs that are close to the shoreline. Jeremy said some local rules are
stricter than the state rules.

Kate Dean, Board Member, commented that this is an important issue and that in rural
counties like Jefferson County, most residents are on septic systems, and shellfish is
their largest farm gate industry. Member Dean asked staff to remind Board Members
about the requirements around inspections and whether homeowners can do
inspections on some non-proprietary systems.

Jeremy confirmed that homeowners are allowed to do routine inspections. Jeremy also
clarified that the proposed rules do not change anything related to routine inspections,
which are required every three years for a gravity, low-technology system and every
year for a higher-technology septic system, and these requirements have been in place
since 2005. Jeremy noted that state rules, allow homeowners to do these inspections
themselves, and many counties develop certification or approval processes for
homeowners to complete inspections, but counties do not need to require homeowners
to do their own inspections.

Member Dean commented on the issues that the first testifier, Eric Long, brought up.
Member Dean said these rules are important for public health and environmental public
health, but there’s also an affordability question, and often a problem where these
systems can become unaffordable and make homeownership out of reach for many
people, especially in more rural counties. Member Dean stated that the challenge with
these rules is that they need to strike a balance and noted appreciation for staff
because they have worked with the public to try and find this balance of affordability and
safety. Member Dean also inquired if during the rulemaking process if there was a
discussion around incentivizing conservation, especially as it relates to water use and
the per capita gallon use provision in the rule.

Jeremy said that this topic was briefly discussed during committee meetings. Jeremy
noted that the public testifier who spoke about this issue had good points and that this
requirement isn’t necessarily current. Jeremy stated that, in general, the Department



sizes septic systems based on numbers from the Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) and has been in an adaptive management mode for several years or decades
based on these numbers. Jeremy noted that if the rules proposed smaller water use and
drain fields, practitioners would say this isn’t a good move because drain fields fail at a
high rate, about 7 to 20%, depending on the location. Jeremy stated that proposing
lower water use rates and drain fields could potentially lead to more failures, and the
goal is to lower failure rates for these systems, and this is not where we should try to cut
costs. Jeremy also shared that they are working on funding to help people with this
infrastructure and that, largely, this issue stems from the U.S. wastewater system
infrastructure. Jeremy concluded that as a society, we need to acknowledge this and try
to figure out how to make sure things are functioning while also helping people pay for
them without putting the total costs of these systems on individuals.

Member Dean added that good policy should incentivize behavior change. Member
Dean stated that, for example, if a homeowner were to take their greywater treatment
out of their septic system, there are permittable pathways to do that, but it's extremely
expensive, and there wouldn’t be cost savings. Member Dean said if we always default
to the larger, more expensive system, that doesn’t necessarily bring about the types of
change that we need for overall societal benefits. Member Dean concluded that the
Board wouldn’t be able to solve this problem today but wanted to raise this issue in the
discussion. Member Dean also asked about privies, whether counties still allow them,
and if privies are addressed in this rule or perhaps another rule.

Jeremy clarified that privies and other technologies, like composting toilets, are
captured in their recommended standards and guidance document.

10. EMERGENCY RULEMAKING — ON-SITE SEWAGE SYSTEMS, WAC 246-272A-
0110, PROPRIETARY TREATMENT PRODUCTS AND SUPPLY CHAIN
SHORTAGES
Tao Sheng Kwan-Gett, Secretary’s Designee, introduced the item. Regardless of
today's action of the on-site sewage system (OSS) rules hearing, the following matter
requires separate action to maintain continuity of the rule. The fifth emergency rule is
set to expire on February 3, 2024. The Department of Health (Department) is requesting
a sixth emergency rule to prevent a break in this emergency rule before the completion
of the permanent rulemaking. Andrew Kamali, Board Staff, provided additional
background on this rule and referred to the meeting materials for more information
(materials on file). Andrew introduced Jeremy Simmons, Department of Health, to briefly
explain the Department's request.

Patty Hayes, Board Chair, made note of Jeremy doing a stellar job of providing multiple
briefings on this rule before. Chair Hayes asked whether Board Members need a
briefing or if the Board is ready to make a motion.




Motion: The Board adopts the proposed amendments to chapter 246-272A WAC, On-
Site Sewage Systems, as published in WSR 23-22-062 with the revisions agreed upon
at today’s meeting, if any, and directs staff to file a CR-103, Order of Adoption, and
establish an effective date for the rules.

Motion/Second: Member Kwan-Gett/Member Dean. Approved unanimously.

11.

Steve Kutz, Board Member asked whether progress was being made on addressing
supply chain issues. Chair Hayes stated the rule that was just passed should take care
of these issues, and asked Jeremy to confirm. Jeremy confirmed that this is correct.

The Board took a break at 2:43 p.m. and reconvened at 3:00 p.m.

PETITION FOR RULEMAKING FOR CHAPTER 246-760 WAC, VISUAL SCREENING
STANDARDS - SCHOOL DISTRICTS

Socia Love-Thurman, Board Member, summarized the Board’s petition for rulemaking
process, and the statutory requirements the Board must follow when a petition is
received. Member Love-Thurman stated that in November, the Board received a petition
for rulemaking to amend its school vision screening standards to add screening for color
vision deficiency (CVD), also known as color blindness (materials on file).

Molly Dinardo, Board staff, introduced two subject matter experts in school vision
screening standards. The first person is Dr. Bruce Moore, New England College of
Optometry, National Center for Children Vision and Eye Health. The second is_Annie
Hetzel, Office of Superintendent Public Instruction. Molly provided more information on
the petition and CVD, an overview of the National Childhood Vision Screening
guidelines, and the Board's options for responding to the petition (materials on file).

Patty Hayes, Board Chair, opened the topic for further discussion.

Steve Kutz, Board Member, inquired about the rationale for periodic screening for color
vision deficiency at prescribed intervals, as you’re either born with color vision
deficiency or not. Dr. Moore responded that Member Kutz was correct, and in almost all
cases, it is a genetic condition, with only some rare diseases affecting color vision over
time. Dr. Moore also added several comments in addition to the presentation from staff.
Dr. Moore shared that they have color vision deficiency, and it wasn’t until they had to
take Organic Chemistry at University that it became an issue. Dr. Moore also provided
more details on why color vision deficiency screening in schools isn’t recommended,
including that if schools do not have a precise, correct, and expensive light source, they
cannot conduct accurate and reliable testing. Dr. Moore also noted that the color plates
are expensive and sensitive. If fingerprints get on the plates, the accuracy of the test
can be destroyed. Dr. Moore concluded that implementing this screening in all school
buildings across all districts wouldn’t be feasible and that color vision deficiency isn’t as
big of a problem as people without the condition think it is.

Paj Nandi, Board Member, thanked Molly for the strong background and context, and
Dr. Moore for the additional comments. Member Nandi asked what we know about the
states currently testing for color vision deficiency and the costs of screening. Molly




responded that some states have color vision deficiency screening as a requirement in
their state law, while others are doing targeted screening in kindergarten or screening
by referral from teachers to the school nurses. Molly stated that it varies, and they would
need to follow up with additional information and invited Dr. Moore and Annie to chime
in if they had more insight to share.

Dr. Moore added that if you do not have the precise light source or the precision of
plates, screening results will be off, which is a particular issue in a school setting. Dr.
Moore stated that in school screening programs, there are a lot of people handling the
plates and tests, which can leave more room for error. Dr. Moore said the bottom line is
that testing for color vision deficiency should be done at an eye doctor's office with
proper materials and equipment, and there is little value in doing it statewide through
mass screening. Molly stated that there are research documents that outline which
states conduct testing for color vision deficiency and can forward these materials to
Member Nandi.

Tao Kwan-Gett, Board Member, thanked Molly and the subject matter experts for their
presentation. Member Kwan-Gett inquired about the administrative and personnel
burden of adding this testing and whether the type of color vision deficiency that is
caused by certain eye conditions can be modified by early detection of color vision
deficiency. Annie asked to respond to some of the topics previously discussed. Annie
commented on the challenge of tracking students that have been tested, and said it is
very difficult, logistically, during annual school screenings to know who has been
screened for color vision or any other kind of vision screening. Regarding the
administrative burden, Annie stated that not all schools have vision and hearing
screening equipment on site, and many school nurses need to be able to pack up the
equipment and travel with it from school to school. Annie also mentioned that recent
changes to the vision screening rules five or six years ago increased the time that
students are out of class for vision screenings, and several school nurses have
experienced pushback from school administrators who are upset about students
missing out on educational time. Annie concluded that adding another test would
complicate this further and would put school nurses in a challenging position.

Kate Dean, Board Member, stated that Member Kwan-Gett's second question wasn’t
answered. Member Kwan-Gett repeated the question of whether early detection of
conditions can be modified by testing for color vision deficiency. Dr. Moore answered
no, not really. Dr. Moore said that an individual who has an ocular disease condition
with color vision defects as a component is almost always going to have more
significant visual acuity deficits that would become apparent or picked up on a screener.
Dr. Moore added that there is nothing specific about color vision deficiency testing that
would improve the ability to detect other eye conditions at an earlier time.

Motion: The Board declines the petition for rulemaking to revise applicable sections of
chapter 246-760 WAC to include screening for color vision deficiency in the Washington
State school vision screening standards and procedures under RCW 28A.210.020 for
the reasons articulated by Board Members. The Board directs staff to notify the
petitioner of the Board’s decision.

Motion/Second: Member Kutz/Member Nandi. Approved unanimously.




Member Love-Thurman thanked the subject matter experts and Molly for their time.
Member Love-Thurman said that given the high prevalence of color vision deficiency in
boys, it sounds like we need to adapt school teaching materials and classrooms to
better suit folks, knowing that there are mostly boys out there who don’t see red and
green very well.

Kate Dean, Board Member thanked the petitioner and their efforts. Member Dean stated
that if implementing this test didn’t come with so many challenges, then it would have
maybe been a good idea. Member Dean added that they hope there is more of an effort
to identify kids with color vision deficiency.

12.2024 LEGISLATIVE STATEMENT
Michelle Davis, Board Executive Director, reminded Board Members that she had
shared the 2023 Legislative Statement at the November Board meeting, and directed
members to an updated 2024 draft for their consideration.

Executive Director Davis said the legislative document is intended to guide staff during
the 2024 legislative session. Executive Director Davis said during legislative sessions,
Board staff identify, review, and analyze bills that align with the Board'’s legislative
statement. Executive Director Davis shared that the team may just monitor a bill’s
progress through the legislative session or submit written comments to the sponsor or a
committee in support of or against the legislation, or may provide testimony at hearings
on behalf of the Board. Board staff often suggest technical changes to improve
legislation. Executive Director Davis shared the draft and asked the Board to help take
action to finalize the statement (materials on file).

Paj Nandi, Board Member asked if the Board previously adopted a statement of racism
as a public health crisis. Executive Director Davis replied yes. Member Nandi asked if
there’s a way to recognize the Board standing behind that statement, saying this aligns
with Chair Hayes's recommendation that the crisis was a call to action around the
pandemic and that the work is not done.

Patty Hayes, Board Chair concurred with Member Nandi, saying the intent was to make
the statement stronger by calling it out and making it clear.

Steve Kutz, Board Member, said any stresses in the system exacerbate the problem.

Executive Director Davis talked about the data desegregation change, saying we added
the national academies’ recommendation and clarified data collection. Member Oshiro’s
suggestion included desegregation for policymakers for better informed decisions
regarding disparities in communities.

Executive Director Davis described additional updates, including maternal mortality,
newborn screening, Health Impact Reviews (HIR), school environment and safety,
shellfish sanitation, drinking water, oral health, opioids, mental health, and other Board
work.



Member Kutz said this is an incredible amount of work between meetings. Executive
Director Davis complimented the Board staff.

Motion: The Board adopts the Statement of Policy on the 2024 Legislative Issues as
discussed on January 10, 2024, including Board Member Nandi’s suggestion to make
strong and clear the piece on racism as a public health crisis.

Motion/Second: Vice Chair Oshiro/Member Kutz. Approved unanimously.

13. SNOHOMISH COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT COMPLAINT
Kelly Oshiro, Vice Chair, introduced the complaint filed on November 28, 2023, against
the Snohomish County Health Department (SCHD) Director and Local Health Officer.
Vice Chair Oshiro provided background on the Board’s authority related to complaints
against local health officials and stated that Washington law allows anyone to file a
complaint and that Board authority allows the Board to authorize an investigation if the
complaint is warranted. Vice Chair Oshiro provided some additional details on the
complaint and asked if there were any Board Members who needed to recuse
themselves from this discussion.

Patty Hayes, Board Chair, stated they were turning the gavel over to Vice Chair Oshiro
and would be recusing themself from this discussion. Paj Nandi, Board Member, also
recused themself.

Vice Chair Oshiro had the Board Members who recused themselves step away from the
discussion table.

Molly Dinardo, Board staff provided additional information on the complaint and directed
Board Members to the materials for this agenda item. Molly mentioned that Snohomish
County provided a response to the initial complaint and that per the Board’s policy for
responding to complaints, the Board sends a copy of the complaint to the subject local
health officials, and they are permitted to respond if they choose to. Molly then outlined
the Board’s options for possible action on the complaint.

Vice Chair Oshiro opened the discussion and asked if a Board Member wanted to make
a motion before the discussion.

Steve Kutz, Board Member, said before making a motion, they wanted to acknowledge
that health officers have had an incredibly hard book of business in Washington during
the pandemic. Member Kutz stated that many health officers have been pulled in
multiple directions during the pandemic, but the pandemic has been declared as over.

Vice Chair Oshiro agreed and stated Governor Inslee has rescinded all emergency
orders, so there are not currently any masking guidelines statewide, except for certain
facilities.

Member Kutz added that this guidance is recommended for people to follow, but they
are not required.



Kate Dean, Board Member, made a motion.

Motion: The Board determines that the complaint does not merit an investigation
because, for the reasons articulated by the Board, it does not indicate a possible
violation of public health law and that the Board directs staff to notify the complainant of
the Board’s decision.

Motion/Second: Member Dean/Member Kutz. Approved unanimously

Vice Chair Oshiro asked if there were any further comments or discussions.

Dimyana Abdelmalek, Board Member, said they wanted to echo what has already been
shared, and that at this point, masking is largely voluntary.

Tao Kwan-Gett, Secretary’s Designee, added that Board Members were correct in
saying that there are no current statewide requirements for masking. Member Kwan-
Gett said that state guidance is aligned with guidance from the Centers for Disease
Control (CDC), and guidance cannot be enforced. Member Kwan-Gett shared that the
Board needs to consider these complaints when they are submitted because it is
possible there could be situations where local health officials are not serving the needs
of their community. Member Kwan-Gett said that in this case, if there is a standard of
practice for public health, the health officer and administrator in Snohomish County
exceed that standard. Member Kwan-Gett agreed with the motion that this complaint
should be denied as it does not merit an investigation.

Member Kutz commented on the complainant’s request for mandatory isolation and
quarantine. Member Kutz said during the pandemic, in the United States, mandatory or
enforced quarantine did not occur, only recommendations for people to voluntarily
quarantine themselves.

Mindy Flores, Board Member, stated they could not determine where there was
substantial evidence that a violation occurred and agreed with Member Kwan-Gett that
none of these complaints should be taken lightly.

Chair Hayes and Member Nandi returned.

14. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
Tao Kwan-Gett, Secretary’s Designee, said a media release went out today that the
Department of Health (Department) will supply naloxone to schools that want it. Member
Kwan-Gett shared this was done in collaboration with the Office of Superintendent
Public Instruction (OSPI) and is meaningful and potentially lifesaving. Member Kwan-
Gett said hopefully no school will use it, but they will have it if they need it, and this
shows how seriously we take it.

Stephen Kutz, Board Member, said it appears that the federal government is looking
again at the issue around Kratom and asked Board staff to research. Member Kutz said
the items are coming into the United States without knowledge of ingredients and
people are dying from using them.




Michelle Davis, Board Executive Director, recommends having the April 10 Board
meeting in Eastern Washington, based Board Member requests to hear from the
community regarding the State Health Report. Executive Director Davis said the March
meeting is packed and that an April 10 meeting will give staff additional time to engage
with the community in the process.

Patty Hayes, Board Chair thanked the staff and Board Members for a full meeting.

ADJOURNMENT

Patty Hayes, Board Chair, adjourned the meeting at 3:59 p.m.

WASHINGTON STATE BOARD OF HEALTH

To request this document in an alternate format or a different language, please contact the
Washington State Board of Health at 360-236-4110 or by email at wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
TTY users can dial 711.

PO Box 47990 « Olympia, Washington « 98504-7990
360-236-4110 » wsboh@sboh.wa.gov ¢ sboh.wa.gov



mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
http://www.sboh.wa.gov/

WASHINGTON STATE Wl
BOARDorHEALTH

Public Comment

Added three business days prior to meeting

There are two sections.
The first contains timely materials sent during the open public comment time period.
The second section contains materials sent within 15 minutes of the deadline. Included as
they are relevant to a topic under consideration by the Board at the March 13 meeting.



From: Christi Ellefson

Sent: 1/17/2024 11:59:52 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Important vaccine information

Y
attachments\55A4B10E46FE4306_20240103-halt-use-covid19-mrna-
vaccines.pr.pdf

External Email

https://www.floridahealth.gov/_documents/newsroom/press-
releases/2024/01/20240103-halt-use-covid19-mrna-vaccines.pr.pdf
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.floridahealth.gov%2F_docun
releases%2F2024%2F01%2F20240103-halt-use-covid19-mrna-
vaccines.pr.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Cfabdfcb1158547af321008dc17965613%7(



From: Scott Shock

Sent: 1/7/2024 2:07:20 AM

To: DOH Secretary's Office,DOH Office of the Chief of Staff,DOH Office of Innovation and
Technology,DOH Office of Prevention Safety and Health,DOH Office of Strategic
Partnerships,DOH Office of Health and Science,DOH Office of Public Affairs and

Equity, DOH OS Executive Office of Policy Planning and Evaluation,DOH Office of
Resilience and Health Security, DOH WSBOH,AGOOmbuds@atg.wa.gov,Ferguson, Bob
(ATG)

Cc:

Subject: Call for a Halt to the Use of COVID-19 mRNA Vaccines

Vi

attachments\A7608FB4F1724CAB https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack-post-
media_PRDTOOL_NAMETOOLONG.pn
/;/7

attachments\8BDE9725E1EA4316_image.pn

Vi

attachments\52B6A68E8D7A482C 533cffc1-5832-4347-9e16-
b1120c16554d_600x375.bi

v/

attachments\22E9F602B2464790_Zero Trust "Don't trust any,
but PRDTOOL _NAMETOOLONG.
V.

attachments\863FF86CFF34454E https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack-post-
media PRDTOOL NAMETOOLONG.pn

External Email

I'm still looking forward to responses on what actions the WSDOH, WSBOH, and WA AG
are taking to protect the people of Washington State against these unsafe products, and
to gain justice for those injured by these products. Here is more for your consideration.

<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fopen.substack.com%2Fpub%%2Fst
summary-of-the-evidence-
against%3Fr%3Dtaogl%26utm_campaign%3Dpost%26utm_medium%3Demail&data=05%7C02%7Cwsbot

A summary of the evidence against the COVID vaccines
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fopen.substack.com®%2Fpub®%2Fst
summary-of-the-evidence-
against%3Fr%3Dtaogl%26utm_campaign®%3Dpost%26utm_medium%3Demail&data=05%7C02%7Cwsbot

open.substack.com
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fopen.substack.com®%2Fpub%2Fst
summary-of-the-evidence-
against%3Fr%3Dtaogl%26utm_campaign%3Dpost%26utm_medium%3Demail&data=05%7C02%7Cwsbot

Here is a short list of reasons that everyone should be concerned about the COVID
vaccine. This is not an exhaustive list.

1. Doctors are told to trust the FDA and CDC, but not verify, when prescribing
vaccines. All the post-marketing safety data is kept hidden by health authorities so not
even doctors can look at the data themselves to find out if any vaccine is safe. Doctors



have to trust the authorities. They are essentially told: “trust, do not verify.”

<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%?2Fredirect%2F9b5
9bd9-48d4-b525-

567127205¢c25%3Fj%3Deyl1IjoidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWa0OLFC4PLtNGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?

2. The CDC itself doesn’t have the data to make a post-marketing independent
vaccine safety assessment and they are not interested in obtaining the data either!The
CDC relies on the FDA who relies on the manufacturer to test the product. The CDC could
ask states for vaccination records tied to death records, but they don't want to even ask
because if they did an analysis, it could be discovered in a FOIA request. The CDC
basically has no interest whatsoever in verifying what the actual safety data is.

3. Lack of transparency by health authorities. Not a single health authority anywhere
in the world has ever released anonymized record-level patient data for independent
researchers to assess the safety of any vaccine. There isn’t any paper in a peer-reviewed
journal showing that health outcomes are improved if public health data is kept secret.

4, Lack of interest in data transparency by the medical community. Can you name a
single high-profile pro-vaccine member of the medical community who has called for data
transparency of public health data? Time-series cohort analyses can be easily produced
by health authorities and published for everyone to see. These would show safety signals
and do not jeopardize patient privacy. These are all kept hidden.

5. We aren’t allowed to see even the simplest of charts. Wouldn't it be great to
define two cohorts on July 1, 2021: COVID vaccinated vs. COVID unvaccinated. Then you
simply record the deaths from that point forward and plot them. Why isn’t this being
published?

6. Misinformation is deemed to be a problem, but the people making these
statements are unwilling to take any steps to stop the so-called misinformation. These
steps include: open public discussion to resolve differences of opinion and making public
health data available/public in a way that preserves privacy. For example, HHS (as well
as every state health department) should welcome all of us with open arms and invite us
to query their databases (such as VSD and Medicare in the case of HHS) and publish
whatever we find. Why does this information need to be hidden? The numbers tell the
story, not the individual records.

7. No response from health authorities to reasonable requests. I've sent emails to
Sarah Caul of the UK ONS on four ways the ONS can increase data transparency. There
was no response.

8. No response when asked to explain damaging evidence. When credible scientists
receive government data that shows very troubling safety signals, there is a total
unwillingness of any health authority to discuss the matter and resolve it.

9. The US Medicare data clearly shows mortality increases after people take the jab.
Is there any epidemiologist who can explain why deaths rose during a period in time
when they should have been falling (per the Medicare death data)?



<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%2Fredirect%?2F1e2
cd25-47f2-9¢53-

1f9b1b3fd807%3Fj%3Deyl11joidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLENGoJqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?

For the first 120 days after the shots given in March 2021, death rates overall
were falling. But if you got the vaccine, your death rates went up. We know from data
from other vaccines that the baseline death rate of 81-year olds in Medicare is 3.85%, so
the baseline death rate of this group is <800 deaths a day. These deaths climb far above
baseline after you took the COVID shot.

10. The patient-level data released from NZ data confirms that mortality increases
after the shots are given despite the fact that most of the shots were given during time
periods when deaths were falling

<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%?2Fredirect%2Fe5a
1d58-4fc0-a852-

6a4f1b54f718%3Fj%3Deyl11joidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLtNGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%?7

NZ data: Doses 2 and 4 were given while background mortality was falling, dose 3
while rising. So we'd expect the slope to fall in the first 6 months after vaccination. It
does the opposite.
11. Anecdotes such as the one from Jay Bonnar
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%22Fredirect%?2F33a
c373-4b28-b55c-
d90cae2b6e57%3Fj%3Deyl1ljoidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWa0LFC4PLtNGoJlgqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%?7
who lost 15 of his DIRECT friends unexpectedly since the shots rolled out. Four of the 15
died on the same day as that vaccine was given. Before the shots rolled out, Jay had lost
only one friend unexpectedly. The probability this happened by chance is given by
poisson.sf(14, .25) which is 5.6e-22. So this can’t happen by chance. SOMETHING killed
Jay’s friends and 4 of the 15 died on the same day as they were vaccinated. Is there a
more plausible explanation for what killed Jay’s friends? All of them who died were
vaccinated with the COVID vaccines.

12. Well done studies like the one done by Denis Rancourt
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%2Fredirect%2F8fb.
dde4-4eec-bcel-

99237cda9de5%3Fj%3Deyl11joidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLEINGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?
showing 1 death per 800 shots on average. Jay Bonnar estimates he has around 14,000

friends so Jay’s numbers are consistent with Rancourt’s results.

13. Survey data like Skidmore



<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%2Fredirect%2Fb2c
6f7a-420b-a525-

325379d1e6da%3Fj%3Deyl11joidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLINGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?
and Rasmussen Reports
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%?2Fredirect%2F485
67aa-4d85-818e-

422a5362a138%3Fj%3Deyl1IjoidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLtNGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?
showing that hundreds of thousands of Americans have been killed by the COVID shots.

There have never been any counter surveys published showing this not to be the case.

14. The lack of any success stories. It appears that “vaccine success stories” where

COVID infection fatality ratios dropped or that myocarditis cases plummeted do not exist.

The US Nursing home data
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%22Fredirect%2F6fa.
b881-48d4-ab92-

b38a07406cd8%3Fj%3Deyl1IjoidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLtNGolgvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%?7
shows that the infection fatality rate (IFR) increased after the vaccine rolled out. There is

nobody using that data making the claim it reduced the IFR.

15. Anecdotes from healthcare are extremely troubling. One nurse
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%2Fredirect%2Fe9b
6f4c-4e32-b913-

8a8057b3f865%3Fj%3Deyl1IjoidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWa0LFC4PLtNGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?
reported a hospital admission rate that was 3X higher than anything in the 33-year

history of the hospital after the COVID vaccines rolled out. Symptoms rarely ever seen

were common after vaccines rolled out in that age group.

16. Lack of autopsies in clinical trials and post-marketing. The CDC doesn’t request
anyone to do autopsies even for people who die on the same day as they got the
vaccine. Don't they want to know what killed those people... just to be sure?

17. Young people dying in sleep. There are way too many cases of young people who
die in their sleep after being vaccinated. Doctors say this is a rare event. Now it is much
more common. If the shots are safe, why is this happening?

18. I have direct personal experience with the vaccine: two people I know were killed
by the vaccine, none from COVID. I know many people who are vaccine injured from the
COVID vaccine.

19. Ed Dowd’s book statistics. This very popular book (*Cause Unknown”
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%2Fredirect%2F15c
c0d0-49b8-b054-

b3c76b9b9d2b%3Fj%3Deyl11joidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLINGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?
) listed 500 who died unexpectedly. Ed didn’t know how many were unvaccinated. Only

one person has come forward saying that one of the people in the book who died after

the vaccines rolled out was unvaccinated.

20. Prominent doctor/scientists switching sides. Paul Marik is one of the top
intensivists in the world. After seeing many COVID vaccine injured patients, he changed
his mind about the safety of vaccines. When he was not allowed to practice medicine
consistent with his Hippocratic Oath, he resigned his position.

21. The corruption with COVID protocols. The COVID hospital protocols likely caused



90% of the COVID deaths in hospitals. This led to Paul Marik resigning. See details in this

article
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%?2Fredirect%?2Fe9b
6f4c-4e32-b913-

8a8057b3f865%3Fj%3Deyl1IjoidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLtNGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?
. Why are doctors forced to use hospital protocols that kill a huge percentage of patients

instead of using their best judgment to save patients?

22. This JAMA paper
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%?2Fredirect%2Fb6S
2677-4b5b-a000-

97b2419f3cd4%3Fj%3Deyl11joidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLtINGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%?7
shows that COVID and influenza vaccines don't work. Why are we pushing a vaccine

where the statistics clearly show the vaccines don’t work?

23. The consistency of the data. There have been no counter-anecdotes showing the
vaccines are safe. I keep looking for one and come up empty.

24. No debates with anyone prominent promoting the government narrative.Those
who promote the narrative refuse to engage in any scientific discussions to resolve
differences of opinion. This is similar to the question of whether vaccines cause autism:
nobody who thinks it doesn't is willing to engage in a public discussion about it to discuss
the evidence. Why not resolve the issue through dialog? It isn't resolved in the peer-
review literature where half the papers say vaccines cause autism and the other half
don’t. Why can't we talk about it?

25. Fear and intimidation tactics are used to silence dissent. Open debate would be
more productive. But people are not allowed to hold or discuss views that go against the
“consensus” or they will lose their jobs, their certifications, or their medical licenses.
Health care workers are told they will be fired if they report an adverse event to VAERS,
there are nurses who won't talk about anaphylaxis after getting the vaccine for fear of
being fired, vaccine injuries are covered up, hospital workers are afraid to talk about it at
work.

26. The cognitive dissonance is very disturbing. When healthcare workers bring up the
topic of mortality and morbidity due to the vaccine, their peers say nothing and walk
away.

27. Censorship tactics employed by the US government to silence dissent instead of
public recorded open debates. History has shown that purveyors of censorship are always
on the wrong side of the issue.

Scott

On Jan 4, 2024, at 1:11 AM, SCOTT SHOCK <ssshock@comcast.net> wrote:

O
Dear WSDOH and WSBOH Members, and Attorney General's Office,

The Florida State Surgeon General has been a leader in protecting the people of his state
against the unsafe mRNA COVID vaccinations. What actions are the WSDOH, WSBOH,
and WA AG taking to protect the people of Washington State against these unsafe
products, and to gain justice for those injured by these products (including members of



my family)? I look forward to your responses.

Scott Shock

Seattle

Joseph A. Ladapo, MD, PhD on X: "I am calling for a halt to the use of mMRNA COVID-19

vaccines. https://t.co/olg8VTh6gB" / X (twitter.com)
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FFLSurgeonGen%2

Florida State Surgeon General
Calls for Halt in the Use of
COVID-19 mRNA Vaccines

Tallahassee, Fla. — On December 6, 2023, State Surgeon General Dr. Joseph A. Ladapo

sent a letter
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.floridahealth.gov%2Fabout¥
06-2023-DOH-Letter-to-FDA-RFI-on-COVID-19-
Vaccines.pdf%3Futm_medium%3Demail%26utm_source%3Dgovdelivery&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40s
to the United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) Commissioner Dr. Robert M.

Califf and Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Director Dr. Mandy Cohen

regarding questions pertaining to the safety assessments and the discovery
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fosf.i0o%2Fpreprints%2Fosf%2Fmj
of billions of DNA fragments per dose of the Pfizer and Moderna COVID-19 mRNA

vaccines.

The Surgeon General outlined concerns regarding nucleic acid contaminants in the
approved Pfizer and Moderna COVID-19 mRNA vaccines, particularly in the presence of
lipid nanoparticle complexes, and Simian Virus 40 (SV40) promoter/enhancer DNA. Lipid
nanoparticles are an efficient vehicle for delivery of the mRNA in the COVID-19 vaccines
into human cells and may therefore be an equally efficient vehicle for delivering
contaminant DNA into human cells. The presence of SV40 promoter/enhancer DNA may
also pose a unique and heightened risk of DNA integration into human cells.

In 2007, the FDA published guidance on regulatory limits for DNA vaccines in the

Guidance for Industry: Considerations for Plasmid DNA Vaccines for Infectious Disease

Indications (Guidance for Industry)
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.fda.gov%2Fmedia%?2F7366
. In this Guidance for Industry, the FDA outlines important considerations for vaccines

that use novel methods of delivery regarding DNA integration, specifically:

* DNA integration could theoretically impact a human’s oncogenes - the genes
which can transform a healthy cell into a cancerous cell.

* DNA integration may result in chromosomal instability.

* The Guidance for Industry discusses biodistribution of DNA vaccines and how such

integration could affect unintended parts of the body including blood, heart, brain, liver,
kidney, bone marrow, ovaries/testes, lung, draining lymph nodes, spleen, the site of
administration and subcutis at injection site.

On December 14, 2023, the FDA provided a written response providing no evidence that

DNA integration assessments have been conducted to address risks outlined by the FDA
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.fda.gov%2Fmedia%?2F7366
themselves in 2007. Based on the FDA's recognition of unique risks posed by DNA



integration, the efficacy of the COVID-19 mRNA vaccine’s lipid nanoparticle delivery
system, and the presence of DNA fragments in these vaccines, it is essential to human
health to assess the risks of contaminant DNA integration into human DNA. The FDA has
provided no evidence that these risks have been assessed to ensure safety. As such,
Florida State Surgeon General Dr. Joseph A. Ladapo has released the following
statement:

“The FDA’s response does not provide data or evidence that the DNA integration
assessments they recommended themselves have been performed. Instead, they pointed
to genotoxicity studies - which are inadequate assessments for DNA integration risk. In
addition, they obfuscated the difference between the SV40 promoter/enhancer and SV40
proteins, two elements that are distinct.

DNA integration poses a unique and elevated risk to human health and to the integrity of
the human genome, including the risk that DNA integrated into sperm or egg gametes
could be passed onto offspring of mMRNA COVID-19 vaccine recipients. If the risks of DNA
integration have not been assessed for mRNA COVID-19 vaccines, these vaccines are not
appropriate for use in human beings.

Providers concerned about patient health risks associated with COVID-19 should
prioritize patient access to non-mRNA COVID-19 vaccines and treatment. It is my hope
that, in regard to COVID-19, the FDA will one day seriously consider its regulatory
responsibility to protect human health, including the integrity of the human genome.”

In the spirit of transparency and scientific integrity, State Surgeon General Dr. Joseph A.
Ladapo will continue to assess research surrounding these risks and provide updates to
Floridians.

On September 13, 2023, State Surgeon General Dr. Joseph A. Ladapo provided guidance
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%_2F%2Ffloridahealthcovid19.gov%2Fwp-
content%2Fuploads%2F2023%2F09%2F20230913-booster-guidance-
final.pdf%3Futm_medium%3Demail%26utm_source%3Dgovdelivery&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.
against COVID-19 boosters for individuals under 65 and younger. In addition to

aforementioned concerns, providers and patients should be aware of outstanding safety

and efficacy concerns outlined in the State Surgeon General’s previous booster guidance

released in September.



From: Arne Christensen

Sent: 1/17/2024 11:09:22 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: lonely people walking in the rain wearing face masks

External Email

The health department needs to stop lying to us about the effectiveness of
face masks, vaccines, and social distancing for protecting people against
covid. I just saw a man with a flimsy blue plastic mask walking outdoors, by
himself, in the cold rain. He is only doing this because public health
agencies have lied about masks for 4 years, and have inexplicably failed to
advise people that masks don't work when wet.



From: bill teachingsmiles.com

Sent: 1/8/2024 8:32:17 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Public Comment 1/10/2024 Osmunson

External Email
Dear Washington State Board of Health,

I am requesting to provide public comment for the January 10, 2024 Board of Health
Meeting.

My comments:

The Board of Health is the highest health authority in Washington State. Overhearing one
Board member say, “but we are not supposed to have to look at the science.” My jaw
dropped almost to the floor. If the Board does not read science, what does the Board use
to determine “health” policy such as fluoridation? Gossip? Rummers? Industry? The
Dental Lobby?

In effect, the Board trusts the dental lobby and disregards inconvenient empirical factual
evidence, laws and authorities such as:

I. The Washington State Board of Pharmacy, who determined that fluoride is a “legend
drug.” However, the Board of Health disagrees and trusts the dental lobby. The Board of
Pharmacy was disbanded in part because they agreed with the law and science that
fluoride ingested with intent to prevent disease is a prescription drug. Are you Board of
Health doctors willing to put your license on the line prescribing the drug for everyone in
Washington State without their consent or being patients of record? That would be
unethical. Pharmacists have more training and expertise with toxins, dosage, adverse
reactions and inter reactions of toxins than any other licensed profession. What empirical
evidence does the Board of Health have which disagrees with the Board of Pharmacy?
None. The Board of Health is violating science and laws of health.

See: Krzeczkowski JE, et al. Prenatal fluoride exposure, offspring visual acuity and

autonomic nervous system function in 6-month-old infants.
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sciencedirect.com%2Fscienc
Environment International. 2023

I1. U.S. Congress which has authorized the Food and Drug Administration Center for Drug
Evaluation and Research (FDA CDER) to determine the efficacy, dosage, safety and label
of substances used to prevent disease. No, the Board trusts the dental lobby.

III. FDA CDER warns, “"Do Not Swallow”. Instead, the Board trusts the dental lobby and
promotes mandated fluoride ingestion for everyone without patient consent, without
patient dosage control, without the Doctor as legal intermediary, without regard for age
or health of the patient. FDA CDER has determined fluoride ingestion lacks evidence of
efficacy. And the FDA has given warnings to bottled water manufacturers (not FDA CDER
approved) the fluoridated water must not be marketed to those under two years of age.
The Board of Health is harming the public by disagreeing with authorized regulatory
agencies.



IV. The Environmental Protection Agency scientists finding over two decades ago that
fluoridation borders on a criminal Act because of toxicity and lack of current benefit. The
Safe Drinking Water prohibits the EPA from adding anything to water to treat humans, so
the Board trusts the dental lobby. And the EPA Dose Response Analysis and Relative
Source Contribution of 2010 reporting that most or all infants and toddlers are ingesting
too much fluoride.

V. The National Research Council 2006 report for the EPA that EPA’'s Maximum
Contaminant Level for fluoride was not protective and harms most if not all cells and
systems of the body. Instead, the Board of Health trusts the dental lobby. Fluoride is a
contaminant the Board recommends adding to water.

VI. The National Toxicology Program reporting fluoride is a presumed developmental
neurotoxin with 55 human studies, 52 reported IQ loss a 95% consistency. And their
meta-analysis reports IQ loss. But no. The Board would rather trust the dental lobby
rather than toxicologists for toxicity. Not everyone has the same sensitivity to
drugs/toxins or the same health or the same ability to handle drugs/toxins. Some
individuals had much more IQ loss and some were probably unaffected. The mean is not
protective or representative of each individual. The Board must protect everyone, not
just the healthiest and wealthiest.

“This January, Birnbaum
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fen.wikipedia.org%?2Fwiki%_2FLind:
issued a scathing legal declaration as part of the lawsuit, writing, ‘The decision to set

aside the results of an external peer review process based on concerns expressed by

agencies with strong policy interests on fluoride suggests the presence of political

interference in what should be a strictly scientific endeavor.’ Birnbaum said she issued

the legal declaration in part over concerns the report might never be publicly released...

the science proves there is ‘no real benefit’ from ingesting fluoride. ‘The benefit from

fluoride is from topical applications,’ she said.” - Capital and Main ( March 14, 2023)

VII. Only one RCT (randomized controlled trial, the highest quality of research) of
fluoride ingestion has been published and it report no statistical benefit from ingesting
the fluoride. That’s right. NO, NONE, ZERO quality studies reporting dental benefit of
fluoride ingestion. No wonder the FDA said the evidence of efficacy is incomplete.

VIII. The lack of mechanism of action. Fluoride cannot go from the blood to the tooth
pulp chamber through the calcium rich dentin and enamel to the outside of the tooth
where the dental caries are forming and active. Fluoride during swallowing of water is
short term and little gets to the lower teeth and the theoretical slight increase of fluoride
in saliva with water at 0.7 ppm is too dilute to have an effect. Research has not reported
a benefit at 700 ppm let alone 0.7 ppm.

IX. 97% of Europe does not fluoridate their water. And their dental caries are a similar
rate as fluoridated communities and states not fluoridated.

X. CDC has known since the publication of the 2006 National Research Council (NRC)
report to the EPA, that there is no safety data for susceptible sub-populations and
significant scientific evidence of probable harm. In 2018, Mr. Casey Hannan of the CDC
admitted under oath in a deposition for the trial in federal court expected to wrap up in
February 2024 that the CDC accepts the 2006 NRC conclusions. Mr. Hannan also
admitted that the CDC has no safety data specific to pre- and post-natal exposure. We
understand Mr. Hannan decided to retire before commencement of that trial.

XI. Public Health Service (PHS) researchers advised the PHS in 1956 and 1961 that a
portion of the allergic population would experience significant and acute ill effects from
fluoridation programs with no pragmatic recourse to avoid the irritant. Other researchers
in that decade advised that the placentas of women living in ‘optimally’ fluoridated



communities were saturated with fluoride at twice the concentration of the water they
drank. They opined that although they didn’t know the fetal impact, the mothers would
probably be fine. (Feltman 1956; Feltman & Kosel 1961; Gardner et al. 1952

PHS lowered fluoridation concentration recommendation from 0.7-1.2 mg/L to 0.7 mg/L.
However, no studies on efficacy have been done at current lower concentrations.

Once again, I am calling for the Board to remove their endorsement of fluoridation from
your web site and protect the fetus and infants from known harm.

Current evidence is alarming on fluoride’s contribution not just to lower IQ, but also to
preterm birth and infant mortality.

See also https://www.fluoridelawsuit.com/science
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.fluoridelawsuit.com®2Fscier

Once again, I am calling for the Board to remove their endorsement of fluoridation from
your web site and protect the fetus and infants from known harm.

Bill Osmunson DDS MPH



From: Arne Christensen

Sent: 2/6/2024 1:21:14 PM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: alleged Taiwan face mask death

External Email

You need to read this article from January, "Infant dies after allegedly
suffocating on mask at New Taipei daycare":
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ffocustaiwan.tw%2Fsociety % 2F2024

It begins: "Authorities in New Taipei on Wednesday said they are
investigating the death of an 11-month-old boy at a public daycare center,
which the child's family allege happened when he suffocated on a mask a
teacher forced him to wear."

After reading it, do you still think face masks are just an inconvenience? I
don't accept the reply that public health authorities never said infants

should have to wear masks. Normalizing and requiring masks on toddlers was
going to lead to requiring masks on infants somewhere in the world.



From: Garry Blankenship

Sent: 2/5/2024 8:15:15 AM

To: hcinfo.infosc@canada.ca,DOH

WSBOH,dhsmoh@yahoo.com,secretary@health.gov.bz,Van De Wege, Kevin,Chapman,

Mike
(LEG),sheriff@co.clallam.wa.us,mozias@co.clallam.wa.us,rjohnson@co.clallam.wa.us,shahidafatin@gmail.c
Allison 2 (DOHi)

Cc:

Subject: The NOP BOH Needs Introspection

External Email

I do not doubt the BOH intentions, but recommending, promoting and mandating these
mMRNA injections was and remains a colossal mistake. Denying the naturally immune
public access was worse. The Federal, State and local pandemic management record is
without exception an abject failure. I request the Board make the effort to insure
mistakes like this never repeat.

https://www.theepochtimes.com/health/for-every-life-saved-mrna-vaccines-caused-
nearly-14-times-more-deaths-study-
5579794?utm_source=Ccpv&src_src=Ccpv&utm_campaign=2024-02-

05&src_cmp=2024-02-
05&utm_medium=email&est=0Y%2F9GSyc74a%2FdwbERhO%2FTk2D8BeBhXgQlredhB%2Fte85A4PYzcUd!

<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.theepochtimes.com%2Fheal
every-life-saved-mrna-vaccines-caused-nearly-14-times-more-deaths-study-
5579794%3Futm_source®%3DCcpv%26src_src%3DCcpv%26utm_campaign%3D2024-
02-05%26src_cmp%3D2024-02-
05%26utm_medium%3Demail%26est%3D0Y%252F9GSyc74a%252FdwbERhO%252FTk2D8BeBhXgQlredh

Sincerely,

Garry Blankenship



From: patrice tullai

Sent: 1/5/2024 6:34:20 PM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Racism is a public health crisis

External Email

Hello, and good day to you,

When I was a child all children played together no matter race or color or religion, the
policies that are being inflamed are creating more division among people, not less. I see
division and victim mentality being pushed to the forefront, this does not help our
children, youth, or society, this is dividing people. We need to come together. The
problems come from class ....the poor suffer. I would like to encourage you to not act
under the idea, or create policies that racism is a public health problem ,

Thank you

I hope you and 2024 work to bring humanity together not divided,

Patrice Tullai

PateiceTullai@gmail.com



From: DOH WSBOH

Sent: 3/8/2024 11:51:33 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: FW: My Public Comments

Forwarding as this email has the same subject line as her email from 3/7 and the system
would not accept a duplicate.

From: Melissa Leady <melleady@yahoo.com>
Sent: Friday, March 8, 2024 11:11 AM

To: DOH WSBOH <WSBOH@SBOH.WA.GOV>
Subject: My Public Comments

External Email

As part of the PEAR Plan Development, will the Department of Health (DOH) be
conducting a pandemic policy review, looking at some of the unintended negative
impacts of covid policies? Pandemic policy in Washington state disproportionately
impacted lower-income families and people of color.

Loss of in-person learning at schools resulted in lower test scores. In Vancouver, for
example, the city is providing $500,000 to the Vancouver Public School District to
address covid learning loss at elementary schools in the Fourth Plain corridor. These are
among the most ethnically diverse and economically challenged schools in the district.
For the students in these schools, the cost of covid learning loss could be felt for their
lifetimes, according to a UN study on children living in learning poverty.

Covid job loss also disproportionately impacted low wage jobs, as the “laptop class”
quickly transitioned to working from home. At my last county board of health meeting,
my local health director mentioned that the covid job loss often resulted in loss of health
insurance. Has there been any assessment of the effects of pandemic policy-related job
loss on access to healthcare?

During the pandemic, the public was told to isolate and parks and outdoor recreation
were closed. The obesity rate in Washington state increased 2%. Obesity is closely linked
to a wide variety of negative health outcomes, including diabetes, heart disease, cancer,
and covid death. According to the CDC, the current obesity rates in Washington state by
race are: 10% Asian, 30% white, 36% Black, 36% Hispanic, and 43% Native American.
Will the PEAR Plan Development be looking at differing rates of obesity by race as part of
their efforts to understand differing rate of covid deaths by race?

These are just a few examples. Other areas to explore include : impacts on small
businesses and restaurants, school enrollment, mental health, anxiety, depression,



substance abuse, drug overdoses, domestic violence, housing and housing affordability,
food insecurity, and loss of cultural events and religion gatherings.

In addition, has there been an assessment of the impacts of the Washington state
vaccine mandate? A recent study comparing states with vaccine mandates and states
banning vaccines mandates showed 1) no comparable difference in vaccine uptake; and
2) reduced rates of flu and booster uptake in states that imposed mandates.

Does DOH attribute the low 2023-2024 rates for flu vaccination (30%) and covid
vaccination (18%) to “blow back” from the vaccine mandates? What was the impact of
the mandates of jobs and healthcare? In Clark County, for example, there was a 10%
drop in hospital beds after the mandate took effect, when some hospital staff chose to
quit instead of getting vaccinated. Eventually that difference was made up by employing
traveling nurses at an increased cost, driving up costs locally.

I hope that DOH will take the time to assess the “collateral damage” of covid policy
decisions, as former NIH director Francis Collins recently termed it. Perhaps this could be
done in conjunction with the PEAR Impact Assessment.

Sincerely,
Melissa Leady

Clark County Resident



From: Garry Blankenship

Sent: 3/2/2024 8:22:24 AM

To: Van De Wege, Kevin,Chapman, Mike (LEG),DOH
WSBOH,sheriff@co.clallam.wa.us,mozias@co.clallam.wa.us,rjohnson@co.clallam.wa.us,shahidafatin@gmail
Allison 2 (DOHi),Tharinger, Steve

Cc:

Subject: Higher Mortality In Vaxed Vs Unvaxed

External Email
Good Day All,

I have found any contra "vaccine" information, regardless of documentable verification,
to be summarily dismissed by most medical practitioners, particularly those holding any
authoritative position, with no effort to independently vet that information. No objectivity
in vetting drug safety is a huge looming problem that will not go away. Confidence in our
health care system has been critically damaged by a lack of acknowledging mistakes
made in the "pandemic". It is clear that the medical community was given false
information on the COVID "vaccines", treatment protocols and repurposed drugs, but the
absence of acknowledging that will self destruct the medical complex. I implore you to
stop pretending that promoting these mRNA platform injectable products was or is health
positive. These drugs are killing the young and working aged disproportionately.

https://www.theepochtimes.com/health/study-finds-higher-mortality-among-vaccinated-
patients-hospitalized-for-covid-19-post-
5597490?utm_source=Ccpv&src_src=Ccpv&utm_campaign=2024-03-

02&src_cmp=2024-03-
02&utm_medium=email&est=AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAaes4chlex8Tb%2F5MNsWhaCqduhUOLM8%2FAPpFNruk

<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.theepochtimes.com%2Fheal
finds-higher-mortality-among-vaccinated-patients-hospitalized-for-covid-19-post-
5597490%3Futm_source%3DCcpv%26src_src%3DCcpv%26utm_campaign%3D2024-
03-02%26src_cmp%3D2024-03-
02%26utm_medium%3Demail%26est%3DAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAaes4chIex8Tb%252F5MNsWhaCqduhUOLM

Not seeking anonymity,

Garry Blankenship



From: Michelle Anderson

Sent: 2/1/2024 5:10:05 PM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Public Comments for the Environmental Health Committee

External Email

Dear Board.

I would just like to remind you that Mandatory COVID shots or testing is unacceptable!
It is now just another virus that we must all deal with!

Just like the FLU, Common Cold or any other Corona Virus (there are a bunch and tests
don't tell you WHICH one it is)

We are ADULTS and we can make decisions for our own children!

Government mandates are unnecessary!

Thank you very much for all you do!



From: Garry Blankenship

Sent: 2/24/2024 7:40:04 AM

To: Van De Wege, Kevin,Chapman, Mike (LEG),DOH
WSBOH,sheriff@co.clallam.wa.us,mozias@co.clallam.wa.us,rjohnson@co.clallam.wa.us,shahidafatin@gmail
Allison 2 (DOHi)

Cc:

Subject: "Vaccine" Adverse Events

External Email

I can only hope those responsible for promoting and particularly mandating these toxins
are held accountable. These injections violate informed consent and the Hippocratic Oath.

https://www.theepochtimes.com/health/a-host-of-notable-covid-19-vaccine-adverse-
events-those-backed-by-evidence-
5590525?utm_source=Health&src_src=Health&utm_campaign=health-2024-02-
24&src_cmp=health-2024-02-
24&utm_medium=email&est=AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAaes4chIex8Tb%2F5MNsWhaCqduhUOLM8%2FAPpFNrut



From: Stuart Halsan

Sent: 2/6/2024 8:07:49 PM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Communicating With Board Members

External Email

For Patty Hayes

I have some genealogical info for you.. You can reach out to me at this email.
Hope all is well.

Stuart Halsan
Sent via the Samsung Galaxy S9+, an AT&T 5G Evolution capable smartphone



From: Karen Spencer

Sent: 3/8/2024 10:05:47 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Comment: Fluoridation Poisoning

External Email

“Fluoride is capable of producing any number of symptoms. They include drowsiness,
profound desire to sleep, dizziness, nasal congestion, sneezing, runny nose, sore throat,
coughing, wheezing (asthma), chest pain, hives, and various intestinal symptoms. Most
of the information concerning specific reactions to fluoride, as seen in private practice,
never reach publication.” - Hobart Feldman, MD, American Board of Allergy and
Immunology (1979)

Board of Health -

I signed up to make a comment on Wednesday March 13th, but may be unavailable at
that time. Therefore, I am sending a written comment for your consideration:

MY PERSONAL STORY:

My name is Karen Spencer. I am a retired analyst and project management consultant
who has worked with all levels of Corporate America.

I am angry about what happened to me and my children. I was poisoned by fluoridated
water while pregnant in 1981. My normal pregnancy turned difficult overnight. I was ill
with chronic dizziness, nausea, bloody stools and rashes beginning the first week of July.
I didn’t make the connection to water until much later. Fluoridation began on July 1st.

I did not recover after giving birth. Worse, both my children shared my symptoms. It
took me until late 1982 to realize tap water was causing our rashes and gastrointestinal
problems. My primary care physician who was the Chair of the Board of Health yelled me
out of his office in November when I asked if the water could be making us sick. In
January ‘83, an allergist specializing in environmental health recommended I only use
spring water in glass bottles for all of our water needs, which alleviated our symptoms.

Since bottled water is expensive, I installed a high-quality under the sink filter in '91. I
was diagnosed with Lyme disease about the same time, so I accepted my doctors
attribution of my emerging and ongoing arthritis and neurological symptoms to Chronic
Lyme. They also diagnosed me with irritable bowel syndrome. I was in my 30s. I
developed kidney and liver problems in my 50s.

I switched back to bottled water in 2014 to see if it would have a positive effect on my
declining health. It did— within days. My multi-stage system wasn’t adequate and never
had been. Can you imagine my outrage when I realized, in my 60s, that decades of
arthritis, gastrointestinal illness, neurological issues and even concerns over organ failure
had been fluoride poisoning?

There is no happy ending for me. The damage to my bones and spinal discs from
decades of fluoride poisoning cannot be undone, and neither can the damage to my son
who has learning disabilities consistent with what has been validated by developmental
neurotoxicity studies.

The chair of my local board of health, a doctor, told me in 2014 that “they” knew some



people would have problematic symptoms from fluoridation, but it was a “greater good"
to prevent a cavity or two in poor children. Please don’t tell me that my life and the lives
of my children are collateral damage. I suggest that ending fluoridation not only provides
health equity for susceptible sub-populations, but also serves justice to the grandchildren
of my baby-boomer generation who were poisoned by an ill-conceived, immoral medical
mandate.

* CAPE ANN STORY WITH REFERENCES: https://fluoridealert.org/wp-
content/uploads/SalemState2016.09.07.pdf
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%?2Ffluoridealert.org%2Fwp-
content%2Fuploads%?2FSalemState2016.09.07.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7C684f7

* ANNOTATED SCIENCE BIBLIOGRAPHY: https://www.fluoridelawsuit.com/science
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.fluoridelawsuit.com%2Fscier

For more about me, see my signature.

Regards,

Karen Favazza Spencer

Leominster, MA 01453

978.283.4606

Subscribe on YouTube
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%_2Fchannel%?2
vZ55u70KUchQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7C684f7f0a9660495d62fd08dc3f99f847%7C

See the Call to Action
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.greenmedinfo.com%2Fblog%
letter-nutritionists-about-fluoride-
deception&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7C684f7f0a9660495d62fd08dc3f99f847%7C11d0

More power to you if fluoridation doesn’t bother you, but not the power to assume it’s
safe for your neighbor with kidney disease, his pregnant wife or their diabetic daughter!

About Karen: Currently a semi-retired consultant working with software development

teams, Karen Spencer is a former analyst and project leader. She is adept at conducting

research and analyzing trends. Her special interests include critical thinking, data-driven

decision making, and organizational theory. She and others in her family are among the

15% of Americans with chemical sensitivities triggered by exposure to fluoridated food

and drink. Karen’s publications were featured in:

Medical Hypotheses (2018): https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/30396472/
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fpubmed.ncbi.nim.nih.gov%2F303

GreenMed (2019): https://www.greenmedinfo.com/blog/wetoo-medical-assault-and-

battery
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.greenmedinfo.com%_2Fblog®
medical-assault-and-
battery&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7C684f7f0a9660495d62fd08dc3f99f847%7C11d0e2.

Gloucester Times (2022): https://www.gloucestertimes.com/opinion/column-stop-
poisoning-gloucester/article_0089c49c-1278-11ed-8a42-fb294218a4fe.html
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gloucestertimes.com%2Fopi
stop-poisoning-gloucester%?2Farticle_0089¢c49c-1278-11ed-8a42-
fb294218a4fe.html&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7C684f7f0a9660495d62fd08dc3f99f847°¢



Message to CDC (2022): https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=PzviupO1cDQ
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%?2Fwatch%3F

Collaborative Activism (2022-current): https://www.fluoridelawsuit.com/actions
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.fluoridelawsuit.com%2Factic

Bill in MA Legislature (2023): https://malegislature.gov/Bills/193/S460
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fmalegislature.gov%2FBills%2F19:

Document Fraud at CDC (2024):
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/377152337_Document_Fraud_at_CDC
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.researchgate.net%2Fpublica



From: Garry Blankenship

Sent: 2/17/2024 10:31:07 AM

To: hcinfo.infosc@canada.ca,DOH WSBOH,OADS@cdc.gov,sheriff@co.clallam.wa.us,Van

De Wege, Kevin,Chapman, Mike
(LEG),mozias@co.clallam.wa.us,rjohnson@co.clallam.wa.us,shahidafatin@gmail.com,gbsjrmd@sisna.com,r
Allison 2 (DOHi)

Cc:

Subject: Vaccine Shedding

External Email

Fascinating article and video on shedding. The probability of vaccinated people shedding
spike proteins on other people is very real.

https://www.theepochtimes.com/health/covid-vaccine-shedding-is-real-fda-and-pfizer-
documents-are-proof-clinicians-
5588819?utm_source=Health&src_src=Health&utm_campaign=health-2024-02-
17&src_cmp=health-2024-02-
17&utm_medium=email&est=AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAaes4chlex8Tb%2F5MNsWhaCqduhUOLM8%2FAPpFNrub



From: Cheryl Lewis

Sent: 1/23/2024 7:57:12 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Communicating With Board Members

Y/
’ attachments\B7B9A7277A0E4E2B Sledge - BOH Strategies.pdfDept
b PRDTOOL NAMETOOLONG.pdff

External Email

Microsoft Edge - ready to share - Presentation and 6 more pages - Personal - Microsoft
Edge - 15 January 2024 - Watch Video
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.loom.com%2Fshare%2F8bcl

<https://cdn.loom.com/sessions/thumbnails/8bc09cd7d30146e6a46991886f25c8c8-
00001.jpg>
healthcare hygienist!

Hello All

I am a dental hygienist who would love to see an improvement in oral care for our
community. I believe there are many ways to improve this and ran across this
publication on your site (it is at the bottom of the page). It seems to be dated 2013. I
am wondering how far we have come since then? I have created a presentation that I
would like to share with you. It is about 30 minutes long and I feel it promotes your
cause in a different light. I would be honored if you would review it and allow me to be a
resource to you in this arena. I have a deep desire to improve the oral care of our facility
residents, from the hospital to the long term care facilities. I believe dental hygienist’s
should be employed as a member of each of these facilities as oral care specialists, not to
perform traditional dental cleanings but to improve daily oral care which will improve
quality of life. Having a hygienist visit a facility every 3-6 months isn’t helping people
keep their mouths healthy. Please watch my presentation to gain insight on this. I think
we should at the very least, create a certification for caregivers, one that specializes in
oral care. Maybe they could have increased training on oral diseases to look for (cancer,
gum disease, cavities, dry mouth sores, abscesses). Special training on treatment and
prevention of caries and gum disease. This distinction could create value of the caregiver
and maybe that could translate to an increase in their wage, which may lead to retention,
maybe decrease turnover? If there was a team or even an individual in charge of oral
care and only oral care, our dependents would not suffer with dry mouth sores and
bleeding gums. Oral care is often the first area to be neglected and a visit from the
hygienist 2 times a year is not the way to maintain oral health. We are learning more and
more about the bacteria’s role in our health and allowing plaque (bacteria) and food to
linger for days, weeks, months is not promoting health. Often oral care is left to the
resident, unless it is noted on the residents care plan to brush for them.

I know you are busy, but please take a moment (30 minutes or so [1J9nd consider the
change that could be made. It's like a child who drowns in the swimming pool, when
everyone is watching, no one is watching. We need a go to, a someone in charge of daily
oral hygiene to ensure people are receiving the care they need and deserve. This would
not only reduce risk of cavities and gum disease, but aspirated pneumonia, sepsis, and
death as well.

I am trying to make change starting at the top (you).



I look forward to hearing from you and thank you sincerely for taking the time to
consider this.

Sent from Mail
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgo.microsoft.com% _2Ffwlink%2F%
for Windows



From: Cheryl

Sent: 1/30/2024 6:08:46 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Communicating With Board Members

Vi

| __attachments\88C9EC27E025473E _my presentation (1).htm
v,

attachments\5B71ED4076E84D7A_Sledge - BOH Strategies.pdfDept
p PRDTOOL NAMETOOLONG.pd

External Email

Hello All

I am a dental hygienist who would love to see an improvement in oral care for our
community. I believe there are many ways to improve this and ran across this
publication on your site. It seems to be dated 2013. I am wondering how far we have
come along since then. I have created a presentation that I would like to share with you.
It is about 30 minutes long and I feel it promotes your cause in a different light. I would
be honored if you would review it and allow me to be a resource to you in this arena. I
have a deep desire to improve the oral care of our facility residents, from the hospital to
the long term care facilities. I believe dental hygienist’s should be employed as a
member of each of these facilities as oral care specialist, not to perform traditional dental
cleanings but to improve daily oral care which will improve quality of life. Having a
hygienist visit a facility every 3-6 months isn’t helping people keep their mouths healthy.
Please watch my presentation to gain insight on this. I think we should at the very least,
create a certification for caregivers, one that specializes in oral care. Maybe they could
have increased training on oral diseases to look for (cancer, gum disease, cavities, dry
mouth sores, abscesses). Special training on treatment and prevention of caries and gum
disease. This distinction could create value of the caregiver and maybe that could
translate to an increase in their wage, which may lead to retention, maybe decrease
turnover? If there was a team or even an individual in charge of oral care and only oral
care, our dependents would not suffer with dry mouth sores and bleeding gums. Oral
care is often the first area to be neglected and a visit from the hygienist 2 times a year is
not the way to maintain oral health. We are learning more and more about the bacteria’s
role in our health and allowing plague (bacteria) and food to linger for days, weeks,
months is not promoting health. Often oral care is left to the resident, unless it is noted
on the residents care plan to brush for them.

I know you are busy, but please take a moment (30 minutes or so [1Jgnd consider the
change that could be made. It's like a child who drowns in the swimming pool, when
everyone is watching, no one is watching. We need a go to, a someone in charge of daily
oral hygiene to ensure people are receiving the care they need and deserve. This would
not only reduce risk of cavities and gum disease, but aspirated pneumonia, sepsis, and
death as well.

I am trying to make change starting at the top (you).

I look forward to hearing from you and thank you sincerely for taking the time to
consider this.

Best

Cheryl lewis RDH



Sent from Mail
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgo.microsoft.com%2Ffwlink% 2F%
for Windows



From: bill teachingsmiles.com
Sent: 2/29/2024 7:31:08 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: March 13 Public Comment

External Email

Dear Washington State Board of Health,

The Legislature has made one of the duties of the Board of Health to assure drinking
water is safe, because water is essential for life.

The Legislature does not say the duty is to assure efficacy, because that’s the duty of the
FDA.

Fluoridation of public water is not safe because, not once did the EPA expert scientists
during the two-week trial before the Superior Court of California (January and February
2024) testify that fluoridation was safe, or effective.

Fluoridation of public water is not safe because, it is a highly toxic contaminated
scrubbings of manufacturing, a poison, a prescription drug, not FDA approved,
misbranded and adulterated.

Fluoridation is not safe because, it violates an individual’s consent, freedom to choose,
and their doctor's oversight.

Fluoridation is not safe because, fluoride causes dental fluorosis. I, and most dentists,
each made and make hundreds of thousands of dollars treating cosmetic and functional
dental fluorosis, harm.

Fluoridation is not safe because, fluoride ingestion increases developmental neurotoxicity
as measured with lower IQ. Lower IQ increases the rate of special education in schools,
lower wage jobs, more unemployment, more divorce, more incarceration, more grief,
fewer gifted, and is bad for America, especially minorities.



Fluoridation is not safe because, fluoride ingestion harms the developing fetus, infant and
child as measured with increased miscarriage, increased premature birth, and increased
infant mortality.

Fluoridation is not safe because, fluoride ingestion is stored in the bones and as the
bones remodel the fluoride is given off. Mother’s blood concentration of fluoride in the
third trimester increases when she has inadequate intake of calcium for her fetus’s
needs.

Fluoridation is not safe because, fluoride ingestion harms the joints causing rheumatoid
and osteoarthritic-like pain.

Fluoridation is not safe because fluoride ingestion harms the thyroid and is an endocrine
disruptor, increasing diabetes, obesity and ADHD.

Fluoridation is not safe because fluoride ingestion increases osteosarcoma a rare but
lethal bone cancer, mostly in boys drinking fluoridated water during growth spurts.

Fluoridation is not safe because fluoride ingestion harms the kidneys and GI disorders.

Do not let the fluoridation lobby confuse you. The Board’s job is to assure safety. The
dental lobby’s job is to gain FDA CDER approval. They have failed, but you must not.

We look forward to participating in a forum on fluoride ingestion because we and many
are being harmed.

Bill Osmunson DDS MPH

Washington Action for Safe Water



From: Melissa Leady

Sent: 3/7/2024 6:13:04 PM
To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: My Public Comments

External Email

IS THE CURRENTLY AUTHORIZED COVID-19 VACCINE EFFECTIVE?

During a recent county board of health meeting, the health director for my county made
the claim that there is state data showing that the updated covid-19 vaccine is effective
at preventing severe illness, hospitalizations, and deaths; and that it is effective at
preventing infection and thereby transmission.

It seems my local health director is out on a limb in making this claim. If DOH has such
data on the updated covid-19 vaccine, they have never publicly shared it.

The DOH report on Hospitalizations and Deaths by Vaccination Status (#421-010), which
hasn’t updated in three months, begins by stating, "PLEASE NOTE: Information about
bivalent booster doses (authorized in the fall of 2022) or the updated monovalent
booster doses (authorized in September of 2023) is not included in this report.”

Is the board recommending the currently authorized updated covid-19 vaccine? If so, do
you have Washington state data showing the vaccine’s effectiveness? Please share it with
the public.



HEALTH

Wednesday, January 3, 2024

Florida State Surgeon General Calls for Halt in the Use of
COVID-19 mRNA Vaccines

Contact:

Communications Office
NewsMedia@flhealth.gov,
850-245-4111

Tallahassee, Fla.— On December 6, 2023, State Surgeon General Dr. Joseph A. Ladapo sent a letter to the
United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) Commissioner Dr. Robert M. Califf and Center for Disease
Control and Prevention (CDC) Director Dr. Mandy Cohen regarding questions pertaining to the safety assessments
and the discovery of billions of DNA fragments per dose of the Pfizer and Moderna COVID-19 mRNA vaccines.

The Surgeon General outlined concerns regarding nucleic acid contaminants in the approved Pfizer and Moderna
COVID-19 mRNA vaccines, particularly in the presence of lipid nanoparticle complexes, and Simian Virus 40 (SV40)
promoter/enhancer DNA. Lipid nanoparticles are an efficient vehicle for delivery of the mRNA in the COVID-19
vaccines into human cells and may therefore be an equally efficient vehicle for delivering contaminant DNA into
human cells. The presence of SV40 promoter/enhancer DNA may also pose a unique and heightened risk of DNA
integration into human cells.

In 2007, the FDA published guidance on regulatory limits for DNA vaccines in the Guidance for Industry:
Considerations for Plasmid DNA Vaccines for Infectious Disease Indications (Guidance for Industry).
In this Guidance for Industry, the FDA outlines important considerations for vaccines that use novel methods of
delivery regarding DNA integration, specifically:

e DNA integration could theoretically impact a human’s oncogenes — the genes which can transform a healthy
cell into a cancerous cell.

¢ DNA integration may result in chromosomal instability.

e The Guidance for Industry discusses biodistribution of DNA vaccines and how such integration could affect
unintended parts of the body including blood, heart, brain, liver, kidney, bone marrow, ovaries/testes, lung,
draining lymph nodes, spleen, the site of administration and subcutis at injection site.

On December 14, 2023, the FDA provided a written response providing no evidence that DNA integration

assessments have been conducted to address risks outlined by the FDA themselves in 2007. Based on the FDA'’s
recognition of unique risks posed by DNA integration, the efficacy of the COVID-19 mRNA vaccine’s lipid

1.3.2024 Halt Use COVID-19 mRNA Vaccines Page 1 of 2


mailto:NewsMedia@flhealth.gov?utm_source=floridahealth.gov&utm_medium=referral&utm_campaign=PressRelease&utm_content=Florida's_Future_Budget&url_trace_7f2r5y6=Press_Release_Template_fry_2023_alt.docx
https://www.floridahealth.gov/about/_documents/12-06-2023-DOH-Letter-to-FDA-RFI-on-COVID-19-Vaccines.pdf?utm_source=floridahealth.gov&utm_medium=referral&utm_campaign=PressRelease&utm_content=Florida's_Future_Budget&url_trace_7f2r5y6=Press_Release_Template_fry_2023_alt.docx
https://osf.io/preprints/osf/mjc97?utm_source=floridahealth.gov&utm_medium=referral&utm_campaign=PressRelease&utm_content=Florida's_Future_Budget&url_trace_7f2r5y6=Press_Release_Template_fry_2023_alt.docx
https://www.fda.gov/media/73667/download?utm_source=floridahealth.gov&utm_medium=referral&utm_campaign=PressRelease&utm_content=Florida's_Future_Budget&url_trace_7f2r5y6=Press_Release_Template_fry_2023_alt.docx
https://www.fda.gov/media/73667/download?utm_source=floridahealth.gov&utm_medium=referral&utm_campaign=PressRelease&utm_content=Florida's_Future_Budget&url_trace_7f2r5y6=Press_Release_Template_fry_2023_alt.docx
https://www.fda.gov/media/73667/download?utm_source=floridahealth.gov&utm_medium=referral&utm_campaign=PressRelease&utm_content=Florida's_Future_Budget&url_trace_7f2r5y6=Press_Release_Template_fry_2023_alt.docx

nanoparticle delivery system, and the presence of DNA fragments in these vaccines, it is essential to human health
to assess the risks of contaminant DNA integration into human DNA. The FDA has provided no evidence that these
risks have been assessed to ensure safety. As such, Florida State Surgeon General Dr. Joseph A. Ladapo has
released the following statement:

“The FDA'’s response does not provide data or evidence that the DNA integration assessments they recommended
themselves have been performed. Instead, they pointed to genotoxicity studies — which are inadequate
assessments for DNA integration risk. In addition, they obfuscated the difference between the SV40
promoter/enhancer and SV40 proteins, two elements that are distinct.

DNA integration poses a unique and elevated risk to human health and to the integrity of the human genome,
including the risk that DNA integrated into sperm or egg gametes could be passed onto offspring of mMRNA CQOVID-
19 vaccine recipients. If the risks of DNA integration have not been assessed for mMRNA COVID-19 vaccines, these
vaccines are not appropriate for use in human beings.

Providers concerned about patient health risks associated with COVID-19 should prioritize patient access to non-
mRNA COVID-19 vaccines and treatment. It is my hope that, in regard to COVID-19, the FDA will one day seriously
consider its regulatory responsibility to protect human health, including the integrity of the human genome.”

In the spirit of transparency and scientific integrity, State Surgeon General Dr. Joseph A. Ladapo will continue to
assess research surrounding these risks and provide updates to Floridians.

About the Florida Department of Health

The Florida Department of Health, nationally accredited by the Public Health Accreditation Board, works to protect,
promote and improve the health of all people in Florida through integrated state, county and community efforts.

Follow us on Twitter at @HealthyFla and on Facebook. For more information about the Florida Department of Health
please visit www.FloridaHealth.gov.

1.3.2024 Halt Use COVID-19 mRNA Vaccines Page 2 of 2


https://phaboard.org/?utm_source=floridahealth.gov&utm_medium=referral&utm_campaign=PressRelease&utm_content=Florida's_Future_Budget&url_trace_7f2r5y6=Press_Release_Template_fry_2023_alt.docx
https://twitter.com/HealthyFla?utm_source=floridahealth.gov&utm_medium=referral&utm_campaign=PressRelease&utm_content=Florida's_Future_Budget&url_trace_7f2r5y6=Press_Release_Template_fry_2023_alt.docx
https://www.facebook.com/FLDepartmentofHealth?utm_source=floridahealth.gov&utm_medium=referral&utm_campaign=PressRelease&utm_content=Florida's_Future_Budget&url_trace_7f2r5y6=Press_Release_Template_fry_2023_alt.docx
http://www.floridahealth.gov/?utm_source=floridahealth.gov&utm_medium=referral&utm_campaign=PressRelease&utm_content=Florida's_Future_Budget&url_trace_7f2r5y6=Press_Release_Template_fry_2023_alt.docx

WWASHINGTON STATE
BOARD OF HEALTH

Recommended Strategies to
Improve the Oral Health of

Washington Residents

Presented by
Dr. Jim Sledge




Background

Board of Health Addresses Oral Health

June 2012 - Briefing - Oral Health Risk Factors and Systemic
Connections

October 2012 - Briefing - Oral Health in Washington State

March 2013 - Board approves implementation of the Oral
Health Project

November 2013 - Board approves the Oral Health Strategy
Summer 2014 - Board held interagency Oral Health workshop

April 2015 - Board approves the workshop final report

WASHINGTON STATE
BOARD OF HEALTH




Oral Health Project

Goal

Create a Washington State Board of Health set of
strategies to improve the oral health of
Washington State residents

Purpose:

To promote strategies that improve the oral health
of Washington residents

To guide Washington State Board of Health (SBOH)
rule and policy development activity




Rationale

Oral diseases are costly, painful, debilitating,
and widespread in Washington State

Dental disease is the most common chronic

disease of childhood (NHNES)

Nearly 40% of kindergarteners in WA have had tooth decay

77% of WA’s Native American kindergarteners have had
tooth decay - washington State Smile Survey 2010

Nationally:

More than 51 million school hours are lost each year to
dental-related issues.

Adults lose more than 164 million hours of work due to
dental health issues — Report of the Surgeon General, 2000

WASHIN
BOARD

GTON STATE
OF HEALTH

3



Rationale

Poor oral health is costly for Washington

residents:

Dental pain is the number one reason uninsured
adults visited Washington state emergency rooms

Dental-related Emergency room charges were over

$36 million in an 18 month period - washington state
Hospital Association, 2010

Oral infections are also associated with
systemic conditions such as diabetes, heart
disease, and aspiration pneumonia

WASHINGTON STATE
BOARD OF HEALTH




Rationale

Strategies that prevent and treat dental
disease improve oral health and save money

Periodontal treatment reduces medical costs for
people with chronic conditions  ¢3 964

$3,291
$2,956
$2,430
$1 029
Diabetes Cos Heart lar Rheumatoid Pregnancy
Savings sssssss Di sssss [Strnk] Arthritis Cost Cost Savings
Savmg Cost Savings Savings

Study Conducted by University of Pennsylvania,
School of Dental Medicine for United Concordia
Dental



Rationale

In Washington, adults aged 55 years and
older rank higher than the national average

when it comes to dental insurance

However, 20% of adults ages 55 and older reported having
a dental issue that needed to be addressed in the next
month

Nearly 24% of seniors with an annual income under
$25,000 have not seen a dentist in five years or more -
2012 Older Adult Oral Health Survey, Washington Dental Service Foundation

Older adults are particularly at-risk due to
taking multiple medications that cause dry
o mouth and can lead to tooth decay

ON STATE

WASHING
dhoeafhierWH E &c ﬂ
6

Working for a safer

an lashington e 1



Oral Health Project -Methods

Reviewed literature
Drafted strategic recommendations

Shared proposed strategies with State expert
review panel - updated recommendations

Consulted with National oral health expert
advisory group - updated recommendations




Strategic Recommendations

Topic Areas
Health Systems
Community Water Fluoridation
Sealant Programs
Interprofessional Collaboration
Oral Health Literacy
Surveillance
Work Force

(not ranked in order of importance)

WASHINGTON STATE
BOARD OF HEALTH
8



Health Systems

Cost-effective programs allow more people
to get the services they need at affordable
rates

' ¥

— . 'n | \'v
N A

1

Recommendation: Support policies and
programs that improve oral health for
Washington state residents



Health Systems

Programs working for Washington:

Adult Medicaid coverage restored
Over 750,000 adults will gain dental coverage in 2014

Access to Baby and Child Dentistry (ABCD)

Connects Medicaid enrolled children with dental services
The program now operates in all 39 Washington counties

Percentage of low-income children accessing dental care
has more than doubled since 1997-to 51%

University of Washington Regional Initiatives in
Dental Education (RIDE)

Over half of the graduates now work in dental
underserved regions of the state

WASHIN
BOARD

GTON STATE
OF HEALTH
10

r Washing



Health Systems

Opportunities remain:

Evaluate methods to ensure adequate access to
treatment and prevention services with particular

attention to.:

Pregnant women

Over 50% of women born in Washington state 2010 were
on Medicaid

Mothers with healthy teeth are less likely to pass cavity
causing bacteria to their children

Low-income populations

With new coverage available to adults there will be an
increasing demand for services

WASHIN
BOARD

GTON STATE
OF HEALTH
11

r Washing



Health Systems

Opportunities remain:

Diabetes and oral health
- Collaborate to improve outcomes for people with

diabetes

Reductionin Reduction in Reduction in
Hospital Admissions Physician Visits Medical Costs
61% 41% 32%

: : :

8

: :

§ : z

.

Jeffcoat M., et. al, Periodontal Therapy Reduces
Hospitalization and Medical Costs in Diabetes, Abstract,
American Association of Dental Research, March 23, 2012

N
2 D

&

00
82

=
1=
= T
*:I:

@D
—

0

S

==
Nt =,

 —f



Community Water Fluoridation

Access to community water fluoridation
benefits the health of everyone: children,
adults, and seniors

S A" ._,q‘. ﬂ_
L. | PREEE

Recommendation: Expand and maintain
access to community water fluoridation

WASHINGTON STATE
BOARD OF HEALTH
13




Community Water Fluoridation

CDC has recognized water fluoridation as
one of 10 great public health achievements
of the 20th century

65% of Washington’s residents on public
water supplies receive optimally fluoridated
water as compared to 74% nationally

Washington ranks 35th in the nation for
communities receiving fluoridated water

WASHINGTON STATE
BOARD OF HEALTH
14



Community Water Fluoridation

For water systems serving 20,000 people or more,
every $1 invested in fluoridation saves $38 in dental
treatment costs

Water fluoridation reduces tooth decay by about 25
percent over a person's lifetime

Community water fluoridation is safe. After 65 years
in service and hundreds of studies it continues show
its safety

Water fluoridation reduces the disparities in tooth
decay rates that exist by race, ethnicity and income

WASHIN
BOARD

GTON STATE
OF HEALTH
15

r Washing




Sealant Programs

Children with fewer cavities are healthier and
better able to learn, grow, and thrive

Recommendation: Provide school-age
children with access to dental sealants to
prevent cavities

=
D
q

0

>cn
==
U
o
'I'I
=I:z
w
=
m

BO E

,E
i
Sid



Sealant Programs

Dental sealants are placed on chewing surfaces to create a
barrier between teeth and decay-causing bacteria

The CDC’s Task Force on Community Preventive Services
(2002) found that school sealant programs are highly
effective at preventing tooth decay

According to the Surgeon General’s Report on Oral Health
(2000), sealants have been shown to reduce decay by more
than 70% and are most cost-effective when provided to
children who are at highest risk for tooth decay

In Washington, the Smile Survey found that 51 percent of
third grade children have received sealants

ON STATE

WASHING
OF HEALTH
17

Working for a safer

an r Washing




Interprofessional Collaboration:

Collaboration between health professions
and systems improves patient care

e O]
e | L%
v & T,

Recommendation: Incorporate oral health
improvement strategies across healthcare
professions and systems to improve oral
health knowledge and patient care

WASHINGTON STATE
BOARD OF HEALTH
18



Interprofessional Collaboration:

Dental diseases are highly prevalent, yet
largely preventable

Clear links exist between oral health and
chronic conditions, including diabetes and
cardiovascular disease

Interprofessional Collaboration is supported
by research from the Institute of Medicine to
Improve patient care

WASHINGTON STATE
BOARD OF HEALTH
19



Interprofessional Collaboration:

Develops professionals who work together
towards a common goal of optimizing patient care

Fosters structures that support collaboration

Trained collaborative Improved Afocus on high  Improved outcomes &
Dental, Medical, & Understanding risk groups reduced treatment
Allied Professionals costs for Washington
E residents
. Diabetes
It ) —————
|:>> p |:>> Pregnancy
b N —————
HIV/AIDS
—————2
Pneumonia WASHINGTON STATE
BOARD OF I;IEALTH



Interprofessional Collaboration:

Medical providers have regular X ,?
consistent contact with e
patients

Already doing prevention and
looking in the mouth

Well-positioned to address oral

health

The National Interprofessional Eo'ofdi ‘z‘g;
Initiative on Oral Health 2012 - ™ 5
d 4 states Virginia 62%
compare 5 @ Washington 67%

Two-thirds of Washington programs

included some oral health material
WASHINGTON STATE

Working for a safer

an r Washing

G
OF HEALTH
21


http://www.niioh.org/~niioh/sites/default/files/harder__co_niioh_evaluation_report_oct_2012_final.pdf

Oral Health Literacy

Clear and accessible oral health information
empowers people to make good choices for
themselves and their families

Recommendation: Improve the capacity of
people to obtain, understand, and use health
information in order to increase their
acceptance and adoption of effective oral

health focused preventive practices
WASHINGTON STATE
BOARD OF HEALTH
22



Oral Health Literacy

Oral health literacy represents the capacity
of people (individuals and policy makers)
to obtain, understand, and use health
information in order to make correct
decisions — us National Oral Health Alliance
In 2006, only 12% of the US population ____
had proficient health literacy f

People with low health literacy have
adverse health outcomes

Parental health literacy impacts the
health outcomes of their children

WASHIN
BOARD

GTON STATE
OF HEALTH
23

r Washing ince 1889




Surveillance

Understanding the burden of oral disease for
Washington residents allows programs to
identify needs, work to achieve the biggest
impact and measure progress and success

T S

Recommendation: Monitor trends in oral
health indicators to ensure policies and
programs are advancing the oral health of
Washington residents, including those most

e, at risk for poor oral health outcomes

WASHIN
BOARD

GTON STATE
OF HEALTH
24

r Washing



Surveillance

Sustain Data-based monitoring and decision
making tools, like:

Report provides an overview of the
| burden of dental diseases on all
Figure 30: Dental visits among adult smokers, . .
2004 WA BRFSS. Washingtonians

s6% Compares WA to nationally
comparable objectives

Includes data from the Behavioral
Risk Factor Surveillance System
’ (BRFSS) and the Washington State

1year 2vyears byears 54 years MNevaer

Length of time since last dental visit Oral Dlsease Su rVEIIIanCE System

Note: § - Nbers 1o sl report. Published by the Department of

Health, Oral Health Program

WASHINGTON STATE
BOARD OF HEALTH

15% 13% 15%



http://www.doh.wa.gov/Portals/1/Documents/Pubs/160-001_ImpactOralDisease.pdf
http://www.doh.wa.gov/Portals/1/Documents/Pubs/160-001_ImpactOralDisease.pdf

Surveillance

Maintain the Washington State Smile Survey for pre-
school and elementary school children

Assesses the oral health of school children
every five years

Provides benchmarks to compare with the
Centers for Disease Control’s Health People
2020 goals for oral health

Completed in partnership with:

- Washington State Department of Health

- Washington Dental Service Foundation

- Washington State Department of Early Learning
- Superintendent of Public Instruction

WASHINGTON STATE
BOARD OF HEALTH



http://www.doh.wa.gov/Portals/1/Documents/Pubs/160-099_SmileSurvey2010.pdf

Surveillance

Incorporate oral health measures in surveillance
tools, BRFSS, Pregnancy Risk Assessment
Management (PRAMS), etc.

Develop and implement surveillance systems for
vulnerable populations, e.g. Medicaid

Maximize community data sources:

Dental Workforce Report, washington State Dental
Association, 2012

Oral Health Senior Survey, washington Dental Services
Foundation, 2012

Emergency Room Use Report, washington State
Hospital Association, 2010

WASHINGTON STATE
BOARD OF HEALTH

ce 1889
27



Work Force

Health disparities decrease when all
Washington residents are able to access
dental care

Recommendation: Develop health
orofessional policies and programs which
petter serve the dental needs of underserved
populations

0

(0=
o
-
=
(7]
=
m

gbcn
: AIE
=)
= T
:I:

=4
=
~EE



Work Force

Federally Designated Health Professional
Shortage Areas for Dental Care, July 2013

WASHINGTON STATE
BOARD OF HEALTH

n since 1889
29




Work Force

Find Opportunities to develop a workforce
that provides care to the dental underserved
regions in our state

Partner with academic institutions

Recruit professionals:

From communities that face the highest incidence of
tooth decay

To serve populations that currently lack access to
dental services, including:

Rural communities

Low-Income families

Communities of color

WASHIN
BOARD

GTON STATE
OF HEALTH
30

r Washing ince 1889




Summary

SBOH Strategic Recommendations on Oral Health:

Improve Health Systems

Expand Community Water Fluoridation
Promote Sealant Programs

Build Interprofessional Collaboration
Improve Oral Health Literacy

Sustain Surveillance programs
Develop Work Force

Questions?

WASHIN
BOARD

GTON STATE
OF HEALTH
31

r Washing



From: Christi Ellefson

Sent: 1/17/2024 11:59:52 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Important vaccine information

Y
attachments\55A4B10E46FE4306_20240103-halt-use-covid19-mrna-
vaccines.pr.pdf

External Email

https://www.floridahealth.gov/_documents/newsroom/press-
releases/2024/01/20240103-halt-use-covid19-mrna-vaccines.pr.pdf
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.floridahealth.gov%2F_docun
releases%2F2024%2F01%2F20240103-halt-use-covid19-mrna-
vaccines.pr.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Cfabdfcb1158547af321008dc17965613%7(



From: Scott Shock

Sent: 1/7/2024 2:07:20 AM

To: DOH Secretary's Office,DOH Office of the Chief of Staff,DOH Office of Innovation and
Technology,DOH Office of Prevention Safety and Health,DOH Office of Strategic
Partnerships,DOH Office of Health and Science,DOH Office of Public Affairs and

Equity, DOH OS Executive Office of Policy Planning and Evaluation,DOH Office of
Resilience and Health Security, DOH WSBOH,AGOOmbuds@atg.wa.gov,Ferguson, Bob
(ATG)

Cc:

Subject: Call for a Halt to the Use of COVID-19 mRNA Vaccines

Vi

attachments\A7608FB4F1724CAB https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack-post-
media_PRDTOOL_NAMETOOLONG.pn
/;/7

attachments\8BDE9725E1EA4316_image.pn

Vi

attachments\52B6A68E8D7A482C 533cffc1-5832-4347-9e16-
b1120c16554d_600x375.bi

v/

attachments\22E9F602B2464790_Zero Trust "Don't trust any,
but PRDTOOL _NAMETOOLONG.
V.

attachments\863FF86CFF34454E https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack-post-
media PRDTOOL NAMETOOLONG.pn

External Email

I'm still looking forward to responses on what actions the WSDOH, WSBOH, and WA AG
are taking to protect the people of Washington State against these unsafe products, and
to gain justice for those injured by these products. Here is more for your consideration.

<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fopen.substack.com%2Fpub%%2Fst
summary-of-the-evidence-
against%3Fr%3Dtaogl%26utm_campaign%3Dpost%26utm_medium%3Demail&data=05%7C02%7Cwsbot

A summary of the evidence against the COVID vaccines
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fopen.substack.com®%2Fpub®%2Fst
summary-of-the-evidence-
against%3Fr%3Dtaogl%26utm_campaign®%3Dpost%26utm_medium%3Demail&data=05%7C02%7Cwsbot

open.substack.com
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fopen.substack.com®%2Fpub%2Fst
summary-of-the-evidence-
against%3Fr%3Dtaogl%26utm_campaign%3Dpost%26utm_medium%3Demail&data=05%7C02%7Cwsbot

Here is a short list of reasons that everyone should be concerned about the COVID
vaccine. This is not an exhaustive list.

1. Doctors are told to trust the FDA and CDC, but not verify, when prescribing
vaccines. All the post-marketing safety data is kept hidden by health authorities so not
even doctors can look at the data themselves to find out if any vaccine is safe. Doctors



have to trust the authorities. They are essentially told: “trust, do not verify.”

<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%?2Fredirect%2F9b5
9bd9-48d4-b525-

567127205¢c25%3Fj%3Deyl1IjoidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWa0OLFC4PLtNGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?

2. The CDC itself doesn’t have the data to make a post-marketing independent
vaccine safety assessment and they are not interested in obtaining the data either!The
CDC relies on the FDA who relies on the manufacturer to test the product. The CDC could
ask states for vaccination records tied to death records, but they don't want to even ask
because if they did an analysis, it could be discovered in a FOIA request. The CDC
basically has no interest whatsoever in verifying what the actual safety data is.

3. Lack of transparency by health authorities. Not a single health authority anywhere
in the world has ever released anonymized record-level patient data for independent
researchers to assess the safety of any vaccine. There isn’t any paper in a peer-reviewed
journal showing that health outcomes are improved if public health data is kept secret.

4, Lack of interest in data transparency by the medical community. Can you name a
single high-profile pro-vaccine member of the medical community who has called for data
transparency of public health data? Time-series cohort analyses can be easily produced
by health authorities and published for everyone to see. These would show safety signals
and do not jeopardize patient privacy. These are all kept hidden.

5. We aren’t allowed to see even the simplest of charts. Wouldn't it be great to
define two cohorts on July 1, 2021: COVID vaccinated vs. COVID unvaccinated. Then you
simply record the deaths from that point forward and plot them. Why isn’t this being
published?

6. Misinformation is deemed to be a problem, but the people making these
statements are unwilling to take any steps to stop the so-called misinformation. These
steps include: open public discussion to resolve differences of opinion and making public
health data available/public in a way that preserves privacy. For example, HHS (as well
as every state health department) should welcome all of us with open arms and invite us
to query their databases (such as VSD and Medicare in the case of HHS) and publish
whatever we find. Why does this information need to be hidden? The numbers tell the
story, not the individual records.

7. No response from health authorities to reasonable requests. I've sent emails to
Sarah Caul of the UK ONS on four ways the ONS can increase data transparency. There
was no response.

8. No response when asked to explain damaging evidence. When credible scientists
receive government data that shows very troubling safety signals, there is a total
unwillingness of any health authority to discuss the matter and resolve it.

9. The US Medicare data clearly shows mortality increases after people take the jab.
Is there any epidemiologist who can explain why deaths rose during a period in time
when they should have been falling (per the Medicare death data)?



<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%2Fredirect%?2F1e2
cd25-47f2-9¢53-

1f9b1b3fd807%3Fj%3Deyl11joidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLENGoJqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?

For the first 120 days after the shots given in March 2021, death rates overall
were falling. But if you got the vaccine, your death rates went up. We know from data
from other vaccines that the baseline death rate of 81-year olds in Medicare is 3.85%, so
the baseline death rate of this group is <800 deaths a day. These deaths climb far above
baseline after you took the COVID shot.

10. The patient-level data released from NZ data confirms that mortality increases
after the shots are given despite the fact that most of the shots were given during time
periods when deaths were falling

<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%?2Fredirect%2Fe5a
1d58-4fc0-a852-

6a4f1b54f718%3Fj%3Deyl11joidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLtNGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%?7

NZ data: Doses 2 and 4 were given while background mortality was falling, dose 3
while rising. So we'd expect the slope to fall in the first 6 months after vaccination. It
does the opposite.
11. Anecdotes such as the one from Jay Bonnar
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%22Fredirect%?2F33a
c373-4b28-b55c-
d90cae2b6e57%3Fj%3Deyl1ljoidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWa0LFC4PLtNGoJlgqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%?7
who lost 15 of his DIRECT friends unexpectedly since the shots rolled out. Four of the 15
died on the same day as that vaccine was given. Before the shots rolled out, Jay had lost
only one friend unexpectedly. The probability this happened by chance is given by
poisson.sf(14, .25) which is 5.6e-22. So this can’t happen by chance. SOMETHING killed
Jay’s friends and 4 of the 15 died on the same day as they were vaccinated. Is there a
more plausible explanation for what killed Jay’s friends? All of them who died were
vaccinated with the COVID vaccines.

12. Well done studies like the one done by Denis Rancourt
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%2Fredirect%2F8fb.
dde4-4eec-bcel-

99237cda9de5%3Fj%3Deyl11joidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLEINGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?
showing 1 death per 800 shots on average. Jay Bonnar estimates he has around 14,000

friends so Jay’s numbers are consistent with Rancourt’s results.

13. Survey data like Skidmore



<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%2Fredirect%2Fb2c
6f7a-420b-a525-

325379d1e6da%3Fj%3Deyl11joidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLINGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?
and Rasmussen Reports
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%?2Fredirect%2F485
67aa-4d85-818e-

422a5362a138%3Fj%3Deyl1IjoidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLtNGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?
showing that hundreds of thousands of Americans have been killed by the COVID shots.

There have never been any counter surveys published showing this not to be the case.

14. The lack of any success stories. It appears that “vaccine success stories” where

COVID infection fatality ratios dropped or that myocarditis cases plummeted do not exist.

The US Nursing home data
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%22Fredirect%2F6fa.
b881-48d4-ab92-

b38a07406cd8%3Fj%3Deyl1IjoidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLtNGolgvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%?7
shows that the infection fatality rate (IFR) increased after the vaccine rolled out. There is

nobody using that data making the claim it reduced the IFR.

15. Anecdotes from healthcare are extremely troubling. One nurse
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%2Fredirect%2Fe9b
6f4c-4e32-b913-

8a8057b3f865%3Fj%3Deyl1IjoidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWa0LFC4PLtNGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?
reported a hospital admission rate that was 3X higher than anything in the 33-year

history of the hospital after the COVID vaccines rolled out. Symptoms rarely ever seen

were common after vaccines rolled out in that age group.

16. Lack of autopsies in clinical trials and post-marketing. The CDC doesn’t request
anyone to do autopsies even for people who die on the same day as they got the
vaccine. Don't they want to know what killed those people... just to be sure?

17. Young people dying in sleep. There are way too many cases of young people who
die in their sleep after being vaccinated. Doctors say this is a rare event. Now it is much
more common. If the shots are safe, why is this happening?

18. I have direct personal experience with the vaccine: two people I know were killed
by the vaccine, none from COVID. I know many people who are vaccine injured from the
COVID vaccine.

19. Ed Dowd’s book statistics. This very popular book (*Cause Unknown”
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%2Fredirect%2F15c
c0d0-49b8-b054-

b3c76b9b9d2b%3Fj%3Deyl11joidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLINGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?
) listed 500 who died unexpectedly. Ed didn’t know how many were unvaccinated. Only

one person has come forward saying that one of the people in the book who died after

the vaccines rolled out was unvaccinated.

20. Prominent doctor/scientists switching sides. Paul Marik is one of the top
intensivists in the world. After seeing many COVID vaccine injured patients, he changed
his mind about the safety of vaccines. When he was not allowed to practice medicine
consistent with his Hippocratic Oath, he resigned his position.

21. The corruption with COVID protocols. The COVID hospital protocols likely caused



90% of the COVID deaths in hospitals. This led to Paul Marik resigning. See details in this

article
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%?2Fredirect%?2Fe9b
6f4c-4e32-b913-

8a8057b3f865%3Fj%3Deyl1IjoidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLtNGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%:?
. Why are doctors forced to use hospital protocols that kill a huge percentage of patients

instead of using their best judgment to save patients?

22. This JAMA paper
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsubstack.com%?2Fredirect%2Fb6S
2677-4b5b-a000-

97b2419f3cd4%3Fj%3Deyl11joidGFvZ2wifQ.6dRNrWaOLFC4PLtINGolqvfmMd1pcH-
6zh1fnBKsOnmQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7Caacf7d1c246240cc3f3408dc0f6811e4%?7
shows that COVID and influenza vaccines don't work. Why are we pushing a vaccine

where the statistics clearly show the vaccines don’t work?

23. The consistency of the data. There have been no counter-anecdotes showing the
vaccines are safe. I keep looking for one and come up empty.

24. No debates with anyone prominent promoting the government narrative.Those
who promote the narrative refuse to engage in any scientific discussions to resolve
differences of opinion. This is similar to the question of whether vaccines cause autism:
nobody who thinks it doesn't is willing to engage in a public discussion about it to discuss
the evidence. Why not resolve the issue through dialog? It isn't resolved in the peer-
review literature where half the papers say vaccines cause autism and the other half
don’t. Why can't we talk about it?

25. Fear and intimidation tactics are used to silence dissent. Open debate would be
more productive. But people are not allowed to hold or discuss views that go against the
“consensus” or they will lose their jobs, their certifications, or their medical licenses.
Health care workers are told they will be fired if they report an adverse event to VAERS,
there are nurses who won't talk about anaphylaxis after getting the vaccine for fear of
being fired, vaccine injuries are covered up, hospital workers are afraid to talk about it at
work.

26. The cognitive dissonance is very disturbing. When healthcare workers bring up the
topic of mortality and morbidity due to the vaccine, their peers say nothing and walk
away.

27. Censorship tactics employed by the US government to silence dissent instead of
public recorded open debates. History has shown that purveyors of censorship are always
on the wrong side of the issue.

Scott

On Jan 4, 2024, at 1:11 AM, SCOTT SHOCK <ssshock@comcast.net> wrote:

O
Dear WSDOH and WSBOH Members, and Attorney General's Office,

The Florida State Surgeon General has been a leader in protecting the people of his state
against the unsafe mRNA COVID vaccinations. What actions are the WSDOH, WSBOH,
and WA AG taking to protect the people of Washington State against these unsafe
products, and to gain justice for those injured by these products (including members of



my family)? I look forward to your responses.

Scott Shock

Seattle

Joseph A. Ladapo, MD, PhD on X: "I am calling for a halt to the use of mMRNA COVID-19

vaccines. https://t.co/olg8VTh6gB" / X (twitter.com)
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FFLSurgeonGen%2

Florida State Surgeon General
Calls for Halt in the Use of
COVID-19 mRNA Vaccines

Tallahassee, Fla. — On December 6, 2023, State Surgeon General Dr. Joseph A. Ladapo

sent a letter
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.floridahealth.gov%2Fabout¥
06-2023-DOH-Letter-to-FDA-RFI-on-COVID-19-
Vaccines.pdf%3Futm_medium%3Demail%26utm_source%3Dgovdelivery&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40s
to the United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) Commissioner Dr. Robert M.

Califf and Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Director Dr. Mandy Cohen

regarding questions pertaining to the safety assessments and the discovery
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fosf.i0o%2Fpreprints%2Fosf%2Fmj
of billions of DNA fragments per dose of the Pfizer and Moderna COVID-19 mRNA

vaccines.

The Surgeon General outlined concerns regarding nucleic acid contaminants in the
approved Pfizer and Moderna COVID-19 mRNA vaccines, particularly in the presence of
lipid nanoparticle complexes, and Simian Virus 40 (SV40) promoter/enhancer DNA. Lipid
nanoparticles are an efficient vehicle for delivery of the mRNA in the COVID-19 vaccines
into human cells and may therefore be an equally efficient vehicle for delivering
contaminant DNA into human cells. The presence of SV40 promoter/enhancer DNA may
also pose a unique and heightened risk of DNA integration into human cells.

In 2007, the FDA published guidance on regulatory limits for DNA vaccines in the

Guidance for Industry: Considerations for Plasmid DNA Vaccines for Infectious Disease

Indications (Guidance for Industry)
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.fda.gov%2Fmedia%?2F7366
. In this Guidance for Industry, the FDA outlines important considerations for vaccines

that use novel methods of delivery regarding DNA integration, specifically:

* DNA integration could theoretically impact a human’s oncogenes - the genes
which can transform a healthy cell into a cancerous cell.

* DNA integration may result in chromosomal instability.

* The Guidance for Industry discusses biodistribution of DNA vaccines and how such

integration could affect unintended parts of the body including blood, heart, brain, liver,
kidney, bone marrow, ovaries/testes, lung, draining lymph nodes, spleen, the site of
administration and subcutis at injection site.

On December 14, 2023, the FDA provided a written response providing no evidence that

DNA integration assessments have been conducted to address risks outlined by the FDA
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.fda.gov%2Fmedia%?2F7366
themselves in 2007. Based on the FDA's recognition of unique risks posed by DNA



integration, the efficacy of the COVID-19 mRNA vaccine’s lipid nanoparticle delivery
system, and the presence of DNA fragments in these vaccines, it is essential to human
health to assess the risks of contaminant DNA integration into human DNA. The FDA has
provided no evidence that these risks have been assessed to ensure safety. As such,
Florida State Surgeon General Dr. Joseph A. Ladapo has released the following
statement:

“The FDA’s response does not provide data or evidence that the DNA integration
assessments they recommended themselves have been performed. Instead, they pointed
to genotoxicity studies - which are inadequate assessments for DNA integration risk. In
addition, they obfuscated the difference between the SV40 promoter/enhancer and SV40
proteins, two elements that are distinct.

DNA integration poses a unique and elevated risk to human health and to the integrity of
the human genome, including the risk that DNA integrated into sperm or egg gametes
could be passed onto offspring of mMRNA COVID-19 vaccine recipients. If the risks of DNA
integration have not been assessed for mRNA COVID-19 vaccines, these vaccines are not
appropriate for use in human beings.

Providers concerned about patient health risks associated with COVID-19 should
prioritize patient access to non-mRNA COVID-19 vaccines and treatment. It is my hope
that, in regard to COVID-19, the FDA will one day seriously consider its regulatory
responsibility to protect human health, including the integrity of the human genome.”

In the spirit of transparency and scientific integrity, State Surgeon General Dr. Joseph A.
Ladapo will continue to assess research surrounding these risks and provide updates to
Floridians.

On September 13, 2023, State Surgeon General Dr. Joseph A. Ladapo provided guidance
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%_2F%2Ffloridahealthcovid19.gov%2Fwp-
content%2Fuploads%2F2023%2F09%2F20230913-booster-guidance-
final.pdf%3Futm_medium%3Demail%26utm_source%3Dgovdelivery&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.
against COVID-19 boosters for individuals under 65 and younger. In addition to

aforementioned concerns, providers and patients should be aware of outstanding safety

and efficacy concerns outlined in the State Surgeon General’s previous booster guidance

released in September.



From: Arne Christensen

Sent: 1/17/2024 11:09:22 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: lonely people walking in the rain wearing face masks

External Email

The health department needs to stop lying to us about the effectiveness of
face masks, vaccines, and social distancing for protecting people against
covid. I just saw a man with a flimsy blue plastic mask walking outdoors, by
himself, in the cold rain. He is only doing this because public health
agencies have lied about masks for 4 years, and have inexplicably failed to
advise people that masks don't work when wet.



From: bill teachingsmiles.com

Sent: 1/8/2024 8:32:17 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Public Comment 1/10/2024 Osmunson

External Email
Dear Washington State Board of Health,

I am requesting to provide public comment for the January 10, 2024 Board of Health
Meeting.

My comments:

The Board of Health is the highest health authority in Washington State. Overhearing one
Board member say, “but we are not supposed to have to look at the science.” My jaw
dropped almost to the floor. If the Board does not read science, what does the Board use
to determine “health” policy such as fluoridation? Gossip? Rummers? Industry? The
Dental Lobby?

In effect, the Board trusts the dental lobby and disregards inconvenient empirical factual
evidence, laws and authorities such as:

I. The Washington State Board of Pharmacy, who determined that fluoride is a “legend
drug.” However, the Board of Health disagrees and trusts the dental lobby. The Board of
Pharmacy was disbanded in part because they agreed with the law and science that
fluoride ingested with intent to prevent disease is a prescription drug. Are you Board of
Health doctors willing to put your license on the line prescribing the drug for everyone in
Washington State without their consent or being patients of record? That would be
unethical. Pharmacists have more training and expertise with toxins, dosage, adverse
reactions and inter reactions of toxins than any other licensed profession. What empirical
evidence does the Board of Health have which disagrees with the Board of Pharmacy?
None. The Board of Health is violating science and laws of health.

See: Krzeczkowski JE, et al. Prenatal fluoride exposure, offspring visual acuity and

autonomic nervous system function in 6-month-old infants.
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sciencedirect.com%2Fscienc
Environment International. 2023

I1. U.S. Congress which has authorized the Food and Drug Administration Center for Drug
Evaluation and Research (FDA CDER) to determine the efficacy, dosage, safety and label
of substances used to prevent disease. No, the Board trusts the dental lobby.

III. FDA CDER warns, “"Do Not Swallow”. Instead, the Board trusts the dental lobby and
promotes mandated fluoride ingestion for everyone without patient consent, without
patient dosage control, without the Doctor as legal intermediary, without regard for age
or health of the patient. FDA CDER has determined fluoride ingestion lacks evidence of
efficacy. And the FDA has given warnings to bottled water manufacturers (not FDA CDER
approved) the fluoridated water must not be marketed to those under two years of age.
The Board of Health is harming the public by disagreeing with authorized regulatory
agencies.



IV. The Environmental Protection Agency scientists finding over two decades ago that
fluoridation borders on a criminal Act because of toxicity and lack of current benefit. The
Safe Drinking Water prohibits the EPA from adding anything to water to treat humans, so
the Board trusts the dental lobby. And the EPA Dose Response Analysis and Relative
Source Contribution of 2010 reporting that most or all infants and toddlers are ingesting
too much fluoride.

V. The National Research Council 2006 report for the EPA that EPA’'s Maximum
Contaminant Level for fluoride was not protective and harms most if not all cells and
systems of the body. Instead, the Board of Health trusts the dental lobby. Fluoride is a
contaminant the Board recommends adding to water.

VI. The National Toxicology Program reporting fluoride is a presumed developmental
neurotoxin with 55 human studies, 52 reported IQ loss a 95% consistency. And their
meta-analysis reports IQ loss. But no. The Board would rather trust the dental lobby
rather than toxicologists for toxicity. Not everyone has the same sensitivity to
drugs/toxins or the same health or the same ability to handle drugs/toxins. Some
individuals had much more IQ loss and some were probably unaffected. The mean is not
protective or representative of each individual. The Board must protect everyone, not
just the healthiest and wealthiest.

“This January, Birnbaum
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fen.wikipedia.org%?2Fwiki%_2FLind:
issued a scathing legal declaration as part of the lawsuit, writing, ‘The decision to set

aside the results of an external peer review process based on concerns expressed by

agencies with strong policy interests on fluoride suggests the presence of political

interference in what should be a strictly scientific endeavor.’ Birnbaum said she issued

the legal declaration in part over concerns the report might never be publicly released...

the science proves there is ‘no real benefit’ from ingesting fluoride. ‘The benefit from

fluoride is from topical applications,’ she said.” - Capital and Main ( March 14, 2023)

VII. Only one RCT (randomized controlled trial, the highest quality of research) of
fluoride ingestion has been published and it report no statistical benefit from ingesting
the fluoride. That’s right. NO, NONE, ZERO quality studies reporting dental benefit of
fluoride ingestion. No wonder the FDA said the evidence of efficacy is incomplete.

VIII. The lack of mechanism of action. Fluoride cannot go from the blood to the tooth
pulp chamber through the calcium rich dentin and enamel to the outside of the tooth
where the dental caries are forming and active. Fluoride during swallowing of water is
short term and little gets to the lower teeth and the theoretical slight increase of fluoride
in saliva with water at 0.7 ppm is too dilute to have an effect. Research has not reported
a benefit at 700 ppm let alone 0.7 ppm.

IX. 97% of Europe does not fluoridate their water. And their dental caries are a similar
rate as fluoridated communities and states not fluoridated.

X. CDC has known since the publication of the 2006 National Research Council (NRC)
report to the EPA, that there is no safety data for susceptible sub-populations and
significant scientific evidence of probable harm. In 2018, Mr. Casey Hannan of the CDC
admitted under oath in a deposition for the trial in federal court expected to wrap up in
February 2024 that the CDC accepts the 2006 NRC conclusions. Mr. Hannan also
admitted that the CDC has no safety data specific to pre- and post-natal exposure. We
understand Mr. Hannan decided to retire before commencement of that trial.

XI. Public Health Service (PHS) researchers advised the PHS in 1956 and 1961 that a
portion of the allergic population would experience significant and acute ill effects from
fluoridation programs with no pragmatic recourse to avoid the irritant. Other researchers
in that decade advised that the placentas of women living in ‘optimally’ fluoridated



communities were saturated with fluoride at twice the concentration of the water they
drank. They opined that although they didn’t know the fetal impact, the mothers would
probably be fine. (Feltman 1956; Feltman & Kosel 1961; Gardner et al. 1952

PHS lowered fluoridation concentration recommendation from 0.7-1.2 mg/L to 0.7 mg/L.
However, no studies on efficacy have been done at current lower concentrations.

Once again, I am calling for the Board to remove their endorsement of fluoridation from
your web site and protect the fetus and infants from known harm.

Current evidence is alarming on fluoride’s contribution not just to lower IQ, but also to
preterm birth and infant mortality.

See also https://www.fluoridelawsuit.com/science
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.fluoridelawsuit.com®2Fscier

Once again, I am calling for the Board to remove their endorsement of fluoridation from
your web site and protect the fetus and infants from known harm.

Bill Osmunson DDS MPH



From: Arne Christensen

Sent: 2/6/2024 1:21:14 PM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: alleged Taiwan face mask death

External Email

You need to read this article from January, "Infant dies after allegedly
suffocating on mask at New Taipei daycare":
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ffocustaiwan.tw%2Fsociety % 2F2024

It begins: "Authorities in New Taipei on Wednesday said they are
investigating the death of an 11-month-old boy at a public daycare center,
which the child's family allege happened when he suffocated on a mask a
teacher forced him to wear."

After reading it, do you still think face masks are just an inconvenience? I
don't accept the reply that public health authorities never said infants

should have to wear masks. Normalizing and requiring masks on toddlers was
going to lead to requiring masks on infants somewhere in the world.



From: Garry Blankenship

Sent: 2/5/2024 8:15:15 AM

To: hcinfo.infosc@canada.ca,DOH

WSBOH,dhsmoh@yahoo.com,secretary@health.gov.bz,Van De Wege, Kevin,Chapman,

Mike
(LEG),sheriff@co.clallam.wa.us,mozias@co.clallam.wa.us,rjohnson@co.clallam.wa.us,shahidafatin@gmail.c
Allison 2 (DOHi)

Cc:

Subject: The NOP BOH Needs Introspection

External Email

I do not doubt the BOH intentions, but recommending, promoting and mandating these
mMRNA injections was and remains a colossal mistake. Denying the naturally immune
public access was worse. The Federal, State and local pandemic management record is
without exception an abject failure. I request the Board make the effort to insure
mistakes like this never repeat.

https://www.theepochtimes.com/health/for-every-life-saved-mrna-vaccines-caused-
nearly-14-times-more-deaths-study-
5579794?utm_source=Ccpv&src_src=Ccpv&utm_campaign=2024-02-

05&src_cmp=2024-02-
05&utm_medium=email&est=0Y%2F9GSyc74a%2FdwbERhO%2FTk2D8BeBhXgQlredhB%2Fte85A4PYzcUd!

<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.theepochtimes.com%2Fheal
every-life-saved-mrna-vaccines-caused-nearly-14-times-more-deaths-study-
5579794%3Futm_source®%3DCcpv%26src_src%3DCcpv%26utm_campaign%3D2024-
02-05%26src_cmp%3D2024-02-
05%26utm_medium%3Demail%26est%3D0Y%252F9GSyc74a%252FdwbERhO%252FTk2D8BeBhXgQlredh

Sincerely,

Garry Blankenship



From: patrice tullai

Sent: 1/5/2024 6:34:20 PM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Racism is a public health crisis

External Email

Hello, and good day to you,

When I was a child all children played together no matter race or color or religion, the
policies that are being inflamed are creating more division among people, not less. I see
division and victim mentality being pushed to the forefront, this does not help our
children, youth, or society, this is dividing people. We need to come together. The
problems come from class ....the poor suffer. I would like to encourage you to not act
under the idea, or create policies that racism is a public health problem ,

Thank you

I hope you and 2024 work to bring humanity together not divided,

Patrice Tullai

PateiceTullai@gmail.com



From: DOH WSBOH

Sent: 3/8/2024 11:51:33 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: FW: My Public Comments

Forwarding as this email has the same subject line as her email from 3/7 and the system
would not accept a duplicate.

From: Melissa Leady <melleady@yahoo.com>
Sent: Friday, March 8, 2024 11:11 AM

To: DOH WSBOH <WSBOH@SBOH.WA.GOV>
Subject: My Public Comments

External Email

As part of the PEAR Plan Development, will the Department of Health (DOH) be
conducting a pandemic policy review, looking at some of the unintended negative
impacts of covid policies? Pandemic policy in Washington state disproportionately
impacted lower-income families and people of color.

Loss of in-person learning at schools resulted in lower test scores. In Vancouver, for
example, the city is providing $500,000 to the Vancouver Public School District to
address covid learning loss at elementary schools in the Fourth Plain corridor. These are
among the most ethnically diverse and economically challenged schools in the district.
For the students in these schools, the cost of covid learning loss could be felt for their
lifetimes, according to a UN study on children living in learning poverty.

Covid job loss also disproportionately impacted low wage jobs, as the “laptop class”
quickly transitioned to working from home. At my last county board of health meeting,
my local health director mentioned that the covid job loss often resulted in loss of health
insurance. Has there been any assessment of the effects of pandemic policy-related job
loss on access to healthcare?

During the pandemic, the public was told to isolate and parks and outdoor recreation
were closed. The obesity rate in Washington state increased 2%. Obesity is closely linked
to a wide variety of negative health outcomes, including diabetes, heart disease, cancer,
and covid death. According to the CDC, the current obesity rates in Washington state by
race are: 10% Asian, 30% white, 36% Black, 36% Hispanic, and 43% Native American.
Will the PEAR Plan Development be looking at differing rates of obesity by race as part of
their efforts to understand differing rate of covid deaths by race?

These are just a few examples. Other areas to explore include : impacts on small
businesses and restaurants, school enrollment, mental health, anxiety, depression,



substance abuse, drug overdoses, domestic violence, housing and housing affordability,
food insecurity, and loss of cultural events and religion gatherings.

In addition, has there been an assessment of the impacts of the Washington state
vaccine mandate? A recent study comparing states with vaccine mandates and states
banning vaccines mandates showed 1) no comparable difference in vaccine uptake; and
2) reduced rates of flu and booster uptake in states that imposed mandates.

Does DOH attribute the low 2023-2024 rates for flu vaccination (30%) and covid
vaccination (18%) to “blow back” from the vaccine mandates? What was the impact of
the mandates of jobs and healthcare? In Clark County, for example, there was a 10%
drop in hospital beds after the mandate took effect, when some hospital staff chose to
quit instead of getting vaccinated. Eventually that difference was made up by employing
traveling nurses at an increased cost, driving up costs locally.

I hope that DOH will take the time to assess the “collateral damage” of covid policy
decisions, as former NIH director Francis Collins recently termed it. Perhaps this could be
done in conjunction with the PEAR Impact Assessment.

Sincerely,
Melissa Leady

Clark County Resident



From: Garry Blankenship

Sent: 3/2/2024 8:22:24 AM

To: Van De Wege, Kevin,Chapman, Mike (LEG),DOH
WSBOH,sheriff@co.clallam.wa.us,mozias@co.clallam.wa.us,rjohnson@co.clallam.wa.us,shahidafatin@gmail
Allison 2 (DOHi),Tharinger, Steve

Cc:

Subject: Higher Mortality In Vaxed Vs Unvaxed

External Email
Good Day All,

I have found any contra "vaccine" information, regardless of documentable verification,
to be summarily dismissed by most medical practitioners, particularly those holding any
authoritative position, with no effort to independently vet that information. No objectivity
in vetting drug safety is a huge looming problem that will not go away. Confidence in our
health care system has been critically damaged by a lack of acknowledging mistakes
made in the "pandemic". It is clear that the medical community was given false
information on the COVID "vaccines", treatment protocols and repurposed drugs, but the
absence of acknowledging that will self destruct the medical complex. I implore you to
stop pretending that promoting these mRNA platform injectable products was or is health
positive. These drugs are killing the young and working aged disproportionately.

https://www.theepochtimes.com/health/study-finds-higher-mortality-among-vaccinated-
patients-hospitalized-for-covid-19-post-
5597490?utm_source=Ccpv&src_src=Ccpv&utm_campaign=2024-03-

02&src_cmp=2024-03-
02&utm_medium=email&est=AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAaes4chlex8Tb%2F5MNsWhaCqduhUOLM8%2FAPpFNruk

<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.theepochtimes.com%2Fheal
finds-higher-mortality-among-vaccinated-patients-hospitalized-for-covid-19-post-
5597490%3Futm_source%3DCcpv%26src_src%3DCcpv%26utm_campaign%3D2024-
03-02%26src_cmp%3D2024-03-
02%26utm_medium%3Demail%26est%3DAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAaes4chIex8Tb%252F5MNsWhaCqduhUOLM

Not seeking anonymity,

Garry Blankenship



From: Michelle Anderson

Sent: 2/1/2024 5:10:05 PM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Public Comments for the Environmental Health Committee

External Email

Dear Board.

I would just like to remind you that Mandatory COVID shots or testing is unacceptable!
It is now just another virus that we must all deal with!

Just like the FLU, Common Cold or any other Corona Virus (there are a bunch and tests
don't tell you WHICH one it is)

We are ADULTS and we can make decisions for our own children!

Government mandates are unnecessary!

Thank you very much for all you do!



From: Garry Blankenship

Sent: 2/24/2024 7:40:04 AM

To: Van De Wege, Kevin,Chapman, Mike (LEG),DOH
WSBOH,sheriff@co.clallam.wa.us,mozias@co.clallam.wa.us,rjohnson@co.clallam.wa.us,shahidafatin@gmail
Allison 2 (DOHi)

Cc:

Subject: "Vaccine" Adverse Events

External Email

I can only hope those responsible for promoting and particularly mandating these toxins
are held accountable. These injections violate informed consent and the Hippocratic Oath.

https://www.theepochtimes.com/health/a-host-of-notable-covid-19-vaccine-adverse-
events-those-backed-by-evidence-
5590525?utm_source=Health&src_src=Health&utm_campaign=health-2024-02-
24&src_cmp=health-2024-02-
24&utm_medium=email&est=AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAaes4chIex8Tb%2F5MNsWhaCqduhUOLM8%2FAPpFNrut



From: Stuart Halsan

Sent: 2/6/2024 8:07:49 PM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Communicating With Board Members

External Email

For Patty Hayes

I have some genealogical info for you.. You can reach out to me at this email.
Hope all is well.

Stuart Halsan
Sent via the Samsung Galaxy S9+, an AT&T 5G Evolution capable smartphone



From: Karen Spencer

Sent: 3/8/2024 10:05:47 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Comment: Fluoridation Poisoning

External Email

“Fluoride is capable of producing any number of symptoms. They include drowsiness,
profound desire to sleep, dizziness, nasal congestion, sneezing, runny nose, sore throat,
coughing, wheezing (asthma), chest pain, hives, and various intestinal symptoms. Most
of the information concerning specific reactions to fluoride, as seen in private practice,
never reach publication.” - Hobart Feldman, MD, American Board of Allergy and
Immunology (1979)

Board of Health -

I signed up to make a comment on Wednesday March 13th, but may be unavailable at
that time. Therefore, I am sending a written comment for your consideration:

MY PERSONAL STORY:

My name is Karen Spencer. I am a retired analyst and project management consultant
who has worked with all levels of Corporate America.

I am angry about what happened to me and my children. I was poisoned by fluoridated
water while pregnant in 1981. My normal pregnancy turned difficult overnight. I was ill
with chronic dizziness, nausea, bloody stools and rashes beginning the first week of July.
I didn’t make the connection to water until much later. Fluoridation began on July 1st.

I did not recover after giving birth. Worse, both my children shared my symptoms. It
took me until late 1982 to realize tap water was causing our rashes and gastrointestinal
problems. My primary care physician who was the Chair of the Board of Health yelled me
out of his office in November when I asked if the water could be making us sick. In
January ‘83, an allergist specializing in environmental health recommended I only use
spring water in glass bottles for all of our water needs, which alleviated our symptoms.

Since bottled water is expensive, I installed a high-quality under the sink filter in '91. I
was diagnosed with Lyme disease about the same time, so I accepted my doctors
attribution of my emerging and ongoing arthritis and neurological symptoms to Chronic
Lyme. They also diagnosed me with irritable bowel syndrome. I was in my 30s. I
developed kidney and liver problems in my 50s.

I switched back to bottled water in 2014 to see if it would have a positive effect on my
declining health. It did— within days. My multi-stage system wasn’t adequate and never
had been. Can you imagine my outrage when I realized, in my 60s, that decades of
arthritis, gastrointestinal illness, neurological issues and even concerns over organ failure
had been fluoride poisoning?

There is no happy ending for me. The damage to my bones and spinal discs from
decades of fluoride poisoning cannot be undone, and neither can the damage to my son
who has learning disabilities consistent with what has been validated by developmental
neurotoxicity studies.

The chair of my local board of health, a doctor, told me in 2014 that “they” knew some



people would have problematic symptoms from fluoridation, but it was a “greater good"
to prevent a cavity or two in poor children. Please don’t tell me that my life and the lives
of my children are collateral damage. I suggest that ending fluoridation not only provides
health equity for susceptible sub-populations, but also serves justice to the grandchildren
of my baby-boomer generation who were poisoned by an ill-conceived, immoral medical
mandate.

* CAPE ANN STORY WITH REFERENCES: https://fluoridealert.org/wp-
content/uploads/SalemState2016.09.07.pdf
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%?2Ffluoridealert.org%2Fwp-
content%2Fuploads%?2FSalemState2016.09.07.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7C684f7

* ANNOTATED SCIENCE BIBLIOGRAPHY: https://www.fluoridelawsuit.com/science
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.fluoridelawsuit.com%2Fscier

For more about me, see my signature.

Regards,

Karen Favazza Spencer

Leominster, MA 01453

978.283.4606

Subscribe on YouTube
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%_2Fchannel%?2
vZ55u70KUchQ&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7C684f7f0a9660495d62fd08dc3f99f847%7C

See the Call to Action
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.greenmedinfo.com%2Fblog%
letter-nutritionists-about-fluoride-
deception&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7C684f7f0a9660495d62fd08dc3f99f847%7C11d0

More power to you if fluoridation doesn’t bother you, but not the power to assume it’s
safe for your neighbor with kidney disease, his pregnant wife or their diabetic daughter!

About Karen: Currently a semi-retired consultant working with software development

teams, Karen Spencer is a former analyst and project leader. She is adept at conducting

research and analyzing trends. Her special interests include critical thinking, data-driven

decision making, and organizational theory. She and others in her family are among the

15% of Americans with chemical sensitivities triggered by exposure to fluoridated food

and drink. Karen’s publications were featured in:

Medical Hypotheses (2018): https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/30396472/
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fpubmed.ncbi.nim.nih.gov%2F303

GreenMed (2019): https://www.greenmedinfo.com/blog/wetoo-medical-assault-and-

battery
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.greenmedinfo.com%_2Fblog®
medical-assault-and-
battery&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7C684f7f0a9660495d62fd08dc3f99f847%7C11d0e2.

Gloucester Times (2022): https://www.gloucestertimes.com/opinion/column-stop-
poisoning-gloucester/article_0089c49c-1278-11ed-8a42-fb294218a4fe.html
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gloucestertimes.com%2Fopi
stop-poisoning-gloucester%?2Farticle_0089¢c49c-1278-11ed-8a42-
fb294218a4fe.html&data=05%7C02%7Cwsboh%40sboh.wa.gov%7C684f7f0a9660495d62fd08dc3f99f847°¢



Message to CDC (2022): https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=PzviupO1cDQ
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%?2Fwatch%3F

Collaborative Activism (2022-current): https://www.fluoridelawsuit.com/actions
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.fluoridelawsuit.com%2Factic

Bill in MA Legislature (2023): https://malegislature.gov/Bills/193/S460
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fmalegislature.gov%2FBills%2F19:

Document Fraud at CDC (2024):
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/377152337_Document_Fraud_at_CDC
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.researchgate.net%2Fpublica



From: Garry Blankenship

Sent: 2/17/2024 10:31:07 AM

To: hcinfo.infosc@canada.ca,DOH WSBOH,OADS@cdc.gov,sheriff@co.clallam.wa.us,Van

De Wege, Kevin,Chapman, Mike
(LEG),mozias@co.clallam.wa.us,rjohnson@co.clallam.wa.us,shahidafatin@gmail.com,gbsjrmd@sisna.com,r
Allison 2 (DOHi)

Cc:

Subject: Vaccine Shedding

External Email

Fascinating article and video on shedding. The probability of vaccinated people shedding
spike proteins on other people is very real.

https://www.theepochtimes.com/health/covid-vaccine-shedding-is-real-fda-and-pfizer-
documents-are-proof-clinicians-
5588819?utm_source=Health&src_src=Health&utm_campaign=health-2024-02-
17&src_cmp=health-2024-02-
17&utm_medium=email&est=AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAaes4chlex8Tb%2F5MNsWhaCqduhUOLM8%2FAPpFNrub



From: Cheryl Lewis

Sent: 1/23/2024 7:57:12 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Communicating With Board Members

Y/
’ attachments\B7B9A7277A0E4E2B Sledge - BOH Strategies.pdfDept
b PRDTOOL NAMETOOLONG.pdff

External Email

Microsoft Edge - ready to share - Presentation and 6 more pages - Personal - Microsoft
Edge - 15 January 2024 - Watch Video
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.loom.com%2Fshare%2F8bcl

<https://cdn.loom.com/sessions/thumbnails/8bc09cd7d30146e6a46991886f25c8c8-
00001.jpg>
healthcare hygienist!

Hello All

I am a dental hygienist who would love to see an improvement in oral care for our
community. I believe there are many ways to improve this and ran across this
publication on your site (it is at the bottom of the page). It seems to be dated 2013. I
am wondering how far we have come since then? I have created a presentation that I
would like to share with you. It is about 30 minutes long and I feel it promotes your
cause in a different light. I would be honored if you would review it and allow me to be a
resource to you in this arena. I have a deep desire to improve the oral care of our facility
residents, from the hospital to the long term care facilities. I believe dental hygienist’s
should be employed as a member of each of these facilities as oral care specialists, not to
perform traditional dental cleanings but to improve daily oral care which will improve
quality of life. Having a hygienist visit a facility every 3-6 months isn’t helping people
keep their mouths healthy. Please watch my presentation to gain insight on this. I think
we should at the very least, create a certification for caregivers, one that specializes in
oral care. Maybe they could have increased training on oral diseases to look for (cancer,
gum disease, cavities, dry mouth sores, abscesses). Special training on treatment and
prevention of caries and gum disease. This distinction could create value of the caregiver
and maybe that could translate to an increase in their wage, which may lead to retention,
maybe decrease turnover? If there was a team or even an individual in charge of oral
care and only oral care, our dependents would not suffer with dry mouth sores and
bleeding gums. Oral care is often the first area to be neglected and a visit from the
hygienist 2 times a year is not the way to maintain oral health. We are learning more and
more about the bacteria’s role in our health and allowing plaque (bacteria) and food to
linger for days, weeks, months is not promoting health. Often oral care is left to the
resident, unless it is noted on the residents care plan to brush for them.

I know you are busy, but please take a moment (30 minutes or so [1J9nd consider the
change that could be made. It's like a child who drowns in the swimming pool, when
everyone is watching, no one is watching. We need a go to, a someone in charge of daily
oral hygiene to ensure people are receiving the care they need and deserve. This would
not only reduce risk of cavities and gum disease, but aspirated pneumonia, sepsis, and
death as well.

I am trying to make change starting at the top (you).



I look forward to hearing from you and thank you sincerely for taking the time to
consider this.

Sent from Mail
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgo.microsoft.com% _2Ffwlink%2F%
for Windows



From: Cheryl

Sent: 1/30/2024 6:08:46 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Communicating With Board Members

Vi

| __attachments\88C9EC27E025473E _my presentation (1).htm
v,

attachments\5B71ED4076E84D7A_Sledge - BOH Strategies.pdfDept
p PRDTOOL NAMETOOLONG.pd

External Email

Hello All

I am a dental hygienist who would love to see an improvement in oral care for our
community. I believe there are many ways to improve this and ran across this
publication on your site. It seems to be dated 2013. I am wondering how far we have
come along since then. I have created a presentation that I would like to share with you.
It is about 30 minutes long and I feel it promotes your cause in a different light. I would
be honored if you would review it and allow me to be a resource to you in this arena. I
have a deep desire to improve the oral care of our facility residents, from the hospital to
the long term care facilities. I believe dental hygienist’s should be employed as a
member of each of these facilities as oral care specialist, not to perform traditional dental
cleanings but to improve daily oral care which will improve quality of life. Having a
hygienist visit a facility every 3-6 months isn’t helping people keep their mouths healthy.
Please watch my presentation to gain insight on this. I think we should at the very least,
create a certification for caregivers, one that specializes in oral care. Maybe they could
have increased training on oral diseases to look for (cancer, gum disease, cavities, dry
mouth sores, abscesses). Special training on treatment and prevention of caries and gum
disease. This distinction could create value of the caregiver and maybe that could
translate to an increase in their wage, which may lead to retention, maybe decrease
turnover? If there was a team or even an individual in charge of oral care and only oral
care, our dependents would not suffer with dry mouth sores and bleeding gums. Oral
care is often the first area to be neglected and a visit from the hygienist 2 times a year is
not the way to maintain oral health. We are learning more and more about the bacteria’s
role in our health and allowing plague (bacteria) and food to linger for days, weeks,
months is not promoting health. Often oral care is left to the resident, unless it is noted
on the residents care plan to brush for them.

I know you are busy, but please take a moment (30 minutes or so [1Jgnd consider the
change that could be made. It's like a child who drowns in the swimming pool, when
everyone is watching, no one is watching. We need a go to, a someone in charge of daily
oral hygiene to ensure people are receiving the care they need and deserve. This would
not only reduce risk of cavities and gum disease, but aspirated pneumonia, sepsis, and
death as well.

I am trying to make change starting at the top (you).

I look forward to hearing from you and thank you sincerely for taking the time to
consider this.

Best

Cheryl lewis RDH



Sent from Mail
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgo.microsoft.com%2Ffwlink% 2F%
for Windows



From: bill teachingsmiles.com
Sent: 2/29/2024 7:31:08 AM

To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: March 13 Public Comment

External Email

Dear Washington State Board of Health,

The Legislature has made one of the duties of the Board of Health to assure drinking
water is safe, because water is essential for life.

The Legislature does not say the duty is to assure efficacy, because that’s the duty of the
FDA.

Fluoridation of public water is not safe because, not once did the EPA expert scientists
during the two-week trial before the Superior Court of California (January and February
2024) testify that fluoridation was safe, or effective.

Fluoridation of public water is not safe because, it is a highly toxic contaminated
scrubbings of manufacturing, a poison, a prescription drug, not FDA approved,
misbranded and adulterated.

Fluoridation is not safe because, it violates an individual’s consent, freedom to choose,
and their doctor's oversight.

Fluoridation is not safe because, fluoride causes dental fluorosis. I, and most dentists,
each made and make hundreds of thousands of dollars treating cosmetic and functional
dental fluorosis, harm.

Fluoridation is not safe because, fluoride ingestion increases developmental neurotoxicity
as measured with lower IQ. Lower IQ increases the rate of special education in schools,
lower wage jobs, more unemployment, more divorce, more incarceration, more grief,
fewer gifted, and is bad for America, especially minorities.



Fluoridation is not safe because, fluoride ingestion harms the developing fetus, infant and
child as measured with increased miscarriage, increased premature birth, and increased
infant mortality.

Fluoridation is not safe because, fluoride ingestion is stored in the bones and as the
bones remodel the fluoride is given off. Mother’s blood concentration of fluoride in the
third trimester increases when she has inadequate intake of calcium for her fetus’s
needs.

Fluoridation is not safe because, fluoride ingestion harms the joints causing rheumatoid
and osteoarthritic-like pain.

Fluoridation is not safe because fluoride ingestion harms the thyroid and is an endocrine
disruptor, increasing diabetes, obesity and ADHD.

Fluoridation is not safe because fluoride ingestion increases osteosarcoma a rare but
lethal bone cancer, mostly in boys drinking fluoridated water during growth spurts.

Fluoridation is not safe because fluoride ingestion harms the kidneys and GI disorders.

Do not let the fluoridation lobby confuse you. The Board’s job is to assure safety. The
dental lobby’s job is to gain FDA CDER approval. They have failed, but you must not.

We look forward to participating in a forum on fluoride ingestion because we and many
are being harmed.

Bill Osmunson DDS MPH

Washington Action for Safe Water



From: Melissa Leady

Sent: 3/7/2024 6:13:04 PM
To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: My Public Comments

External Email

IS THE CURRENTLY AUTHORIZED COVID-19 VACCINE EFFECTIVE?

During a recent county board of health meeting, the health director for my county made
the claim that there is state data showing that the updated covid-19 vaccine is effective
at preventing severe illness, hospitalizations, and deaths; and that it is effective at
preventing infection and thereby transmission.

It seems my local health director is out on a limb in making this claim. If DOH has such
data on the updated covid-19 vaccine, they have never publicly shared it.

The DOH report on Hospitalizations and Deaths by Vaccination Status (#421-010), which
hasn’t updated in three months, begins by stating, "PLEASE NOTE: Information about
bivalent booster doses (authorized in the fall of 2022) or the updated monovalent
booster doses (authorized in September of 2023) is not included in this report.”

Is the board recommending the currently authorized updated covid-19 vaccine? If so, do
you have Washington state data showing the vaccine’s effectiveness? Please share it with
the public.



From: Stuart Cooper
Sent: 3/8/2024 12:13:53 PM
To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: Public Comment - Fluoridation Petition

Y

attachments\7605F4B7B7C3499D word - Letter to WA BOH.docx

External Email

Please see my public comment attached in the word document.

Thank you,

Stuart Cooper
Executive Director
Fluoride Action Network


MLL0303
Highlight


EMERGENC S




From: John Mueller

Sent: 3/8/2024 12:07:57 PM
To: DOH WSBOH

Cc:

Subject: My Public Comments

Y

attachments\6C/FF512628C4B63 30427CA8A0374B29BF1125260FD59D80. jpqg

External Email

Please consider the hazardous work conditions and equipment maintenance expenses
with the operation of a water fluoridation program. Fluorosilicic acid is highly corrosive,
with vapors combining with ambient air moisture to form hydrofluoric acid. The attached
photo shows the corrosive effects on safety equipment in a fluorosilicic acid storage room
at a large municipal treatment plant. Obviously the equipment in the photo needed
frequent and regular maintenance.

Sent from Mail
<https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgo.microsoft.com%2Ffwlink%2F%
for Windows


MLL0303
Highlight


Submission to WA Board of Health

The State Board of Health Ought to Act to Protect Residents From
the Unnecessary Risks Posed By Water Fluoridation

Dear Members of the State Board of Health:

I’'m urging the State Board of Health to respond appropriately to the
CDC’s data showing that millions of U.S. residents have visible signs of
overexposure to fluoride, as well as government-funded research linking
fluoride in water to impaired brain development in children.

The CDC’s National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES)
has consistently found skyrocketing rates of dental fluorosis. The agency
reported that 41% of adolescents (12 to 15) had dental fluorosis in 2004,
an increase of over 400% from the rates found 60 years prior. The
CDC’s 2012 survey found that the rate jumped significantly to 65+% of
adolescents with dental fluorosis. Now, according to a recent study
(Yang, June 2021) published in the journal Ecotoxicology and
Environmental Safety using the data from the NHANES 2015-16 survey,
the "prevalence of dental fluorosis was 70% in U.S. children."

Dental fluorosis is a permanent tooth enamel defect caused by
excessive fluoride intake during childhood. It appears as white spots or
lines in milder cases and pitted and stained enamel in more severe
cases, weakening the teeth and resulting in increased decay. More
importantly, fluorosis is a biomarker of overexposure to fluoride during
childhood development.

Ingesting fluoridated water, particularly in reconstituted infant formula,
and processed foods made with fluoridated water are recognized as the
primary sources of exposure, though swallowing toothpaste and fluoride
prescriptions also contribute.

The teeth of millions of children, teens, and adults have already been
permanently damaged by overexposure to fluoride during their first 8
years of life, and the CDC, along with the other promoters of fluoridation,
are fully aware. And yet, the public health officials have not only failed to
warn consumers about this side-effect, but have continued to push for
the expansion of the practice in Washington, with a recent attempt to


https://c212.net/c/link/?t=0&l=en&o=3858557-1&h=2830287789&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fnchs%2Fproducts%2Fdatabriefs%2Fdb53.htm&a=41%25
https://c212.net/c/link/?t=0&l=en&o=3858557-1&h=478886504&u=https%3A%2F%2Fjournals.sagepub.com%2Fdoi%2F10.1177%2F2380084419830957&a=65%2B%25+of+adolescents+with+dental+fluorosis
https://c212.net/c/link/?t=0&l=en&o=3858557-1&h=478886504&u=https%3A%2F%2Fjournals.sagepub.com%2Fdoi%2F10.1177%2F2380084419830957&a=65%2B%25+of+adolescents+with+dental+fluorosis
https://c212.net/c/link/?t=0&l=en&o=3858557-1&h=820969625&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sciencedirect.com%2Fscience%2Farticle%2Fpii%2FS0147651321005510%3Fvia%3Dihub&a=Yang%2C+June+2021

initiate fluoridation in Spokane and throughout the state with legislation
that fortunately failed in 2022.

Teeth are obviously not the only tissues in the body that are harmed by,
or accumulate, fluoride. The CDC’s NHANES data has been used in
recent published peer-reviewed studies to link fluoridated water with a
number of additional side effects, including earlier onset of menstruation
for black teens, sleep disorders in adolescents, increased uric acid levels
in the blood, 2.5 times greater risk of pediatric fractures, and kidney and
liver impairment in adolescents.

Additional studies on fluoridation have also recently found higher rates of
hip fractures, disruption of the endocrine system, and increased rates of
hypothyroidism.

There is also now a large body of government-funded studies linking
early life exposure to neurotoxicity, including during infancy. The Board
of health must take action to warn both pregnant women and parents of
formula-fed infants about the recent NIH-sponsored research indicating
that fluoride in drinking water poses a risk to the developing brain at the
exposure levels experienced in fluoridated communities, both in utero
and during early infancy. The lack of appropriate action to protect
children by our federal agencies like the CDC and HHS is an alarming
disregard for science and disrespect for the welfare of U.S. citizens, but
that doesn’t mean that the Washington Board of Health must also fail to
act. Our federal agencies leave fluoridation decisions up to state and
local policymakers. This includes you. You're in a position to act and
ought to.

It has now been six years since the first high quality US-government
funded study (Bashash et al., 2017) found an association between fetal
exposure to fluoride and lowered 1Q, five years since a government-
funded study found an increase in ADHD symptoms associated with in
utero exposure to fluoride (Bashash et al., 2018), four years since the
findings in Bashash’s study were repeated by another US-government
funded study (Green et al., 2019), and 3 years since a third US-
government-funded study (Till et al., 2020) found that bottle-fed infants in
fluoridated communities in Canada had a significantly lowered 1Q
compared to bottle-fed infants in non-fluoridated communities.



https://c212.net/c/link/?t=0&l=en&o=3858557-1&h=2718756366&u=https%3A%2F%2Ffluoridealert.org%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2Fmalin-2021.pdf&a=onset+of+menstruation
https://c212.net/c/link/?t=0&l=en&o=3858557-1&h=2568200761&u=https%3A%2F%2Fehjournal.biomedcentral.com%2Farticles%2F10.1186%2Fs12940-019-0546-7&a=sleep+disorders
https://c212.net/c/link/?t=0&l=en&o=3858557-1&h=657952125&u=https%3A%2F%2Ffluoridealert.org%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2Fwei-2020.pdf&a=increased+uric+acid+levels
https://fluoridealert.org/articles/new-study-fluoridated-water-weakens-childrens-bones/
https://c212.net/c/link/?t=0&l=en&o=3858557-1&h=3319837636&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sciencedirect.com%2Fscience%2Farticle%2Fpii%2FS0160412019309274&a=kidney+and+liver+impairment
https://c212.net/c/link/?t=0&l=en&o=3858557-1&h=3319837636&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sciencedirect.com%2Fscience%2Farticle%2Fpii%2FS0160412019309274&a=kidney+and+liver+impairment
https://ehp.niehs.nih.gov/doi/10.1289/EHP7404
https://ehp.niehs.nih.gov/doi/10.1289/EHP7404
https://fluoridealert.org/issues/health/endocrine/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/30316182/
https://c212.net/c/link/?t=0&l=en&o=3858557-1&h=2601898624&u=https%3A%2F%2Ffluoridealert.org%2Fissues%2Fmoms2b%2Fmother-offspring-studies%2F&a=neurotoxicity
https://c212.net/c/link/?t=0&l=en&o=3858557-1&h=2348735742&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sciencedirect.com%2Fscience%2Farticle%2Fpii%2FS0160412019326145%3Fvia%3Dihub&a=during+infancy
https://ehp.niehs.nih.gov/doi/10.1289/ehp655
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0160412018311814?via%3Dihub&eType=EmailBlastContent&eId=ba3191f8-9c43-47c3-ac2d-9131ae604322
https://jamanetwork.com/journals/jamapediatrics/fullarticle/2748634?eType=EmailBlastContent&eId=ba3191f8-9c43-47c3-ac2d-9131ae604322
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0160412019326145?via%3Dihub&eType=EmailBlastContent&eId=ba3191f8-9c43-47c3-ac2d-9131ae604322

You should also be made aware of the following:

A study from Canada published last summer in the journal
Nutrients found that pregnant women who had low iodine levels
and elevated fluoride had boys who suffered an average 1Q loss of
9.3 1Q points [Goodman 2022]. Artificially fluoridated drinking
water was the main source of the fluoride. To put this huge 9-point
|Q loss from fluoride into perspective, studies show that a pregnant
woman smoking 20+ cigarettes each and every day during their
pregnancy can cause less of an 1Q loss for the child than fluoride,
averaging about 6.2-points lost.

Experts in environmental toxins, including the former Director of the
National Toxicology Program, Dr. Linda Birnbaum, published an
op-ed calling for policy makers to look at the science and take
action to protect pregnant women and their children.

Famed Harvard researcher Phillippe Grandjean, known for helping
warn the world about the effects of arsenic, mercury, and PFOAs,
conducted the first benchmark dose analysis in 2020 on maternal
fluoride exposure and neurotoxicity to the fetus, which was
published in the journal Risk Analysis (Grandjean, 2021).
Benchmark dose analyses are used by the Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) and toxicologists to determine at what
level a substance starts to cause harm. The analysis confirmed
that extremely low fluoride exposure during pregnancy impairs fetal
brain development, finding that a maternal urine fluoride
concentration of only 0.2mg/L — which coincides with the level in
the water (0.2ppm) — was enough to lower IQ by at least 1 point.

This is 3.5 times lower than the current government
‘recommended” level of 0.7ppm in fluoridated communities. For
perspective, a urinary fluoride (UF) concentration of 0.2mg/L is far
below what a pregnant woman in a fluoridated community would
have, as confirmed by two recent studies.


https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/35889877/
http://em.networkforgood.com/ls/click?upn=VAGGw4zHikj3d-2F5242H3ZqwUjgqCpOe29-2FIEBx2M0eYumoQIAAFuuJnUfNjpkQoHs4SBYYgkly9Jq1YHTCY-2Fug-3D-3D8yv3_i6Jr-2BsO-2FexiFAaIU-2Ffy92v11PEHBQnRjzz-2BObmNluXnKWrOMR6DPPyhrR86NeoRzFKO5N0ENlj-2B9k2OMk7xOYtuYR2AvzTM1XcTrLh9GwaLdXHXezzDWpajVw4JAfp65d2S8jwylG-2FXJw1mCLBAeThKLgnlXr16cd5PmlSTaGGCHsNMtap7-2BSaL7Ky-2FD40-2B5X9Ltw6JDOiD-2B7fo7wILGiB5mm-2BI6INDf4ObniCFZ4mXXK-2BcMkk9z35ekzV8MA04gshP6nwLsWXnGhVRR2b3yTG7Lws20pYLuRRluPTIMCJsA0IrcdStU3ACqKgSSLMCkEtWA7S32dPN6Z6yEvkq3EqUk9Bh16QBwUeIzpKJLNCA-3D
https://www.ehn.org/fluoride-and-childrens-health-2648120286.html
https://www.ehn.org/fluoride-and-childrens-health-2648120286.html
https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/abs/10.1111/risa.13767

The authors of the benchmark dose analysis stated: “These
findings suggest that fetal brain development is highly vulnerable to
fluoride exposure ... and provide additional evidence that fluoride
is a developmental neurotoxicant (i.e., causing adverse effects on
brain development in early life). Given the ubiquity of fluoride
exposure, the population impact of adverse effects from fluoride
may be even greater than for other toxic elements like lead,
mercury, and arsenic ... and the benchmark results should inspire
a revision of water fluoride recommendations aimed at protecting
pregnant women and young children.”

» After conducting a 7-year systematic review of fluoride’s
neurotoxicity, the National Toxicology Program reported that 52 of
55 fluoride brain studies found decreases in child 1Q associated
with an increase in fluoride, a remarkable 95% consistency. Of the
19 studies rated higher quality, 18 found a lowering of 1Q. The
meta-analysis could not detect any safe exposure, including at
levels common from drinking artificially fluoridated water.

The NTP’s report says: “Our meta-analysis confirms results of
previous meta-analyses and extends them by including newer,
more precise studies with individual-level exposure measures. The
data support a consistent inverse association between fluoride
exposure and children’s 1Q.”

Meanwhile, more and more studies are being published on this issue
around the world. See the list of 23 human studies that have been
published in the four years since the Bashash, 2017 study was
published. which have found a lowering of 1Q associated with fluoride
exposure at modest levels and in the case of the US-government funded
studies at the levels experienced in artificially fluoridated communities.

It is an embarrassment for the USA to be perceived by the rest of the
world as being willing to risk our children’s brains for anything, let alone
a highly questionable benefit to their teeth that could easily be replaced
with alternative oral health strategies. The longer you delay, the more
citizens will be harmed.

Sincerely,


https://fluoridealert.org/content/23-studies-published-since-2017-on-the-association-of-fluoride-exposoure-and-reduced-iq/?eType=EmailBlastContent&eId=ba3191f8-9c43-47c3-ac2d-9131ae604322

Stuart Cooper
Executive Director
Fluoride Action Network

www.FluorideAlert.org



WASHINGTON STATE Wil
BOARDorHEALTH

Shay Bauman
Policy Advisor

Shay Bauman joined the Washington State Board of Health (Board) as a Policy Advisor for
the Board'’s environmental public%eolth/nctural environment portfolio on February 1, 2024.
Before joining the Board, Shay worked for the Washington State Office of the Attorney
General, where she served as a Regulatory Analyst for the Public Counsel Unit. In this role,
she represented residential electric, no’rurc{gos, solid waste, and water customers in the
rulemakings and processes of the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission
(UTC). She has testified before the UTC on the impacts of various infrastructure investments,
the Clean Energy Transformation Act, the Climate Commitment Act, and the equitable
distribution of energy and non-energy benefits, among other topics. Her work has increased
energy efficiency program uptake, reduced negative ﬂeolth impacts from energ

production, and reduced energy burdens for Highly Impacted Communities and Vulnerable
Populations. She also served on advisory boards to Washington’s investor-owned utilities on
topics related to conservation, low-income assistance, resource planning, and equity.

Shay was born and raised in Cedar City, Utah, a small town about 40 minutes north of
Zion National Park. She received her Bachelor of Science in Economics with a minor in
Political Science through Southern Utah University. She later received her Master of Public
Administration through the University of Washington with emphases in public financial
management and policy analysis.



STATE OF WASHINGTON
WASHINGTON STATE BOARD OF HEALTH

PO Box 47990 « Olympia, Washington 98504-7990

January 12, 2024

Sent via email

Dear John Gehman:

This letter is to inform you that on January 10, 2024, the Washington State Board of Health
(Board) reviewed your complaint against the Snohomish County Health Department
(SCHD) Director and Local Health Officer. Your complaint alleged that these health
officials had violated RCW 70.05.070(3) and refused or neglected to obey and enforce the
Board’s rules related to communicable disease control under WAC 246-100-036 and 040.

The Board determined that the complaint did not warrant further investigation and dismissed
the complaint for the following reasons. When reviewing your complaint and the
supplemental statement of authorities you provided, Board Members did not find a violation
of RCW 70.05.070(3), or WAC 246-100-036 or -040 by the Local Health Officer or
Director at SCHD. The Board stated that there are currently no statewide requirements for
masking and that current guidance is aligned with the Centers for Disease Control. Board
Members also clarified that guidance is not enforceable.

The Board also discussed the topic of quarantine and how WAC 246-100-040, procedures of
isolation and quarantine, is only used under certain circumstances. Board Members also
mentioned that during the pandemic, mandatory isolation and quarantine did not occur in
Washington or elsewhere in the United States. Recommendations around isolation and
quarantine for COVID-19 in the U.S. remain voluntary.

Board Members also expressed the importance of reviewing these complaints, as there may
be situations where local health officials are not serving the needs of their communities.
However, Board Members noted that in this case, the Local Health Officer and Director at
SCHD have appropriately protected the public's health with respect to COVID-19 and
remain involved in statewide discussions related to masking policies and other public health
topics.

The Board now considers your complaint closed and will take no further action. Materials
related to this matter are available on the Board’s website.

Sincerely,



Complaint Response Page 2

Michelle A. Davis
Executive Director

cc: John G. Gehman

January 12, 2024



STATE OF WASHINGTON
WASHINGTON STATE BOARD OF HEALTH

PO Box 47990 « Olympia, Washington 98504-7990

January 26, 2024
Sent via email.

Dear John Gehman:

This letter is in response to your most recent submittal, received on Monday, January 22,
2024, alleging that the Snohomish County Health Department (SCHD) Director and Health
Officer have failed to comply with provisions of Chapter 70.05 RCW in relation to COVID-
19. It is substantially similar to the complaint you submitted on November 28, 2023,
concerning alleged failure by the SCHD Director and Local Health Officer to control and
prevent COVID-19 pursuant to public health statutes and rules. It asserts that the Board
must conduct a preliminary investigation whenever it receives a complaint.

The Washington State Board of Health (Board) reviewed and discussed your previous,
substantially similar complaint against the SCHD Director and Local Health Officer at its
regular meeting on January 10, 2024. Consistent with the Board’s procedure regarding
complaints under RCW 70.05.120(1), the Board determined that your complaint did not
merit a preliminary investigation. Materials related to this matter are available on the
Board’s website.

The Board may dismiss a complaint without a preliminary investigation if it lacks sufficient
information to support a preliminary investigation or is frivolous— Washington State Board
of Health Policy and Procedure, Responding to Complaints Against a Local Health Olfficer
or Administrative Olfficer Under RCW 70.05.120, November 2022.

Your previous complaint was dismissed without a preliminary investigation for the reasons
outlined in the letter sent to you on January 16, 2024. As noted in the letter, the Board
considers your complaint closed and will take no further action.

Sincerely,

Michelle A. Davis
Executive Director



STATE OF WASHINGTON
WASHINGTON STATE BOARD OF HEALTH

PO Box 47990 « Olympia, Washington 98504-7990

January 16, 2024

John Strick
7331 17th Ave NE
Seattle, WA, 98115

Sent Via Email
Dear John Strick,

Thank you for the rulemaking petition you submitted to the State Board of Health (Board) on
November 8, 2023. In your petition, you requested that the Board amend WAC 246-760-070 to
add testing for color vision deficiency, also known as colorblindness, as part of the vision
screening required for all students in Washington.

The Board met on January 10, 2024, and after reviewing and discussing your petition, voted to
deny your request at this time. The Board determined that adding testing for color vision
deficiency to chapter 246-760 WAC does not align with current national recommendations for
school vision screenings, and implementing this test across schools in Washington would have
significant financial costs and administrative challenges.

In its deliberations, however, the Board did acknowledge that color vision deficiency is a
prevalent condition, especially in boys. Board Members stated that as a society, we need to adapt
our teaching materials and classrooms to better support children with the condition.

Under RCW 34.05.330, a petitioner may appeal an agency’s decision to deny a petition to repeal
or amend a rule. An appeal must be made to the Governor within 30 days of denial.

If you require further assistance, please don’t hesitate to contact Molly Dinardo, Health Policy
Advisor in our office, at 564-669-3455 or at Molly.Dinardo@sboh.wa.gov.

Sincerely,

Patty L

Patty Hayes, Chair


mailto:Molly.Dinardo@sboh.wa.gov

CODE REVISER USE ONLY

RULE-MAKING ORDER GEC M
EMERGENCY RULE ONLY FILED

DATE: February 02, 2024

CR-103E (December 2017) TIME:  10:30 AM
(Implements RCW 34.05.350 WSR 24-04-071
and 34.05.360)

Agency: State Board of Health

Effective date of rule:
Emergency Rules
X Immediately upon filing.
U] Later (specify)

Any other findings required by other provisions of law as precondition to adoption or effectiveness of rule?
L] Yes No If Yes, explain:

Purpose: On-Site sewage system substitute proprietary treatment product components.

The State Board of Health (board) adopted an emergency rule regarding substitute components of registered products as
part of the certification and registration of proprietary treatment products used in on-site sewage systems. The original
emergency rule was filed on June 15, 2022 (WSR 22-13-101). Emergency rules have been filed continuously thereafter with
the most recent filing on October 6, 2023 (WSR 23-21-061). Only one change has been made to the amendments since the
filing of the original emergency rule. This emergency rule is being adopted with a slight change to the previous emergency
rule language. The rule language changes “written application” to “written request” to maintain consistent terminology with
chapter 246-272A WAC.

This sixth emergency rule amends WAC 246-272A-0110 to allow manufacturers to make a written request to the Department
of Health (department) to substitute components of a registered product’s construction in cases of a demonstrated supply
chain shortage or similar manufacturing disruptions that may impact installations, operation, or maintenance. The request
must include information that demonstrates the substituted component will not negatively impact performance or diminish the
effect of the treatment, operation, and maintenance of the original registered product. The emergency rule will also allow
manufacturers of registered proprietary treatment products to replace components of their products that are not available due
to supply chain shortages or similar manufacturing disruptions with like components, as long as the components will not
negatively impact performance, treatment, operation, or maintenance of the original registered product.

The current rule requires manufacturers of proprietary treatment products used in on-site sewage systems to test their
products with the NSF and register their products with the department based on NSF test results before the product is
allowed to be permitted or installed in Washington. Without the emergency rule, the current rule would impede home sales
when maintenance of proprietary products has not been completed as noted on home inspections for property transfers
because replacement parts with NSF registration are unavailable. New construction is likewise impacted as many active or
pending permits include on-site sewage systems using Salcor products. Salcor manufactures a disinfecting ultraviolet (UV)
light system incorporated into several proprietary treatment products used in Washington State. There are other
manufacturers of disinfecting UV light systems that can be substituted into proprietary treatment products in place of Salcor
products. Salcor was sold and the new owner is working with NSF to get their products approved but this process will take
several months. In order to continue to protect the public’s health, safety, and welfare, it is necessary to adopt a sixth
emergency rule to allow the department to consider written requests from manufacturers of proprietary treatment products for
substitutes to proprietary treatment product components so their systems will be able to function properly without negatively
impacting treatment, operation or maintenance during supply chain shortages. To date, four manufacturers have received
department approval to substitute the Salcor 3G UV lamp with an alternate UV lamp.

In 2018, the board filed a CR-101, Preproposal Statement of Inquiry (WSR 18-06-082), to initiate permanent rulemaking and
update the on-site sewage system rules. That rulemaking is still underway and is expected to conclude in 2024. As directed
by the board at the June 8, 2022 meeting, the emergency rule amendment will be considered for incorporation into the
permanent rulemaking that is currently underway.

Citation of rules affected by this order:
New: None
Repealed: None
Amended: WAC 246-272A-0110
Suspended: None

Page 1 of 3




Statutory authority for adoption: RCW 43.20.050(3)

Other authority:

EMERGENCY RULE
Under RCW 34.05.350 the agency for good cause finds:
That immediate adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule is necessary for the preservation of the public health,
safety, or general welfare, and that observing the time requirements of notice and opportunity to comment upon
adoption of a permanent rule would be contrary to the public interest.

[ That state or federal law or federal rule or a federal deadline for state receipt of federal funds requires immediate
adoption of a rule.

Reasons for this finding: The board finds that in order to protect the public’s health, safety, and welfare it is necessary to
adopt the emergency rule to amend WAC 246-272A-0110 to allow the department to consider written request from
manufacturers of proprietary treatment products to substitute a proprietary treatment product component so their systems
may continue to function properly without negatively impacting performance or diminish the effect of the treatment, operation,
or maintenance during supply chain shortages.

Page 2 of 3



Note: If any category is left blank, it will be calculated as zero.
No descriptive text.

Count by whole WAC sections only, from the WAC number through the history note.
A section may be counted in more than one category.

The number of sections adopted in order to comply with:

Federal statute: New 0 Amended 0 Repealed
Federal rules or standards: New 0 Amended 0 Repealed
Recently enacted state statutes: New 0 Amended 0 Repealed

The number of sections adopted at the request of a nongovernmental entity:

New 0 Amended 0 Repealed

The number of sections adopted on the agency’s own initiative:

New 0 Amended 1 Repealed

The number of sections adopted in order to clarify, streamline, or reform agency procedures:

New 0O Amended 0 Repealed
The number of sections adopted using:
Negotiated rule making: New 0 Amended 0 Repealed
Pilot rule making: New 0 Amended 0 Repealed
Other alternative rule making: New 0 Amended 1 Repealed
Date Adopted: February 2, 2024 Signature:

Name: Michelle Davis, MPA w/ M
Title: Executive Director Washington State Board of Health /M

Page 3 of 3




AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0110 Proprietary treatment products—Certification
and registration. (1) Manufacturers shall register their proprietary
treatment products with the department before the local health officer
may permit their use.

(2) To gqualify for product registration, manufacturers desiring
to sell or distribute proprietary treatment products 1in Washington
state shall:

(a) Verify product performance through testing using the testing
protocol established in Table I and register their product with the
department using the process described in WAC 246-272-0120;

(b) Report test results of influent and effluent sampling ob-
tained throughout the testing period (including normal and stress
loading phases) for evaluation of constituent reduction according to
Table II;

(c) Demonstrate product performance according to Table III. All
( (Edrty—day)) 30-day averages and geometric means obtained throughout
the test period must meet the identified threshold wvalues to qualify
for registration at that threshold level; and

(d) For registration at levels A, B, and C verify bacteriological
reduction according to WAC 246-272A-0130.

(3) Manufacturers verifying product performance through testing
according to the following standards or protocols shall have product
testing conducted by a testing facility accredited by ANSI:

(a) ANSI/NSF Standard 40—Residential Wastewater Treatment Sys-

tems;

(b) NSF Standard 41: Non-Liquid Saturated Treatment Systems;

(c) NSF Protocol P157 Electrical Incinerating Toilets - Health
and Sanitation; or

(d) Protocol for Dbacteriological reduction described 1in WAC

246-272A-0130.

(4) Manufacturers verifying product performance through testing
according to the following standards or protocols shall have product
testing conducted by a testing facility meeting the requirements es-
tablished by the Testing Organization and Verification Organization,
consistent with the test protocol and plan:

(a) EPA/NSF—Protocol for the Verification of Wastewater Treat-
ment Technologies; or

(b) EPA Environmental Technology Verification Program protocol
for the Verification of Residential Wastewater Treatment Technologies
for Nutrient Reduction.

(5) Treatment levels used in these rules are not intended to be
applied as field compliance standards. Their intended use is for es-
tablishing treatment product performance in a product testing setting
under established protocols by qualified testing entities.

(6) Manufacturers may submit a written request to substitute com-
ponents of a registered product's construction in cases of supply
chain shortage or similar manufacturing disruptions impacting instal-
lations, operation, or maintenance. The substitution request must in-
clude a report stamped, signed, and dated by a professional engineer
demonstrating the substituted component will not negatively impact
performance or diminish the effect of the treatment, operation, and

[ 1] OTS-3856.4



maintenance of the original registered product. If approved, substitu-
tion is authorized until rescinded by the department.
TABLE I
Testing Requirements for Proprietary Treatment
Products
Treatment Component/ Required Testing
Sequence Category Protocol

Category 1 Designed to ANSI/NSF 40—

treat sewage with strength | Residential Wastewater

typical of a residential Treatment Systems

source when septic tank (protocols dated between

effluent is anticipated to July 1996 and the effective

be equal to or less than date of these rules)

treatment level E.

Category 2 Designed to EPA/NSF Protocol for the

treat high-strength sewage | Verification of Wastewater

when septic tank effluent Treatment Technologies/

is anticipated to be greater | EPA Environmental

than treatment level E. Technology Verification
(April 2001)

(Such as at restaurants,

grocery stores, mini-marts,

group homes, medical

clinics, residences, etc.)

Category 3 Black water NSF/ANSI Standard 41:

component of residential Non-Liquid Saturated

sewage (such as Treatment Systems

composting and (September 1999)

incinerating toilets).
NSF Protocol P157
Electrical Incinerating
Toilets - Health and
Sanitation (April 2000)

Total Nitrogen Reduction | Protocol for the

in Categories 1 & 2 Verification of Residential

(Above) Wastewater Treatment
Technologies for Nutrient
Reduction/EPA
Environmental Technology
Verification Program
(November, 2000)

TABLE II
Test Results Reporting Requirements for Proprietary Treatment Products
Treatment Component/Sequence Category Testing Results Reported
Category 1 Designed to treat sewage with Report test results of influent and effluent sampling obtained throughout

strength typical of a residential source when the testing period for evaluation of constituent reduction for the
septic tank effluent is anticipated to be equal | parameters: CBODs, and TSS:

to or less than treatment level E.

OTS-3856.




Test Results Reporting Requirements for Proprietary Treatment Products

o Average o Standard Deviation
0 Minimum 0 Maximum
0 Median o Interquartile Range

o 30-day Average (for each month)

For bacteriological reduction performance, report fecal coliform test
results of influent and effluent sampling by geometric mean from samples
drawn within ((thirty-day)) 30-day or monthly calendar periods, obtained
from a minimum of three samples per week throughout the testing period.
See WAC 246-272A-0130.

Test report must also include the individual results of all samples drawn
throughout the test period.

Category 2 Designed to treat high-strength
sewage when septic tank effluent is
anticipated to be greater than treatment level
E.

(Such as at restaurants, grocery stores, mini-
marts, group homes, medical clinics,
residences, etc.)

Report all individual test results and full test average values of influent
and effluent sampling obtained throughout the testing period for: CBODs,
TSS and O&G. Establish the treatment capacity of the product tested in
pounds per day for CBODs.

Category 3 Black water component of
residential sewage (such as composting and
incinerating toilets).

Report test results on all required performance criteria according to the
format prescribed in the NSF test protocol described in Table I.

Total Nitrogen Reduction in Categories 1
& 2 (Above)

Report test results on all required performance criteria according to the
format prescribed in the test protocol described in Table 1.

TABLE III

Product Performance Requirements for Proprietary Treatment Products

Treatment Component/Sequence
Category

Product Performance Requirements

Category 1 Designed to treat sewage with strength
typical of a residential source when septic tank
effluent is anticipated to be equal to or less than

treatment level E.

Treatment System Performance Testing Levels

Level Parameters
CBODs TSS 0&G FC TN

A 10 mg/L 10 e 200/100 ml e
mg/L

B 15 mg/L 15 —_— 1,000/100 ml | ——
mg/L

C 25 mg/L 30 e 50,000/100 —_—
mg/L ml

D 25 mg/L 30 —_— —_— —_—
mg/L

E 125 80 20 e e

mg/L mg/L mg/L
N e 20
mg/L

Values for Levels A - D are 30-day values (averages for CBODs,
TSS, and geometric mean for FC.) All 30-day averages throughout
the test period must meet these values in order to be registered at
these levels.

Values for Levels E and N are derived from full test averages.

Category 2 Designed to treat high-strength sewage

when septic tank effluent is anticipated to be
greater than treatment level E.

All of the following requirements must be met:

OTS-3856.




Product Performance Requirements for Proprietary Treatment Products

Treatment Component/Sequence
Category Product Performance Requirements
(1) All full test averages must meet Level E; and

(Such as at restaurants, grocery stores, mini-marts, (2) Establish the treatment capacity of the product tested in
group homes, medical clinics, residences, etc.) pounds per day for CBODs5.
Category 3 Black water component of residential Test results must meet the performance requirements established in
sewage (such as composting and incinerating the NSF test protocol.
toilets).
Total Nitrogen Reduction in Categories 1 & 2 Test results must establish product performance effluent quality
(Above) meeting Level N, when presented as the full test average.

[ 4] OTS-3856.4




CODE REVISER USE ONLY

RULE-MAKING ORDER

PERMANENT RULE ONLY O o LoV SER
FILED
DATE: March 01,2024
CR-103P (December 2017) TIME:  9:06 AM
(Implements RCW 34.05.360) WSR 24-06-046

Agency: State Board of Health

Effective date of rule:
Permanent Rules
L 31 days after filing.
Other (specify)
WAC 246-272A-0110 is effective 31 days after filing.
WAC 246-272A-0340 is effective on February 1, 2025.
All other sections of WAC are effective April 1, 2025.
(If less than 31 days after filing, a specific finding under RCW 34.05.380(3) is required and should be stated below)

Any other findings required by other provisions of law as precondition to adoption or effectiveness of rule?
O Yes No If Yes, explain:

Purpose: On-Site Sewage System. The State Board of Health (board) has adopted amendments to chapter 246-272A WAC
to address changes to existing requirements, including requirements governing local management plans, repairs, registration
of proprietary treatment products, minimum lot sizes, treatment levels, and licensing of operations and maintenance
providers. The adopted rule establishes new requirements, including requirements for field verification of proprietary
products, property transfer inspections, remediation, and product supply chain issues. The adopted rule also makes several
editorial updates to improve clarity and repeals obsolete rules.

Citation of rules affected by this order:
New: WAC 246-272A-0007, 246-272A-0013, 246-272A-0233, 246-272A-0278, 246-272A-0282
Repealed: WAC 246-272A-0020, 246-272A-0125, 246-272A-0135, 246-272A-0150, 246-272A-0175
Amended: WAC 246-272A-0001, 246-272A-0005, 246-272A-0010, 246-272A-0015, 246-272A-0025, 246-272A-0100,
246-272A-0110, 246-272A-0120, 246-272A-0130, 246-272A-0140, 246-272A-0145, 246-272A-0170, 246-272A-0200,
246-272A-0210, 246-272A-0220, 246-272A-0230, 246-272A-0232, 246-272A-0234, 246-272A-0238, 246-272A-0240,
246-272A-0250, 246-272A-0260, 246-272A-0265, 246-272A-0270, 246-272A-0280, 246-272A-0290, 246-272A-0300,
246-272A-0310, 246-272A-0320, 246-272A-0340, 246-272A-0400, 246-272A-0410, 246-272A-0420, 246-272A-0425,
246-272A-0430, 246-272A-0440
Suspended:

Statutory authority for adoption: RCW 43.20.050(3), chapter 70A.105 RCW, chapter 70A.110 RCW, and RCW 43.20.065

Other authority: None

PERMANENT RULE (Including Expedited Rule Making)
Adopted under notice filed as WSR 23-22-062 on __10/25/2023 (date).
Describe any changes other than editing from proposed to adopted version: Several non-significant corrections were
made based on comments received during the formal comment period. Some of the changes include spelling, formatting,
and grammar corrections. Some changes were technical, provided clarity, and did not change the effect of the rule.
o Consistently fixed ‘mL’ as the correct abbreviation for milliliter
o Consistently fixed ‘E. coli’ as the correct abbreviation for Escherichia coli
o Correctly site ‘NSF International’ standards
¢ Ensure formatting is in accordance to the Code Reviser’s Bill Drafting Guide (2023)
o Added missing table footnotes
 Corrected citations to WAC and table titles
« Non-substantive changes to WAC 246-272A-0010, 246-272A-0100, 246-272A-0110, 246-272A-0120, 246-272A-
0230, 246-272A-0280, 246-272A-0300, 246-272A-0420, and 246-272A-0430
e Amended WACs 246-272A-0140(2), 246-272A-0210(1), and 246-272A-0430(4) to replace “shall” with “must” to
correctly align with the Code Reviser’s Bill Drafting Guide (2023)
e Amended WAC 246-272A-0238(1)(c)(i) to provide clarity to the rule.

Page 1 of 2




If a preliminary cost-benefit analysis was prepared under RCW 34.05.328, a final cost-benefit analysis is available by
contacting:

Name: Peter Beaton

Address: Department of Health, PO Box 47824, Olympia WA 98504-7824
Phone: (360) 236-3150

Fax: N/A

TTY: 711

Email: peter.beaton@doh.wa.gov

Web site:

Other:

Note: If any category is left blank, it will be calculated as zero.
No descriptive text.

Count by whole WAC sections only, from the WAC number through the history note.
A section may be counted in more than one category.

The number of sections adopted in order to comply with:

Federal statute: New Amended Repealed
Federal rules or standards: New Amended Repealed
Recently enacted state statutes: New Amended Repealed

The number of sections adopted at the request of a nongovernmental entity:

New Amended Repealed

The number of sections adopted on the agency’s own initiative:

New 5 Amended 36 Repealed 5
The number of sections adopted in order to clarify, streamline, or reform agency procedures:
New 5 Amended 36 Repealed 5
The number of sections adopted using:
Negotiated rule making: New Amended Repealed
Pilot rule making: New Amended Repealed
Other alternative rule making: New 5 Amended 36 Repealed 5
Date Adopted: March 1, 2024 Signature:

Name: Michelle Davis, MPA . .
MW

Title: Executive Director, Washington State Board of Health

Page 2 of 2




AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0001 Purpose, objectives, and authority. (1) The
purpose of this chapter is to protect the public health by minimizing:

(a) The potential for public exposure to sewage from on-site sew-
age systems (0SS); and

(b) Adverse effects to public health that discharges from ((ea—
site—sewage—systems)) 0SS may have on ground and surface waters.

(2) This chapter regulates the 1location, design, installation,
operation, maintenance, and monitoring of ((ea—site—sewage—systems))
0SS to:

(a) Achieve effective long-term sewage treatment and effluent
dispersal; and

(b) Limit the discharge of contaminants to waters of the state.

(3) The state board of health is authorized under RCW 43.20.050
to establish minimum requirements for the department of health and lo-
cal boards of health, and consistent with RCW 43.70.310 integrating
the preservation of public health with protection of the environment
in order to endorse policies in common.

(4) This chapter is intended to coordinate with other applicable
statutes and rules for the design of ((ea—site—sewage——systems)) 0SS
under chapter 18.210 RCW and chapter 196-33 WAC.

(5) This chapter is intended to coordinate with other applicable
statutes for land use planning under chapters 36.70 and 36.70A RCW,
and the statutes for subdivision of land under chapter 58.17 RCW.

(6) The 1local health officer may designate low-lying marine
shorelines in their jurisdiction.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0005 Administration. The local health officers and
the department shall administer this chapter under the authority and
requirements of chapters 70.05, 70.08, ((F=—33+8+)) 70.46, 70A.105,
70A.110, and 43.70 RCW. RCW 70.05.0060(7) authorizes local health offi-
cers to charge fees for the administration of this chapter.

NEW SECTION

WAC 246-272A-0007 Applicability. (1) The local health officer:

(a) Shall apply this chapter to 0SS for treatment, siting, de-
sign, installation, and operation and maintenance measures treating
sewage and dispersing effluent from residential sources with design
flows up to 3,500 gallons per day;

(b) May apply this chapter to 0SS for nonresidential sources of
sewage if treatment, siting, design, installation, and operation and
maintenance measures provide treatment and effluent dispersal equal to
that required of residential sources;

(c) May not apply this chapter to industrial wastewater.

[ 11 0TS-4868.6



(2) The department shall apply the requirements of this chapter
for the registration of proprietary treatment and distribution prod-
ucts.

(3) A wvalid 0SS design approval, or installation permit issued
prior to the effective date of these rules:

(a) Shall be acted upon in accordance with the requirements of
this chapter in force at the time of issuance;

(b) Remains valid for a period of not more than five years from
the date of approval or issuance, or remains valid for an additional
year beyond the effective date of this chapter, whichever has the most
lenient expiration date; and

(c) May be modified to include additional requirements if the
health officer determines that a serious threat to public health ex-
ists.

(4) This chapter does not apply to facilities regulated as re-
claimed water use under chapters 90.46 RCW and 173-219 WAC.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0010 Definitions. ( (H—Peroryms—used—in—this
chapters

" "
’
" "
’

anl 2 2 o 072~ A trzna N7 ] g raacacnd e o~ /T
SOT TS T Tt goxrty cypTrCaoTrTy KPS sSCO—T1T— g7 o

" " 1

(D) Nofirna+ 2~ 10 A 20 +h oo Ao v-))

=7 DCTrTrirrcros oS CO i ot s CaptctT.

The definitions used in this section apply throughout this chap-
ter unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

(1) "Additive" means a commercial product added to an ((emr—site
sewage—system)) 0SS intended to affect the performance or aesthetics
of an ((ea—site—sewage—system)) 0SS.

(2) "ANSI" means American National Standards Institute.

[ 2 ] 0TS-4868.6



(3) "Approved" means a written statement of acceptability issued
by the local health officer or the department.

(4) "Bank" means any naturally occurring slope greater than 100
percent (45 degrees) and extending vertically at least five feet from
the toe of the slope to the top of the slope as follows:

(5) "Bed" means a soil dispersal component consisting of an exca-
vation with a width greater than three feet.

(6) "BL" means bacterial level.

(7) "Black water" means any waste from toilets or urinals.

(8) "BOD" means biochemical oxygen demand, typically expressed in

mg/L.

(9) "Building drain" means that part of the lowest piping of a
building's drainage system that receives the discharge of sewage from
pipes inside the walls of the building and conveys it to the building
sewer beginning two feet outside the building wall.

(10) "Building sewer" means that part of the horizontal piping of
a drainage system extending from the building drain, which collects
sewage from all the drainage pipes inside a building, to an ((ea—site
sewage—system)) 0SS. It begins two feet outside the building wall and
conveys sewage from the building drain to the ((remeining portieons——of
the—on—-sitesewage—system) ) 0SS.

(11) "CBODg" means carbonaceous biochemical oxygen demand, typi-
cally expressed in mg/L.

(12) "Cesspool" means a pit receiving untreated sewage and allow-
ing the liquid to seep into the surrounding soil or rock.

(13) "Conforming system" means any ((en—site—sewage—system)) 0SS
or component, meeting any of the following criteria:

(a) In full compliance with new construction requirements under
this chapter; or

(b) Approved, installed, and operating in accordance with re-
quirements of previous editions of this chapter; or
(c) Permitted Dby the waiver process under WAC 246-272A-0420

+ha+ EW TR NPT~ T 2N B B SN I~ S SNE DN SPNDE S BN 2N 2 £ S SN Pl NS SR 2 NN = PN SR ~NPNE PN S NE e )
CTITTH T L& SIS Iy I W g =y =] r’uU_L_L\./ T T CTT LJJ_\JL, - CITUTT L/_Y J.J._I_\jj.l.\_,J_ 1 LTI J N N tl [ S - 1T
SN~ »~ +honnyr A~ n’ln))
TT g o CTT - TIT CTTOTOOS .

(14) "Cover material" means soil placed over a soil dispersal
component composed predominately of mineral material with no greater
than ((#en)) 10 percent organic content. Cover material may contain an
organic surface layer for establishing a vegetative landscape to re-
duce soil erosion.

(15) "Cuts ((andfer—Pbanks))" means any ((aaturattyoceurring—o¥))
artificially formed slope greater than ((eme—hundred)) 100 percent
(( (Foxrty—five)) 45 degrees) and extending vertically at least five
feet from the toe of the slope to the top of the slope as follows:

[ 3 ] 0TS-4868.6



(16) "Department”" means the Washington state department of
health.

(17) "Designer" means a person who matches site and soil charac-
teristics with appropriate on-site sewage technology. Throughout this
chapter this term applies to both ((er—site—sewage—treatment—system))
0SS designers licensed under chapter 18.210 RCW and professional engi-
neers licensed under chapter 18.43 RCW.

(18) "Design flow" means the maximum volume of sewage a resi-
dence, structure, or other facility is estimated to generate in a

( (Ewerty—four—howr)) 24-hour period. It incorporates both an operating
capacity and a surge capacity for the ((system)) 0SS during periodic

heavy use events. The sizing and design of the ((ea—site—sewage—Sys—
£em) ) OSS components are based on the design flow.

(19) "Detention pond" means an earthen impoundment used for the
collection and temporary storage of stormwater runoff.

(20) "Development" means the creation of a residence, structure,
facility, subdivision, site, area, or similar activity resulting in
the production of sewage.

(21) "Disinfection"™ means the process of destroying pathogenic
microorganisms in sewage through the application of ultraviolet light,
chlorination, or ozonation.

(22) "Distribution technology" means any arrangement of equipment
((amet) )or materials that distributes sewage within an ( (ea—site——sew
age——system) ) 0OSS.

((" 1 1 "

-))

(23) "Drainrock" means clean washed gravel or crushed rock rang-
ing in size from three-quarters inch to two and one-half inches ((+))
and containing no more than two percent by weight passing a US No. 8
sieve and no more than one percent by weight passing a US No. 200
sieve.

(24) "DS&G" means department standards and guidance.

(25) "E. coli" means Escherichia coli bacteria. Counts of these
organisms are typically used to indicate potential contamination from
sewage or to describe a level of needed disinfection, typically ex-
pressed as colony forming units/100 mL.

(26) "Effluent" means liquid discharged from a ((septie)) sewade
tank or other ((emr—site—sewage—System)) 0SS component.

(27) "EPA" means United States Environmental Protection Agency.

(28) "Expanding clay" means a clay soil with the mineralogy of
clay particles, such as those found in the Montmorillonite/Smectite
Group, which causes the clay particles to expand when they absorb wa-
ter, closing the soil pores, and contract when they dry out.

(29) "Expansion" means a change in a residence, facility, site,
or use that:

[ 4 1] 0TS-4868.6



(a) Causes the sewage quantity or quality to exceed the ex1st1ng
design flow of the ((em—site—system)) 0SS, for example, when a resi-
dence is increased from two to three bedrooms or a change in use from
an office to a restaurant; or

(b) Reduces the treatment or dispersal capability of the existing
( (ea—site—sewage—system)) 0SS or the reserve area, for example, when a
building is placed over a reserve area.

(30) "Extremely gravelly" means soil with ((sixty)) 60 percent or
more, but less than ((aimety)) 90 percent rock fragments by volume.

(31) "Failure" means a condition of an ((er—site—sewage——system))
0SS or component that threatens the public health by inadequately
treating sewage or by creating a potential for direct or indirect con-
tact between sewage and the public. Examples of failure include:

(a) Sewage on the surface of the ground;

(b) Sewage backing up into a structure caused by slow soil ab-
sorption of septic tank effluent;

(c) Sewage leaking from a sewage tank or collection system;

(d) Cesspools or seepage pits where evidence of groundwater or
surface water quality degradation exists;

(e) 1Inadequately treated effluent contaminating groundwater or
surface water; or

(f) Noncompliance with standards stipulated on the permit.

(32) "Fecal coliform" or "FC" means bacteria common to the diges-
tive systems of warm-blooded animals that are cultured in standard
tests. Counts of these organisms are typically used to indicate poten-
tial contamination from sewage or to describe a level of needed disin-
fection ( (—6ereraltty)) typically expressed ((as—eetenies—per)) in col-
ony forming units/100 mL.

(33) "Fill" means unconsolidated material that:

(a) Meets soil types 1-6 textural criteria and is used as part of
a soil dispersal component;

(b) Ts used to change grade or to enhance surface water diver-

sion; or
(c) Is any other human-transported material.
(34) "Flood plain" means an area that is low-lyving and adjacent

to a stream or river that is covered by water during a flood.

(35) "GPD" means gallons per day.

(36) "Gravelly" means soils with ((fifteern)) 15 percent or more,
but less than ((&hixrty—five)) 35 percent rock fragments by volume.

( (“eray—water'—means——sewage—freom)) (37) "Greywater" means sewade
from any source in a residence or structure that has not come into
contact with toilet or urinal wastes, including bathtubs, showers,

bathroom sinks, washing machines, dishwashers, and kitchen sinks. ((F&
ot oo 1t o~ T PN S i AN SR S ))
IO T U LT CITT C O 11T T WIS T T O «

(38) "Groundwater" means subsurface water occupying the zone of
saturated soil, permanently, seasonally, or as the result of the
tides. Indications of groundwater may include:

(a) Water seeping into or standing in an open excavation from the
soil surrounding the excavation or monitoring ports.

(b) Spots or blotches of different color or shades of color in-
terspersed with a dominant color in soil, caused by reduction and oxi-
dation of iron. These color patterns are redoximorphic features, com-
monly referred to as mottling. Redoximorphic features often indicate
the intermittent presence of groundwater and may indicate poor aera-
tion and impeded drainage. ((Atse—see—"water—tabte"))

[ 51 0TS-4868.6



(39) "Holding tank sewage system" means an ((ep—site—sewage——Sys—
fem—whieh)) 0SS that incorporates a sewage tank without a discharge

outlet, the services of a sewage pumper/hauler, and the offsite treat-
ment and disposal for the sewage generated.

(40) "Hydraulic loading rate" means the amount of effluent ap-
plied to a given treatment step, ((in—this—<hapter)) expressed as gal-
lons per square foot per day or ((+))gal/sqg.ft./day((3)).

(41) "Industrial wastewater" means the water or liquid carried
waste from an industrial process. These wastes may result from any
process or activity of industry, manufacture, trade or business, from
the development of any natural resource, or from animal operations
such as feedlots, poultry houses, or dairies. ((Fhre—%term)) Industrial
wastewater includes contaminated stormwater and leachate from solid
waste facilities.

(42) "Infiltration pond" means an earthen impoundment used for
the collection, temporary storage, and infiltration of stormwater run-
off.

(43) "Infiltrative surface" means the surface within a treatment
component or soil dispersal component to which effluent is applied and
through which effluent moves into original, undisturbed soil or other
porous treatment media.

(44) "Installer" means a person approved by the local health of-
ficer to install ((er—site—sewage—systems)) an 0SS or 0SS components.

(45) "Local health officer" means the health officer of the city,
county, or city-county health department or district within the state
of Washington, or a representative authorized by and under the direct
supervision of the local health officer, as defined in chapter 70.05
RCW.

(46) "LOSS" means a large on-site sewage system under chapter
246-272B WAC.

(47) "Maintenance" means the actions necessary to keep the ((ea—
stte—sewage——system)) 0SS components functioning as designed.

(48) "Maintenance service provider" means a manadgement entity

certified by the Jlocal health officer and conducts a comprehensive
analysis of an OSS.

(49) "Malfunction" means a damaged or deficient previously con-
forming OSS component that may be corrected by means of a minor re-

air.

(50) "Massive structure" means the condition of a soil layer in
which the layer appears as a coherent or solid mass not separated into
peds of any kind.

(51) "mg/L" means milligrams per liter.
(52) "mL" means milliliter.
(53) "Minimum usable land area" means the minimum land area with-

in the minimum lot size required per development using an 0SS, which
is based on soil type and type of water supply. Minimum usable land
area is free of all physical restrictions and meet minimum vertical
and horizontal separations.

(54) "Minor repair" means the repair or replacement of any of the
following existing damaged or malfunctioning 0SS components except
that the repair or replacement of a sewage tank, treatment component,
or soil dispersal component is not considered a minor repair:

(a) Control panels;

(b) Building sewers;

(c) Any other portions of tightline in the 0SS;

(d) Risers and riser 1lids;

(e) Sewage tank baffles;

[ 6 ] 0TS-4868.6



(f) Effluent filters;

(g) Sewage tank pumps and 1lids;
(

(

h) Pump control floats; and

i) OSS inspection boxes and ports.

(55) "Moderate structure" means well-formed distinct peds evident
in undisturbed soil. When disturbed, soil material parts into a mix-
ture of whole peds, broken peds, and material that is not in peds.

(56) "Modification" means the alteration of an existing 0SS com-
ponent that does not result in an expansion of the system. A modifica-
tion is not considered a repair.

(57) "Monitoring" means periodic or continuous checking of an
( (ea—site—sewage——system)) 0SS, which is performed by observations and
measurements, to determine if the system is functioning as intended
and if system maintenance 1is needed. Monitoring also includes main-
taining accurate records that document monitoring activities.

SEE a+ &
oszo + —~ 4+ = o + = 21 =R AN | ~ m + ) )
Q_YQL_ 11T CITT T \w AW, [ T T 1T1TTOV (&N [ 2\ A . \_AJ.\_)b/ [N SN @ R uuiub/uu. T
(58) "NSF" means NSF International.
(59) "0O&G" means o0il and grease, a component of sewage typically

originating from food stuffs such as animal fats or vegetable oils, or
consisting of compounds of alcohol or glycerol with fatty acids such
as soaps and lotions, typically expressed in mg/L.

(60) "Operating capacity" means the average daily volume of sew-
age an 0SS can treat and disperse on a sustained basis. The operating
capacity, which is lower than the design flow, is an integral part of
the design and is used as an index in 0SS monitoring.

(61) "Ordinary high-water mark" means the mark on lakes, streams,
springs, and tidal waters, found by examining the beds and banks and
ascertaining where the presence and action of waters are so common and
usual, and so long continued in all ordinary years, as to mark upon
the soil a character distinct from that of the abutting upland with
respect to vegetation, as that condition exists on the effective date
of this chapter, or as it may naturally change thereafter. The follow-
ing ((edefimitiens)) conditions apply where the ordinary high-water
mark cannot be found:

(a) The ordinary high-water mark adjoining marine water is the
elevation at mean higher high tide; and

(b) The ordinary high-water mark adjoining freshwater is the line
of mean high water.

(62) "OSS" means on-site sewage system, an integrated system of
components, located on or nearby the property it serves, which con-
veys, stores, treats, and provides subsurface soil treatment and dis-
persal of sewage. It consists of a collection system, a treatment com-
ponent or treatment component sequence, and a soil dispersal compo-
nent. An OSS also refers to a holding tank sewage system or other sys-
tem that does not have a soil dispersal component. The term "on-site

sewage system (0OSS)" does not include any system requlated by a water
quality discharge permit issued under chapter 90.48 RCW.

(63) "PAG" means policy advisory group.

(64) "PDP" means product development permit.

(65) "Ped" means a unit of soil structure such as blocks, column,
granule, plate, or prism formed by natural processes.

[ 71 0TS-4868.6



(66) "Person" means any individual, corporation, company, associ-
ation, society, firm, partnership, joint stock company, or any govern-
mental agency, or the authorized agents of these entities. For the
purposes of WAC 246-272A-0430 and 246-272A-0440, a person is defined
to include:

(a) Applicant;

(b) Reapplicant;

(c) Permit holder; or

(d) Any individual associated with (a), (b) or (c) of this sub-
section including, but not limited to:

(1) Board members;

(1i) Officers;

(1ii) Managers;

(iv) Partners;
(
(

v) Association members;

vi) Agents; and

(vii) Third persons acting with the knowledge of such persons.

(67) "Planned unit development" means a subdivision characterized
by a unified site design, clustered residential units ((ard#))or com-
mercial units, and areas of common open space.

(68) "Platy structure" means soil that contains flat peds that
lie horizontally and often overlap. This type of structure ((widd))
impedes the vertical movement of water.

(69) "Pressure distribution" means a system of small diameter
pipes equally distributing effluent throughout ((a—SSAS)) an 0SS, as
described in the ( (departmentls—Recommended—Standards—andGuidance))
DS&G for Pressure Distribution Systems, ((*—286%4)) 2022. A subsurface
drip system ( (may—Pbe—used—wherever—the—~chapter—reqguires)) 1s consid-
ered a pressure distribution system.

(70) "Professional engineer" means a person who 1s currently 1li-
censed as an engineer under the provisions of chapter 18.43 RCW.

(71) "Proprietary product" means a sewage treatment and distribu-
tion technology, method, or material subject to a patent or trademark.

(72) "Public domain technology" means a sewage treatment and dis-
tribution technology, method, or material not subject to a patent or
trademark.

(73) "Public sewer system" means a sewerage system:

(a) Owned or operated by a city, town, municipal corporation,
county, or other approved ownership consisting of a collection system
and necessary trunks, pumping facilities and a means of final treat-
ment and disposal; and

(b) Approved by or under permit from the department of ecology,
the department of health ((ame#)), or a local health officer.

(74) "Puget Sound counties" means Clallam, Island, Kitsap, Jef-
ferson, Mason, San Juan, Seattle-King, Skagit, Snohomish, Tacoma-
Pierce, Thurston, and Whatcom. All other counties are defined as non-
Puget Sound counties.

(75) "Pump chamber" means a watertight receptacle placed after a
septic tank, sewage tank, or other treatment facility that contains
the required controls and alarms to convey sewage effluent to a treat-
ment or dispersal component.

(76) "Pumper" means a person approved by the local health officer
to remove and transport sewage or septage from ((ep—site—sewage——Sys—
+ems)) an 0OSS.

(77) "Record drawing" means an accurate graphic and written re-
cord of the location and features of the 0SS that are needed to prop-

[ 8 ] 0TS-4868.6



erly monitor, operate, and maintain that system. Also known as an "as-
built" drawing.

(78) "Remediation" means any action, approved by the local health
officer, which attempts to restore the function of a previously con-
forming OSS dispersal component that has failed. Remediation is not
considered:

(a) A minor repair;

(b) A repair;

(c) An additive; or

(d) A treatment or distribution technology that allows the 0SS to
meet a specific treatment level.

(79) "Repair" means the relocation, replacement, or reconstruc-
tion of a failed ((ea—site—sewage——system)) 0SS, or any 0SS components
not included in the 1list for a minor repair, which have failed in or-
der to restore the 0SS to a nonfailure status.

(80) "Reserve area" means an area of land approved for the in-
stallation of a conforming ((system)) 0SS that is protected and main-
tained for replacement of the 0SS upon its failure.

(81) "Residential sewage" means sewage having the constituency
and ((strength)) gquality typical of ((wastewater—fromdemestie house—
hetds)) residential septic tank effluent consistent with treatment
level E identified in Table III in WAC 246-272A-0110.

(82) "Restrictive layer" means a stratum impeding the vertical
movement of water, air, and growth of plant roots, such as hardpan,
claypan, fragipan, caliche, some compacted soils, bedrock, and un-
structured clay soils.

(83) "Rock fragment" means rock or mineral fragments having a di-
ameter of two millimeters or more ( (+—Ffer—examplte) ). Examples include,
gravel, cobbles, stones, and boulders.

(84) "Seepage pit" means an excavation more than three feet deep
where the sidewall of the excavation is designed to dispose of septic

tank effluent. Seepage pits ( (mav)) are also ( (B catted—dry
wetts+")) known as dry wells.
(85) "Septage" means (( i i 7 7 7

x a - 3
tanks;—anad—eother—O0SS—ecompornents)) liquid or solid material removed

from sewage tanks, cesspools, portable toilets, type III marine sani-
tation devices, wvault toilets, pit toilets, recreational vehicle hold-
ing tanks, or similar systems that receive only domestic sewade.

(86) "Septic tank" means a watertight treatment receptacle re-
ceiving the discharge of sewage from a building sewer or sewers, de-
signed and constructed to ((permit—separatien—of)) separate settleable
and floating solids from the liquid, detention and anaerobic digestion
of the organic matter, prior to discharge of the liquid.

LRGN S I PR LYK~ a0 | B PSP I = aotTIa e aszoat A » Ao Q
ot P T C— Sy STttt =} OTr—S LT C STwWaog Oy o CCoTit O T .

(87) "Sewage" means any urine, feces, and the water carrying hu-
man wastes, including kitchen, bath, and laundry wastes from residen-
ces, buildings, industrial establishments, or other places.

(88) "Sewage quality" means contents in sewage that include:

(a) CBODsg, TSS, and 0&G;

(b) Other parameters that ((eaw)) may adversely affect treatment.
Examples include pH, temperature, and dissolved oxygen; or

(c) Other constituents that create concerns due to specific site
sensitivity. Examples include fecal coliform, E. coli, phosphorus, and
nitrogen.

[ 9 ] 0TS-4868.6



(89) "Sewage tank" means a prefabricated or cast-in-place septic
tank, pump ((tankidesing)) chamber, dosing chamber, holding tank,
grease interceptor, recirculating filter tank or any other tanks as
they relate to ((ep—site—sewage—systems)) 0SS including tanks for use
with proprietary products.

(90) "Soil dispersal component”" means a technology that releases
effluent from a treatment component into the soil for dispersal, final
treatment and recycling.

(91) "Soil log" means a detailed description of soil characteris-
tics providing information on the soil's capacity to act as an accept-
able treatment and dispersal medium for sewage.

(92) "Soil scientist"™ means a person certified by the American
Society of Agronomy as a Certified Professional Soil Scientist.

(93) "Soil type" means one of seven numerical classifications of
fine earth particles and rock fragments as described in WAC
246-272A-0220 (2) (e) .

(94) "Standard methods" means the ((26+k)) 23rd Edition of Stand-
ard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater, prepared and
published jointly by the American Public Health Association, the Amer-
ican Water Works Association and the Water Environment Federation.

(95) "Strong structure" means peds are distinct in undisturbed
soil. They separate cleanly when soil is disturbed, and the soil mate-
rial separates mainly into whole peds when removed.

(96) "Subdivision" means a division of land or creation of lots
or parcels, described under chapter 58.17 RCW, including both long and
short subdivisions, planned unit developments, and mobile home parks.

(97) "Subsurface drip system" means an efficient pressurized
wastewater distribution system that can deliver small, precise doses
of effluent to soil surrounding the drip distribution piping
((feadded)), also known as dripline((3)), as described in the ((de—

! 1" 3 )) DS&G for Subsurface
Drip Systems, 2020. ( (%))

((n H : " )) (98) "ggag"
means a subsurface soil absorption system that is a soil dispersal
component of trenches or beds containing either a distribution pipe
within a layer of drainrock covered with a geotextile, or an approved
gravelless distribution technology, designed and installed in ( (eriei—

’ 4

)) suitable soil, with either
gravity or pressure distribution of the treatment component effluent.

Finished Grade
i v v v ¢« v v v v

Geotextile ‘6-2'4' Cover Material I
2" Min.
Distribution }: 36"
Plpe O Max.

e <3 Feet(Trenches) >
>3to 10 Feet(Beds)

(99) "Suitable" means original, undisturbed, unsaturated soil of
solil types 1-6 with at least the vertical separation established in
this chapter.

[ 10 ] 0TS-4868.6



(100) "Surface water" means any fresh or marine body of water ((+
whether—fresh—or—marines)) flowing or contained in natural or artifi-
cial unlined depressions for significant periods of the year, includ-
ing natural and artificial 1lakes, ponds, springs, rivers, streams,
swamps, marshes, irrigation canals, and tidal waters.

(101) "TAG" means the technical advisory group established in WAC
246-272A-0400.

(102) "Timed dosing" means delivery of discrete volumes of sewage
at prescribed time intervals.

(103) "TN" means total nitrogen, typically expressed in mg/L.

(104) "Treatment component" means a technology that treats sewage
in preparation for further treatment ((aad#t))or dispersal into the
soil environment. Some treatment components, such as mound systems,
incorporate a soil dispersal component in lieu of separate treatment
and soil dispersal components.

(105) "Treatment component sequence" means any series of treat-
ment components that discharges treated sewage to the soil dispersal
component.

(106) "Treatment level" means one of ((s+x%)) the following levels
(A, B, C, ((B)) BL1, BL2, BL3, E, & N) ((gsed—+Fn—+these—rutes)) to:

(a) Identify treatment component performance demonstrated through
requirements specified in WAC 246-272A-0110; and

(b) Match site conditions of vertical separation and soil type
with treatment components. ((Freatment—tevels—used—in—these—rutes—are

1+ A1 a~bh v e~ N~ = oot I oy + + o 21 Al oo~ AT A~ A ))
CITT T \_AJ.\_)\_/J.J.(_AJ.\j [ 1= [ & N \w N (=] VV(_A.\j |y CIT [ 2\ A \_AJ.\_)b/ [N SN @ R \_/Ulllblull T1T T e

(107) "Trench" means a soil dispersal component consisting of an
excavation with a width of three feet or less.

(108) "TSS" means total suspended solids, a measure of all sus-

pended solids in a liquid, typically expressed in mg/L.

(109) "Unit volume of sewage" means:

(a) Flow from a single-family residence;

(b) Flow from a mobile home site in a mobile home park; or

(c) Four hundred fifty gallons of sewage per day where the pro-
posed development is not single-family residences or a mobile home
park.

(110) "Unknown OSS" means an 0SS that was installed without the
knowledge or approval of the local health Jjurisdiction, including
those that were installed before such approval was required.

(111) "Unpermitted sewage discharge" means the discharge of sew-
age or treated effluent from an unknown OSS.

(112) "Vertical separation" means the depth of ((uoasaturateds
eriginat;—undisturbed—soit—ef——seoil—Etypes—3+—6)) suitable soils between
the bottom infiltrative surface of a soil dispersal component and the
highest seasonal water table, a restrictive layer, or soil type 7 as
illustrated below by the profile drawing of subsurface soil absorption
systems:

[ 11 ] 0TS-4868.6



Ground surface
~z V4 [z ~z_¥_ Sz SV AV Sz

V/ Geotextile
Y Subsurface dripline
Distribution (drip system tubing)
pipe 7 Gravelless
Drain rockoopis Technology >
b Vertical separation - Original soil of types 1-6
Vertical separation - Original soil of types 1-6 Vertical separation - Original soil of types 1-6

/Water table, Restrictive layer, or Soil type 7

(113) "Very gravelly" means soil containing ( (Ehirey—Ffive)) 35
percent or more, but less than ((sixty)) 60 percent rock fragments by
volume.

(114) "Water supply protection zone" means the land area around
each existing or proposed well site to protect the water supply from
contamination.

(115) "Water table" means the upper surface of the groundwater,
whether permanent or seasonal. Also see "groundwater" as defined in
this section. ( (%))

(116) "Well"™ means any excavation that is constructed when the
intended use of the well is for the location, diversion, artificial
recharge, observation, monitoring, dewatering or withdrawal of ground-
water for agricultural, municipal, industrial, domestic, or commercial
use. ((Bxetuded—are)) The following are not considered a well:

(a) A temporary observation or monitoring well used to determine
the depth to a water table for locating an 0SS;

(b) An observation or monitoring well used to measure the effect
of an 0SS on a water table; ((ard))

(c) An interceptor or curtain drain constructed to lower a water
table; and

(d) A dewatering well used temporarily for the purpose of a sew-
age tank or pump chamber installation.

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

NEW SECTION

WAC 246-272A-0013 Local rules. (1) The 1local health officer
shall enforce the requirements of this chapter until a local board of
health adopts local 0SS regulations. A local board of health may adopt
and enforce local rules governing 0SS when the local regulations are:

(a) Consistent with, and at least as stringent as this chapter;
and

(b) Approved by the department prior to the effective date of lo-
cal regulations.

[ 12 ] 0TS-4868.6



(2) To apply for department approved local 0SS regulations a lo-
cal board of health shall submit the proposed local regulations to the
department.

(3) Within 90 days of receipt of proposed local regulations, the
department shall:

(a) Approve the proposed regulations; or

(b) Deny the proposed regulations if the department determines
local regulations are not consistent with this chapter or less strin-
gent than this chapter and provide specific reasons for the denial.

(4) Upon receipt of department approval, or after 90 days if the
department fails to act, the local board may implement adopted regula-
tions. The local board shall provide a copy of the adopted local regu-
lations to the department.

(5) If the department denies approval of local regulations, the
local board of health may:

(a) Resubmit revised regqulations that address the specific rea-
sons for the denial for department consideration; or

(b) Submit a request to the department to review its denial with-
in 120 days from the date the local board of health receives the spe-
cific reasons for the denial.

(6) Upon receipt of request for review of the department denial,
the department shall:

(a) Acknowledge the receipt of the request within 30 days; and

(b) Form a mutually acceptable advisory panel to review the de-
partment denial and reach an agreement within a reasonable time. The
panel shall consist of:

(1) One representative from the department;

(ii) One representative from a local health Jjurisdiction other
than that which requested the review; and

(11ii) One member of the TAG.

(7) If good faith efforts to reach agreement are unsuccessful be-
tween the department and a local board of health, the local board of
health may appeal the denial to the Washington state board of health
for resolution.

(8) Nothing in this chapter shall prohibit the adoption and en-
forcement of more stringent regulations by a local board of health.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0015 Local management ((and—regulatien)) plans.
(1) ((By—Fudty—3++—2068+-)) The local health officer ((s—ef—heatth—Furis
eHetions—in—the—twelve counties bordering)) for each Puget Sound coun-
ty shall develop a written local management plan ( (hat—wiltE)) to pro-
vide guidance to the local health jurisdiction regarding development
and management activities for all 0SS within the Jjurisdiction. The
((pFar)) department will review the existing 0SS 1local management
plans for all Puget Sound counties within two vears of the effective
date of the rule. If the department determines a plan revision is nec-
essary upon review, the local health officer shall revise the local
management plan for all 0SS within the local health jurisdiction con-
sistent with subsection (2) of this section.

(2) At a minimum, the local management plan for Puget Sound coun-
ties must specify how the local health jurisdiction will:

[ 13 ] 0TS-4868.6



(a) Progressively develop and maintain an inventory including the
type and location of all known OSS in operation within the jurisdic-
tion;

(b) Identify any areas where 0SS could pose an increased public
health risk. The following areas shall be given priority in this ac-
tivity:

(1) Shellfish protection districts or shellfish growing areas;

(ii) Sole source aquifers as designated by the ((BSERA)) EPA;

(iii) Areas in which agquifers used for potable water as designa-
ted under the Washington State Growth Management Act((+)) under chap-
ter 36.70A RCW are critically impacted by recharge;

(iv) Designated wellhead protection areas ((fe¥)) in Group A pub-
lic water ((systems)) supplies under chapter 246-290 WAC;

(v) Up-gradient areas directly influencing water recreation fa-
cilities designated for swimming in natural waters with artificial
boundaries within the waters as described by the Water Recreation Fa-
cilities Act((+)) under chapter 70.90 RCW;

(vi) Areas designated ( (by—the—<department—of—eecolteogy)) as special

protection areas under WAC 173-200-090 ( (—Water—guality —standards—Ffer
groundwaters—eof+the stateof Washingten) ),

(vii) Wetland areas under production of crops for human consump-

tion;

(viii) Frequently flooded areas including areas delineated by the
Federal Emergency Management Agency ((ame)) or as designated under the
Washington State Growth Management Act ((+)) under chapter 36.70A RCW;

(ix) Areas where nitrogen has been identified as a contaminant of
concern including, but not Jlimited to, the marine waters of Puget
Sound; ((arwd))

(x) Areas where phosphorous has been identified as a contaminant
of concern;

(xi) Areas where sea level rise may impact adequate horizontal
separations to surface water; and

(xii) Other areas designated by the local health officer.

(c) Identify operation, maintenance, and monitoring requirements
commensurate with risks posed by 0SS within the geographic areas iden-
tified in (b) of this subsection;

(d) ((Faetiitateeducationof homeowners regarding their respon-

+£))) Educate 0SS owners about their responsibilities to perform
0SS operation and maintenance, including information for owners to
complete any inspection required by WAC 246-272A-0270;

(e) Maintain records required wunder this chapter, including

((e£)) all operation and maintenance activities as identified; ((and))

((#e)) (£f) Enforce 0SS owner permit application, operation, mon-
itoring and maintenance and failure repair requirements ((gdefimed)) in
WAC 246-272A-0200 ( (1)) (2), 246-272A-0260, 246-272A-0270,

246-272A-0275, and 246-272A-0280 ((+H—amre—+2)));

((#r)) (g) Describe the capacity of the local health jurisdic-
tion to ((adeguately)) fund the local ((6SS—pran—inetuding)) manage-
ment plan, which includes a summary of program expenditures by activi-
ty, source of funds, a strategy to fill any funding gaps, and the
ability to find failing and unknown systems; and

((HH—Assure—+that—3+)) (h) Verify that the local management plan
was developed ((teo—eeerdinate)) 1n coordination with the comprehensive

[ 14 ] 0TS-4868.6



effieerts)) within the local health jurisdiction.

J
~
~

(3) The department shall review the local management plan for Pu-
get Sound counties at least once every five vears. If the department
determines plan revision is necessary upon review of the local manage-
ment plan described in subsection (2) of this section, the department
shall notify the local health officer of their findings.

(4) The local health officer for Puget Sound counties shall:

(a) Review and update the local management plan, as necessary, O
at least once every five vears;

(b) If after the review the local management plan is updated,
provide an opportunity for public input on the local management plan;

(c) Following local board of health approval, submit the local
management plan to the department for review;

(d) Implement the local management plan;

(e) Submit an annual report to the department including all of
the following in a format specified by the department:

(1) Number of 0SS;

(1i) Number of unknown OSS identified;

(1ii) Number of failures found;

(iv) Number of failures repaired; and

(v) Status of compliance with inspections required by WAC
246-272A-0270;

(f) Supply a copy of the local management plan to the entities
responsible for Jland use planning and development regulations in the
local health jurisdiction.

(5)IThe local health ofﬁicer((s)) for ((a%%—e%hgf—ﬁﬂfésdie%ieﬁs

seetion)) a non-Puget Sound county shall develop a written local man-
agement plan that will provide guidance to the local health Jjurisdic-
tion regarding development and management activities for all 0SS with-
in the jurisdiction. At a minimum the plan shall include:

(a) A description of the capacity of the local health Jjurisdic-
tion to provide education and operation and maintenance information
for all types of systems in use within the jurisdiction;

(b) A description of how the local health officer will remind and
encourage homeowners to complete the operation and maintenance inspec-
tion required by WAC 246-272A-0270; and

[ 15 ] 0TS-4868.6



(c) A description of the capacity of the local health Jjurisdic-
tion to adequately fund the local 0SS plan.

(6) In order to implement the plan described in subsections (1)
and (5) of this section, the local health officer shall require the
owner of the 0SS to:

(a) Comply with additional requirements identified in the plan
for the location, design, or performance; and

(b) Comply with the conditions of the operational permit if one
is required.

(7) In order to implement the plan described in subsections (1)
and (5) of this section, the local health officer may require the own-
er of the 0SS to:

(a) Ensure additional maintenance and monitoring of the 0SS;

(b) Provide dedicated easements for inspections, maintenance, and
potential future expansion of the 0SS; and

(c) Place a notice to title identifying any additional require-
ments for 0SS operation, maintenance, and monitoring ( (+—and

=1 P £ + 1 laleleal + + 1 + o
TOTT—OT CIIc oo T CIIc c it — O

[ 16 ] 0TS-4868.6



n
CIIaalr

n

P R [ R R

1+
oo Crt

=

o
T O CToxT

-
T

1z £

mi
CIio T Oy T

On

(= 2\

vtL7

A\ g i i o

JoLr To T o TITUTT

T L OTIT

p R

=

.
4

7
W

L]

ot +1h
=}

o

r
T

e~

IR AP

O C1IT

C

T

CIIaoa T

[Cssawi

WIT T CTT

o]
|U ¥y yw) LA\_/\_/C»._)»._)J.LAJ_,

EEE W= E a1

o

manr
T

oL

=
gL T TICITC

S~
o CTT

£+
T 1T CTT

T -~
T

(1 4\

vLt=7

T

O

T O To

1k
€ s Ny Wy i

S ASATAS
ENEV|

I VAVA® manw ¥

alh g~ A

WO T T ITg COUTT

Tal

ma vtz DN A

[111= 37

I

=

o
T O CT T

i iy @ s cO I

A8

T

oo TTT

T

O

CIT

o ot

Tagb 3 A
o O LT O T IO T o

£ a4+l £ o

ENE|
oot —OT

T

T

o Ccc T

O

T L CIl

+
TS

(=) Tje m w1y

T
1T € N Ny Wy i
£+ o
A

o
[ S WA Wy & i iy

oo c OIS MY

ot o oy
ST Tig

1 mes
| PR P E 1} A

n
T

m
T

)

ENEAY

ot 2~
o tCTTOTT

o

\

ot o n (1
oo C T TITOTT

a1l o

n

4

P
J_C\iuJ.J_C\.A

T + 1 nlan r

(1 £\

v V7

[Cssawi

CTIT Lo

AN

T IT

| s Pt

TIT

annr

£V

TaT

oo

v ynoxz Al
ey —aOCaT

£ o
|\ S N N P o

1+
TICo T Ctt

nco

ceia ]l ok S

EEAAC pvmne puma sy

+~

W T T COTT

OO

T OoOCTT

LTIt

|

TOCTTOxT

The department shall maintain and update guidance and provide

(8)

technical assistance to assist 1local health

management plan development.

in local

jurisdictions

( (GENERAL—REQUIREMENTS) )

effective

filed 7/18/05,

(Amending WSR 05-15-119,

AMENDATORY SECTION

9/15/05)

system.

sewer

Connection to public
Upon the failure of an existing 0SS within the service area

))

WAC 246-272A-0025

((

of a sewer utility,

the local health officer shall
Permit the repair or replacement of the 0SS only if a con-

(a)

forming OSS can be designed and installed,

excluding 0SS designed in

or

.
A

compliance with or proposing to use Table X in WAC 246-272A-0280

Sewer

system 1if the

sewer
utility allows the connection and has adequate public sewer services

Reguire connection to a public

(b)

+ £ + ] oot A~ £ £
C O CIIc T o OCTICT A E

£
-

A

aarm Ao
oo ct

( (Ewoe

available within

((axe))

PRI S e
CTrTrTxTCcyys

Sz3 ot g
CxX TSt g

—

P IO

139 A + 1

v

heol+h £ o
T T LT CTT UJ_J_J.M/CJ_,

ol
S A & =

+ 1

OTT

TCIT

CcII< rTarraoar T O

o1t

|y 5

£V
T

CEaY

T
OWTIT

[

2

o

R

n

2
T

it

INEvI

o T T TITOITy I

CIITLT o

oo o T T T ITUOUIT

T

ToTCcCCT— I

=}

Nl 4 o~
cO—a—pPpoaloTrxC

aszot o colh A

oy o C

T.T

o

=

Y~ D L P I SN
O CTT -

r
A\

a1 Ao~
[

r

WITCTT

T

oo T Cy

I

CIT

oo e N
SOy

o

o

r

ENPSIE I N
(3o pu up o

moe ot
IO o C

r

rrciaa ]

[Cssawi

T atcT

TOTCT

-
7

oo L  OL

CIT

oot o I

oy

ra  +h

1

P e I R

r

[ani

T I

)

the existing building sewer,

(1)

7

A\ e mn W i Y

T OTTIIT

CIT

L LOWOS

O C 1115 L__Y
200 feet from where the existing building drain connects to

within
as measured along the usual

or where no building drain exists,

200 feet from where the sewer line begins,

or most feasible route of access.

0TS-4868.6

17



(2) The owner of a ((residenrce—or—other—faeidity)) structure
served Dby ((a—system—meeting —the —reguirements—eof TFabte—IX—of—Fthis
chapter)) an 0SS permitted as a repair under Table X in WAC
246-272A-0280 shall abandon the 0SS ( (aececerding—to—the—reeguirements))
as specified in WAC 246-272A-0300, and connect the ( (residenrce—or—oth—

r—faeidity)) structure to a public sewer system when:

(a) Connection is deemed necessary to protect public health by
the local health officer;

(b) An adequate public sewer becomes available within ((twe—hun—
dred)) 200 feet of the ((residerece—or—other—faeility)) existing struc-
ture, or in cases where no building drain exists, within 200 feet from
where the sewer for the building begins, as measured along the usual
or most economically feasible route of access; and

(c) The sewer utility allows the sewer connection.

((#4)>)) (3) Local boards of health may require a new development
to connect to a public sewer system to protect public health.

((#5)¥)) (4) Local boards of health shall require new development
or a development with a failing ((system)) 0SS to connect to a public
sewer system if it is required by the comprehensive land use plan or
development regulations.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0100 Sewage technologies. (1) The department ( (mey
develop—recommended)) shall maintain standards and guidance ((te—as—

sist)) for local health officers ((imr—permittingdifferent—Etypes—of))
to permit sewage treatment and distribution technologies ( (imetuding

+ 1 £ PICE IR =N a +

11 P G L EVNEN P PN o e
CIT TOTTOWIITY S WA U 1 S W i WL & B W S WY & i 7 A\ S W

(2) ((AXEt—~types—ef)) Before the local health officer permits sew-
age technologies, the sewage technologies must ( (kaw et+ther—stand
a¥res)) be registered for use as described in this chapter, have stand-

ards for use as described or referenced in this chapter, or ((depart—

H—Seurees—of informations)) have DS&G describing sewage tech-

nologies uses as maintained by the department.

(3) The department may remove, restrict, or suspend a proprietary
product's approval for use based on failure to meet required standards
or conditions of approval or if the information provided by the manu-

[ 18 ] 0TS-4868.6



facturer 1is false, erroneous, or unrepresentative of the approved
product.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0110 Proprietary treatment products—((Certifieca-
tion—and)) Eligibility for registration. (1) Manufacturers shall reg-
ister ((#khed®r)) a proprietary treatment product((s)) with the depart-
ment using the process described in WAC 246-272A-0120 before ((he)) a
local health officer may permit ((heixr)) use of the product.

(2) To ((gwatify)) be eligible for product registration, manufac-
turers desiring to sell or distribute proprietary treatment products
in Washington state shall:

(a) Verify product performance through testing using the testing
protocol established in Table I ((and—register—their produet—with—+Eth
department—using—the Pprocess—deseribed—in—WAC246-272-0120)) of this
section;

(b) Report product test results of influent and effluent sampling
obtained throughout the testing period (including normal and stress
loading phases) for evaluation of constituent reduction according to
the requirements in Table II of this section;

(c) Demonstrate product performance according to the regquirements
in Table III of this section. All ((Ehirty—day)) 30-day averages and
geometric means obtained throughout the test period must meet the
identified threshold wvalues to qualify for registration at that
threshold level; and

(d) ((Fer—registrationatJeveltsA—B—and€)) Verify bacterio-
logical reduction according to WAC 246-272A-0130 for product registra-
tion utilizing bacterial levels BL1, BL2, and BIL3.

(3) Manufacturers verifying product performance through testing
according to the following standards or protocols shall have product
testing conducted by a testing facility accredited by ANSI:

(a) ( (ANSEANSE—Standard)) NSE/ANSI 40((—)): Residential Wastewa-
ter Treatment Systems;

(b) ((NSFE——Standard)) NSF/ANSI 41: Non-Liquid Saturated Treatment
Systems;

(c) NSF Protocol P157 Electrical Incinerating Toilets - Health
and Sanitation; ((e¥))

(d) ((Preteest)) NSF/ANSI 245: Residential Wastewater Treatment

Systems - Nitrogen Reduction; or
() NSF/ANSI 385: Residential Wastewater Treatment Systems — Dis-
infection Mechanics for Bacteriological Reduction described in WAC

246-272A-0130.
(4) Manufacturers verifying product performance through testing
according to ((she—Ffeolleowing standards—erprotocols—shall haveproduckt
; : - .  eild . } )

[ 19 ] 0TS-4868.6



for—Nutrient—Reduetions)) EPA Method 1664, Revision B and using a
wastewater laboratory certified by the Washington department of ecolo-
gy shall provide supporting information, including flow data, and in-
fluent and effluent quality sampling results from a minimum of three
installations with similar design loading to demonstrate product per-
formance to Category 2 standards.

(5) Treatment levels ( (used—an—these—rules—arenotintended—+to—Pbe
apptied—as—ficld compliance —standards—Their intended—use—3is—for—es—
tabltishing)) established in Table IITI of this section are intended to
establish treatment product performance in a product testing setting
under established protocols by qualified testing entities. Field com-
pliance standards for proprietary treatment products shall follow the
reguirements in WAC 246-272A-0120(5).

(6) Manufacturers may submit a written request to substitute com-
ponents of a registered product's construction in cases of supply
chain shortage or similar manufacturing disruptions impacting instal-
lations, operation, or maintenance. The substitution reguest must in-
clude a report stamped, signed, and dated by a professional engineer
demonstrating the substituted component will not negatively impact
performance or diminish the effect of the treatment, operation, and
maintenance of the original registered product. If approved, substitu-
tion is authorized until rescinded by the department.

( (zaBBE—T) )

Table I

Testing Requirements for Proprietary Treatment Products

Treatment Component/Sequence Category Required Testing Protocol

Category 1 Designed to treat ((sewage-with-strength-typieal | ((ANSHNSE)) NSF/ANSI 40—Residential Wastewater
of aresidential souree-when)) septic tank effluent ((is)) Treatment Systems (((preteeels)) versions dated between
anticipated to be equal to or less than treatment level E. ((Fely1996-and-the-effective-date-of theserules)) January
2009 and May 31, 2021)

Category 2 Designed to treat ((high-strength-sewage-when | ((EPAANSEPRrotocolfortheVerifieation-of-Wastewater
septie-tank)) effluent ((is)) or sewage with sewage quality
parameters anticipated to be greater than treatment level E.

...... aphnn S1oQ CPA _Envireonmen

Verificati i12001)))
EPA Method 1664, Revision B (February 2010)

(Such as at restaurants, grocery stores, mini-marts, group
homes, medical clinics, residences, etc.)

Category 3 Black water component of residential sewage NSF/ANSI ((Standard)) 41: Non-Liquid Saturated
(such as composting* and incinerating** toilets). Treatment Systems (((September1999)) Versions dated
between February 2011 and May 31, 2021)

**NSF Protocol P157 Electrical Incinerating Toilets -
Health and Sanitation (April 2000)

Total Nitrogen Reduction in Categories 1 & 2 (Above) ((Protoeolfor-the-Verifieation-of Residential Wastewater

5 )
NSF/ANSI 245: Residential Wastewater Treatment Systems
— Nitrogen Reduction (Versions dated between January

2018 and May 31, 2021)

( (eaBEE—2TE) )
Table II

Test Results Reporting Requirements for Proprietary Treatment Products

Treatment Component/Sequence Category | Testing Results Reported

[ 20 ] 0TS-4868.6



Test Results Reporting Requirements for Proprietary Treatment Products

Category 1 Designed to treat ((sewage-with

septic tank effluent ((is)) anticipated to be
equal to or less than treatment level E.

Report the following test results of influent and effluent sampling obtained
throughout the testing period for evaluation of ((eenstitaent)) reduction

((for-the-parameters:)) of CBODsZ, and TSS:

O Average o Standard Deviation
0 Minimum 0 Maximum
0 Median o Interquartile Range

o 30-day Average (for each month)
For evaluation of bacteriological reduction performance((;)).

Report complete treatment component sequence testing as described in
Table III, Category 1.

For evaluation of performance meeting treatment level BL1:
(1) Report fecal coliform test results of influent and effluent sampling by

geometric mean from samples drawn within ((thirty)) 30-day or monthly
calendar periods, obtained from a minimum of three samples per week
throughout the testing period. See WAC 246-272A-0130.

(2) Report complete testing results for supplemental bacteriological
reduction technology! when the required treatment levels for fecal
coliform in Table III, Category 1 are not met by the primary proprietary
treatment product.

For evaluation of performance meeting treatment level BL2 or BL3:
(1) Report fecal coliform test results of influent and effluent sampling by

geometric mean from samples drawn within 30-day or monthly calendar
periods, obtained from a minimum of three samples per week throughout
the testing period as described in WAC 246-272A-0130; or

(2) Report complete testing results for supplemental bacteriological
reduction technology! when the required treatment levels for fecal
coliform in Table III, Category 1 are not met by the primary proprietary
treatment product.

For all options, test report must also include the individual results of all
samples drawn throughout the test period.

Category 2 Designed to treat ((hi
sewage-when-septie-tank)) effluent ((is)) or
sewage with sewage quality parameters
anticipated to be greater than treatment level

(Such as at restaurants, grocery stores, mini-
marts, group homes, medical clinics, atypical
residences, etc.)

Report all individual test results and full test average values of influent
and effluent sampling obtained throughout the testing period for the
evaluation of reduction of: CBODs, TSS and O&G. Establish the

treatment capacity of the product tested in pounds per day for CBODs.

Category 3 Black water component of
residential sewage (such as composting and
incinerating toilets).

Report test results on all required performance criteria according to the
format prescribed in the NSF test protocol described in Table 1.

Total Nitrogen Reduction in Categories 1
& 2 (Above)

Report test results on all required performance criteria according to the
format prescribed in the test protocol described in Table I.

Test results for BOD5 may be submitted in lieu of test results for CBODs. In these cases numerical values for CBOD5 will be determined using the

following formula: (BODs % 0.83 = CBODx).

2 Supplemental bacteriological reduction technology must be tested for influent/effluent fecal coliform or E. coli per WAC 246-272A-0130 (bacteriological

reduction testing protocol). Supplemental fecal coliform or E. coli reducing technologies will be rated for log base 10 removal of fecal coliform or E. coli.

The lowest 30-day geometric mean will be used to rate reduction level. The highest monthly geometric mean for treatment technology fecal coliform or E.

coli reduction will be used as the baseline value for review.

( (rapzE—TEF) )

0TS-4868.6



Product Performance Requirements for Proprietary Treatment Products

Treatment
Component/Sequence

Category

Product Performance Requirements

Category 1 Designed to
treat effluent anticipated
to be equal to or less than
treatment level E.

Treatment System Performance Testing Levels

Parameters
Level EC
v CBODs TSS 0&G cfu/100 TN E. coli
mg/L mg/L mg/L mL mg/L cfu/100 mL
A 10 10 — — — —
[ 22 ] 0TS-4868.06



Product Performance Requirements for Proprietary Treatment Products

Treatment
Component/Sequence

Category Product Performance Requirements
BL2 1.000
BL3 50,000

228 80 20 p—

I

I

|2 | le=t

30 (or 50%
reduction based
on mass loading

as required in
WAC

246-272A-0320)

Values for Levels A - C are 30-day values (averages for CBODs, TSS, and geometric mean for

FC.) All 30-day averages throughout the test period must meet these values in order to be
registered at these levels.
Values for Levels E and N are derived from full test averages.

Category 2 Designed to All of the following requirements must be met:

treat high-strength (1) All full test averages must meet Level E; and

sewage when septic tank | (2) Establish the treatment capacity of the product tested in pounds per day for CBODs.
effluent is anticipated to
be greater than treatment
level E.

(Such as at restaurants,
grocery stores, mini-
marts, group homes,
medical clinics

residences, etc.)

Category 3 Black water Test results must meet the performance requirements established in the NSF test protocol.
component of residential

sewage (such as

composting and
incinerating toilets).

Total Nitrogen Test results must establish product performance effluent quality meeting Level N, when
Reduction in presented as the full test average.

Categories 1 & 2
(Above)

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0120 Proprietary treatment product registration—
Process and requirements. (1) Manufacturers shall register ((&heir))
proprietary treatment ((preduwet+{s))) products with the department by
submitting a complete registration application for review and approval
in the format provided by the department, including:

(a) Manufacturer's name, mailing address, ((street—address—and))
phone number, email address, and website address;

(b) Contact ((&mdividwat's)) person's name, title, mailing ad-
dress, ((street)) email address, and phone number. The contact ((indi—
wiegat)) person must be vested with the authority to represent the
manufacturer in this capacity;

(c) Name, including specific brand and model, of the proprietary
treatment product;

[ 23 ] 0TS-4868.6



(d) A description of the function of the proprietary treatment
product along with any known limitation on the use of the product;

(e) Product description and technical information, including
process flow drawings and schematics; materials and characteristics;
component design specifications; design capacity, volumes and flow as-
sumptions and calculations; components; dimensioned drawings and pho-
tos;

(f) For treatment systems in Category 2, daily capacity of the
model or models in pounds per day of CBODsg;

(g) Siting and installation regquirements;

(h) Detailed description, procedure, and schedule of routine
service and system maintenance events;

(1) Estimated operational costs for the first five years of the
treatment component's life. This ((skatd)) must include both estimated
annual electricity costs, and routine maintenance costs, including re-
placement of parts;

(j) Identification of information subject to protection from dis-
closure of trade secrets;

(k) Most current dated copies of product brochures ((&)) and man-
uals: Sales & Promotional,; Design; Installation; Operation & Mainte-
nance,; and Homeowner Instructions;

(1) The most recently available product test protocol dated no
earlier than the dates in WAC 246-272A-0110 Table I and the results
report;

(m) A signed and dated certification by the manufacturer's agent
specifically including the following statement, "I certify that I rep-
resent (INSERT MANUFACTURING coMpaNY NaMe) and I am authorized to prepare or di-
rect the preparation of this application for registration. I attest,
under penalty of law, that this document and all attachments are true,
accurate, and complete. I understand and accept that the product test-
ing results reported with this application for registration are the
parameters and values to be used for determining conformance with
Treatment System Performance Testing Levels established in chapter
246-272A WAC";

(n) A signed and dated certification from the testing entity in-
cluding the statement, "I certify that I represent (INSERT TESTING ENTITY
nvaMe) , that I am authorized to report the testing results for this pro-
prietary treatment product. I attest, under penalty of law, that the
report about the test protocol and results is true, accurate, and com-
plete”; and

(0) The fee described in WAC ((246—272A-09080)) 246-272-2000.

(2) Products within a single series or model line, ((+#))sharing
distinct similarities in design, materials, and capacities((¥)),. may
be registered under a single application, consistent with the provi-
sions of their test protocol for the certification of other products
within a product series. Products outside of the series or model line
must be registered under separate applications.

(3) Upon receipt of ((am)) a registration application the depart-
ment shall:

(a) Verify that the application is complete including dated and
current copies of all of the required manuals; and

(b) If ((eeomptete)) approved, place the product on the depart-
ment's list of ((preprietary)) registered on-site treatment and dis-
tribution products.

(4) All registrations are valid for up to one year, expiring on
December 31st of each year. Fees are not prorated.

[ 24 ] 0TS-4868.6



(5) In order to renew a proprietary treatment product technology
registration, a manufacturer shall:
(a) Apply for renewal of product registration using the ((ferm—er

ia—the)) format provided by the department ((+))

(b) Submit ((the—resutts—of)) any of the following applicable re-
ports:

(i) A retesting((+—Ff—+the—produect—has—~complteted—retesting)) re-—

port from the testing entity according to the protocol required for
registration ((apre—a—repeort—From—the +testing—entity has—Pbeen—Fssged
sinee—dritiatl—registration—or previogs—renewal—Renrewal——Shall e Pbased
on—the—most—recent—test—resuttss)) as identified in this section;

(1i) A field verification performance report as identified in the
proprietary on-site wastewater treatment products DS&G, dated February
1, 2025. If field performance results demonstrate that the product has
failed to meet the requirements in the DS&G, the manufacturer shall
report to the department describing the reasons for the failure to
meet the regquirements consistent with the DS&G;

(c) Provide an ((affidawvit)) attestation to the department veri-
fying whether or not the product has changed over the previous year.
If the product has changed, the ((affidavit)) attestation must also
include a full description of the changes. If the product has changed
in a way that affects performance, the product may not be renewed and
shall meet the requirements for initial registration((=)).

(d) Provide a statement that all required dated manuals are cur-—
rent, or submit the updated and dated new manuals; and

(e) Submit the fee established in WAC ( (246—2F2A—9890))
246-272-2000.

(6) As part of product registration renewal, the department
shall:

(a) Request field assessment comments from local health officers
no later than October 31st of each year. These comments may include
concerns about a variety of field assessment issues, including:

(1) Product function, including verification of field performance
testing as identified in the DS&G;

(ii) Product reliability((+)): and

(iii) Problems arising with operation and maintenance;

(b) Discuss with the ((FA€)) TAG any field assessment information
that may impact product registration renewal;

(c) Notify the manufacturer of any product to be discussed with
the ((FA€)) TAG, prior to discussion with the ((FA€)) TAG, regarding
the nature of comments received; ((and))

(d) Renew the product registration unless:

(1) The manufacturer of a product does not apply for renewal; or

(ii) The department, after deliberation with the ((FA€)) TAG,
concludes product registration renewal should not be given or should
be delayed until the manufacturer submits information that satisfacto-
rily answers concerns and issues; and

(e) Provide a compliance plan to the manufacturer within 90 days
based on departmental concerns of public health risk related to the

product.
(7) The department shall maintain a list of ( (preprietary—treat—
ment)) registered on-site treatment and distribution products meeting

the registration requirements established in this chapter. The product
registration is a condition of approval for use.

(8) Manufacturers shall have readily accessible product informa-
tion for designers, ((hemeewne¥rsy)) regulators, ((system)) 0SS owners

[ 25 ] 0TS-4868.6



and other interested parties ((abouvt—their—produet)) posted on the

manufacturer's website including the most current dated version of:
(a) Product manuals;

(b) Design instructions;

(c) Installation instructions;

(d) Operation and maintenance;

(e) ((Hemeewner)) Owner instructions; and

(f) How to locate a list of representatives and manufacturer cer-
tified maintenance service providers, if any.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 06-01-020, filed 12/12/05, effective
1/12/06)

WAC 246-272A-0130 Bacteriological reduction. This section es-
tablishes the requirements for registering bacteriological reduction
processes.

(1) Manufacturers shall, for the purpose of product reglstratlon
as described 1in WAC 246- 272A OllO and 246 272A 0120 ( (fer—meetd

il 7\ r O Tz £z Iho~t 1 | o~ o
\Z\ = e a5 w2 J_), A 7 VCJ_J.J__Y uu\_,l.CJ_J_u_l_uij_\_,u._L T COotCT

For meeting treatment level BL1l, verify bacteriological re-

duction performance by sampling for fecal coliform or E. coli.

(b) For meeting treatment level BIL2 or BL3, verify bacteriologi-
cal reduction performance by sampling for fecal coliform.

(2) All test data submitted for product registration shall be
produced by an ANSI accredited, third-party testing and certification
organization whose accreditation 1is specific to on-site wastewater
treatment products. Bacteriological reduction performance must be de-
termined ( (white)) either:

(a) According to the procedures in NSF/ANSI 385 for supplemental
bacteriological reduction; or

(b) Concurrent with testing protocol. The treatment product or
treatment component sequence ((is—%ested)) testing according to the
( (ANSEANSE—Standard)) NSF/ANST 40 testing protocol. ((Puring—this))

(3) Testing under subsection (2) (b) of this section shall be com-
pleted in compliance with the following requirements ( (appt¥)):

(a) Collect samples from both the influent and effluent streams,
identifying the treatment performance achieved by the full treatment
process, ((+4))component or sequence((})):

[ 26 ] 0TS-4868.6



(b) Obtain influent characteristics falling within a range of
10((&)) 4 - 108 fecal coliform/100 mL or 102 - 10° E. c0li/100 mL calcu-
lated as ((£hirty)) 30-day geometric means during the test ((+))s

(c) Test the influent to any disinfection unit and report the
following at each occasion of sampling performed in (d) of this sub-
section:

(1) Flow rate;

ii) pH;
v

(
(iii) Temperature;

(iv) Turbidity; and

(v) Color((+))s

(d) Obtain samples for fecal coliform or E. coli analysis during
both the design loading and stress loading periods identified by ((NSE
Standard)) NSF/ANST 40. Grab samples shall be collected from both the
influent and effluent on three separate days of the week. Each set of
influent and effluent grab samples must be taken from a different dos-
ing time frame, either ((+4))morning, afternoon, or evening((¥)), SO
that samples have been taken from each dosing time frame by the end of
the week ((+))

(e) Conduct analyses according to standard methods;

(f) Report the geometric mean of fecal coliform or E. coli test
results from all samples taken within ((fkhixty)) 30-day or monthly
calendar periods;

(g) Report the individual results of all samples taken throughout
the test period design and stress loading; and

(h) Report all maintenance and servicing conducted during the
testing period, including for example, instances of cleaning a UV
lamp, or replenishment of chlorine chemicals.

((3F)) (4) Manufacturers may register products in treatment lev-
els ((A)) BL1 and ((B)) BL2 using disinfection.

((#4)) (5) Manufacturers may not register products for treatment
level ((€)) BL3 using disinfection.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0140 Proprietary distribution products—Certifica-
tion ((and—registration)) requirements. (1) { (Mapofacetvrers——shatt

+2))) Proprietary distribution products, including gravelless

distribution products and subsurface dripline products, must be regis-
tered with the department before permitting, sale, and use. To be eli-
gible for registration as described in WAC 246-272A-0145, products
must first be certified as described in this section.

(2) To be certified, proprietary gravelless distribution products
((shat¥)) must:

[ 27 ] 0TS-4868.6



(a) Be constructed or manufactured from materials that are nonde-
caying and nondeteriorating and do not leach chemicals when exposed to
sewage and the subsurface soil environment;

(b) Provide liquid storage volume at least equal to the storage
volume provided within the ((hixrty)) 30 percent void space in a
((Ewedtwe)) 1l2-inch layer of drainrock in a drainrock-filled distribu-
tion system. This storage volume must be established by the gravelless
distribution products, ((system)) 0SS design and installation and must
be maintained for the life of the ((system)) 0SS. This requirement may
be met on a lineal-foot, or on an overall system design basis;

(c) Provide ((stitabte)) effluent distribution to the infiltra-
tive surface at the soil interface; and

(d) Maintain the integrity of the trench or bed. The material
used, by its nature and its manufacturer-prescribed installation pro-
cedure, must withstand the physical forces of the soil sidewalls, soil
backfill, and the weight of equipment used in the backfilling.

((#4)r)) (3) Proprietary subsurface dripline products shall:

(a) Be warranted by the manufacturer for use with sewage and for
resistance to root intrusion ((=));

(b) Incorporate emitters with a maximum nominal rated discharge
of 1.3 gallons per hour. Emitter discharge rate may be controlled ei-
ther by use of pressure-compensating emitters or with a pressure regu-
lator ((=)); and

(c) Be color-coded purple to identify that the pipe contains non-
potable water from a sewage source.

(4) To be certified by the department, the manufacturer must sub-

mit:

(a) A signed and dated statement by the manufacturer's agent spe-
cifically including the following statement, "I certify that I repre-
sent (INSERT MANUFACTURING COMPANY NAME) and I am authorized to prepare or
direct the preparation of this application for product registration. I
attest, under penalty of law, that this document and all attachments,
are true, accurate, and complete."

(b) A signed and dated statement from the licensed professional
engineer including the statement, "I certify that I represent (INSERT
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING FIRM NAME) , that I am authorized to certify the per-
formance characteristics for the proprietary distribution product pre-
sented in this application. I attest, under penalty of law, that the
technology report is true, accurate, and complete."

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0145 Proprietary distribution product registration
—Process and requirements. (1) Manufacturers shall register their
proprietary distribution ((preduwet{s))) products with the department
by submitting a complete application for review and approval in the
format provided by the department, including:

(a) Manufacturer's name, mailing address, ((street—address—and))
phone number, email address, and website address;

(b) Contact ((ipdividuwat's)) person's name, title, mailing ad-
dress, ((street)) email address, and phone number. The contact ( (&rdi-

[ 28 ] 0TS-4868.6



wiewat)) person must be vested with the authority to ((aet—=as)) repre-
sent the agent of the manufacturer in this capacity;

(c) Name, including specific brand and model, of the proprietary
distribution product;

(d) A description of the function of the proprietary distribution

product along with any known limitations on ((i+ts)) the use of the
product;
(e) Product description and technical information, including

schematics; materials and characteristics; component design specifica-
tions; design capacity, volumes and flow assumptions and calculations;
components; dimensioned drawings and photos;

(f) Siting and installation regquirements;

(g) Detailed description, procedure, and schedule of routine
service and system maintenance events;

(h) Identification of information subject to protection from dis-
closure of trade secrets;

(i) Most current, dated copies of product brochures and manuals:
Sales & Promotional; Design; Installation; Operation & Maintenance;,
and ( (Hemeoewne¥)) Owner Instructions;

(j) For gravelless chamber systems a quantitative description of
the actual exposed trench-bottom infiltrative surface area for each
model seeking registration;

(k) A statement from a professional engineer that certifies the
technology meets the standards established in WAC 246-272A-0140;

(1) ((A—signec—and—cates—certitication by —the manufacturer's

N

loersz PO S 17 4+ —
TOTY TePOr T TS cruSy atturacey ot -
+))) The fee established in WAC ((246—2F2A—09906)) 246-272-2000.
(2) Products within a single series or model line, ((+#))sharing
distinct similarities in design, materials, and capacities((¥)),. may
be registered under a single application. Products outside of the ser-
ies or model line must be registered under separate applications.

(3) Upon receipt of an application the department shall:

(a) Verify that the application is complete, including dated and
current copies of all required manuals; and

(b) If ((eomprete)) approved, place the product on the list of
( (proprietary)) registered on-site treatment and distribution prod-
ucts.

(4) All registrations are valid for up to one year, expiring on
December 31st of each year. Required fees are not prorated.

(5) In order to renew a proprietary distribution product regis-
tration, a manufacturer ((must)) shall:

(a) Apply for renewal of product registration using the form or
in the format provided by the department;

(b) Provide an ((affidawvit)) attestation to the department veri-
fying whether or not the product has changed over the previous year.
If the product has changed, the ((affidavit)) attestation must also
include a full description of the changes. If the product has changed

[ 29 ] 0TS-4868.6



in a way that affects performance, the product may not be renewed and
shall meet the requirements of initial registration; ((and))

(c) Provide a statement that all required dated manuals are cur-—
rent, or submit the updated and dated new manuals; and

(d) Submit the fee established in WAC ( (246—2F2A—08990))
246-272-2000.

(6) As part of product registration renewal, the department
((shadtE)) will:

(a) Request field assessment comments from local health officers
( (rF—Fater—thanOectober3+st)) before November 1st of each year. These
comments may include concerns about a variety of field assessment is-
sues, including product function, product reliability, and problems
arising with operation and maintenance;

(b) Discuss with the ((FA€)) TAG any field assessment information
that may impact product registration renewal;

(c) Notify the manufacturer of any product to be discussed with
the ((FA€)) TAG, prior to discussion with the ((FA€)) TAG, regarding
the nature of comments received; ((and))

(d) Renew the product registration unless:

(1) The manufacturer of a product does not apply for renewal; or

(ii) The department, after deliberation with the ((FA€)) TAG,
concludes product registration renewal should not be given or should
be delayed until the manufacturer submits information that satisfacto-
rily answers concerns and issues; and

(e) Provide a compliance plan to the manufacturer within 90 days
based on departmental concerns of public health risk related to the
product.

(7) The department shall maintain a list of proprietary distribu-
tion products meeting the registration requirements established in
this chapter. The product registration is a condition of approval for
use.

(8) Manufacturers shall have readily accessible product informa-
tion for designers, ((hemeewne¥rsy)) regulators, ((system)) 0SS owners
and other interested parties ((akbeout—their—produet)) posted on the
manufacturer's website including the most current dated version of:

(a) Product manuals;

(b) Design instructions;

(c) Installation instructions;

(d) Operation and maintenance;

(e) ((Hemeoewner)) Owner instructions; and

(f) How to locate a list of representatives and manufacturer cer-
tified maintenance service providers, if any.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0170 Product development permits. (1) A local
health officer may issue a ((produet—development—permit—(PbP))) PDP
for any proprietary treatment component or sequence to be used during
a development period. ((Fa—erder)) To protect public health during the
development period, a complete ((system)) 0SS meeting the requirements
of this chapter and the site must already be installed. The ((pred—
get)) component or sequence under development may then be added to the
treatment system allowing the ((preduet)) developer to gather data

[ 30 ] 0TS-4868.6



about ((Ehe—prodwet's)) performance in the field. The PDP allows

( (preduet)) developers to explore ((amed—devetop)) new technologies
prior to product testing and registration under WAC 246-272A-0110 and

246-272A-0120. The PDP is not an alternative to testing and registra-
tion.

(2) An ( (epptieatier)) applicant for a PDP ( (shedtt—Fnetude)) must
submit an application to the local health officer including all of the

following:
(a) Proof of an existing conforming ((system)) 0SS in compliance
with all local requirements, or a permit for a conforming ((system))

0SS. The conforming ((system)) 0SS must be installed in its entirety
before the PDP becomes valid;

(b) A description of the product under development including per-
formance goals and a description of how the system will be used to
treat sewage;

(c) ((Peeumentatien——of)) Financial assurance ( (that—wiltl——eover))
covering the correction of any potential public health threats or en-
vironmental damage resulting from the use of the product under devel-
opment. Instruments of financial assurance include:

(1) An irrevocable letter of credit in the amount required by the
local health officer issued by an entity authorized to issue letters
of credit in Washington state;

(ii) Cash or security deposit payable to the local health juris-
diction in the amount required by the local health officer; or

(iii) Any other financial assurance that satisfies the 1local
health officer.

(d) Documentation signed by the owner of the proposed product de-
velopment site allowing access to the local health officer for inspec-
tion of the site; and

(e) Any other information required by the local health officer.

(3) The local health officer may ((stipuwdate)) 1impose additional
requirements for a PDP necessary to ((assure)) safeqguard the perform-
ance of the conforming ((system)) 0SS, including providing performance
data to the local health officer.

(4) A PDP is a site-specific permit. Product development at mul-
tiple sites requires a PDP for each site.

(5) During the term of the PDP, product development, testing and
sampling are under the full control of the product developer and all
data collected is considered proprietary information.

(6) A PDP is valid for one year and may be renewed by the local
health officer.

(7) The product development period is over when the original PDP
or any subsequently renewed permits have expired. At this time, the
product developer:

(a) Shall, at the direction of the local health officer, remove
the product under development from the site, reestablishing all appro-
priate plumbing and power connections for the conforming ((system))
ORI

(b) May subject the product to performance testing described in
WAC 246-272A-0110 ((im—erder)) to allow the product to be eligible for
registration with the department.

(8) The local health officer may revoke or amend a PDP:

(a) If the continued operation or presence of the product under
development:

(1) Presents a risk to ((£ke)) public health or the environment;

(ii) Causes adverse effects on the proper function of the con-
forming ((system)) 0SS on the site; or

[ 31 ] 0TS-4868.6



(iii) Leaks or discharges sewage on the surface of the ground.

(b) If the developer fails to comply with any requirements stipu-
lated on the permit by the local health officer.

(9) The local health officer may charge fees adequate to adminis-
ter the PDP program.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0200 Permit requirements. (1) ((Prier—tobeginning
the—econstruetion—proeess)) A permit is not required for a minor re-

pair. The local health officer may require the owner to submit infor-
mation regarding any activities defined as a minor repair for record-
keeping purposes.

(2) Except for a minor repair, a person proposing the installa-
tion, repair, modification, connection to, or expansion of an 0SS,
shall ((repeort—thefolleowing)) submit an application and obtain a per-
mit from the local health officer prior to beginning construction. The
permit application must include the following:

(a) General information including:

(1) Name and address of the property owner and the applicant at
the head of each page of the submission;

(1i) Parcel number and if available, the address of the site;

(iii) Source of drinking water supply;

(iv) Identification if the property is within the boundaries of a
recognized sewer utility;

(v) Size of the parcel;

(vi) Type of permit for which application is being made((+)). For
example, new installation, repair, expansion, modification, or opera-
tional;

(vii) Source of sewage((+)). For example, residence, restaurant,
or other type of business;

(viii) Location of utilities;

(ix) Name of the site evaluator;

(x) Name, signature and stamp of the designer;

(xi) Date of application; and

(xii) Name and signature of the fee simple owner, the contract
purchaser of the property, or the owner's authorized agent.

(b) The soil and site evaluation as specified under WAC
246-272A-0220 ( (=) ) ;1

(c) A dimensioned site plan of the proposed initial ((system))
0SS, the reserve area and those areas immediately adjacent that con-
tain characteristics impacting design including:

(1) Designated areas for the proposed initial ((system)) 0SS and
the reserve area;

(ii) The location of all soil logs and other soil tests for the

0SS;

(1ii) General topography and((4e¥)) slope;

(iv) Drainage characteristics;

(v) Horizontal separations as noted in Table IV _in WAC
246-272-0210;

(vi) The location of existing and proposed encumbrances affecting
( (system)) 0SS placement, including legal access documents if any com-

[ 32 ] 0TS-4868.6



ponent of the 0SS is not on the lot where the sewage is generated;
( (ere

+vi))) (vii) An arrow indicating north;

(viii) A legend of symbols used;

(ix) Plan scale and a graphic scale bar;

(x) Vertical datum used (such as "assumed," "North American Ver-
tical Datum of 1988 (NAVD 88)," "National Shoreline Reference Station
(NSRS) ," or "unknown") ;

(xi) An elevation benchmark and relative elevations of system
components;

(xii) Name, signature, stamp, and contact information of the de-
signer; and

(xiii) A statement on limitation of use indicating the site plan
is not a survey.

(d) A detailed ((system)) 0SS design meeting the requirements un-
der WAC 246-272A-0230, 246-272A-0232, 246-272A-0234, and 246-272A-0238
including:

(1) A drawing showing the dimensioned location of components of
the proposed 0SS, and the system designed for the reserve area if re-
serve site characteristics differ significantly from the initial area;

(ii) Vertical cross-section drawings showing:

(A) The depth of the soil dispersal component, the wvertical sepa-
ration, and depth of cover material; and

(B) Other new 0SS components constructed at the site.

(iii) Calculations and assumptions supporting the proposed de-
sign, including:

(A) System operating capacity and design flow;

(B) Soil type; ((ard))

(C) Hydraulic loading rate in the soil dispersal component; and

(e) Any additional information as deemed necessary by the local
health officer.

-))

(3) The local health officer may develop the information required
in subsection ((4#3-)) (2) of this section if authorized by local
( (regutatieons)) rules.

(4) The local health officer shall:

(a) Respond to an application within ((£kirty)) 30 days as re-
quired in RCW 70.05.074((=)) 2

(b) Permit only public domain treatment technologies that ((kawve
departmentat—RSE6<)) are described in this chapter or in a current
DS&G;

(c) Permit only proprietary products that are registered by the

department ( (—Puring—the Pperiod—of +transition—Ffrom—FtheItist—of—ap

(d) Issue a permit when the information submitted under subsec-
tion ((Hr)) (2) of this section meets the requirements contained in
this chapter and in local ((regudatiens)) rules;

[ 33 ] 0TS-4868.6



((#e)) (e) Identify the permit as a new installation, repair,
expansion, modification, or operational permit;

((#e¥)) [(f) Specify the expiration date on the permit. The expi-
ration date may not exceed five years from the date of permit issu-
ance;

((£F)) (g) Include a reminder on the permit application of the
applicant's right of appeal; and

((#g¥)) (h) If requiring an operational permit, state the period
of validity and the date and conditions of renewal including any re-
quired field compliance.

(5) The local health officer may revoke or deny a permit for just
cause. Examples include, but are not limited to:

(a) Construction or continued wuse of an 0SS that threatens
((£ke)) public health;

(b) Misrepresentation or concealment of material fact in informa-
tion submitted to the local health officer; or

(c) ((Faidure—+to—meet)) Noncompliance with the conditions of the
permit, this chapter or any local ((regutatiens)) rules.
1 1 I 1 ) Y 3 'In

T3 ! o

S oam
O CTITCTT

che—funding—ofoperation maintenance;—and—repair—of+the055+)) An ap-

plicant for a permit to install an 0SS serving more than one develop-
ment must submit an application that proves the 0SS:

(a) Is owned or managed in perpetuity by a public entity;

(b) Is described in a separate writing including, but not limited
to, an easement, covenant, contract, or other legal document authoriz-
ing access for construction, operation maintenance, and repair; and

(c) If owned privately, is adequately financed.

(7) The local health officer shall not delegate the authority to
issue permits.

(8) The 1local health officer may stipulate additional require-
ments for a particular permit if necessary ((fe¥)) Lo protect public

health ( (preteetion)).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0210 Location. (1) ((Persers—sholtl—destgr—and—ia—
statt)) 0SS must be designed and installed to meet at least the mini-

mum horizontal separations shown in Table IV ((+—Mirimum—Heorizontalt
Separatiens) ) :

[ 34 ] 0TS-4868.6



Table IV

Minimum Horizontal Separations

From edge of soil
dispersal component

From sewage tank

From building sewer,
and nonperforated

Items Requiring Setback and reserve area and distribution box distribution pipe

Well ((er-suetiontine)) 100 ft. 50 ft. 50 ft.
Public drinking water well 100 ft. 100 ft. 100 ft.
Nonpublic drinking water well 100 ft. 50 ft. 50 ft.
Public drinking water spring or surface water 200 ft. 200 ft. 100 ft.
measured from the ordinary high-water mark
Nonpublic drinking water spring or surface 100 ft. 50 ft. 50 ft.
water ((used-as-drinking-wvatersouree))
measured from the ordinary high-water mark!
Nonpublic, in-ground, drinking water 20 ft. 10 ft. 10 ft.
containment vessel?
Pressurized water supply line or easement for 10 ft 10 ft 10 ft.
water supply line
Closed geothermal loop* or pressurized 10 ft. 10 ft. 10 ft.
nonpotable water line
Decommissioned well (decommissioned in 10 ft. N/A N/A
accordance with chapter 173-160 WAC)
Surface water measured from the ordinary 100 ft. 50 ft. 10 ft.
high-water mark
Building foundation/in-ground swimming pool 10 ft. 5 ft. 2 ft.
Property or easement line 5 ft. 5 ft. N/A
Lined> stormwater detention pond®

Down-gradient’: 30 ft. N/A N/A

Up-gradient”: 10ft N/A N/A
Unlined® stormwater infiltration pond® (up or 100 ft 50 ft 10 ft.
down-gradient)’
Irrigation canal or irrigation pond (up or down- 100 ft 50 ft. 10 ft.
gradient)
Interceptor/curtain drains/foundation drains/
drainage ditches

Down-gradient?: 30 ft 5 ft. N/A

Up-gradientz: 10 ft N/A N/A
Subsurface stormwater infiltration or
dispersion component®

Down-gradient: 30 ft. 10 ft. N/A

Up-gradient”: 30 ft. 10 ft. N/A
Other site features that may allow effluent to
surface

Down-gradient?: 30 ft. 5 ft. N/A

Up_gradientz: 10 ft. N/A N/A
Down-gradient cuts or banks with at least 5 ft. 25 ft. N/A N/A
of original, undisturbed soil above a restrictive
layer due to a structural or textural change
Down-gradient cuts or banks with less than 5 50 ft. N/A N/A
ft. of original, undisturbed soil above a
restrictive layer due to a structural or textural
change

[ 35 1] 0TS-4868.6



From edge of soil From building sewer,
dispersal component From sewage tank and nonperforated
Items Requiring Setback and reserve area and distribution box distribution pipe
((Otheradjaeent)) Soil dispersal components((# 10 ft. N/A N/A
subsurface-stormwater-infttrationsystems))
serving a separate OSS

If surface water is used as a public drinking water supply, the designer shall locate the OSS outside of the required source water protection area.

The item is down-gradient when liquid will flow toward it upon encountering a water table or a restrictive layer. The item is up-gradient when liquid will
flow away from it upon encountering a water table or restrictive layer.

Any in-ground containment vessel used to store drinking water.

A network of underground piping carrying fluid under pressure used to heat and cool a structure.

Lined means any component that has the intended function of detaining the stormwater with no intention of dispersal into surrounding soil.

OSS components take precedence in cases of horizontal setback conflicts between OSS and stormwater components.

Down-gradient means that subsurface water flows toward and is usually located lower in elevation. Up-gradient means subsurface water does not flow

toward and generally flat, or flows away from and generally located higher in elevation.
Unlined means any component that has the ability to or intended function of infiltrating the stormwater.

[§)

[T B=)Y B Y [N OS]

I oo

(2) ((HE—any——econdition—3indieates)) When conditions indicate a
greater potential for contamination or pollution, the local health of-
ficer may increase the minimum horizontal separations. Examples of
such conditions include, but are not limited to, excessively permeable
soils, unconfined aquifers, shallow or saturated soils, dug wells, and
improperly abandoned wells.

(3) The local health officer may allow a reduced horizontal sepa-
ration to not less than two feet from where the property line, ease-
ment line, ((Fa—greund—swimming—Ppooeltsy)) or building foundation is up-
gradient.

(4) The local health officer may require an applicant to demon-
strate the 0SS meets (a), (b), or (c) of this subsection when deter-
mining if a horizontal separation to a minimum of 75 feet between an
0SS dispersal component and ((ar—dndividuat)) a water well, ((individ—

wat)) spring, or surface water that is not a public water source ((ean
= dnm = 4—U ENE N 1 7 SF f + bfy’ + 1 il o et

1
| ¥ aw T OoOCTT T T

miim £ onxzant
=} T

¢
Y

<7

tes)) is allowed:

()
Q H

(a) Adequate protective site-specific conditions, such as physi-
cal settings with low ( (kydre—geotegie)) hydrogeologic susceptibility
from contaminant infiltration. Examples of such conditions include
evidence of confining layers ( (ardtfeor—aguatards—separating)), an aqua-
tard that separates potable water from the 0SS treatment zone, exces-
sive depth to groundwater, down-gradient contaminant source, or out-
side the zone of influence; or

(b) Design and proper operation of an 0SS ((system—assuring))
with enhanced treatment performance beyond that accomplished by meet-
ing the vertical separation and effluent distribution requirements de-
scribed in Table VI in WAC 246-272A-0230 ((Fabdte—V¥)); or

(c) Evidence ((ef—preoteetive—conditions—invelving—both)) the 0SS
satisfies the reguirements of (a) and (b) of this subsection.

(5) Persons shall design ((amre#))or install a soil dispersal com-
ponent only 1if:

(a) The slope is less than ((ferty—fiwe)) 45 percent (({Ewenty—
feour)) or 24 degrees((})):

(b) The area is not subject to:

(1) Encroachment by buildings or construction such as placement
of power poles and underground utilities;

(1i) Cover by impervious material;

(1ii) Vehicular traffic; or

(iv) Other activities adversely affecting the soil or the per-
formance of the 0SS.

[ 36 ] 0TS-4868.6



(c) Sufficient reserve area for replacement exists to treat and

dispose one hundred percent of the design flow;
(d) The land is stable; and
(e) Surface drainage is directed away from the site.

(6) The local health officer may approve a sewer transport line
within ten feet of a water supply line if the sewer line is construc-
ted 1in accordance with section ((&+=8)) Cl1-9.1 of the department of
ecology's "Criteria For Sewage Works Design," ((Peeember—39988)) 2008.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0220 Soil and site ewvaluation. (1) Only professio-
nal engineers, designers, or local health officers may perform soil
and site evaluations. Soil scientists may only perform soil evalua-
tions.

(2) The person evaluating the soil and site shall:

(a) Report:

(1) A sufficient number of soil logs to evaluate conditions with-
in:

(A) The initial soil dispersal component; and

(B) The reserve area.

(ii) The groundwater conditions, the date of the observation, and
the probable maximum height;

(iii) The topography of the proposed initial ((system)) 0SS, the
reserve area, and those areas immediately adjacent that contain char-
acteristics impacting the design;

(iv) The drainage characteristics of the proposed initial ((sys—
£em)) 0SS, the reserve area and those areas immediately adjacent that
contain characteristics impacting the design;

(v) The existence of structurally deficient soils subject to ma-
jor wind or water erosion events such as slide zones and dunes;

(vi) The existence of designated flood plains ((am€d));

(vii) Other areas identified in the local management plan re-
quired in WAC 246-272A-0015; and

( (1)) (viii) The 1location of existing features affecting
( (system)) OSS placement, such as, but not limited to:

(A) Wells ( (and——suwetion—tines)):;

(B) Water sources and supply lines;

(C) Surface water and stormwater infiltration areas;

(D) Abandoned wells;

(E) Outcrops of bedrock and restrictive layers;

(F) Buildings;

(G) Property lines and lines of easement;

(H) Interceptors such as footing drains, curtain drains, and
drainage ditches;

(I) Cuts, banks, and fills;

(J) Driveways and parking areas;

(K) Existing 0SS; and

(L) Underground utilities;

(b) Use the soil and site evaluation procedures and terminology

in accordance with Chapter 5 of the On-site Wastewater Treatment Sys-
tems Manual, EPA 625/R-00/008, February 2002 except where modified by,

[ 37 ] 0TS-4868.6



or in conflict with, this chapter (({available—uvpon—reguest—to—+thede—
partment)) ) s

(c) Use the soil names and particle size limits of the United
States Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Serv-
ice classification system;

(d) Determine texture, structure, compaction, and other soil
characteristics that affect the treatment and water movement potential
of the soil by using normal field ((aad#))or laboratory procedures
such as particle size analysis; and

(e) Classify the soil as in Table V ( (+—Seit—Fype—DPbeseriptions)):

((zaBEE—V)) Table V
Soil Type Descriptions

Soil Type Soil Textural Classifications

1 Gravelly and very gravelly coarse
sands, all extremely gravelly soils
excluding those with soil types 5
and 6 as the nongravel portion,
and all soil types with greater
than or equal to 90% rock

fragments.
2 Coarse sands.
3 Medium sands, loamy coarse

sands, loamy medium sands.

4 Fine sands, loamy fine sands,
sandy loams, loams.

5 Very fine sands, loamy very fine
sands; or silt loams, sandy clay
loams, clay loams and silty clay
loams with a moderate or strong
structure (excluding platy

structure).

6 Other silt loams, sandy clay
loams, clay loams, silty clay
loams.

7 Sandy clay, clay, silty clay,
Unsuitable for strongly cemented or firm soils,
treatment or soil with a moderate or strong

dispersal platy structure, any soil with a

massive structure, any soil with
appreciable amounts of
expanding clays.

(3) The owner of the property or ((k+s)) the owner's agent shall:

(a) Prepare the soil log excavation to:

(i) Allow examination of the soil profile in its original posi-
tion by:

(A) Excavating pits of sufficient dimensions to enable observa-
tion of soil characteristics by visual and tactile means to a depth
three feet deeper than the anticipated infiltrative surface at the
bottom of the soil dispersal component; or

(B) Stopping at a shallower depth if a water table or restrictive
layer is encountered;

(1i) Allow determination of the soil's texture, structure, color,
bulk density or compaction, water absorption capabilities or permea-
bility, and elevation of the highest seasonal water table; and

(b) Assume responsibility for constructing and maintaining the
soil log excavation in a manner to prevent injury as required by chap-
ter 296-155 WAC.

[ 38 ] 0TS-4868.6



(4) The local health officer:

(a) Shall render a decision on the height of the water table
within ((&wedswe)) 12 months of receiving the application under precip-
itation conditions typical for the region;

(b) May require water table measurements to be recorded during
months of probable high-water table conditions, if insufficient infor-
mation is available to determine the highest seasonal water table;

(c) May require any other soil and site information affecting lo-
cation, design, or installation; ((awd))

(d) May reduce the required number of soil logs for 0SS serving a
single-family residence if adequate soils information has previously
been developed; and

(e) May require another site and soil evaluation if the site has
been altered since the initial site and soil evaluation was submitted
to the local health officer.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0230 Design requirements—General. (1) ((6a——stte
sewage—Systems—may)) 0SS must only be designed by a professional engi-
neer((s)), licensed under chapter 18.43 RCW, or ((enr—site—sewag

£reatment—system)) an 0SS designer((s)), licensed under chapter 18.210
RCW, except:

(a) If at the discretion of the local health officer, a resident
owner of a single-family residence not ((addaeent—te)) within 200 feet
of a marine shoreline is allowed to design ((a&=—system)) an 0SS for
that residence; or

(b) If the local health officer performs the soil and site evalu-
ation, the health officer ((is—attowed—te)) may design ((a—system))
the OSS.

(2) The designer shall use the following criteria when developing
a design for an 0SS:

(a) All sewage from the building served is directed to the 0SS;

(b) Sewage tanks ( (heve—beenreviewed ardapproved—by—the depart—
ment)) are in compliance with chapter 246-272C WAC;

(c) Drainage from the surface, footing drains, roof drains, sub-
surface stormwater infiltration systems, and other nonsewage drains is
prevented from entering the 0SS, the area where the 0SS 1is located,
and the reserve area;

(d) The 0SS is designed to treat and disperse the sewage volume
as follows:

(i) For single-family residences:

(A) The operating capacity is based on 45 gpd per capita with two
people per bedroom( (<))

(B) The minimum design flow per bedroom per day is the operating
capacity of ((mimety)) 90 gallons multiplied by 1.33 to account for a
33 percent surge capacity. This results in a minimum design flow of
( (ere—hundred—twenty)) 120 gallons per bedroom per day(( ))

(C) ((A—Ffeetor—greater Fthor -33——to—accourt—Ffor Surge—ecochactty
may—be—reguired—Ppy¥)) The local health officer((=)) may require a fac-
tor greater than 33 percent to account for surge capacity;

(D) The minimum design flow of the 0SS is 240 gpd; and

[ 39 ] 0TS-4868.6



(E) The local health officer may require an increase of the de-
sign flow for dwellings with anticipated greater flows, such as larger
dwellings ( (=

] . . = . ] i L £ 11
day<)); or

(11) For single—-family residences with one additional dwelling
served by the same 0SS:

(A) All reguirements in (d) (i) of this subsection apply;

(B) The minimum design flow for one additional dwelling is 120
gallons per bedroom; and

(C) The local health officer may reqguire an increase of the de-
sign flow for dwellings with anticipated greater flows; or

(iii) For three or more dwellings served by the same 0SS:

(A) All reguirements in (d) (i) of this subsection apply;

(B) The minimum design flow for the first dwelling is 240 gallons
per day;

(C) The minimum design flow for each additional dwelling is 120
gallons per bedroom;

(D) The local health officer may regquire an increase of the de-
sign flow for dwellings with anticipated greater flows; and

(E) The local health officer shall require documentation includ-
ing, but not limited to, an easement, covenant, contract, or other le-
gal document authorizing access for construction, operation, mainte-
nance, and repair; or

(iv) For other facilities, the design flows noted in "On-site
Wastewater Treatment Systems Manual," USEPA, EPA-625/R-00/008, Febru-
ary 2002 ( (Aovailtable—uopon—reguest—teo—the departmentr—shaltt)) must be
used. Sewage flows from other sources of information may be used in
determining system design flows if they incorporate both an operating
capacity and a surge capacity((=)).

(e) The 0SS is designed to address sewage quality as follows:

(i) For all systems, the designer shall consider:

(A) CBODs, TSS, and 0&G;

(B) Other parameters that can adversely affect treatment anywhere
along the treatment component sequence. Examples include pH, tempera-
ture, and dissolved oxygen;

(C) The sensitivity of the site where the 0SS will be installed.
Examples include areas where fecal coliform constituents can result in
public health concerns, such as shellfish growing areas, designated
swimming areas, and other areas identified by the local management
plan required in WAC 246-272A-0015((=)); and

(D) Nitrogen contributions. Where nitrogen has been identified as
a contaminant of concern by the local management plan required in WAC
246-272A-0015, it ((skhatE)) must be addressed through 1lot size
( (amdtexr) ), treatment, or both.

(ii) For 0SS treating sewage from a nonresidential source, the
designer shall provide the following information showing:

(A) ((Iaformatieon—to——show)) The sewage is not industrial wastewa-

ter;

(B) ((Fafermatieon—regarding)) The sewage effluent quality and
identifying chemicals found in the sewage ((¥ka%)) effluent are not
found in sewage effluent from a residential source; and

(C) A site-specific design providing the necessary treatment
( (Frevel—eguat—teo—that—reeguired—of)) equaling required treatment of
sewage effluent quality from a residential source;

[ 40 ] 0TS-4868.6



(f) The wvertical separation ((¥e—be)) used to establish the
treatment levels and application rates. The selected vertical separa-
tion ((skhatd)) must be used consistently throughout the design proc-
ess((=)); and

(g) Treatment levels:

(1) Requirements for matching treatment component and method of
distribution with soil conditions of the soil dispersal component are
listed in Table VI of this section. The treatment levels correspond
with those established for treatment components under the product per-
formance testing requirements in Table III of WAC 246-272A-0110. The
method of distribution applies to the soil dispersal component.

(ii) Disinfection may not be used ((to—aehieve—thefeecal—ecolifeorm

regqairements—to—meets

B —Freatment—Jdevel—€) ) ¢
(A) To achieve BL1 or BL2 in type 1 soils; or

(B) BI3.

((zaBLE—VvE)) Table VI
Treatment Component Performance Levels and

Method of Distributionl

Vertical Soil Type
Separation
in inches 1 2 3-6
12<18 A&BLI - B&BIL2- | B&BL2-
pressure pressure pressure
with timed with timed | with timed
dosing dosing dosing
>18<24 B&BL2 - (B)YC& (B)YC&
pressure BL3 - BL3 -
with timed pressure pressure
dosing with timed | with timed
dosing dosing
>24 <36 B &BL2 - C&BL3- | E-
pressure pressure pressure
with timed with timed | with timed
dosing dosing dosing
>36 <60 B&BL2 - E- E - gravity
pressure pressure
with timed
dosing
>60 C&BL2- E - gravity | E - gravity
pressure

I The treatment component performance levels correspond with those
established for treatment components under the product testing
requirements in WAC 246-272A-0110.

(3) The coarsest textured soil within the vertical separation se-
lected by the designer ((shatd)) determines the minimum treatment lev-
el and method of distribution.

(4) The local health officer shall not approve designs for:

(a) Cesspools; or

(b) Seepage pits.

(5) The local health officer may approve a design for the reserve
area different from the design approved for the initial 0SS, if both
designs meet the requirements of this chapter for new construction.

0TS-4868.6



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0232 Design requirements—Septic tank sizing. Sep-
tic tanks ((skhadtt)) must:

(1) Have at least two compartments with the first compartment
liquid volume equal to one-half to two-thirds of the total liquid wvol-
ume. This standard may be met by one tank with two compartments or by
two single compartment tanks in series.

(2) Have the following minimum liquid volumes:

(a) For a single-family residence use Table VII ( (+—ReguiredMinit
oo gue—Yetumes—efSeptieTFanks) )

((zaBLE—VvEiE)) Table VII
Required Minimum Liquid Volumes of Septic

Tanks
Required Minimum
Liquid Tank Volume in

Number of Bedrooms Gallons
(=3 900

4 1600))

<4 1,000

Each additional bedroom 250

(b) For 0SS treating sewage from a residential source, other than
one single-family residence, ((tweo—hundred—Fi£fty)) 250 gallons per
bedroom with a minimum of ((eme—theusarnd)) 1,000 gallons;

(c) For 0SS treating sewage from a nonresidential source, three
times the design flow.

(3) Comply with chapter 246-272C WAC.

NEW SECTION

WAC 246-272A-0233 Design requirements—Pump chambers. (1) All
pump chambers, except pump basins, must be designed to meet the fol-
lowing requirements:

(a) Have a minimum volume of 1,000 gallons;

(b) Provide an internal volume to account for the design flow,
full-time pump submergence, space for sludge accumulation below the
pump inlet and emergency storage volume of at least 75 percent of the
design flow;

(c) Follow any applicable DS&G or proprietary product design man-
ual for all 0SS components included in the pump chamber; and

(d) Comply with chapter 246-272C WAC.

(2) For the purposes of this section, "pump basin" means a water-
tight receptacle that contains a pump to convey sewage from a limited
use area that is separate from the main wastewater sewer pipe leaving
a structure, to the main treatment component of an 0SS; typically much
smaller than a pump chamber and separate from the main sewer pipe due
to elevation restrictions. Pump basins are intended for limited, spe-
cialized uses, and not intended as a replacement or substitute for a
pump chamber. Pump basins must be in compliance with chapter 246-272C
WAC.

[ 42 ] 0TS-4868.6



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0234 Design requirements—Soil dispersal compo-
nents. (1) All soil dispersal components, except one using a subsur-
face dripline product, ((shadtd)) must be designed to meet the follow-
ing requirements:

(a) Maximum hydraulic loading rates ((shaddt—DPF bosed—eon—%h
¥ates)) described in Table VIII((3)).
( (PABLE-VEIIE))
Table VITII
Maximum Hydraulic Loading Rate
Column A Column B
Loading Rate for Residential
Loading Rate for Residential Effluent Meeting Treatment
Septic Tank Effluent Using Level C & BL3 or Higher
Gravity or Pressure Effluent Quality Using Pressure
Soil Textural Classification Distribution Distribution
Soil Type Description gal./sq. ft./day gal./sq. ft./day
1 Gravelly and very gravelly coarse 1.0 1.2
sands, all extremely gravelly soils
excluding those with soil types 5
& 6 as the nongravel portion, all
soil types with greater than or
equal to 90% rock fragments.
2 Coarse sands. 1.0 1.2
3 Medium sands, loamy coarse 0.8 1.0
sands, loamy medium sands.
4 Fine sands, loamy fine sands, 0.6 0.8
sandy loams, loams.
5 Very fine sands, loamy very fine 0.4 0.56
sands; or silt loams, sandy clay
loams, clay loams and silty clay
loams with a moderate structure
or strong structure (excluding a
platy structure).
6 Other silt loams, sandy clay 0.2 0.2
loams, clay loams, silty clay
loams.
7 Sandy clay, clay, silty clay and ((Netsuitable)) Unsuitable
strongly cemented firm soils, soil Unsuitable
with a moderate or strong platy
structure, any soil with a massive
structure, any soil with
appreciable amounts of expanding
clays.

(b) Calculation of the absorption area is based on:

(i) The design flow in WAC 246-272A-0230(2); and

(ii) Loading rates equal to or less than those in Table VIII of
this section as applied to the infiltrative surface of the soil dis-
persal component or the finest textured soil within the vertical sepa-
ration selected by the designer, whichever has the finest texture.

(c) Requirements for the method of distribution ((skhadd)) must
correspond to those in WAC 246-272A-0230, Table VI.

(d) Soil dispersal components having daily design flow between
( (ere—theousand—and—three—thousand—Ffive—hundred)) 1,000 and 3,500 gal-
lons of sewage per day ((skhad+¥)) must:

[ 43 ] 0TS-4868.6



(1) Only be located in soil types 1-5;

(ii) Only be located on slopes of less than ((&hirty)) 0 per-
cent, or ((sewernteern)) 17 degrees; and

(iii) Have pressure distribution including time dosing.

(2) The local health officer may allow the maximum hydraulic
loading rates in Table VIII of this section. Loading rates identified
in Column B must not be combined with any dispersal component size re-
ductions.

(3) All soil dispersal components using a subsurface dripline
product must be designed to meet the following requirements:

(a) ((catrevtatien—eof)) The absorption area calculation is based

on:

(1) The design flow in WAC 246-272A-0230(2); and

(ii) Loading rates ((hat—a¥re)) dependent on the soil type, other
soil and site characteristics, and the spacing of dripline and emit-
ters as directed in Table VIITI of this section;

(b) ((Fhe—driptine—must—be—dnstalted)) A minimum installation of
six inches into original, undisturbed soil;

(c) Timed dosing; and

(d) ( (Seoit—-dispersat——ecomporents—having)) Daily design flows
greater than ((eme—thousarnd)) 1,000 gallons of sewage per day ((mey)):

(1) ((epky—Pe)) Located only in soil types 1-5;

(ii) ((eary—Pe)) Located only on slopes of less than ((Ehixrty))
0 percent, or ((sewvermteer)) 17 degrees.

((3r)) (4) All SSAS ((sheatd)) must meet the following require-
ments:

(a) The infiltrative surface may not be deeper than three feet
below the finished grade, except under special conditions approved by
the local health officer. The depth of such system ((skhadtd)) must not
exceed ((tern)) 10 feet from the finished grade;

(b) A minimum of six inches of sidewall must be located 1in
( (eriginat—andisturbed)) suitable soil;

(c) Beds are only designed in soil types 1, 2, 3 or in fine sands
with a width not exceeding ((fer)) 10 feet. Gravity beds must have a
minimum of one lateral for every three feet in width;

(d) Individual laterals greater than ((eme—hurdred)) 100 feet in
length must use pressure distribution;

(e) A layer of between six and ((twenty—feour)) 24 inches of cover
material; and

(f) Other features ((shat}t)) must conform with the "On-site
Wastewater Treatment Systems Manual," United States Environmental Pro-
tection Agency EPA-625/R-00/008 February 2002 ((4tavaitabte—upon—Fr

guest—to—the—department))) except where modified by, or in conflict
with this section or local ((regudatiens)) rules.

((4—Fexr)) (5) SSAS with drainrock and distribution pipe must
meet the following requirements:

(a) A minimum of two inches of drainrock ((is—reeguired)) above
the distribution pipe;

(b) A minimum of six inches of drainrock below the distribution
pipe; and

(c) Location of the sidewall below the invert of the distribution
pipe ((is—3Feeated)) in original undisturbed soil.

((45)F)) (6) The local health officer may allow the infiltrative
surface area in a SSAS to include six inches of the SSAS sidewall
height when meeting the required absorption area where total recharge
by annual precipitation and irrigation is less than ((twedtwe)) 12 in-
ches per year.

[ 44 ] 0TS-4868.6



((#6¥)) (1) The 1local health officer may permit ((systems)) 0SS
consisting ((setedtsy)) of ((a)) septic tanks and a gravity SSAS in soil
type 1 if all the following criteria are met:

(a) The ((system)) 0SS serves a single-family residence;

(b) The lot size 1is ((greakter—than)) two and one-half acres or

larger;

(c) Annual precipitation in the region is 1less than ( (twenty—
fiwe)) 25 inches per year (( } " 3 3 "
13 b~ = 2t 1z Iz +1 Jal VAN i I T Rsed A oo n [al Yz~ lal 17 o £ Ny
i S NS N A \w N J\JJ.llL.J._Y AJ_Y C1IT \J\JtJCJ_(_AL_J.VC 10 CCTTHOS 1TU1T UCJ_VJ_\_/C, \JJ.J.C\jC N n\jJ_J_
egtture;—andWashingtenrState HYniversity {avaitable—for inspectieon—at

Washington—state—tibraries))) from a reputable source approved by the
local health officer;

(d) The ((system)) 0SS is located outside the ((ewetse)) 12 coun-
ties bordering Puget Sound; and

(e) The geologic conditions beneath the dispersal component must
satisfy the minimum unsaturated depth requirements to groundwater as
determined by the local health officer. The method for determination
is described by "Design Guideline for Gravity Systems in Soil Type 1,"

TEENET N i N N | RN VNP L L=k~ ~ oo rtmant ) 2017
oV TTaioT PO Ut sStTt—=C CIT PP TmCITTy .
(7 Th 1 ol haoaol+h £ N g NN Ao + 1 ] A AW N S EIEN
77 T TOCaoO T Corcir—OTrT T CCT—1Iay TIrc o st cIIc EXASASAS =y paT| Taocc It
T N T T T 299 + = ot r £ +rq £ o 21 Erxzrmaa 1 Vil ERe BT TN = Fo r
TTio LT VI op cO o rrattoOr—Or—twoTOTrT SOOI CcypCSsS T T ol up co o TtaoCtoT
£ 1 =N ESIANES ISNE | xzna o =N = Al & 2 £ = radil oot A + m = + 3 VPN
\ T 9 O [ g g cYyPTS ) T A% g o PpTrotoatCT cCoTcCt cO—ImcCTT CLrCoCcitCIrc
1laszal N 1o EEW= | Tha o o~ o n masz naot 2N coming A a1+ Stz +ha
T v = =y |Cyeawaw o T 1O T oo C T Ot TTOT o COoOmoTISt W LTIt LT OoTICT

) (8) Both the primary and reserve areas must be sized
((£e)) at least ((eme—hundred)) 100 percent of the approved loading
4+

matz ~ 1 1
[ g e

T = ] PN ]
Oow TE oo T

S A +treatment product meeting ot —teast Treatment—Tevel Db —and
pressure—distribution—with—+timed—desing—3s—used)). The local health

officer may reguire the sizing of the reserve area using the loading
rate in Table VIII of this section. Column A must be used when sizing
the primary area using Column B.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0238 Design requirements—Facilitate operation,
monitoring and maintenance. (1) The 0SS must be designed to facili-
tate routine operation, monitoring, and maintenance according to the
following criteria:

(a) For gravity ((systems—septie)) 0SS:

[ 45 ] 0TS-4868.6



(i) Sewage tank access for maintenance and inspection at finished
grade is required. ((FH—effluentfiltters—are—used;—aceess—teo—the—Ffit
ter—at—finished—grade—ds—reeguireds)) The local health officer may al-
low access for maintenance and inspection of a ((system—eonsisting—oef
a—septie)) sewadge tank ((apd—gravity—Fflteow—SSAS)) to be a maximum of

six inches below finished grade provided a marker showing the location
of the tank access is installed at finished grade.

(1i) Fach SSAS lateral must include at least one observation port
installed in a representative location in order to facilitate SSAS
monitoring.

(b) For all other ((systems)) 0SS, service access and monitoring
ports at finished grade are required for all system components. Spe-
cific component requirements include:

(1) Septic tanks must have service access maintenance holes (for-

merly manholes) and monitoring ports for the inlet and outlet ((—F
o ol IR ol B I S P PP PP 1 o e I S R i HE VN S AP RV | L.
[ S . . § TITC JE S N S U WS SR ) [ R S oy LA;_)CM, Ao T T oS jawy T J S N S W S a T J S N N R SN Y A SR W § k_jJ_(_/LLAC =y
regaired) ) ;
(11i) Surge, flow equalization or other sewage tanks must have
service access ((maphetes)) maintenance holes;
(iii) Other pretreatment units ((+))such as aerobic treatment
units and packed-bed filters((})) must have service access ( (maa—

hetes)) maintenance holes and monitoring ports;

(iv) Pump chambers, tanks, and wvaults must have service access
( (maphetes)) maintenance holes;

(v) Disinfection units must have service access and be installed
to facilitate complete maintenance and cleaning, including an easy-ac-
cess, freefall sampling port; and

(vi) Soil dispersal components ((skhatE)), excluding subsurface
drip, must have monitoring ports for both distribution devices and the
infiltrative surface.

(c) For systems using pumps, clearly accessible controls and
warning devices are required including:

(1) Process controls such as floats ((ard)),
pump on/off switches, and pump-run timers ( (and
troets) ) ;

(ii) Diagnostic tools including dose cycle counters and hour me-
ters on the sewage stream, or flow meters on either the water supply
or sewage stream; and

(iii) Audible and wvisual alarms designed to alert a resident of a
malfunction. The alarm must be placed on a circuit independent of the
pump circuit.

(2) All accesses must be designed to allow for monitoring and
maintenance and shall be secured to minimize injury or unauthorized
access in a manner approved by the local health officer.

pressure activated
Pro

= £ 1 T ann
oS T TOW COTT

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0240 Holding tank sewage systems. (1) A person may
not install or use holding tank sewage systems for residential devel-
opment or expansion of residences, whether seasonal or year-round, ex-
cept as set forth under subsection (2) of this section.

(2) The local health officer may approve installation of holding
tank sewage systems only:

[ 46 ] 0TS-4868.6



(a) For permanent uses limited to controlled, part-time, commer-
cial usage situations, such as recreational vehicle parks and trailer
dump stations;

(b) For interim uses limited to handling of emergency situations;
or

(c) For repairs as permitted under WAC 246-272A-0280 (1) ((4e¥))
(d) (1)
(3) A person proposing to use a holding tank sewage system shall:
(a) Follow design criteria established by the department;

(b) Submit a management program to the local health officer as-
suring ongoing operation, monitoring, and maintenance before the local
health officer issues the installation permit; and

(c) Use a holding tank reviewed and approved by the department.

3
a
b

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0250 Installation. (1) Only installers may con-
struct 0SS, except as noted under subsection (2) of this section.

(2) The local health officer may allow the resident owner of a
single-family residence ((pot—adiacenrt—to—amarine—sheretine)) to in-
stall the 0SS for that single-family residence except when:

(a) The primary and reserve areas are within 200 feet of marine
water;

(b) The primary and reserve areas are within 100 feet of surface
water; or

(c) The installation permit meets Table X standards in WAC
246-272A-0280.

(3) The installer described by either subsection (1) or (2) of
this section shall:

(a) Follow the approved design;

(b) Have the approved design in possession during installation;

(c) Make no changes to the approved design without the prior au-
thorization of the designer and the local health officer;

(d) Only install ( (septie—tarks;—pump—chambers;——and—heoetding))
sewage tanks approved by the department consistent with chapter
246-272C WAC;

(e) Be on the site at all times during the excavation and con-
struction of the 0SS;

(f) Install the 0SS to be watertight, except for the soil disper-
sal component;

(g) Cover the installation only after the local health officer
has given approval to cover; and

(h) Back fill with six to ((ewemty—fowr)) 24 inches of cover ma-
terial and grade the site to prevent surface water from accumulating
over any component of the 0OSS.

[ 47 ] 0TS-4868.6



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0260 Inspection. (1) For all activities requiring
a permit, the local health officer shall inspect the 0SS. The local
health officer shall:

(a) Visit the 0SS site during the site evaluation, construction,
or final construction inspection;

(b) Either inspect the 0SS before cover or allow the designer of
the 0SS to perform the inspection before cover if the designer is not
also named as installer of the system((+)); and

(c) Keep the record drawings on file, with the approved design
documents.

(2) Prior to any inspection, the local health officer or inspec-
tor authorized by the local health officer shall coordinate with the
0SS owner to obtain access. When the owner does not authorize access,
the local health officer may follow the administrative search warrant
procedures in RCW 70A.105.030 to gain access.

(3) For any 0SS located on a single property serving one dwelling
unit on the same property, the local health officer shall not regquire
a property owner to grant inspection and maintenance easements as a
condition of receiving a permit.

(4) During the final construction inspection, the local health
officer or the designer of the 0SS must confirm the 0SS meets the ap-
proved design.

(5) To comply with the requirements of WAC 246-272A-0270 (1) (e)
or (k), an inspection must include, at a minimum:

(a) Inspection and evaluation of:

(1) The status of all sewage tanks including baffles, effluent
filters, tank contents such as water level, scum, sludge, solids, wa-
ter tightness, and general structural conditions;

(1i) The status of all 1ids, accesses, and risers;

(1ii) The OSS and reserve area for any indicators of 0SS failure
or conditions that may impact system function, operation, or repair;
and

(iv) Any other components such as distribution boxes;

(b) A review of the record drawing and related documents, if they
exist, idincluding previous reports to confirm the system is operating
as designed; and

(c) Any proprietary products following the procedures of the ac-
cepted operations and maintenance manual associated with those prod-
ucts.

(6) Evidence of an 0SS property transfer inspection as required
in WAC 246-272A-0270 (1) (k) must be provided to the local health Jju-
risdiction on a form approved by the local health officer, including
at a minimum:

(a) All applicable information from subsection (5) of this sec-

tion;

(b) The address of the property served by the 0SS;

(c) The date of the inspection;

(d) The permitted type and design flow for known 0SS; and

(e) Verification that the record drawing is accurate, if it ex-
ists, or an 0SS site plan showing the location of all system compo-
nents relative to structures and prominent site features.

(7) A local health jurisdiction may regquire an additional inspec-
tion report, or additional information, for an inspection required un-

[ 48 ] 0TS-4868.6



der WAC 246-272A-0270(1). The person responsible for the final con-
struction inspection shall assure the 0SS meets the approved design.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0265 Record drawings. Upon completion of ((&ke))
new construction, alteration, or repair of the 0SS, the 0SS owner
shall submit a complete and detailed record drawing ( (shaldl—e—submit—
tec—+te—Pboth)) to the local health officer ((aprd—the—6SS—owrer)) that
includes at a minimum ( (Ehe—foltowing)) :

(1) Measurements and directions accurate to +/- 1/2 foot, unless
otherwise determined by the 1local health officer, ((f¥e—asswre)) sO
that the following parts of the 0SS can be easily located:

(a) All sewage tank openings requiring access;

(b) The ends, and all changes in direction, of installed and
found buried pipes and electrical cables that are part of the 0SS; and

(c) Any other 0SS component which, in the judgment of the local
health officer or the designer, must be accessed for observation,
maintenance, or operation;

(2) Location and dimensions of the reserve area;

(3) Record that materials and equipment meet the specifications
contained in the design;

(4) 1Initial settings of electrical or mechanical devices that
must be known to operate the system in the manner intended by the de-
signer or installer; and

(5) For proprietary products, manufacturer's standard product
literature, including performance specifications and maintenance rec-
ommendations needed for operation, monitoring, maintenance, or repair
of the 0SS.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0270 Operation, monitoring, and maintenance—Owner
responsibilities. (1) The OSS owner 1is responsible for operating,
monitoring, and maintaining the 0SS to minimize the risk of failure,
and ( (to—aecomptish this purpeses)) shall:

(a) Request assistance from the local health officer upon occur-
rence of a system failure or suspected system failure;

(b) Obtain approval from the local health officer before:

(i) Repairing, altering, or expanding an OSS((+

+b))) as required by WAC 246-272A-0200; or

(ii) Before beginning the use of any newly constructed 0SS;

(c) Secure and renew contracts for periodic maintenance ( (whexre))
if required by the local health jurisdiction;

((#e¥)) (d) Obtain and renew operation permits if required by the
local health jurisdiction;

I I

() Ao — onman ] + ~ 4+ o P £ + aszot A Somrmoanoant o
( ( \\A./ AR W'D 2N I W g (&8 \./Ull.l.t/_L\., | AL ®, = S W i} & N U N i 1 LS N By "')_Y"')L" TTT \_/\JJ.I.I.tJ\JLL 1TTCTWO
andtoxr)) (e) Obtain an inspection, as reguired in WAC

[ 49 ] 0TS-4868.6



246-272A-0260(5), by a maintenance service provider authorized by the
local health officer of all 0SS and property to determine functionali-
ty, maintenance needs and compliance with ((regudatiens)) this chapter
and local rules, and any permits:

(1) At least once every three years, unless more frequent inspec-
tions are specified by the local health officer, for all ((systems))
0SS consisting solely of a ((septie)) sewage tank and gravity SSAS;

(ii) Annually for all other ((systems)) 0SS unless more frequent
inspections are specified by the local health officer;

((#ey)) (d4iii) Submit the results of the inspection to the local
health jurisdiction, using a form approved by the local health officer
and in compliance with WAC 246-272A-0260(5);

(f) Employ an approved pumper to remove the septage from the tank
when the level of solids and scum indicates that removal is necessary;

((£F)) (g9) Provide ongoing maintenance and complete any needed
repairs to promptly return the ((system)) 0SS to a proper operating
condition;

((#e)) (h) Protect the 0SS area and the reserve area from:

(1) Cover by structures or impervious material;

(ii) Surface drainage, and direct drains, such as footing or roof
drains. The drainage must be directed away from the area where the 0SS
is located;

(iii) Soil compaction((+)). For example by vehicular traffic or
livestock; and

(iv) Damage by soil removal and grade alteration((+

+r) ) -

(i) Keep the flow of sewage to the 0SS at or below the approved
operating capacity and sewage quality;

(()) (1) Operate and maintain ((systems)) 0SS as directed by
the local health officer ((+

. . : : 1 1 1 ces
PO -

aiture)); and

ree—of asystem—foiture—or suspeckted—SysSE
(k) At the time of property transfer ((+))_-x
(i) Provide to the buyer, all available 0SS maintenance and re-
pair records((—3f—=avaitabtesr)) 1in addition to the completed seller
disclosure statement in accordance with chapter 64.06 RCW for residen-
tial real property transfers;

(1i) Beginning February 1, 2027, obtain an inspection, as re-
gquired in WAC 246-272A-0260(5), by a third-party inspector authorized
by the local health officer. The local health officer may:

(A) Remove the requirement for an inspection at the time of prop-
erty transfer if the local health Jjurisdiction has evidence that the
0SS is in compliance with (e) of this subsection and the 0SS was in-
spected by a third-party inspector authorized by the local health of-
ficer;

(B) Verify the results of the property inspection for compliance
with WAC 246-272A-0260; and

(C) Require additional inspections and other reguirements not
listed in WAC 246-272A-0260;

(1ii) Beginning February 1, 2027, obtain an inspection of propri-
etary treatment products per the product manufacturer recommendations,
as required in WAC 246-272A-0260, by a third-party inspector author-
ized by the local health officer. The local health officer may:

(A) Remove the regquirement for an inspection at the time of prop-
erty transfer if the local health Jjurisdiction has evidence that the
0SS is in compliance with (e) of this subsection and the 0SS was in-

r
T

[ 50 ] 0TS-4868.6



spected by a third-party inspector authorized by the local health of-
ficer;

(B) Verify the results of the property inspection for compliance
with WAC 246-272A-0260; and

(C) Require additional inspections and other regquirements not
listed in WAC 246-272A-0260;

(iv) Submit the results of the inspection, and any additional in-
formation or reports required by the local health officer, to the lo-
cal health Jjurisdiction, using an inspection report form approved by
the local health officer. The local health officer may require a com-
pliance schedule for repair of a failure discovered during the proper-
ty transfer inspection.

(2) ((Persens—shatlt)) A person may not:

(a) Use or introduce strong bases, acids, or chlorinated organic
solvents into an 0SS for the purpose of system cleaning;

(b) Use ((a——sewage——system)) an 0SS additive unless it is specifi-
cally approved by the department; ((ex))

(c) Use an 0SS to dispose of waste components atypical of sewage
from a residential source; or

(d) Use any remediation process or activity unless it is approved
by the local health officer and is in compliance with WAC
246-272A-0278.

NEW SECTION

WAC 246-272A-0278 Remediation. (1) The local health officer may
establish a program and requirements for reviewing and approving reme-
diation activities.

(2) Remediation must not:

(a) Result in damage to the 0SS;

(b) Result in insufficient soil treatment in the zone between the
soil dispersal component and the highest seasonal water table, re-
strictive layer, or soil type 7; or

(c) Disturb the soil in or below the soil dispersal component if
the vertical separation requirements of WAC 246-272A-0230 are not met.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0280 Repair of failures. ( (B—Hhenr—an0SS—fatture
oeeurs,—the—055—owrer—shali

[ 51 ] 0TS-4868.6



m

P,

ENE I S 2N
[Crsaws

+ 5z

2

ni
CoO— o puUoTrIro CIrc I Ccy

3

il ]

+ 5z

4

ni
CoO— o puUoTrrCo CIrTc T Cy

g+ ENEEE T N

ER ==k}
ToouactT

Oy o C oIt

| i W

JoUTITCc Iy

A\

o
[}

o

rhan

sz

Oy

r
T

CaY

T
OWIT

LTIt CIT

C

EEEEEw

T OoOCo T o rcir O

CIT

T

WTIT

£V
crrCcaoctTt

e

ERN-EN

=

1

S, IR | £ £
I\ RS S AwAW § A

4+

Ei=]

7

r
TCo T T o CICT

]z

T
Oy

(P

\wwa

o p T oor T

1 oA

i S s i @ i

T

~

It

P
o UL T T CTT

n

2

+~

+ ]

o

PP

ERPI NN

A

.
=}

4

T

£ .4

woactT LTy

TITCO

ol O~

I

O

A T ouL tactT

ooy

T

C

T

T

4

+
|\ I B wope mp iy

Dyeacaoae RE

T

N21 N0 (711

WAL D246 DTON

£
LAFEY

T3

oo
7 N Sy 6P N U N W i §

T A=A ES

Z1TZ1Ty UZ T oL/

A

ZT

o oo oo T

T

1 e

o4

hawrss
T

| challfes b
[ Yaw §

QAT A o

e
T

LRI

leq ey

A g

Do ot

(1)

N

[ ) W S mp mpn my e 9 4 o C Iy

[SAVAV i p W Wy w)

TIiTg WwWTr T

|\ 3 S s i

T - OoOTCTTT

T\ (Y

IAFRY

r

Al
| I i A & e

PN RN

=

o
T oOCTT T

noo iy n
i

o

LIPS

Nt S
COoOIrcorrIiralirc

o

= o

e
LT AT TTIC T T 1T T

| ¥ a s ISE ST

A\ A i 7w s i g

T

TOO

Q1
AT ¥

=

PR BRI
SRR I A

or e

T -OF
wory

13 .

ot A1 o~ o~ o
cre— ST ourtSy

r
oL CTTT

() Draxzant

A

RN

()

A

ot gtT

I

T LT CTVvVCTITC

o

-

EEE W 2

r

£~

cCIICc—ouoarrtaoctT—OT

o =3 AR

wo o T Ty

o CtT

0TS-4868.6

52



ermittad i, o+ P U,
b/ [ S Y ) i S e A8 P CIT o LT I2 [Py Lw Y
. A
3 . . N
’
L . A
4 4 ’
cd Ao +h N I T i L~ S £+ P i PP + ol + [ RS
[ SR W B wwas iy T \_/UJ.J.L,J_J.AJLAL,J_J.Lg [ S €V ) W WP W s S ) A\ LS i N wy [ S €5 R S S U R S ey |y AN I N & I O ) T J_CtJ(_/LJ.J_ T
(EN T +1 [ R, TSy g S L S HPS Py, Sy S R N A + 1
\U, P S S i s LY\ W S U E WPy @ R iy QCt/(_AJ.(_AL_J_\JLl Ju =) S SR N ) CIITATT C W T 1TV J.J.J.\_/J.lCu_), LS i s
PR P ot e P, 1Y P £+ PR |
T J., o UL 1T W T J., L . \.Ab/ull CIT o LT 1T A CTT \jJ.U\.ALJ.\_A-

Atz et oo P, S R + PP, I, T I =N L S - + .
T IO T Py TS A8 ey L& S\ i . \4 CTT - APy @ i |\ N N S S U g Y - kiLAJ_J. 11T TT TS |y 11T T e
JAENAY M ~ + nt 1 37z 1 o AN r D Ll r + . 1 1 oo + 1 T e+ n EEE=Y
\(_A.[ LT I T OO T T T = \4 J= =) Fany L 1 WITCT 1T CITIIT 1 = ) i S S ) CITITTT J.\jJ.J.L_ IT Q1T
P PR S, ISR RGN
Ay =) A \4 [ S U S WY @ R By =) b/uJ.(_AL_J.ULl,
(1) T St~ 1 Iz 1 o AN r D 1 + <z 1 o 2 1o .
\LI[ J N L CTIT ITC - \4 e X L 1 LT T b/ - [\ g mpm =y g L .
()N Moot ] ncp ]
\k/[ N N L CTIT TITC - \4 - .

(1) When an 0SS failure occurs the local health officer shall:

(a) Allow an OSS to be repaired using the least costly alterna-
tive that meets standards and is likely to provide comparable or bet-
ter long-term sewage treatment and effluent dispersal outcomes;

(b) Permit an 0SS meeting the regquirements in Table X of this
section only if the 0SS has failed and the following are not feasible:

(1) Installation of a conforming OSS or component; or

(1i) Connection to either an approved LOSS or a public sewer.

(c) TIdentify repair permits meeting the requirements in Table X
of this section for the purpose of tracking future performance;

(d) Give first priority to allowing repair and second priority to
allowing replacement of an existing conventional 0SS, consisting of a
septic tank and drainfield, with a similar conventional OSS;

(e) Evaluate all unpermitted sewage discharges to determine if
they pose a public health threat. If determined by the local health
officer to be a public health threat, the local health officer shall
require a compliance schedule;

(f) Report failures within 200 feet of shellfish growing areas to
the department; and

(g) Not impose or allow the imposition of more stringent perform-
ance requirements of equivalent 0SS on private entities than public
entities.

(2) The local health officer may:

(a) Require a compliance schedule for fajilures discovered during
property transfer inspections;

(b) Allow a repair of a failure using ASTM C-33 sand or coarser
as fill to prevent direct discharge of treated effluent to groundwa-

[ 53 ] 0TS-4868.6



ter, surface water, or upon the surface of the ground if the vertical
separation is less than 12 inches.

(3) The 0SS owner shall notify the local health officer when
there is a failure and indicate which methods will be used to address
the fajilure in accordance with Table IX of this section:

(a) The owner may use option D only if the local health officer
determines options A through C are not feasible and may use option E
or F only if options A through D are not feasible.

(b) For options A through F, the owner shall develop and submit
information and obtain a permit as required under WAC 246-272A-0200
prior to any repair or replacement of an 0SS on the property served or
a nearby property if the owner obtains an appropriate documentation
including, but not limited to, an easement, covenant, contract, or
other legal document authorizing access for construction, operation,
maintenance, and repair.

(c) If options A through F are not feasible, the owner shall dis-
continue use of the 0SS, abandon the 0SS according to the reguirements
in WAC 246-272A-0300, and cease all sewage dJdenerating activities on
the property.

Table IX
Options and Methods to Address an 0SS Failure
Options Method
A Repair or replace the OSS, with a similar OSS, if the OSS provides comparable or better long-term sewage

treatment and effluent dispersal outcomes where:

1. The effluent treatment and soil dispersal component to be repaired or replaced is not closer to any

surface water, well, or spring than the minimum separation distance required in Table IV of WAC
246-272A-0210(1);

2. The soil dispersal component to be repaired or replaced complies with the treatment level and
distribution method requirements in Table VI of WAC 246-272A-0230;

3. The local health officer has a permit or record of the OSS on file; and

4. The repair or replacement will not result in an OSS that meets the definition of failure.

Repair or replace the OSS with an OSS in compliance with new construction requirements under this chapter.

O [ I

Connect the residence or facility to a:
1. Publicly owned LOSS:;
2. Privately owned LOSS where it is deemed economically feasible; or

3. Public sewer.

Repair or replace the OSS in conformance with Table X of this section.
Use a holding tank.

Obtain a National Pollution Discharge Elimination System or state discharge permit from the Washington state
department of ecology issued to a public entity or jointly to a public entity and the OSS owner only when the
local health officer determines:

1. An OSS is not feasible; and

2. The only realistic method of final dispersal of treated effluent is discharge to the surface of the land or
into surface water.

(4) When there is an 0SS failure, the 0SS designer shall:

(a) FEvaluate the causes of failure prior to designing the repair
or replacement of the 0SS;

(b) Prevent the direct discharge of sewage or treated effluent to
groundwater, surface water, or upon the surface of the ground;

(c) Meet the horizontal separations under WAC 246-272A-0210(1) to
public drinking water sources;

I | I | [

[ 54 ] 0TS-4868.6



(d) Protect all drinking water sources, shellfish harvesting
areas, and water recreation facilities designated for swimming in nat-
ural waters;

(e) Minimize nitrogen discharge in areas where nitrogen has been
identified as a contaminant of concern in the local management plan
under WAC 246-272A-0015;

(f) Not use disinfection to achieve fecal coliform or E. coli re-
gquirements in Table X of this section to meet:

(1) Treatment level BL1 or BL2 with less than 18 inches of verti-
cal separation; or

(1i) Treatment level BL1 or BLZ in type 1 soils; or

(1ii) Treatment level BL3.

(g) Minimize dimpact of phosphorus discharge in areas where the
local health officer has identified phosphorus as a contaminant of
concern in the local management plan under WAC 246-272A-0015;

(h) Locate and design repairs meeting the requirements in Table X
of this section if the effluent treatment and soil dispersal component
to be repaired or replaced is closer to any surface water, well, or
spring than prescribed by the minimum separation required in Table IV
of WAC 246-272A-0210(1) ;

(1) Design any nonconforming 0SS using pressure distribution with
timed dosing in the soil dispersal component; and

(1) Meet all other design requirements of this chapter to the
maximum extent permitted by the site, to maximize the:

(1) Vertical separation;

(1i) Distance from a well or spring; and

(1ii) Distance to surface water.

Table X
Treatment Component Performance Levels for Repair of 0SS Not Meeting
Vertical and Horizontal Separations!?!

Horizontal Separation?
<30 feet >30 <50 feet >50 < 100 feet3 > 100 feet
Vertical Soil Type Soil Type Soil Type Soil Type
Separation
(in inches) 1 2 3-6 1 2 3-6 1 2 3-6 1 2 3-6
<12 A& | A | A | A | A& | A« | A« | A& | A& | B& | B& | B&
I BL1 BL1 BL1 BL1 BL1 BL1 BL1 BL1 BL1 BL2 BL2 BL2
~lp<13s | A& [A& [ A& | A& [ B& [B& [ A& [ B& | B&
e BL1 BL1 BL1 BL1 BL2 BL2 BL1 BL2 BL2
13<24 | A& [A& [ A& | A& [B& [B& | A& [ B& | B& Conforming
_— BL1 BL1 BL1 BL1 BL2 BL2 BL1 BL2 BL2
~o4<3 | A& | B& [B& [ B& [ B& [ B& | B& [ B& | C& S5
= BL1 BL2 BL2 BL2 BL2 BL2 BL2 BL2 BL3
>3 A& | B& | B& | B& | C& | C& | B& | C& | C&
= BL1 BL2 BL2 BL2 BL3 BL3 BL2 BL3 BL3

The treatment component performance levels correspond with those established for treatment components under the product performance testing
requirements in Table IIT in WAC 246-272A-0110.

The horizontal separation indicated in Table X of this section is the distance between the soil dispersal component and the surface water, well, or spring. If
the soil dispersal component is up-gradient of a surface water, well, or spring to be used as a potable water source, or beach where shellfish are harvested,
the next higher treatment level shall apply unless treatment level A and BL1 is already required.

On a site where there is a horizontal setback of 75-100 feet between an OSS dispersal component and an individual water well, individual spring,
nonmarine surface water or surface water that is not a public water source and a vertical separation of greater than 12 inches, a conforming OSS that
complies with WAC 246-272A-0210(4) shall be installed if feasible.

[ ST

w

[ 55 ] 0TS-4868.6



NEW SECTION

WAC 246-272A-0282 Minor repair of malfunctions. The local
health officer:

(1) Shall require the minor repair of a malfunction to a func-
tioning state;

(2) May require a permit for a minor repair of a malfunction; and

(3) May require the 0SS owner to submit information regarding mi-
nor repairs of a malfunction.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0290 Expansions. (1) The 1local health officer
shall require an 0SS and a reserve area in full compliance with the
new ((system)) construction standards specified in this chapter for an
0SS expansion ((ef—a—residence—or—-otherfaecility)).

(2) A local health officer may allow expansion of an existing
( (ea—site—sewage—system—adiacent—te)) 0SS within 200 feet of a marine
shoreline that does not meet the minimum horizontal separation between
the soil dispersal component and the ordinary high-water mark required
by WAC 246-272A-0210, Table IV, provided that:

(a) The ( (system) ) 0SS meets all requirements of WAC
246-272A-0230, 246-272A-0232, 246-272A-0234, and 246-272A-0238;

(b) The ((system)) 0SS complies with all other requirements of
WAC 246-272A-0210 and this section;

(c) Horizontal separation between the soil dispersal component
and the ordinary high-water mark is ((f£+fty)) 50 feet or greater; and

(d) Vertical separation is two feet or greater.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0300 Abandonment. Persons permanently abandoning a
((septie)) sewage tank, seepage pit, cesspool, or other sewage con-
tainer shall:

(1) Have the septage removed by an approved pumper; and

(2) Perform one of the following:

(a) Remove and dispose of sewage tanks and other components in a
manner approved by the local health officer; or

(b) Leave the sewage tanks and components in place. Remove or de-
stroy the 1id((s+)) if possible and ((43))) £ill the void with soil or
gravel; and

(3) Grade the site to the surroundings.

[ 56 ] 0TS-4868.6



effective

filed 7/18/05,

(Amending WSR 05-15-119,

AMENDATORY SECTION

7/1/07)

a ] haol+h
TrCo it

TOCTTO T

Th
TIT

(1)
T

((

WAC 246-272A-0310

Septage management.

A person removing septage from an OSS shall obtain

approval from the local health officer before removal and

))

(1) Transport septage or sewage only in vehicles clearly

identified with the name of the business and approved by the local

health officer

( (=)

.
4

Record and report septage removal as required by the

local health officer

(2)

)

)

At=on

(

(

and
Dispose of

.
4

to

or apply septage biosolids

septage,
land only in a manner consistent with applicable laws.

(3)

)

)

+er

(

(

effective

filed 7/18/05,

(Amending WSR 05-15-119,

AMENDATORY SECTION

7/1/07)

land

ilnimum

Developments,

WAC 246-272A-0320

area requirements.

subdivisions,

and m

((

£ oo
|\ S N N WP i

PN
T T I CIT

|awy

TOTTOWIITYy ML LU

|y

EERNAS v g mp gy o

[ i N & iy mpm

T TTOCToxI

=7

U I

4+

[ RV ¥ I A W i S Wl W s S WA W e

n
\E ¥

n

P

R RPN
UJ.J.J_J_\j | RN S @7 R WS S W W

T oo

T

T |y L1 OUW
I S N W R
W I CTITITTT

=

TaoCTTT

Ao

L7

+ 1

CIT

n

=3

raotroot o n

T <7

r
T

ER N
W T

i s s

T—OT

cCO—1T T C

Z-OTT

\R o w

D7

OO P Ty MLOUC

o

PN

PN

noyr

_Lug ISATES

o

P
\a B a

NZo o

POV I oTTUT

nxr

I

TOIrT T oo

[Cnw

T O CToT

TOTy

P OPOOoTT

TCTTOo T [ W e

T

+ 1 a T T«
cIIriot

r M

A/

Nt acoa o~ MA+W A T

T

m
T OPTIT

g o 1
CIT

o410 e

T

T

T

T

C

A\ S W

T

[SF ¥ AW A o

s awAw §

oIy

AT

£V

-
LT

7

T

ol

£V
[CE e ye)

I IR o I T

+h o

OLIITOWIT

TIT LI CITTCItT T

CIT

TITCTSoS

[p==w

T

[Sp==p g3 =

=

Tt Ty

CIiIaorlt

.
IS

r
T

heol+h £ o
T T I CIT |\ N S S

ol
A & =

+ ]

RICH SNPoNE S

o
[}

+~

1 5 e

EESE N TS NP I N
TCOoT T

I

T O L Z

=

TargcTL

Wit T T

Ty

0TS-4868.6

57



25 qerel

AN\ WAl

LAF2Y

n
TIT

o
CITOUOST

SRR
OO TTIT

Nevram N s o

EEE AW

4
To Tty

3 o

(O

ITCUOMmo T alrc T oSy o T o oo

]

1T

4+
ST oTTIIrg

Eir=1

P

££7 ..
- L T LT OUOCTTTC

A3 e £~ JaYalal
ooy T OTIT

n

IR o e o
Ll_Ll—J_\Jg

1M
TTOo CLIta ©

ot

(D)

(R

=)

T

A

7

r
T

£ o
|\ N N N

1k
AL CIT

1SN

a ]
TOoOCToxT

+ 1

g sz
OO0y

el n Yooyl e
T

rm
TIT - O C TOUTT

2 F

r
T

+ 1
I3y OCIt

Nz

(O
T

CIT T

oL

ENERY

4

T I-OF
Wy

12
VAY="nwsaiy

Xz

n
T

= o

[Cryaws

O C o

(& -

ST

-

e et Ao PP - -
(=8 LJJ_\JV_L\.A. A8 e

—-\

1 a3nAd
Tl

n

4

mnealiia
t/\JJ_ l—_LLl\j (=9 CUITTC T U S ITUIT

T ey o

EvE =

C T %

T

[ i S s m wwpn

CIT

o

2

o = o A
MLUYUMUOoTU aATTh A Lo T

EN

ENETS

1
[E S

o

£V

o vz

£V

rrzat A
AT IUIT

ENES
T

DN ciag e
TS o UL

LI T oT 1LV AL TThS

A -

ISES

vtL7

ENEAY

4

T I-OoF
Wy

+ 1

CIT

ENE P I RP-E2N
[SESAC RS =y Sy SASAS)

4+
T

[eTyaws

Iy g my

L L UM

|\ g s

Ao+

11z

o

££
11 C LTI T T TIvT \Zie peywy

o 3

T

AN 7

1 1

+h A TT s {

M.

T 1 OTIt

|\ 1 & Iy ) oy Ry PAESE

\ LiloC LT C

I Oy

CTIToOTh

T

o o

o

P I

eV

PN £ o
T I CIT |\ N s ) -

LOUT (& g = S A - CWT LTV

ERA AT [ = a m )

[SF P Y@ pu pu

TITC TOoOCTT T

\

.

aaman

oo

=
A SO

=3

1

1

.

oF

n
EEE ST e

ITC LT OLT 1Ty o

=E=2113

JE S B i @ i e gy

0TS-4868.6

58



o 2~
ot T Oty

o

(D) (A) £ +1 2 o
A

V=7 U7

n

4

CcCTOTT

CIITT o

+ 1 Jalalanry

CIT

PSR
OWITT 1S

 daa o]

RS I,

a1 e

atalal

[Sp==p g3 =

CIT

TITroO v TOuao

cCoO PO T

ot o
TTOo

T OTTIIT

+
C

n
T

T OPTIT

- T

IT CITT
£ o

|\ N S N

Ik
WIT

sz

A= =

1
L LTOW

ni

T
(5
T
(=)
7

T OPTIT

Yy x7e
T

1+
€ N Sy Wy i

1SN

=

o
[ S WA Wy & g iy

Ty e

T

T I

PENE —INE N I TR
A\ i I WP s S e i w1

o

£V
oL CcT™

Mo+t~ A
TTCTIOCr

P, I gy

T.T

1

1

I L TOW

7\

T oo O

O

T

O

T

T

TITC T OaOo oIt

ISR, AR SN
o Ao T O T ITOUIT

13 A
oo

n

NN I |

ot

T T
pu g

n
LTIt

£ I IZ
|\ Wy

a1~
TTOTIC

C

T

LT

Tt Cc COTT

A8

1o

e

T CLTOTT

o +h

n
SR EAT)

=

N

r ot a1~ £ ooz
TTTOITrc—OTT—way oS

Adodr -~

\WAwAw  mp W @ w2

Th

|3 3 A =y g

LT

oo O O C L CoTT

A&

T

L7

o .
TOPPIICITCy

Xz

+ 1

o
gy

C

Nyt
Mo T

Ao ~o+ A =

=

Tz

TaT

1~
TTOTIC

Th £

TIT

(= 2\

vtL7

Ao

Wy o LT \PAuAw i Ip WA @ B L wAw § O

O

O CLCoCTT

A\

oo

NN o

X3

ol o
oI CVvVe

o

=

4

oL LTO

o

o o

o

r 1 anAd
TTicr

15

PRI
L C\iuJ.J_C

PO TCo

cO

T OT

A\

T CTo

Tar9gcTT

<7
N N
€ N Sy Wy i

n

EENELS ot o

K

ISR A

T

T TCTTTOTy

n
[T yawd

=

nae

PR, I,

r
T

PRI B NN Sl £ + 1
A

r

+ 0 oy

oo cTUroy

CIT

TITo

TIT

rhan

]z

Oy

o

o

=3

2

O L L TO

o

o

=

oY1a 9 A
T O T CITITC S

|y ¥ a s

T

(@ g

WITCTT

e Ty

o

TarritoT

T

=

A\

o

=

4

DI RSN N I —IPNE
|\ i S o ey & S & i

TOTTOWIITY

T

+~

4

r
CTrTcocCTo P TTOr

roancnapr A N Ao A A
T COoOTO

o

LA =K NG
ToTT o CcToTTTO oo

o

4

T OT O

EEAAC o pu

(&3

ey

T I

L7

r
T

alh St

£ 1o

T

+ 1

CIT

T o

CIITT o

\wies

Tt CCTTVv
Th

(= 2\

vttL7

cO

a sz +1h ol nl o
S A & =

£

g,
LT T TTIC I T 1T AJ_Y

£y
aLrrcCT™

ENEAY

ko A
AW I S Sy W

Mot

I

LT

= ey

T

T

=

n

PR

+

o ram
PO AIlT

PIEPoEoN
o OC S TOTT

=

S o

+ oA

T TCTTTOTy [Csyawi

PO T

T L CIl

T

ITT T T o ooy [ S

T

C

OO

PO IO

the local health officer

Prior to approving any development,

(1)

shall

.
A

Reguire site evaluations under WAC 246-272A-0220

Require information consisting of field data,

(a)

(b)

and re-

ports supporting a conclusion that the proposed land area is suffi-

cient to

plans,

.
A

Install conforming 0SS

i)

(

and

.
A

Preserve reserve areas for proposed and existing 0SS

(1)

.
A

Properly treat and dispose of the sewage
Reguire information demonstrating that the proposed develop-

ment will minimize adverse public health effects from the accumulation

of contaminants in groundwater and surface water

iii)
(c)

(

.
A

Determine the minimum land area reguired for the development

)

d
using Table XI of this section,

(

or the alternative methodology in Ta-

0TS-4868.6

59



ble XII of this section. The local health officer may require larger
lot sizes than the minimum standards established in Table XI or Table
XII of this section;

Table XI
Minimum Land Area Requirement For Each Single-Family Residence or Unit
Volume of Sewage and Minimum Usable Land Area

Soil Type (defined by WAC 246-272A-0220)
1 2 3 4 5 6
. 21,780 sq. ft.
Public (0.5 acre) 13.000 16,000 19,000 21,000 23.000 sq. fi.
Mini Water Supply sq. ft. sq. ft. sq. ft. sq. ft. =2 L
Minimum 2.5 acres!
Land Area 0
: .0 acre
Nonpublic 1.0 acre 1.0 acre 1.0 acre 2.0 acres 2.0 acres
Water Supply 2.5 acres! S S
Minimum Usable Land Area 2,000 sq. ft. | 2.000 sq. ft. | 2,500 sq. ft. | 3,333 sq. ft. | 5,000 sq. ft. | 10,000 sq. ft.

l OSS consisting of only sewage tanks and gravity SSAS must have a minimum land area of 2.5 acres per WAC 246-272A-0234(7).

Table XII
Maximum Allowable Total Nitrogen (TN) lLoad Per Day by Type of Water
Supply, Soil Type, and Land Areal
Maximum Soil Type2
Water Supply Daily TN
Type Load 1 2 3 4 5 6
Publi mg per sq. ft. 3.8 6.3 5.1 4.3 3.9 3.6
uplic
Ib per acre 0.36 0.60 0.49 0.41 0.37 0.34
. mg per sq. ft. 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 0.9 0.9
Nonpublic
1b per acre 0.18 0.18 0.18 0.18 0.09 0.09

1 Based on 60 mg/L TN and 360 gal/day OSS effluent.
As defined in Table V in WAC 246-272A-0220.

[T}

(e) Reqguire all proposals not meeting the minimum land area re-
gquirements in Table XI of this section to demonstrate the proposed de-
velopment:

(1) Minimizes adverse impacts to public health, surface water, or
groundwater quality;

(1i) Considers:

(A) Topography, geology, and ground cover;

(B) Climactic conditions;

(C) Availability of public sewers; and

(

(

D) Present and anticipated land use and growth patterns;

iii) Complies with current planning and zoning reguirements;

(iv) Does not exceed the nitrogen limit per land area as identi-
fied in Table XII of this section; and

(v) Does not allow new lots smaller than 13,000 sqguare feet if
served by nonpublic water supplies;

(f) Regquire minimum land area of 13,000 sguare feet or larger,
except when a proposal includes:

(1) 0SS within the boundaries of a recognized sewer utility hav-
ing a finalized assessment roll; or

(1i) A planned unit development with a signed, notarized, and re-
corded deed covenant restricting any development of lots or parcels
above the approved density with the overall densityv meeting the mini-
mum land area reqguirements of (d) or (e) of this subsection in per-

[ 60 ] 0TS-4868.6



petuity or until the 0SS 1is no 1longer needed as identified in WAC
246-272A-0200(06) ;
(g) Reguire that developments other than single-family residen-

ces:

(1) Meet the minimum land areas required for each unit's volume
of sewaqge;

(1i) Do not exceed 3.35 unit volumes of sewage per day per acre
if served by public water supplies; and

(1ii) Do not exceed 1.0 unit volume of sewage per day per acre
for nonpublic water supplies; and

(h) Require that the use of a reduced-sized dispersal component
does not result in a reduction of the minimum land area regquirements
established in this section.

(2) The local health officer shall require the following prior to
approving any subdivision:

(a) A recommendation for approval as required by RCW 58.17.150;

(b) Where a subdivision with nonpublic wells are proposed:

(1) Configuration of each lot line to allow a supply protection
zone to fit within the lot lines; or

(1i) Water supply protection zones on more than one lot when the
person proposing the subdivision or development provides a copy of a
recorded restrictive covenant to each property that is sited partially
or completely within the water supply protection zone;

(1ii) Water supply protection zone of at least 100 foot radius
for each existing or proposed well site.

(3) The local health officer may:

(a) Require detailed site plans and 0SS designs prior to final
approval of subdivision proposals;

(b) Require larger land areas or lot sizes to achieve public
health protection;

(c) Prohibit development on individual lots within the boundaries
of an approved subdivision if the proposed 0SS design does not meet
the requirements of this chapter; and

(d) Permit the installation of an 0SS, where the minimum land
area requirements or lot sizes in Table XI of this section or maximum
total nitrogen in Table XII of this section cannot be met, only when
the following criteria are met:

(1) The lot is registered as a legal lot of record created prior
to the effective date of the rule;

(1i) The lot is not within an area identified in the local man-
agement plan developed under WAC 246-272A-0015 where minimum land area
is listed as a design parameter necessary for public health protec-
tion; and

(1ii) The proposed 0SS meets all requirements of this chapter
without the use of a waiver under WAC 246-272A-0420.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
7/1/07)

WAC 246-272A-0340 ( (Certifieation)) Approval of installers,
pumpers, and maintenance service providers. (1) 0SS installers
( (eme) ), pumpers ( (mwsE)), and maintenance service providers shall ob-

tain approval from the local health officer prior to providing serv-
ices including, but not limited to, conducting inspections in accord-

[ 61 ] 0TS-4868.6



ance with WAC 246-272A-0260 and 246-272A-0270, within a local health
jurisdiction.

(2) The local health officer ((may)) shall establish ( (preograms
apre—reguirements)) procedures for approving 0SS installers, pumpers,
and maintenance service providers no later than February 1, 2025.
These procedures must include, but are not limited to, conducting in-
spections in accordance with WAC 246-272A-0260 and 246-272A-0270. The
local health officer may approve 0SS installers, pumpers, and mainte-
nance service providers through reciprocity by other Washington local
health jurisdictions.

(3) The local health officer may establish a homeowner 0SS in-
spection certification process.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0400 Technical advisory ((committee)) group (TAG).
((+>)) The department shall:

((#=r)) (1) Maintain a ((techaieat—adviseory—ecommittee)) TAG to
advise the department regarding:

((#)) (a) 0SS design and siting;

((=+r)) (b) Public domain technologies ( (apd—recommended—stanc—
aras—and—guidanee) ), DS&G for ((fhei®)) product use; and

((=+3+>r)) (c) Testing and design standards used for proprietary

product registration and ((receommended—standards—and—guidanece)) DS&G

for use of proprietary products.

((r)) (2) Select members for the ((teehriecal—advisery—committee
with)) TAG for three-yvear terms that have technical or scientific
knowledge applicable to 0SS from agencies, professions, and organiza-
tions including:

((#)) (a) Local health ((gdepartments)) Jurisdictions;

((++F)) (b) Engineering firms;

((#+3+>)) (c) The Washington department of ecology;

((v))) (d) Land sales, development and building industries;

((

((

)
+v+)) (e) Public sewer utilities;

~+33)) (£) OSS:
i) Designers;
ii) Installers;
iii) Maintenance service providers;
iv) Product manufacturers;
(g) Environmental organizations;
((t++¥)) (h) University((#)) and college academic communities;
( (H—Or—site—sewage——sSyStem—or—retatedproduct—manufackturers))
(1) Certified professional soil scientists; and
((#=r)) (j) Other 1nterested organizations or groups.

((In\ Oanyzan m + o dad
7 vVTT Tit L_J.Ll\ju_) oS \Tawaw oy

(
(
(
(

[ 62 ] 0TS-4868.6



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0410 Policy advisory ((ecemmittee)) group. ( ()
The department shall:

((#=r)) (1) Maintain a policy advisory ((eemmittee)) Jgroup to:

(()) (a) Make recommendations concerning 0SS departmental pol-
icy and ( (regutatiens)) rules;

((=+F)) (b) Review 0SS program services; and

((+3>)) [(c) Provide input to the department regarding the ((en—
st+te—sewage)) 0SS program;

((Hr)) (2) Select members for three-year terms from agencies,
professions, organizations having knowledge and interest in 0SS, and

((greups)) communities which are affected by ((Ehe—regutatieons—and
“fer—Convenremeetings—as—rneeded
; ] : 1 . 1 1 s
sery—eommittee)) this chapter.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0420 Waivers ((eof—state—regulatiens)). (1) The lo-

cal health officer may grant a waiver from specific requirements of
this chapter ((+£)). A request for waiver must be:

(a) ((Fhe—waiver—reggest—3s)) Evaluated by the local health offi-

cer on an individual, site-by-site basis;
(b) (("r'k 1leeaod N I, FF3 "y At O ot
|\ S S < < =

LI O T 1T € N Ny Wy i AP w A\ S wwy Lcrllllilcs 1T ‘;lfal’vfcr ls) )
Consistent with the ( (staprdards—in—and—+theintent of—+theserutess
+e))) purposes of this chapter.
(2) (a) The 1local health officer must submit((s)) quarterly re-

ports to the department ((regardims—any)) showing waivers approved or
denied ( (+—and

() R~ n v~z £ + 1 vl 7 s~ o 4—ﬁ))
G Do CtO OTr—L VIrew—OT—trt \.1ou_L_ Ty TCpPOoTtS .

(b) Upon review, if the department finds that the waivers previ-
ously granted ((have—rot—Pbeen—eceonsistent)) are inconsistent, with the
( (stondards—dn—and—the dntentof +these—+rutes)) purposes of this chap-
ter, and DS&G for granting waivers, the department shall provide tech-
nical assistance to the local health officer to correct the inconsis-
tency, and may notify the local and state boards of health of the de-
partment's concerns.

(c) If upon further review ((ef—the—guarterty—reports)), the de-
partment flnds ((%ha%—%ﬁﬁ}—iﬁeeﬁsfs%eﬁey—%e%weea—%%ﬁ}—wafvef&—gfaﬁ%ed

)) waiv-—
ers prev1ouslv granted contlnue to be inconsistent with the purposes
of this chapter and DS&G, the department may suspend the authority of
the local health officer to grant waivers under this section until
such inconsistencies have been corrected.

(()) (3) The department shall ((dewelep)) maintain and update
guidance to assist local health officers in the application of waiv-
ers.

(4) The department shall publish an annual report summarizing the
walvers issued over the previous vear.

[ 63 ] 0TS-4868.6



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0425 Required ((rule)) review of rules. The de-
partment shall review this chapter to evaluate the effectiveness of

the rules ((ard—determine—areas—where Frevisions may pPehReecessary—The

Ao e~ a1 ] Nz A + ool 4+ o £ + 1 1 raxza T N | ney a2+
\_ACr/(_AJ. CITTTTT T W LT T tJJ_UVJ.LA.C CTT O o U TOo A\ . CITT P S - 1OV I TW (_AJ.\Jll\j W I CITT
their)), determine where revisions may be necessary, and make recom-

mendations to the state board of health and all local health officers
by September ((2668)) 2026 and every four years thereafter.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0430 Enforcement. (1) When an 0SS is out of com-
pliance with any law or rule requlating 0SS and administered by the
department or the local health officer, the department or the local
health officer ((+

Y =
+4—Enforecement—orders)) may initiate enforcement action. FEn-

forcement action may include, but is not necessarily limited to:

(a) A notice of correction describing the condition that is not
in compliance and the text of the specific section or subsection of
the applicable state or federal law or rule, a statement of what is
required to achieve compliance, and the date by which compliance is to
be achieved;

(b) A notice of violation with or without a civil penalty;

(c) An order requiring specific actions or ceasing unacceptable
activities within a designated time period;

[ 64 ] 0TS-4868.6



(d) Suspension, revocation, or modification or denial of permits
and licenses as authorized by RCW 43.70.115; and

(e) Civil or criminal penalties authorized under chapter 70.05
RCW and RCW 43.70.190.

(2) An informal conference may be held at the request of any par-
ty to resolve disputes arising from enforcement of this chapter.
) Notices and orders issued under this section ((shat})) must:
) Be in writing;
) Name the person or persons to whom the order is directed;
(c) Briefly describe each action or inaction constituting a wvio-
lation of the rules of chapter 246-272A WAC, or applicable local
((eeee)) rules;

(d) Specify any required corrective action, if applicable;

(e) Specify the effective date of the order, with time or times
of compliance;

(f) Provide notice of the consequences of failure to comply or
repeated Vlolatlon, as appropriate ( (——Suveh—netices—may —inetude—a

(3
(a
(b

((-5r)) A_L Enforcement orders ((shad+¥)) must Dbe personally
served in the manner of service of a summons in a civil action or in
((=)) another manner showing proof of receipt.

((#6)¥)) (5) The department shall have cause to deny the applica-
tion or reapplication for ((am—eperatienadt)) a permit or to revoke,
suspend, or modify a required ( (eperatierat)) permit of any person who
has:

(a) Failed or refused to comply with the provisions of chapter
246-2772A WAC, or any other statutory provision or rule regulating the
operation of an 0SS; or

(b) Obtained or attempted to obtain a permit or any other re-
quired certificate or approval by misrepresentation.

[ 65 ] 0TS-4868.6



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 05-15-119, filed 7/18/05, effective
9/15/05)

WAC 246-272A-0440 Notice of decision—Adjudicative proceeding.
(1) All local boards of health shall:

(a) Maintain an ((administrative—appeats)) adiudicative process
to ((eemsider)) resolve procedural and technical conflicts arising
from the administration of local regulations; and

(b) Establish rules for conducting hearings requested to contest
a local health officer's actions.

(2) The department shall provide notice of the department's deni-
al, suspension, modification, or revocation of a permit, certifica-
tion, or approval consistent with RCW 43.70.115, chapter 34.05 RCW,
and chapter 246-10 WAC.

(3) A person contesting a departmental decision regarding a per-
mit, certificate, or approval may file a written request for an adju-
dicative proceeding consistent with chapter 246-10 WAC.

(4) Department actions are governed ( (uvpder—the—Administrative
Procedure—Aet)) by chapter 34.05 RCW, RCW 43.70.115, this chapter, and
chapter 246-10 WAC.

REPEALER

The following sections of the Washington Administrative Code are
repealed:

WAC 246-272A-0020 Applicability.

WAC 246-272A-0125 Transition from the list of approved
systems and products to the registered
list—Treatment products.

WAC 246-272A-0135 Transition from the list of approved
systems and products to the registered
list—Bacteriological reduction.

WAC 246-272A-0150 Transition from the list of approved
systems and products to the registered
list—Distribution products.

WAC 246-272A-0175 Transition from the experimental system

program to application for product
registration.

[ 66 ] 0TS-4868.6



WASHINGTON STATE Wl
BOARDorHEALTH

HEALTH PROMOTION COMMITTEE SPECIAL

MEETING SUMMARY NOTES

What: Health Promotion (HP) Committee

When: February 1, 2024

Participating: Board of Health (Board) Members Dimyana Abdelmalek (Committee
Chair), Patty Hayes, Steve Kutz, Kelly Oshiro; Board staff Molly Dinardo, Andrew
Kamali, Michelle Davis, Michelle Larson, Melanie Hisaw, Ashley Bell, Shay Bauman;
Department of Health (Department) staff; and approximately five members of the public
also attended the meeting.

Summary Notes:

Rulemaking and Other Project Updates

Molly Dinardo, Board staff, stated that since the last committee meeting in
December, the Board hasn’t had any new rule filings, and there are no new major
updates to Board rule projects.

Molly then brought up the topic of kratom and mentioned that Member Kutz has
asked if the Board or Health Promotion Committee could receive a briefing on the
topic. Molly asked Committee Members about their interest in receiving a briefing
on kratom for the May Health Promotion Committee meeting.

Member Steve Kutz, Member Kelly Oshiro, and Member Patty Hayes supported
receiving a briefing on this topic at the May meeting.

Member Kutz also expressed concern about another substance called tianeptine.
Member Kutz asked if tianeptine could be included in a future briefing and if there
could eventually be a broader briefing brought to the full Board on these topics.
Member Hayes encouraged Member Kutz to work with staff to organize a briefing
for the May Health Promotion meeting as a starting point. Member Hayes said
staff should see if the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) is looking at these
topics, and if they are, perhaps the Board could pass a resolution of concern or
write a letter to ask the FDA to examine this further.

Molly shared some information about tianeptine, stating that it is not an approved
drug or substance in the U.S. Molly also added that the FDA has sent out several
letters and alerts about tianeptine products.

HP Committee Chair Dimyana Abdelmalek added that the Centers for Disease
Control (CDC) recently reported on tianeptine in its Morbidity and Mortality
Weekly Report (MMWR).

(Continued on the next page)



Page 2
Health Promotion Committee
Special Meeting

Member Kutz asked Chair Abdelmalek to send the article. Member Kutz stated
that unless these substances rise to the level of a poison center notification,
these addictive substances can go largely unnoticed. Member Kutz inquired how
the Board can send their concern to the FDA and what mechanisms the state
uses to identify substances of concern. Member Kutz emphasized that these
substances are not only a concern for adults, but also kids.

Michelle Davis, Board Executive Director, said staff would pull up the article and
add it to the meeting notes so both Committee Members and the public can
access it:

https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/73/wr/mm7304a5.htm?s cid=mm7304a5 w

2024 Legislative Session Updates

Molly Dinardo, Board staff, shared that January 31 was the House of Origin
Policy Committee cutoff and provided information about the number of bills Board
staff are tracking and analyzing.

Molly gave an overview of health promotion-related bill topics for this session and
flagged two newborn screening related bills that staff are monitoring closely.
Molly asked Committee Members if they had any questions.

Member Hayes asked about the syphilis bill, and Molly said it passed the Senate
Policy Committee and it's waiting on a floor vote in the Rules committee.

Preview March Board Meeting

Molly Dinardo, Board staff, shared that staff are in the process of organizing two
State Health report community panels, one at the March meeting, and the other
at the April meeting to help inform the 2024 State Health Report to the Governor.
Molly recapped Board Member feedback and questions from the January briefing
and said these are considerations that staff are trying to keep in mind as they
plan these upcoming panels.

Member Oshiro thanked staff for taking Board Member feedback into
consideration and stated that it's a good idea to have these panels split into two.
Member Hayes said it would be helpful for the Board to review what we’ve done
before as a grounding. Member Hayes also expressed interest in brainstorming
how to better align Board reports, recommendations, and policies over time and
stated that the high balcony framework of issues across the state should be
informed by what is happening locally. Member Hayes shared conversations with
Department staff about the State Health Improvement Plan (SHIP) and a desire
to somehow align reports and priorities down the line to give the Board’s State
Health Report more meaning.

Member Kutz provided feedback on recent Board community panels and stated
that it would be helpful to include more time for discussion after the panels.

John Thompson, Department staff, provided an overview of the presentation that
the Department plans to present for the Newborn Screening Annual Report
presentation at the March meeting. John shared that the Newborn Screening
Program has quarterly reports that feed into the annual report and that in
September 2022, they hired an epidemiologist, Anna Howard, to help take these


https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/73/wr/mm7304a5.htm?s_cid=mm7304a5_w

Page 3
Health Promotion Committee
Special Meeting

reports and input them into a data dashboard. John said they anticipate the
dashboard to be live by the March meeting. Anna Howard, Department staff,
shared a preview of what the dashboard visualizations will look like.

Member Kutz expressed interest in some of the program’s quality improvement
measures. John said they plan to present some information on this during the full
presentation in March.

Ashley Bell, Board staff, introduced Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Planning and
stated that the goal of a PEAR plan is to bridge disparity gaps and reduce
disparities statewide and across state government. Ashley provided information
about how the PEAR plan works, the goals and outcomes of a PEAR plan, and
how the Board can engage in this work. Ashley shared a proposed timeline with
Committee Members and added that the presentation in March will provide more
details and background on the Board’'s upcoming PEAR plan work.

Member Hayes asked if the PEAR Plan comes from a legislative mandate or
executive order and inquired if there’s a model plan that the Board could work
from. Member Hayes also mentioned the Foundational Public Health Services
(FPHS) Equity Technical Working Group and said that in the meetings so far, no
one has brought up the topic of PEAR. Member Hayes said that if the
Department isn’t going to bring up the topic of a PEAR plan, maybe the Board
could bring that perspective in. Member Hayes also indicated that the Board has
not developed an updated strategic plan and was curious about how the Board
could harmonize the PEAR Plan and Strategic Plan.

Ashley said the plan is for the Board to connect PEAR with the future Strategic
Plan. Ashley also clarified that the PEAR Plan and the Office of Equity are both
Executive Orders in the state.

Michelle Davis, Board Executive Director, thanked Member Hayes for the
questions and said that staff need to develop a timeline for the Strategic Plan,
and in the meantime, the PEAR plan can provide us with a foundation.

Preview April Board Meeting

Molly Dinardo, Board staff, shared that in April, the Board can expect a briefing
from the Department on the recent implementation of the updated notifiable
conditions rule.

Member Hayes noted that this subject has generated a lot of public interest in the
past and that Board staff may want to anticipate public comments related to this
topic.

Member Kutz commented that the notifiable conditions rule has become a
treadmill. Member Kutz added that it would be helpful for the Board to get
feedback about a year or so after rule implementation to assess what impact
recent rule changes have had.

Michelle Davis, Board Executive Director, said that Member Kutz brought up a
good point, and hearing about implementation from the Department will be
helpful.



Page 4
Health Promotion Committee
Special Meeting

Committee Member Comments, Questions, and Next Steps
e Member Kutz thanked staff for preparing the background work for the meeting.
e HP Committee Chair Abdelmalek thanked staff and presenters.

To request this document in an alternate format or a different language, please contact
the State Board of Health at 360-236-4110 or by email wsboh@sboh.wa.gov. TTY users
can dial 711.

PO Box 47990, Olympia, WA 98504-7990
(360) 236-4110 » wsboh@sboh.wa.gov ¢ sboh.wa.gov



mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
http://www.sboh.wa.gov/

WASHINGTON STATE il
BOARD orHEALTH

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH COMMITTEE
SPECIAL MEETING SUMMARY NOTES

What: Environmental Health (EH) Committee
When: February 8, 2024

Participating: Board of Health (Board) Members Kate Dean (Committee Chair), Paj
Nandi, Mindy Flores; Board staff Michelle Davis, Ashley Bell, Andrew Kamali, Shay
Bauman, Anna Burns, Melanie Hisaw, Molly Dinardo; Department of Health
(Department) staff; and approximately seven members of the public.

Summary Notes:

General Updates

¢ Andrew Kamali, Board staff, provided a legislative session update and provided
the number of bills the Board is tracking.

e Joe Laxon, Department staff, shared information about the house of origin cut-off
the following week. Joe also shared information on long committee meetings, the
Rules Committee being very busy, and the Department tracking several bills. The
Department and the Board are watching floor action, watching for amendments
on the floor, and working on amendments from the perspective of the
Department. Joe said draft budgets are expected next week.

e Specific bills that Joe discussed:

1. HB2301, Organics bill, puts the Department and Ecology in the lead. It relates
to decreasing organic waste through increasing donations and diverting food
waste.

2. SB 6187, Body Scanner bill, this bill raises concerns about higher radiation
scanners in certain departments of corrections facilities.

3. HB 1010, Crab bill, requires rulemaking by the Board. The bill is still in rules
committee and has been relieved of further consideration, question is if it will
be reviewed before cutoff.

e Member Nandi shared appreciation of the work everyone is doing and the
number of bills.

Preview March Meeting

e Molly Dinardo, Board staff, provided the update. Molly and Hannah, Board staff,
have created two community panels to help inform themes for the 2024 State
Health report.

(Continued on the next page)



Page 2
Environmental Health Committee
Special Meeting

e Molly shared additional background on this report and the development of the
two community group panels. Molly said the State Health report is submitted
every two years. The first community group panel is at the March 13 meeting at
the Swinomish Tribal community and April 12 is focused on community groups in
the Eastern part of the state.

¢ Molly shared that the topics were developed using previous reports and Board
Member feedback. The topics include maternal and pregnant person health, data
equity, and culturally appropriate care. Molly shared that the State Health report
focuses on timely issues, community-aligned and actionable items. Board
Members want to learn from local health, making sure the Board identifies areas
to meet in communities. Molly said the community group panels are to be
interactive and discussion based. Molly asked how staff can help Board
Members.

e Member Flores thanked Molly and Hannah.

¢ Member Nandi talked about responsiveness and working with Molly and Hannah.
EH Committee Chair Dean agreed with Member Nandi on responsiveness.

e EH Committee Chair Dean talked about the many determinants of health and
how to stay in our lane but keep the lens broad enough and be inclusive
respectfully. Molly agreed on concerns about over-promising, but to incorporate
community voice and feedback.

e EH Committee Chair Dean mentioned that this is the first report that the new
Governor will be receiving. Member Nandi mentioned the misnomer of State
Health report and to be clear of the intent and framing of it as more of a guiding
document that the Board is putting out for the Governor. Molly talked about the
disclaimer on the report, that it is a snippet of policy direction and a guiding
document.

Preview April Board Meeting

e Ashley Bell, Board staff, talked about the Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR)
playbook and plan. Ashley discussed the background on PEAR and how it drives
systemic change, aiming to dismantle oppressive systems and promote equity in
all facets of society. Ashley also shared PEAR recognizes that systems of
oppression are the upstream sources of all our inequities, and therefore,
addressing these systems is crucial to creating a more equitable world. Ashley
discussed the 15 Determinants of Equity.

e EH Committee Chair Dean said they are anxious to learn more about PEAR in
March. Member Nandi said this is near and dear to their heart, they were at the
Department when this was being conceived. Member Nandi stated they are
happy to help and support and curious to see outcomes. EH Committee Chair
Dean said they are looking forward to learning how this nests with other equity
work and how it differs. Ashley asked for any helpful feedback.

Other Environmental Health (EH) Rulemaking Updates
e Andrew Kamali, Board staff, said the Board is moving several items to June,
including shellfish, instead of April. Katitza Holthaus, Department staff, said in
November the Board delegated this rulemaking. Initially, the Department staff



Page 3
Environmental Health Committee
Special Meeting

thought they could give the Board an abbreviated rulemaking update in April.
Katitza said that currently, the CR-102 is moving, but a public hearing will be later
in April, so they need to move this agenda item to June.

EH Committee Chair Dean asked when Department staff anticipate the final rule
to be completed. Katitza said if all goes well, the CR-103 should be done
sometime in May, so rules become effective 30 days after. That gives a year for
the development of the Climate Resilience Plans by the utilities, Mike Means,
Department staff said not all water systems will have this. EH Committee Chair
Dean talked about counties planning updates.

Andrew gave an update on the On-site Sewage System (OSS) rule. Katitza
shared that the CR-103 is moving through an internal process and hoping to file
end of February, the packet is large and takes longer to review. Department staff
are trying to get all OSS rules in order and have timelines worked out. Andrew
said moving forward steadily and can be mostly behind us.

Committee Member Comments, Questions, and Next Steps

EH Committee Chair Dean opened the space for discussion.

Michelle Davis, Board Executive Director, wondered about some unstructured
time to discuss.

EH Committee Chair Dean wondered if the Committee could discuss the School
Rules. Michelle said indoor air quality affects many areas of our rulemaking
authority, school rules, transient accommodations, and more. Andrew, Board
staff, wondered if it would be helpful to draft an overview to help facilitate
discussion. Andrew recognized that the indoor air quality panel was in-depth and
had a lot of information. Member Nandi liked that idea and wondered about some
specific asks the Board can act on or provide support. Andrew can work on that.
EH Committee Chair Dean talked about the effort supported by the Washington
State Association of Local Public Health Officials sponsoring a proviso for a
statewide septage study.

Michelle thanked Member Flores for all the help facilitating the Boards March
meeting. Michelle noted that this is the first time the Board is meeting in a Tribal
facility, and it would not be possible without Member Flores efforts. Member
Flores thanked the Swinomish Tribe for all their collaboration.

To request this document in an alternate format or a different language, please contact
the State Board of Health at 360-236-4110 or by email wsboh@sboh.wa.gov. TTY users

can dial 711.

PO Box 47990, Olympia, WA 98504-7990
(360) 236-4110 « wsboh@sboh.wa.gov * sboh.wa.gov



mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
http://www.sboh.wa.gov/

From: bill teachingsmiles.com

To: DOH WSBOH

Subject: Re: Hearing

Date: Wednesday, January 24, 2024 3:28:22 PM
Attachments: image001.png

External Email

“Not to speak is to speak.
Not to act is to act.”

— Dietrich Bonhoeffer

Please remind the Board, the harm is serious.

To my request for the Board to hold a forum to protect the public health, the Board
responded in effect: “later maybe.”

85,085 births reported in WA in 2019, 56% on fluoridation is 47,648 infants born in
fluoridated communities X 4.3/1,000 infant fatalities = 205 deaths in fluoridated
communities. If the data is reasonable reporting an increased rate of about 20% higher
infant mortality in fluoridate states, perhaps every 10 to 14 days a baby dies because of the
Board's silence. 40 a year more deaths in fluoridated communities. The longer the Board
delays, the more babies may die. What about miscarriage? What about IQ loss? What
about our schools and prisons with more because their brains are being poisoned? Thyroid
harm? ADHD increased? Dental fluorosis functional and cosmetic harm? Increased bone
fractures?

Fluoridation possibly saving a quarter or half a filling per child is not worth lower 1Q or a
single infant death.

Bill Osmunson DDS MPH

From: DOH WSBOH <WSBOH@SBOH.WA.GOV>

Sent: Wednesday, January 24, 2024 9:23 AM

To: bill teachingsmiles.com <bill@teachingsmiles.com>
Subject: RE: Hearing

Dear Mr. Osmunson,

Thank you for reaching out. Board staff will bring your request to the next full Board
meeting for Board Member input. The next meeting will be March 13, 2024.

Please note that when staff recently brought the topic of fluoride exposure to the


mailto:bill@teachingsmiles.com
mailto:WSBOH@SBOH.WA.GOV

WASHINGTON STATE il
BOARDorHEALTH




From: bill teachingsmiles.com

To: DOH WSBOH

Subject: Re: Hearing

Date: Wednesday, January 24, 2024 1:18:14 PM
Attachments: image001.png

External Email

Thank you for responding, although I'm disappointed.

Bill

From: DOH WSBOH <WSBOH@SBOH.WA.GOV>

Sent: Wednesday, January 24, 2024 9:23 AM

To: bill teachingsmiles.com <bill@teachingsmiles.com>
Subject: RE: Hearing

Dear Mr. Osmunson,

Thank you for reaching out. Board staff will bring your request to the next full Board
meeting for Board Member input. The next meeting will be March 13, 2024.

Please note that when staff recently brought the topic of fluoride exposure to the
Board’s May 2023 Environmental Health and Health Promotion Committee meetings,
Committee Members stated they were not interested in holding a forum on water
fluoridation.

We will follow up after the Board meeting with Board Member feedback on your
request.
Best,

WASHINGTON STATE Wil
BOARD orHEALTH

Phone: (360) 236-4110
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 47990, Olympia, WA 98504-7990

Location - Website - Email - Fac k - Twitter - Subscribe

From: bill teachingsmiles.com <bill@teachingsmiles.com>
Sent: Saturday, January 20, 2024 9:32 AM

To: DOH WSBOH <WSBOH@SBOH.WA.GOV>

Subject: Hearing

—


mailto:bill@teachingsmiles.com
mailto:WSBOH@SBOH.WA.GOV
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.google.com%2Fmaps%2Fplace%2F101%2BIsrael%2BRd%2BSE%2C%2BTumwater%2C%2BWA%2B98501%2F%4046.9850435%2C-122.9083621%2C17z%2Fdata%3D!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x549173f074205aa3%3A0x552ddc5f79ee44b6!8m2!3d46.9850435!4d-122.9061681%3Fhl%3Den&data=05%7C02%7CWSBOH%40SBOH.WA.GOV%7Cefb9b7e54c5a4db6e51c08dc1d21f83a%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638417278940196082%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=R2lL%2FrHLRuxlnxB6LKBeh2FXZ2f3iDOWa%2BHM4PhCqGQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fsboh.wa.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7CWSBOH%40SBOH.WA.GOV%7Cefb9b7e54c5a4db6e51c08dc1d21f83a%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638417278940206411%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=2nKqbuFxUrJ5HSF%2BY0XgCY%2FP%2FuGyQCSpOQY8iiaKtnE%3D&reserved=0
mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FWashingtonStateBoardofHealth&data=05%7C02%7CWSBOH%40SBOH.WA.GOV%7Cefb9b7e54c5a4db6e51c08dc1d21f83a%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638417278940213710%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=gs9TgE%2F5UOiCmgmNrpn5MKoPPbMYA3vqZw4fCH2Vi1s%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FWASBOH&data=05%7C02%7CWSBOH%40SBOH.WA.GOV%7Cefb9b7e54c5a4db6e51c08dc1d21f83a%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638417278940219644%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=IIjHZdq07AwlPn7mCbPRrR%2Fb2%2BdXzPM1Z40iUmzBKcI%3D&reserved=0
mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov?subject=Please%20Add%20My%20Name%20to%20the%20WSBOH%20Email%20Distribution%20List

WASHINGTON STATE il
BOARDorHEALTH




I External Email I

Dear Patty Hayes,

Several years ago, we made 19 petitions to the Board of Health to protect the public
health from excess fluoride exposure. All were denied. In part because the Board
members failed to understand the science and laws and simply followed the dental
lobby. In fact, the Board took a more aggressive approach on their website promoting
fluoridation with false misleading statements. The Board is complicit in the serious
harm from excess fluoride exposure.

The scientific evidence has increased and measurements of harm have increased. The
National Toxicology Program determination that fluoride is a presumed developmental
neurotoxin, measurements of thyroid harm, bone harm, teeth harm, a cost benefit
analysis, increased infant mortality. . . yes, the death of infants. .. and more need to be
understood by the Board for judgment.

A 2 or 3 minute presentation at the Board meetings is inadequate to provide an
understanding of the harm from excess fluoride. And simply saying "The Board is
increasing the deaths of babies" maybe precise and possible, but without foundation
appears sensational and cannot be scientifically understood.

RCW 43.20.050 in part says, "It is further empowered to hold hearings and
explore ways to improve the health status of the citizenry."

How do | go about requesting the Board to hold hearings and explore ways to improve
the health status of the citizenry regarding fluoride exposure, where experts on both
sides of the fluoridation controversy can present evidence?

I am unaware of hearings at our last petitions. And hearings can be manipulated
depending on the choice of the speakers. For example, if only the tobacco lobbyists
were invited to a hearing on tobacco safety, the conclusion can be predicted before the
hearings.

Local, national and international quality well published researchers, Federal
Government scientists with world-wide respect and knowledge could be asked to
present at no charge to the Board.

Under the Toxic Substances Control Act, a 9-day hearing in the Superior Court of
Northern California on just the developmental neurotoxicity of fluoride will begin in 10


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fapp.leg.wa.gov%2FRCW%2Fdefault.aspx%3Fcite%3D43.20.050&data=05%7C02%7CWSBOH%40SBOH.WA.GOV%7Cefb9b7e54c5a4db6e51c08dc1d21f83a%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638417278940225999%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=2vygCtQxNvmus82dzcH%2F37%2BzqJ%2BuAXgs00XWZpayTJM%3D&reserved=0

days. Short segments of their sworn testimony from both plaintiffs and defendant (EPA)
could be presented and save the Board days of hearings. Other risks, dosage, benefit,
and jurisdiction will not be covered in that Court case.

My request is for hearings on fluoride exposure. How do | go about that request?

Sincerely,
Bill Osmunson DDS MPH
425.466.0100



ANNUAL REPORT - 2023

Newborn Screening Program




Reporting Requirements

(1) The department shall report to the board annually the following information

concerning tests conducted under WAC 246-650-020:
(a) The costs of tests as charged by the department;
(b) The results of each category of tests, by county of birth and racial or ethnic group, as
reported on the newborn screening specimen/information form; and
(c) Follow-up procedures and the results of such follow-up procedures.
(2) The department shall compile an annual report for the public that includes:
(@) The compliance rate of each hospital in meeting the deadlines established under
RCW 70.83.020 for newborn screenings; and
(b) The performance rate of each individual hospital.
(3) The reports must be made available in a format that does not disclose the identifying
information related to any infant, parent or guardian, or health care provider.
(4) The report must be posted in an accessible location on the department of health's website.

Washington State Department of Health | 2


https://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=246-650&full=true#246-650-020
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=70.83.020

Progrowpda’res

Screening Costs

Fee charged for each infant through the facility that
collected the initial specimen
The charge was increased from $119.30 to $135.10 on

7/1/23

Cystic Fibrosis DNA testing expanded

New real-time PCR instruments with higher testing capacity
Courier implementation (ongoing)

Next-day delivery for newborn specimens from any birth setting

Washington State Department of Health | 3



Progrorﬂdea’res

Cases by County
King - 82
Pierce - 29
Snohomish - 18
Spokane - 17/
Clark - 10

Douglas - 1 (out of only 6 births in the county!)

Washington State Department of Health | 4



Progrowpda’res

Cases by Race & Ethnicity (N =217)

34.5% of babies were non-white
55.6% of cases were non-white

Most common condition in all races was

congenital hypothyroidism, except in black
babies (hemoglobin disorders)

Washington State Department of Health | 5



Progrowpda’res

Follow-up of Confirmed Cases
205/206 were seen by specialists
1 baby died (unrelated to their NBS condition)

Median Age at Treatment
Amino acid disorders - 7d
Hemoglobin disorders - 10.5d
Cystic fibrosis - 15d
Organic acid disorders - 124.5d

Washington State Department of Health | 6



Progrorﬂdea’res

New Conditions

OTCD deficiency
GAMT deficiency
ARG1 deficiency

Candidate Conditions

cCMV infection - 2025 review
MPS-Il - 2025 review
BCKDK deficiency - likely 2025 review

Washington State Department of Health | 7



Progrowpda’res

Regional Newborn Screening Program
Washington State
Hawaii (2018)
Idaho (2021)

Organizational Changes - New Positions
NBS deputy director
Method development chemist
NBS quality improvement specialist
NBS health information exchange epidemiologist

Washington State Department of Health | 8



Public Report

Yaf HEALTH

- Report will be available as a Power
Bl dashboard on the Newborn
Screening Program website

In this section Newborn Screening Program Annual
Reports

I Statistics and Reports

* Includes compliance metrics,
transit performance, and
specimen quality indicators

Washington State Department of Health | 9



Infants Detected with Newborn Screening Disorders by County of Residence

(births by county ot occurrence

Births e E£48 gsg g% s BT £ S T % 5§ 2 2 £ Allinfants Detected
€2 5% ST 8 g 2 - 5 Eg 2 55 EE 2 e 2
<® ] o z O £ LEROJRS [t I < e S & o £ =

Adams 405 > = = 1 - - - - - - - = = = 1
Asotin 4 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - _
Benton 4,699 = = = 32 1 - - - - - - 1 - = 5
Chelan 1,417 - - 1 1 - - - - - - - - - - 2
Clallam 452 - - 1 = = - - - - - - - - R 1
Clark 5,479 - - 1 8 - - - 1 - - - - - - 10
Columbia 1 - = - = = o - - - - - - - - R
Cowlitz 813 - - - 2 - - - - - - - - - - 2
Douglas 6 - - 1 - - - = = S s - - - - 1
Franklin 23 - - 1 3 - - - - - - - - - - 4
Grant 1,072 - - - - - = - - - - - - - _ _
Grays Harbor 326 - - - 1 - - - - - - - - - - 1
Island 265 1 - - 2 - - 1 - = = = 1 o 1 6
Jefferson 96 - - - - - - - - - - -
King 27,971 2 - 3 57 2 3 1 6 - - - 3 1 4 82
Kitsap 1,984 - - - 5 1 - - - - - - - - - 6
Kittitas 249 = = = 1 = - - - - - - = = = 1

Klickitat 24 - - - - - - - - - - - R - R
Lewis 714 = = = 2 = - - - - - - - = - 2
Lincoln 5 - - - - - - - - - R _ _ _ _ _
Mason 391 - - - - = = > - - - - - - _ _
Okanogan 325 - - - 2 - - - - - - - - - - 2
Pacific 2 - - - = = . = - - - - - - R R
Pend Oreille 44 - - - - - - - - - - - - - R -
Pierce 11,226 2 - 1 13 3 1 - 5 - - - 3 - 1 29

San Juan 7 - - - - - - - - - - - - _ R
Skagit 1,403 - - - 2 - - - - = = = . 5 - 2
Skamania 4 - - - - - - - - - - - R - - _
Snohomish 5,970 = = = 12 1 = = 1 1b = = 1 1 1 18
Spokane 6,675 - - 1 9 3 1 - - 1 - - - 1 1 17
Stevens 223 - - - - = = S - - - - - _ - _
Thurston 2,626 - - - 5 1 - - 1 - - - - - 2 9
Walla Walla 618 = = = 1 = - - - - - - = = = 1
Whatcom 2,041 1 - - 5 1 - - - - - - - - - 7
Whitman 480 - - - 2 - - - = = = = = - 1 3
Yakima 2,644 - - - 3 - - - 1 - - 1 - - - 5

All WA Births 80,698°

3includes 1 infant born in Benton County and resides out of state; P includes 1 infant born in Snohomish County and resides out of state ; includes 14 infants with an unknown county of birth



ity

IC
All Infants
Detected
All Infants
Detected

AydosysApoynajouaipe

AydouaisApoynajouaipe
paYUI-X y po)yn3d| P

pajul-X

Aydouye sejnasnw jeuids Aydone
Jejnasnw |euids

Aduapiyepounwiwiyg

A 191 n I
paulquiod 319A3S Juaidpounwiwi

paulquod 919A9S

adwod adwod

Reported Race and Ethn

| adAs | 9dAy
sisoplieyasesAjodooniy

S

sisoplieyasesAjodoonip

siapJosip pioe suesiQ
siapJosip pioe duesio

salyjedouiqojSowaH
salyjedouiqojSowaH

ejwoasoliejen
ejwoasoliejen

-+
C
2
£
>~
O
i
)
O

siapJosip
uolepixo pioe Ajjeq

1ISOr

siapaosip
uonepixo pie Ayeq

ing D

sisoaquy o11sA) sisoaquy 211sA)

AyrodA
wssiptosAyrodAy jeyuasuo) Em__.”_.“._w%hwu .
eise|dsadAy

eise|dsadAy
Jeud.pe |jeyuasuo)

|eud.pe jeyuasduo)
Aduaiyop asepiunolg

Aduaniyep asepiunoig

SJ9pJOSIp pide oulwy

th Newborn Screen

SI3pJoSIp pIde oujwy

1,150

Native American
Multiple
Unknown
Ethnicity
Hispanic

aincludes 1 infant of an unknown race with CH who resides out of state; Pincludes 1 infant of unknown race with an organic acid disorder who resides out of state

Infants Detected w




Follow-Up Status of Infants Detected with Severe Newborn Screening Disorders

Follow-Up

disorders

e
£
(]
(7]
o
e
1]

i
©
O

Amino acid disorders
Biotinidase deficiency
Congenital adrenal
hyperplasia
Congenital
hypothyroidism
Cystic fibrosis
Fatty acid oxidation
Hemoglobinopathies
Organic acid disorders
Mucopolysaccharidosis
Severe combined
immunodeficiency
Spinal muscular atrophy
adrenoleukodystrophy

Referred to medical
specialist — (i.e.,
pediatric 6 i 10 1392 13 4 i 15 2 i i 2 3 11 205
endocrinologist,
hematologist, or
comprehensive clinic)

Followed by primary
care provider, with
some consultation from
specialist

Infant died or Lost to
Follow-Up

aincludes both mild and severe CH cases; ? includes 1 micropreemie with CH who expired on day of life 50

Washington State Department of Health | 6



Age at which Treatment Began for Infants Detected with Severe Newborn Screening
Disorders

Age Treatment Began (Days)

Disorder Number of Infants
Median Range
Amino acid disorders 6 7 6-24
Biotinidase deficiency - - -
Congenital adrenal hyperplasia 10 11.5 3-74
Congenital hypothyroidism 1382 202 2-1362
Cystic fibrosis 13 15 7-31
Fatty acid oxidation disorders 4 13.5 3-26
Galactosemia - - -
Hemoglobinopathies 8 10.5 3-18
Organic acid disorders 2 124.5 33-216
Mucopolysaccharidosis type | - - -
Pompe - - -
Severe combined immunodeficiency 2 25.5 1-50
Spinal muscular atrophy 3 21 9-32
X-linked adrenoleukodystrophy 11 48 25-115
Total 197 1-216

3includes both mild and severe CH cases

Washington State Department of Health | 7



WASHINGTON STATE Yl
BOARDorHEALTH

Date: March 13, 2024
To: Washington State Board of Health Members
From: Kate Dean, Environmental Health Subcommittee Chair

Subject: Request for Delegated Rulemaking Authority — WAC 246-272A-0110, Table I,
Category 2.

Background and Summary:

The Department of Health (Department) is requesting the delegation of rulemaking
authority from the State Board of Health (Board) to update the small on-site sewage
system rule regarding eligibility requirements for proprietary treatment products, WAC
246-272A-0110, Table I, Category 2, to align with industry and subject matter expert
recommendations.

RCW 43.20.050(3) authorizes the Board to adopt rules concerning on-site sewage
systems (OSS) with design flows less than three thousand five hundred gallons a day.
WAC 246-272A-0110, Table |, Category 2 lists the core testing requirements for
Category 2 proprietary treatment products for small on-site systems.

At the January 2024 Board meeting, the Board adopted the permanent rule for chapter
246-272A WAC. The permanent rule identifies EPA Method 1664 as the testing protocol
for Category 2 treatment products. The protocol tests the ability of the product to treat
oil and grease but does not include a test for organic sewage strength and suspended
solids.

The Board may delegate any of its rulemaking authority to the Department under RCW
43.20.050(4). Board Policy number 2000-001 further outlines conditions and
circumstances for “Considering Delegation of Rules to Department of Health.”
Delegated rulemaking authority would allow the Department to revise WAC 246-272A-
0110, Table I, Category 2 to incorporate the necessary testing requirements.

Joining us today from the Department’s Office of Wastewater Management is Roger

Parker, the OSS Technical Assistance Lead. He will discuss the Department’s request
for delegated rulemaking authority.

(continued on the next page)



Washington State Board of Health
March 13, 2024, Meeting Memo
Page 2

Recommended Board Actions:
The Board may wish to consider, amend if necessary, and adopt one of the following
motions:

The Board delegates to the Washington Department of Health rulemaking
authority to amend WAC 246-272A-0110, Table |, Category 2 to incorporate the
necessary testing requirements for Category 2 treatment products.

Or

The Board denies the Department’s request to delegate rulemaking authority to amend
WAC 246-272A-0110, Table I, Category 2.

Staff
Andrew Kamali

To request this document in an alternate format or a different language, please contact
the Washington State Board of Health at 360-236-4110 or by email at
wsboh@sboh.wa.gov. TTY users can dial 711.

PO Box 47990 « Olympia, WA 98504-7990
360-236-4110 « wsboh@sboh.wa.gov ¢ sboh.wa.gov



mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
http://www.sboh.wa.gov/

Board Authority

RCW 43.20.050

Powers and duties of state board of health—Rule making—
Delegation of authority—Enforcement of rules.

(1) The state board of health shall provide a forum for the development of
public health policy in Washington state. It is authorized to recommend to the
secretary means for obtaining appropriate citizen and professional involvement in
all public health policy formulation and other matters related to the powers and
duties of the department. It is further empowered to hold hearings and explore
ways to improve the health status of the citizenry.

In fulfilling its responsibilities under this subsection, the state board may
create ad hoc committees or other such committees of limited duration as
necessary.

(2) In order to protect public health, the state board of health shall:

(a) Adopt rules for group A public water systems, as defined in
RCW 70A.125.010, necessary to assure safe and reliable public drinking water and
to protect the public health. Such rules shall establish requirements regarding:

(i) The design and construction of public water system facilities, including
proper sizing of pipes and storage for the number and type of customers;

(ii) Drinking water quality standards, monitoring requirements, and
laboratory certification requirements;

(iii) Public water system management and reporting requirements;

(iv) Public water system planning and emergency response requirements;

(v) Public water system operation and maintenance requirements;

(vi) Water quality, reliability, and management of existing but inadequate
public water systems; and

(vii) Quality standards for the source or supply, or both source and supply, of
water for bottled water plants;

(b) Adopt rules as necessary for group B public water systems, as defined in
RCW 70A.125.010. The rules shall, at a minimum, establish requirements regarding
the initial design and construction of a public water system. The state board of
health rules may waive some or all requirements for group B public water systems
with fewer than five connections;

(c) Adopt rules and standards for prevention, control, and abatement of
health hazards and nuisances related to the disposal of human and animal excreta
and animal remains;


http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.20.050
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=70A.125.010
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=70A.125.010

(d) Adopt rules controlling public health related to environmental conditions
including but not limited to heating, lighting, ventilation, sanitary facilities, and
cleanliness in public facilities including but not limited to food service
establishments, schools, recreational facilities, and transient accommodations;

(e) Adopt rules for the imposition and use of isolation and quarantine;

(f) Adopt rules for the prevention and control of infectious and noninfectious
diseases, including food and vector borne illness, and rules governing the receipt
and conveyance of remains of deceased persons, and such other sanitary matters
as may best be controlled by universal rule; and

(g) Adopt rules for accessing existing databases for the purposes of
performing health related research.

(3) The state board shall adopt rules for the design, construction, installation,
operation, and maintenance of those on-site sewage systems with design flows of
less than three thousand five hundred gallons per day.

(4) The state board may delegate any of its rule-adopting authority to the
secretary and rescind such delegated authority.

(5) All local boards of health, health authorities and officials, officers of state
institutions, police officers, sheriffs, constables, and all other officers and
employees of the state, or any county, city, or township thereof, shall enforce all
rules adopted by the state board of health. In the event of failure or refusal on the
part of any member of such boards or any other official or person mentioned in
this section to so act, he or she shall be subject to a fine of not less than fifty
dollars, upon first conviction, and not less than one hundred dollars upon second
conviction.

(6) The state board may advise the secretary on health policy issues
pertaining to the department of health and the state.

[ 2021 c 65 § 37; 2011 c 27 § 1; 2009 c 495 § 1; 2007 ¢ 343 § 11; 1993 c 492 §

489; 1992 c 34 § 4. Prior: 1989 1st ex.s. c9 § 210; 1989 c 207 § 1; 1985 c 213 §

1; 1979 c 141 8§ 49; 1967 ex.s. ¢ 102 8 9; 1965 c 8 § 43.20.050; prior: () 1901 c 116 §
1; 1891 c 98 § 2; RRS 8§ 6001. (i) 1921 c 7 § 58; RRS § 10816.]



https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2021-22/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/1192.SL.pdf?cite=2021%20c%2065%20%C2%A7%2037
https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2011-12/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/1488.SL.pdf?cite=2011%20c%2027%20%C2%A7%201
https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2009-10/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/Senate/6171-S.SL.pdf?cite=2009%20c%20495%20%C2%A7%201
https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2007-08/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/Senate/5894-S.SL.pdf?cite=2007%20c%20343%20%C2%A7%2011
https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/1993-94/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/Senate/5304-S2.SL.pdf?cite=1993%20c%20492%20%C2%A7%20489
https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/1993-94/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/Senate/5304-S2.SL.pdf?cite=1993%20c%20492%20%C2%A7%20489
https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/1991-92/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/2747-S.SL.pdf?cite=1992%20c%2034%20%C2%A7%204
https://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1989ex1c9.pdf?cite=1989%201st%20ex.s.%20c%209%20%C2%A7%20210
https://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1989c207.pdf?cite=1989%20c%20207%20%C2%A7%201
https://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1985c213.pdf?cite=1985%20c%20213%20%C2%A7%201
https://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1985c213.pdf?cite=1985%20c%20213%20%C2%A7%201
https://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1979c141.pdf?cite=1979%20c%20141%20%C2%A7%2049
https://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1967ex1c102.pdf?cite=1967%20ex.s.%20c%20102%20%C2%A7%209
https://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1965c8.pdf?cite=1965%20c%208%20%C2%A7%2043.20.050
https://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1901c116.pdf?cite=1901%20c%20116%20%C2%A7%201
https://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1901c116.pdf?cite=1901%20c%20116%20%C2%A7%201
https://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1891c98.pdf?cite=1891%20c%2098%20%C2%A7%202
https://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1921c7.pdf?cite=1921%20c%207%20%C2%A7%2058

Washington State Board of Health
Policy & Procedure

Policy Number: 2000-001
Subject: Considering Delegation of Rules to Department of Health

Approved Date: November 8, 2000 (Revised August 13, 2014)

Policy Statement

In some instances, the Washington State Board of Health may determine it is
appropriate to delegate its authority for rulemaking to the Department of Health (RCW
43.20.050). The Board and the Department recognize the need to balance both broad
constituent participation and administrative efficiency when making decisions about any
rule delegation. For this reason, the Board and the Department have agreed on certain
policy considerations to assist Board members in their decisions related to rule
delegation.

The Board'’s decision to delegate a specific rule will be made on a case-by-case basis.
The Board will determine the breadth of the delegation, which may range from specific
aspects of a single rule section to a broader body of regulatory authority, such as an
entire chapter of rules. Each Board delegation is for a single rulemaking process unless
specified in an approved motion to be a continuing delegation until rescinded. Once a
rule has been delegated, the Department will keep the Board informed about the rule
making process through periodic progress reports. The Board may rescind its
delegation at any time.

When considering delegation of authority to modify or adopt a rule, the Board may
consider the following:

e The extent to which the proposed rule revision is expected to include editorial and/or
grammatical changes that do not change the substance of the rule;

e The extent to which the proposed rule seeks to adopt federal requirements in which
the state has little or no discretion;

e The extent to which the substance and direction of the proposed rule is expected to
have broad public and professional consensus;

e The extent to which the proposed rule may make significant changes to a policy or
regulatory program; and



Page 2 of 3

e The extent to which the rule revision process would benefit from the Board’s role as
a convener of interested parties.



Page 3 of 3

Procedure

When the Board receives a request from the Department to delegate authority for
rulemaking, the Executive Director will review the request compared with the above
policy considerations. The Executive Director will prepare or direct staff to prepare a
recommendation for the Board to consider at its next most convenient meeting. The
Executive Director will consult with the Board Chair and members of any appropriate
policy committee to formulate the recommendation. The Board will then act on the
request, which may include delegating authority to the Department as requested or
otherwise specifying the rulemaking authority it delegates.

If the Board is not scheduled to meet again within two months and the Department
justifies a pressing need to begin rulemaking, the Board’s Chair may call a special
meeting of the Board to consider the request. The Executive Director will send the
request for delegation to all Board members prior to the meeting.



STATE OF WASHINGTON

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

DIVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH
PO Box 47820 O Olympia, Washington 98504-7820
(360) 236-3000 O TTY Relay Service: (800) 833-6388

March 13, 2024

TO: Michelle Davis, Executive Director
Washington State Board of Health

FROM: Lauren Jenks, Assistant Secretary
Division of Environmental Public Health

SUBJECT: State Board of Health Rule Making Authority Delegation Request-
WAC 246-272A-0110, Proprietary treatment products, Onsite Sewage Systems

The Department of Health (department) is requesting delegation of rule-making authority from the State
Board of Health (board) to change product testing requirements in WAC 246-272A-0110, Table |,
Category 2.

Changes to the rule under this delegation request, if approved, will be limited to adding NSF/ANSI 40
testing to category 2.

Category 1 products treat residential-strength sewage from homes. The rule requires that Category 1
products are tested under NSF/ANSI 40 -Residential Wastewater Treatment Systems (versions dated
between January 2009 and May 31, 2021). This protocol tests the product’s capacity to treat organic
sewage strength (CBODs) and suspended solids (TSS).

Category 2 products treat high-strength sewage from restaurants and other facilities that generate high
levels of oil and grease. Prior to the recent rule revision, the rule required testing for Category 2 products
under the EPA/NSF Protocol for the Verification of Wastewater Treatment Technologies/EPA
Environmental Technology Verification (April 2001). This protocol tested for organic sewage strength
(CBODs) and suspended solids (TSS), as well as oil and grease. EPA archived this testing protocol in 2013.
Most laboratories have stopped testing for it. This has created a barrier for manufacturers to register
new Category 2 products. None have been registered for several years.

During the recent rule revision, the department recommended updating the Category 2 product testing
requirements to EPA Method 1664, Revision B (February 2010). This method tests the product’s capacity
to treat oil and grease. This recommendation, however, neglected to assure that Category 2 products
have also been tested for organic sewage strength (CBODs) and suspended solids (TSS). A manufacturer
provided formal comment highlighting this oversight and recommending Category 2 products instead be
tested with NSF/ANSI 40 -Residential Wastewater Treatment Systems (versions dated between January
2009 and May 31, 2021).



The department has determined that Category 2 products should be tested by both EPA Method 1664,
Revision B (February 2010) and NSF/ANSI 40 -Residential Wastewater Treatment Systems (versions dated
between January 2009 and May 31, 2021). This will ensure the product is tested for organic sewage
strength (CBODs), suspended solids (TSS), and oil and grease.

The department believes that most existing products that manufacturers are interested in registering as
Category 2 products have already undergone testing under NSF/ANSI 40 -Residential Wastewater
Treatment Systems (versions dated between January 2009 and May 31, 2021). Likewise, manufacturers
are expected to test most new products under NSF/ANSI 40 Residential Wastewater Treatment Systems
(versions dated between January 2009 and May 31, 2021). Therefore, adding it as a testing requirement
is not expected to impact most manufacturers.

The department anticipates completing this rule making by December 31, 2024.

Conformance with the State Board of Health Delegation Criteria:
The board’s policy (Policy Number 2000-001) for Considering Delegation of Rule to the Department of
Health provides the following elements for consideration:

The extent to which the proposed rule revision is expected to include editorial and/or grammatical
changes that do not change the substance of the rule:

e The department does not anticipate editorial or grammatical changes to the rule.
The extent to which the proposed rule may make significant changes to a policy or regulatory program.

e The proposed rule revision would add a testing requirement for Category 2 products, which treat
high-strength sewage.

The extent to which the rule revision process would benefit from the board’s role as a convener of
interested parties.

e The department does not anticipate any controversy or opposition to the rule change because
most manufacturers already test their products under NSF/ANSI 40 -Residential Wastewater
Treatment Systems (versions dated between January 2009 and May 31, 2021).

o The department will keep interested parties informed through email updates sent to everyone
that has signed up for our rule updates and all known manufacturers.

For additional information, please contact Jeremy Simmons at 360.236.3346 or
jeremy.simmons@doh.wa.gov.



mailto:jeremy.simmons@doh.wa.gov

Request for Rulemaking Authority
I | Delegation: WAC 246-272A-0110, Table |,

HEALTH _S°%v2

State Board of Health Meeting
March 13, 2024

44




Presenter

Roger Parker

OSS Technical Assistance
Lead
Wastewater Management Section

Division of Environmental Public Health

Office of Environmental Health and Safety

roger.parker@doh.wa.gov

www.doh.wa.gov

V|0[C)[ove[5

@WADeptHealth




Scope of Rulemaking - Potential Change

Testing Requirement for Proprietary Treatment Products — WAC 246-272A-0110, Table |

Treatment Component/Sequence Category Required Testing Protocol

Category 2 Designed to treat effluent anticipated EPA Method 1664, Revision B (February 2010), and

to be greater than treatment level E. NSF/ANSI 40—Residential Wastewater Treatment
Systems (versions dated between January 2009

(Such as at restaurants, grocery stores, mini-marts, and May 31, 2021)

group homes, medical clinics, residences, etc.)

Washington State Department of Health | 3



Testing Protocols/Method Reguirements

O EPA/NSF Protocol for the Verification of Wastewater Treatment Technologies/
EPA Environmental Technology Verification (April 2001) —ARCHIVED

o Organic Sewage Strength (CBOD.)
o Suspended Solids (TSS)
o Oil and Grease

O EPA Method 1664, Revision B (February 2010)
o Oil and Grease

O NSF/ANSI 40—Residential Wastewater Treatment Systems (January 2009 -
May 31, 2021)

o Organic Sewage Strength (CBOD.)
o Suspended Solids (TSS)

Washington State Department of Health | 4



SBOH Delegation Considerations

O Most manufacturers already have tested, or plan to test, their products under
NSF/ANSI 40—Residential Wastewater Treatment Systems (versions dated between
January 2009 and May 31, 2021).

O Few manufacturers are interested in registering products under Category 2.

O Adding it as a testing requirement for Category 2 products is expected to impact few,
if any, manufacturers.

O No expected controversy or opposition from interested parties.

O The department will notify all interested parties by email, provide the proposed
rule language to interested parties, and post information about the rulemaking on
the department’s rulemaking webpage.

Washington State Department of Health | 5



Washington State Department of

HEALTH

T/

To request this document in another format, call 1-800-525-0127. Deaf or hard of

hearing customers, please call 711 (Washington Relay) or email civil.rights@doh.wa.gov.




WASHINGTON STATE Wl
BOARDorHEALTH

Swinomish Indian Tribal Community (SITC)

Jennifer La Pointe,
SITC General Manager and Tribal community member



"alIC

wellness center

Beverly Keyes, DNP, RN

Beverly Keyes, DNP, RN, is the Chief Executive Officer of
didg"¥ali¢ Wellness Center.

Dr. Keyes held Senior leadership roles in Washington state at
rural and urban hospitals and Skagit Valley College. She has
been an active member of Skagit County serving on many
boards including the Population Health Trust Advisory
Committee. Dr. Keyes held a governor-appointed position on
the Skagit EMS Executive Board. She also served as a La Conner
Council Member and Planning Commissioner where she
developed working relationships with the Swinomish Tribe.

In 2019, Dr. Keyes came to the didg¥ali¢ Wellness Center as a
primary care consultant, transitioned to practice administrator,
and in 2021 became CEO.

Dr. Keyes is honored to serve the Swinomish Tribal Indian
Community.




SVC | Skagit Valley College
dax“xayabus-Dental Therapy Program

X

dax“xayohus

lace o Smiles

Dr. Cheyanne E. Warren, Program Director

Dr. Cheyanne Warren is the Dental Therapy Program Director. She was born and raised in Vermont and completed all of
her undergraduate and post-graduate education in Virginia. She holds a Bachelor of Science degree from James Madison
University (JMU), a Master’s in Biochemistry from Virginia Commonwealth University (VCU), followed by her dental
degree from VCU. After completing her Advanced Education in General Dentistry (AEGD) residency at VCU, she and her
husband returned to Vermont to begin practicing general dentistry.

Dr. Warren began her clinical career at a community health center in Plainfield, Vermont where she had the opportunity to
supervise and mentor General Practice Residency (GPR) students. Simultaneously, she began supervising dental
hygiene students at Vermont Technical College (the only dental education program in the state of Vermont) as they
performed clinical procedures.

In May of 2017, Dr. Warren transitioned from practicing general dentistry and became the Dental Therapy Program
Director at Vermont Technical College (VTC). In her capacity as the Dental Therapy Program Director at VTC, she was
tasked with creating a CODA accredited hygiene-based dental therapy curriculum for the State. While at VTC, Dr. Warren
began supervising dental externs from the University of New England School of Dentistry to prepare for the dental therapy
clinical education, expand community access to care, and increased the interprofessional collaboration between all oral
health providers.

Dr. Warren values community service and has volunteered in dental service projects including Mission of Mercy in
Virginia, provided care at a free dental clinic in Charlottesville, VA and Internationally with Hands for Honduras before the
pandemic shut down in 2020. She also served on the Vermont Oral Health Collation, is currently on the executive
committee of the National Collation of Dentists for Health Equity and is passionate about increasing quality oral health
access. Her research background has solidified a firm belief that sound evidence should dictate oral health practice
across all providers.

Dr. Warren and her family live in Bellingham and enjoy being a part of the incredible community that surrounds Skagit
Valley. In her spare time, you will find her exploring the great outdoors while running, skiing, hiking, biking and fly fishing.
Dr. Warren is committed to ensuring our students are prepared to provide exceptional oral healthcare in their communities
and further develop this incredible educational model in order to expand access to oral health further then we thought
possible.



AR SWINOMISH DENTAL
—0 N (T C () D1 )

Dr. Rachael Hogan, Dental Director

Dr. Rachael Hogan is a general dentist and the Dental Director of the Swinomish Tribal Dental Clinic in
LaConner, WA where she helps lead the effort to address the oral health crisis in Indian County and
supervised the first Alaska trained dental therapist in the Lower 48 States. Dr. Hogan is a strong advocate
for well-rounded dental teams utilizing primary oral health providers and allowing all staff to work at the
top of their scope. She recognizes the importance of holistic care delivered with cultural humility, evidence
based clinical excellence and diversifying the dental profession. Dr. Hogan is also the acting director of
dax%“xayabus, a developing Dental Therapy Education Program at Skagit Valley College in Western
Washington which was initiated by the Swinomish Tribe.

Dr. Hogan completed her dental education at Marquette School of Dentistry in 2002. After graduation, she
moved closer to her Alaska roots to settle and fulfill a National Health Service Corp obligation in
Bellingham, Washington. Prior to being recruited to Swinomish, Dr. Hogan worked for more than 10 years
for Sea Mar, one of the largest non-profit community health clinics in the Pacific Northwest. During that
time, her passion for access to care issues introduced her to the ADA’s Diversity in Leadership Program,
the Steering Committee of the Whatcom County Oral Health Coalition and she was the Membership Chair
for the Mount Baker District Dental Society. Dr. Hogan has volunteered at Migrant Camps, Smile Mobile
and Project Homeless Connect. She piloted programs such as the Placksmakin’ Preschoolers, a Volunteer
Hygiene Program and a symposium on Prenatal Oral Health. She encourages dental students to consider
public health dentistry as a career and mentors externs yearly. When Dr. H is not in the office she is
chasing her four active kids and rock star husband.



WASHINGTON STATE Yl
BOARD orHEALTH

Date: March 13, 2024

To: Washington State Board of Health Members
From: Paj Nandi, Board Member

Subject: Pro-Equity Anti-Racism Plan and Playbook

Background and Summary:

The COVID-19 pandemic highlighted disparities that impact Washington State
communities in different ways, often leading to inequitable outcomes. The Washington
State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism Plan and Playbook, also known as the PEAR Plan and
Playbook, is a way to keep Washington a great place to live, learn, work, play, and stay.
Some Washingtonians have questioned the legitimacy of State Government due to
decisions made without them. Others question the government’s effectiveness because
it is not delivering services that meet their needs. Some do not trust state government
because of its history of oppression and marginalization.

The Governor’'s Executive Order 22-04 implements the Washington State Pro-Equity
Anti-Racism Plan and Playbook. It requires that all state agencies, including boards and
commissions, implement a PEAR Plan to bridge opportunity gaps. The PEAR Plan and
Playbook is an approach that drives systemic change, aims to dismantle oppressive
systems, and promotes equity across all of society. The PEAR Plan states that
agencies will bridge opportunity gaps by reducing disparities, including racial and ethnic
disparities, statewide and across state government.

The Washington State Office of Equity was tasked with the creation of the PEAR Plan
and Playbook. The Office of Equity is also tasked with gathering data from each state
agency on the effectiveness of the PEAR Plan. They will also provide technical support
in the creation of a plan. Every September, state agencies must provide data to the
Office of Equity, as well as submit updated plans. This year, the Board will be
completing their initial PEAR strategic plan.

The Board will need to create a PEAR strategic plan within our sphere of influence,
capacity, and authority. The information provided will provide the Board with general
background information on the PEAR Plan, requirements of the PEAR Plan, and
guidance on how to complete a PEAR strategic plan. The Board will also learn about
the work that has been on-going to support pro-equity efforts. This is an opportunity for
the Board to begin discussion on PEAR strategies that can reduce disparities and

(Continued on the next page)



bridge gaps with communities. This is an informational briefing and requires no formal
action by the Board.

Staff
Ashley Bell

To request this document in an alternate format or a different language, please contact
the Washington State Board of Health, at 360-236-4110 or by email at
wsboh@sboh.wa.gov TTY users can dial 711.

PO Box 47990 « Olympia, WA 98504-7990
360-236-4110 « wsboh@sboh.wa.gov ¢ sboh.wa.gov



mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
mailto:wsboh@sboh.wa.gov
http://www.sboh.wa.gov/

STATE OF WASHINGTON
—= OFFICE OF GOVERNOR JAY INSLEE =—

EXECUTIVE ORDER 22-02

ACHIEVING EQUITY IN WASHINGTON STATE GOVERNMENT

WHEREAS, achieving equal opportunity is foundational to the story of America, and each of us
bears the responsibility to stand up and keep this unalienable right in reach for all
Washingtonians. Each person in this state deserves a fair chance to live life to the fullest,
regardless of race, ethnicity, creed, color, national origin, citizenship or immigration status, sex,
honorably discharged veteran or military status, sexual orientation, or the presence of sensory,
mental, or physical disability; and

WHEREAS, in 1998, Washington state voters passed Initiative 200 (I-200), now codified as
RCW 49.60.400, which reads that “The state shall not discriminate against, or grant preferential
treatment to, any individual or group on the basis of race, sex, color, ethnicity, or national origin
in the operation of public employment, public education, or public contracting.”; and

WHEREAS, in response to the passage of 1-200, the then-sitting governor issued Directive 98-
01 to state agencies to implement the initiative. Subsequent court decisions and legal guidance
have clarified the scope of options available to state agencies to address evident discrimination;
and

WHEREAS, Washington is a state of great beauty with an abundance of opportunities,
resources, and a growing population that has become increasingly ethnically and racially diverse
over the last several decades. Within this beautiful landscape, too many Washingtonians face
systemic barriers, discrimination, and inequities that are deep, pervasive, persistent, and prevent
them from flourishing and achieving their full potential; and

WHEREAS, state government recognizes and embraces its responsibility to dismantle
discrimination and institutional and systemic barriers to fulfill its public service mandate to
ensure that all people have full access to opportunities to flourish and live healthy, successful
lives. In recent years, Washington state government has taken the following actions:

e Public Contracting — the Subcabinet on Business Diversity was formed in 2015 to
improve opportunities for certified firms to contract with Washington state government
and directed the Department of Enterprise Services (DES) to conduct a statewide
disparity study. In 2019, the findings of the study supported the conclusion that people of
color and women do not enjoy equal access to all aspects of state contracting
opportunities. There was compelling evidence that the state should remedy the disparities
and discrimination happening within state public contracting.



The Subcabinet on Business Diversity has begun to implement many of the
recommendations from the disparity study, including but not limited to: a) the
development and implementation of an electronic data collection and monitoring system,
b) examination of current best practices, ¢) outreach to state agencies, certified
businesses, and diverse-owned businesses that are in industries with low minority
utilization by the state, d) improving technical assistance to businesses and agencies, and
e) increasing direct buy limits to $40,000 for small and certified firms.

Public Employment — In 2020, State Human Resources (SHR) Directives 20-02 and 20-
03 were issued to all executive branch agencies. SHR Directive 20-02 requires all
impacted agencies to: a) update or create diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI) plans and
procedures, b) train recruitment staff on mitigating bias in the job application process, c)
set workforce diversity goals, d) conduct regular reviews of agency diversity data by
leadership, e) develop pathways and connections with higher education, and f) review the
diversity of candidate pools for past job opportunities. SHR Directive 20-03 requires all
impacted agencies to create policies for: a) diversity, equity, and inclusion, b) respectful
work environment, c¢) anti-discrimination, harassment, and sexual harassment, and d)
reasonable accommodation.

Equity Office — The Office of Equity was established to: (1) promote access to equitable
opportunities and resources that reduce disparities and improve outcomes statewide
across state government per its authority in RCW 43.06D.020, (2) support state agencies
in our commitment to be an anti-racist government system, (3) serve as a tool to root out
racism and other forms of discrimination in state government, and (4) publish and report
the effectiveness of agency programs on reducing disparities using input from the
communities served by those program.

The Equity Office is partnering with the public workforce and communities to develop
the state’s comprehensive equity strategic plan and outcome measures designed to bridge
opportunity gaps and reduce disparities.

WHEREAS, in December 2020, I declared that Washington will be an anti-racist state, and
committed to take actions that hold our state to that commitment. I proposed an historic equity
package of policies and funding that reflects our dedication toward disrupting the harmful
systemic cycle of racism and inequity.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jay Inslee, Governor of the state of Washington, by virtue of the
power vested in me by the Constitution and statutes of the state of Washington, do hereby
rescind Directive 98-01 immediately and direct as follows:

1.

Public Contracting — As the state agency responsible under chapter 39.19 RCW for
developing programs to maximize opportunities for minority- and women-owned
businesses in public contracting and procurement, the Office of Minority and Women’s
Business Enterprises (OMWBE) is charged with the implementation of Executive Order
(EO) 22-01. EO 22-01 requires all executive and small cabinet agencies to use the newly
developed Tools for Equity in Public Spending. OMWBE will continue to be the lead



agency responsible for implementing the Roadmap to Contracting Equity that was
developed in response to the 2019 Statewide Disparity Study.

2. Public Employment — All executive and small cabinet agencies will continue to follow
SHR Directives 20-02 and 20-03. The Director of SHR will consult with the Office of
Equity to deliver a report to me that reviews and evaluates each agency response to SHR
Directives 20-02 and 20-03.

SHR will proactively address and dismantle oppressive systems and practices in the
workplace and build new, equitable systems to achieve a workforce that is representative
of the diversity of Washington and practices cultural humility. SHR will deliver to me a
strategy to accomplish these objectives by October 2022.

SHR is further directed to: 1) in consultation with the Governor’s Committee on
Disability Issues & Employment, review and recommend any updates to EO 13-02 to
improve employment opportunities for individuals with disabilities with the State of
Washington; and 2) issue a directive to require all cabinet agency employees to complete
DES’s DEI training.

3. Public Education — The Washington Student Achievement Council is directed to prepare
a report describing the differences in patterns of access and success across student
subpopulations, the faculty and staff equity demographics at public educational
institutions, and the scope and progress of existing programs designed to identify and
remedy discrimination in our higher education system. The report will also describe gaps
in these programs and additional recommended actions.

I will also solicit the views of the Superintendent of Public Instruction as to any
additional steps needed to identify and address discrimination in our K-12 school system.

4. Public Services — All executive and small cabinet agencies shall identify ways to bolster
access to state services by reducing barriers and eliminating inequities in all aspects of
agency decision making, including but not limited to, service delivery, program
development, policy development, staffing, and budgeting.

The rescission of Directive 98-01 does not alter other state and federal legal requirements
applicable to affirmative action measures. As agencies implement this Executive Order, they are
directed to consult with the Office of the Attorney General, SHR, and the Office of Equity.

I will convene a cabinet-wide and community summit in October 2022, to report on the state
strategy and agency plans, and discuss the progress on implementing this Executive Order.

I recognize the traumatic and long-lasting impacts of discrimination, racism, and oppression. I
also recognize that Washington state government has the responsibility and the ability to make a
difference for all of us—employees, the people served, and current and future generations of
Washingtonians. This order, alone, will not create equity in our state, but this is a necessary next
step.



Iinvite other statewide elected officials, institutions of higher education, agencies of the
judiciary, agencies of the Legislature, and boards and commissions to follow the provisions of
this Executive Order.

This Order is effective immediately.

Signed and sealed with the official seal of the state of Washington on this 17th day of January,
A.D., Two Thousand and Twenty-Two at Olympia, Washington.

By:

/s/

Jay Inslee, Governor

BY THE GOVERNOR:

/s/
Secretary of State




STATE OF WASHINGTON
—= OFFICE OF GOVERNOR JAY INSLEE =—

EXECUTIVE ORDER 22-04

IMPLEMENTING THE
WASHINGTON STATE PRO-EQUITY ANTI-RACISM (PEAR) PLAN & PLAYBOOK

WHEREAS, the Legislature and I created the Washington State Office of Equity (“Office of
Equity”) in April 2020 to: (1) promote access to equitable opportunities and resources that reduce
disparities and improve outcomes statewide across state government consistent with RCW
43.06D.020; (2) support executive branch state agencies and executive branch boards and
commissions (“‘state agencies”) in our commitment to be an anti-racist government system; (3)
partner with state employees and communities to develop the state’s comprehensive equity strategic
plan and outcome measures designed to bridge opportunity gaps and reduce disparities; and (4)
publish and report the effectiveness of agency programs on reducing disparities using input from the
communities served by those programs; and

WHEREAS, in December 2020, I declared that Washington will be an anti-racist state and
committed to take actions that hold our state to that commitment. Washington is a state where all
are welcomed and will have the opportunity to thrive regardless of race, ethnicity, creed, color,
national origin, citizenship or immigration status, sex, honorably discharged veteran or military
status, sexual orientation, or the presence of sensory, mental, or physical disability; and

WHEREAS, determinants of equity are the driving factors that impact the overall quality of life for
all Washingtonians. King County established the following 14 determinants of equity: economic
justice, state and local practices, jobs and job training, justice systems and laws, health and human
services, food systems, environment and natural resources, community and public service,
transportation and mobility, community and economic development, and housing and home
ownership, early childhood development, and education. I agree that these are appropriate
determinants of equity and would also add digital access and literacy. By adding digital access and
literacy, which is an issue creating additional divides and gaps between Washingtonians, the state
has identified 15 determinants of equity. Eliminating disparities in terms of access, practices and
procedures, quality of services, and programs in these 15 determinants of equity correlate to better
outcomes for people and a Washington where all can thrive; and

WHEREAS, the Office of Equity gathered the collective wisdom of thousands of community
members, state employees, board and commission members, state employees, a host of partners
across many sectors, and members of all branches of state government to co-create the state’s
inaugural five-year Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook (“PEAR
Plan & Playbook™), Washington’s approach for achieving pro-equity and social justice across state
government. The PEAR Plan & Playbook is designed to bridge opportunity gaps and reduces
disparities so everyone in Washington flourishes and achieves their full potential; and


https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.06D.020
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.06D.020

WHEREAS, the PEAR Plan & Playbook establishes a unified vision of equity for state
government, mission, values, and goals, and contains a step-by-step playbook for developing,
implementing, and embedding PEAR into every government action across state government. It
reflects both how we do our daily work and who we are at our core — public servants with a shared
desire for promoting equity, justice, access, and belonging for the people we serve and our
colleagues who serve them; and

WHEREAS, the PEAR Equity Impact Review (EIR) framework describes a five-step process that
blends numerical data and descriptive, community narrative data to inform agency planning,
decision-making, and implementation of actions that achieve equitable access to opportunities and
resources that reduce disparities and improve equitable outcomes statewide. Conducting an EIR is
necessary prior to proposing changes to agency policies, programs, and practices. Our people and
environment are both healthy and flourish when we work together with those experiencing
inequities to ensure that everyone employed or served by state government is treated with fairness,
dignity, honor, and respect; and

WHEREAS, the PEAR framework identifies priority investment in the 15 determinants of equity to
achieve outcomes that benefit all tribes, communities, and employees of Washington’s ecosystem,
and calls for investing more of our state’s resources “upstream” to address root causes where the
needs are greatest to ensure that individuals in underserved communities have their basic needs met
long term in Washington’s ecosystem; and

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jay Inslee, Governor of the state of Washington, by virtue of the power
vested in me by the Constitution and statutes of the state of Washington, do hereby order and direct
as follows:

1. The Washington State Office of Equity (Office of Equity) is charged with the implementation of
Executive Order (EO) 22-04. The Office of Equity will be required to:

a. Communicate the PEAR Plan & Playbook to state agencies in an effective and
accessible way.
b. Provide templates, toolkits, consultation, guidance, technical assistance, and training

necessary for state agencies to develop, implement, and measure the effectiveness of

their pro-equity, racial justice, access, and belonging strategic action plans. This support

will include:

= Developing a form (format, content, and frequency) that will serve as each agency's
strategic action plan.

= (Creating statewide and agency-specific process and outcome measures to show
performance, using outcome-based methodology to determine the effectiveness of
agency programs and services on reducing disparities.

= Convening a team of employees and communities to determine whether the
performance measures established accurately measure the effectiveness of agency
programs and services in the communities served.

= (Creating an online dashboard to publish statewide and agency-specific plans,
performance measures, and outcomes.

= Establishing a process to report on each agency’s performance and a process for each
agency to respond.



g.

Establish- procedures to hold agencies accountable, which may include conducting
performance reviews related to agency compliance with Office of Equity performance
measures.

Convene a team of employees and communities impacted by state programs and services
to develop and publish a report for each agency detailing whether the agency has met the
performance measures established and the effectiveness of agency programs and
services on reducing disparities, including the agency's strengths and accomplishments,
areas for continued improvement, and areas for corrective action.

Post statewide and agency-specific plans performance measures and outcomes and
Equity Office agency performance review reports on the dashboard, by September 30,
2023, and every year thereafter.

Beginning in 2022, develop and submit an annual report to the Legislature and me by
October 31, detailing an overview of agency compliance with the Office of Equity’s
standards and performance measures per RCW 43.06D.040(1)(e)(2).

Fulfill all other duties consistent RCW 43.06D.040.

All state agencies are charged with the implementation of Executive Order (EO) 22-04. The
agency leader is responsible and accountable for achieving agency PEAR outcomes, and these
duties include but are not limited to:

Developing, implementing, and reporting on progress of the PEAR Strategic Action Plan.
Gathering data, helping to improve communications, and updating (or recommending, where
required) policies, and educating employees about ways to create a PEAR culture.
Establishing and delegating authority to the PEAR Team, reporting directly to executive
leadership, comprised of agency executive leaders, the agency equity officer, employees,
and external customers, partners, and experts for key business lines to assist the agency
leader in achieving these goals.

Providing agency PEAR Team’s contact information to the Office of Equity by April 30,
2022.

Partnering with individuals, groups, and communities impacted by agency programs or
services to complete an initial EIR by August 1, 2022, to determine agency baseline.

Based on the results of the EIR, completing a PEAR Strategic Action Plan Template due to
the Office of Equity by September 1, 2022; updated plans are due every year thereafter.
Implementing agency PEAR Strategic Action Plans, beginning September 1, 2022.
Preparing and submitting a PEAR Annual Performance Report to the Office of Equity by
September 1, 2023, and every year thereafter.

Utilizing quarterly performance review process as best practice to monitor progress towards
agency PEAR Strategic Action Plan goals.

Preparing and submitting a response to reports published by the Office of Equity on the
agency’s PEAR Strategic Action Plan performance. The agency's response must include the
agency's progress on performance, the agency's action plan to address areas for
improvement and corrective action, and a timeline for the action plan per RCW
43.06D.040(1)(e)(i1).

Providing executive-level support and resources needed to fulfill requirements under this
Executive Order.

Requesting and receiving consultation, guidance, technical assistance, and training from the
Office of Equity as needed to implement this Executive Order.

3


http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.06D.040

All state agencies will be evaluated under the framework set by the PEAR Plan & Playbook. I will
hold all leaders of state agencies accountable for the effectiveness of your services and programs on
reducing disparities, using input from the communities served by your organizations; however, as is
true of all Executive Orders, nothing in this Order creates a private right of action. The Office of
Equity will be resourced to develop and deliver technical assistance, consultation, and capacity-
building services to assist you every step of the way.

I am excited to roll up my sleeves alongside you, today, to create a PEAR ecosystem in Washington
state — one that bears fruits of peace, prosperity, and possibility for all, now and for generations to
come.

I invite other statewide elected officials, institutions of higher education, agencies of the judiciary,
agencies of the Legislature, and other boards and commissions to follow the provisions of this
Executive Order.

This Order is effective immediately. Signed and sealed with the official seal of the state of

Washington on this 21st day of March, AD, Two Thousand and Twenty-Two, at Olympia,
Washington.

By:

/s/
Jay Inslee, Governor

BY THE GOVERNOR:

/s/
Secretary of State




&\\/ PRO-EQUITY

ANTI-RACISM

AAAAA y Bell, MPA
y a ngage g
Washin gton State Board o f Health

WASHINGTON STATE Wl
BOARD orHEALTH




Agenda

e Pro-Equity and Anti- Racism [PEAR]
e PEAR Plan Requirements

e Current SBOH Work

e PEAR Plan Timelines




A

PRO-EQUITY ANTI-RACISM

Introducing the PEAR Plan

o
WASHINGTON STATE WYl
U BOARD o HEALTH \
OO




Executive Orders

o Executive Order 22-02
o Achieving Equity in Washington State Government

e Executive Order 22-04
o Implementing the Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism
(PEAR) Plan & Playbook

" o Office of Equity and state agencies are charged with

iImplementation



https://governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/exe_order/22-02%20-%20Equity%20in%20State%20Government%20%28tmp%29.pdf
https://governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/exe_order/22-04%20-%20Implementing%20PEAR%20%28tmp%29.pdf

What is PEAR?

e Pro-Equity Anti-Racism, or PEAR

e Drives systemic change, aiming to dismantle oppressive systems and
promote equity in all facets of society

e Recognizes that systems of oppression are the upstream sources of
all our inequities, and therefore, addressing these systems is crucial to
creating a more equitable world

S




Why does PEAR exist?

e Some Washingtonians question the legitimacy of state government
because decisions are consistently made without them

e Some question state government’s effectiveness because it is not
delivering services that meet their needs

‘ e Some do not trust state government because of its history of
oppression and marginalization




What does PEAR do?

e Bridges opportunity gaps and reducing disparities statewide and across
state government, to keep Washington a great place to live, learn, work,
play, and stay

e |nvest where the needs are the greatest to address upstream, root cause,
Issues that perpetuate systemic inequities

e Creates meaningful impact to the determinants of equity

o Social, economic, geographic, political, and physical conditions that
determine equity conditions



https://equity.wa.gov/equity-hub

"
TR

15 Determinants of Equity ﬁ

Parks, Recreation & Healthy Built & Transportation

Equity in State & Early Childhood
Natural Resources MNatural Environments & Mobility

Local Practices Development

|" I;:_'J-:-:‘ "“-|-; __..:-__‘l'.;l_ .:-:"?J,l.l
||| |- | | H .1| 1 [/
[/
Equity in Jobs & Health & Food Systems Economic Justice Strong, Vibrant Housing & Home
Job Training Human Services MNeighborhoods Ownership

Community & Equity in Justice Systems Digital Equity®
Public Safety & Laws




How does PEAR work??

e Act on the 15 Determinants of Equity by focusing, creating a
PEAR Strategic Action Plan

e Invest in intentional and meaningful change in our PEAR
Service lines

e Embed equity into decision making, which include service
delivery, program development, policy development, and
budgeting




PEAR Service Lines

e Leadership, Operations & Services

e Plans, Policies & Budgets

e Workforce Equity

 Tribal Government Relationships

e Public Communications & Education
e Facilities & Systems Improvements

e Policy Agenda

e Building a Racially Just Washington
e Capacity Building

e Data & Strategy Reporting

e Engagement & Community Partnerships




PEAR Ecosystem Goals and Outcomes

e Reduce disparities in public contracting, public education, public
employment, and public services

e Improve outcomes that benefit all tribes, communities, and
employees of Washington’s PEAR ecosystem

' e Enable all people in Washington to flourish and achieve their full

potential, embody pro-equity anti-racism values, and enjoy peace,
prosperity, and possibility now and for generations to come




Implement PEAR Framework

1. Implement a pro-equity, anti-racism framework in partnership with
relevant communities and organizations

2. Embrace continuous learning, growing, and pivoting

3. Consistently assess your equity impact

4. Make values driven, data informed upstream investments

5. Be transparent, accountable, and operate with urgency

rul I




PEAR PLAN REQUIREMENTS

Engagement and Assessments

o
WASHINGTON STATE WYl
' BOARD o HEALTH \
OO




Develop a PEAR Team

e Executive Order 22-04 directs state agencies to create a PEAR team

that consist of:
o Board Sponsor, Executive Leaders, Diversity Professional, Staff,
Community members, Partners, Experts for Business Lines

e The PEAR team is responsible for assisting the Board of Health achieve
PEAR outcomes and the goals

e Without a strong team in place, there is a greater likelihood of gaps in
the work




Conduct an Equity Impact Assessment

e Must be completed prior to creating a PEAR Strategic Action Plan

e The five-step equity impact assessment (EIA) process that uses
o Numerical (quantitative) data
o Community voices (qualitative) data

2. ANALYZE
& PARTNER

7/

O el % @
Bscore £ EQUITY % . TRt
= IMPACT
ASSESSMENT
¢, PROCESS
1?/{ >

&
s )
‘0 B
Mep pouimt ©

N

4. IMPLEMENT




Develop and Implement '
PEAR Strategic Action Plan

e This plan is unique to the State Board of Health and is informed by our
equity impact assessment

e The investments are guided by the determinants of equity and are
designed to serve the impacted communities

e Currently, we have begun work in these areas:

o Community Newsletter, Community Compensation, Equity Assessments,
Language Justice, Meeting Accessibility and Accommodations, Scoping Document




Track and Report Performance n

e Prepare and submit a PEAR Annual Performance Report to the Office of
Equity each year to demonstrate performance

e Use outcome-based methodology to determine the effectiveness of agency
programs and services on reducing disparities

e Receive and take into consideration community feedback on whether the
performance measures established accurately measure the effectiveness
of agency programs and services in the communities served

e Assess and refine our plan as needed based on our performance and
community need




A

CURRENT SBOH WORK

Equity Projects

o
WASHINGTON STATE WYl
U BOARD o HEALTH \
OO




Community Compensation

e Removes barriers to co-creating policies with Community

e Promotes equitable policy development by establishing, sustaining,
and growing relational partnerships

e Moves us from a transactional culture to a relational one

"

e Begins to create trust in the community




Community Engagement

e Focuses on finding and building relationships with Community
e Quarterly Community Newsletter

e Gift cards for participation that is not covered by community
compensation

e Engagement scoping for rules work so that outreach is intentional
and meaningful




Language Justice '

e Interpreter services that use best practices
e Translation services
e Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards

e Workgroup to explore strategies that promote language justice




Access for All

e Digital equity
e Meeting accessibility
e Reasonable accommodations review for participating in public meetings

e Plain Talk language




R

PROPOSED TIMELINES

Implementation Phases

o
WASHINGTON STATE Wl
U BOARD o HEALTH \
OO




Integration Phases

Phase 1. Compliance
e Establish PEAR Teams
e Conduct Assessment
e Develop PEAR Strategic Action Plan
e Annual Performance Report

Phase 2. Transformation
e Embrace community partnership and center community voice

Phase 3: Accountabillity

e Respond to statewide and Board specific process and performance measures
e Foster continued growth and movement towards equity and justice for all




Proposed timeline

Introduce Complete Develop Adopt PEAR Report
PEAR Plan Assessment Strategic Plan Strategic Plan and Review

JAN.MAR.JUNE.OCT. DEC.2025

Inform and Baseline Equity Recommendations Board Review Report Findings
Educate Assessment of Plan

Current work Review Plan

Develop PEAR integration

Team

SBOH Sponsor

Community Possible Action

New
Engagement

Research Recommendations




A

QUESTIONS OR COMMENTS?

Ashley Bell, Equity and Engagement Manager

' WASHINGTON STATE Wl

‘ '. BOARD orHEALTH \\\\\< .




ACCESSIBILITY AND THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA)

e The Washington State Board of Health (Board) is committed to providing information and services that are accessible
to people with disabilities. We provide reasonable accommodations, and strive to make all our meetings, programs,
and activities accessible to all persons, regardless of ability, in accordance with all relevant state and federal laws.

e Our agency, website, and online services follow the Americans with Disabilities (ADA) standards, Section 508 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Washington State Policy 188, and Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 2.0, level
AA. We regularly monitor for compliance and invite our users to submit a request if they need additional assistance or
would like to notify us of issues to improve accessibility.

e We are committed to providing access to all individuals visiting our agency website, including persons with disabillities.
If you cannot access content on our website because of a disability, have questions about content accessibility or
would like to report problems accessing information on this website, please call (360) 236-4110 or email
wsboh@sboh.wa.gov and describe the following details in your message:

e The nature of the accessibility needs
e The URL (web address) of the content you would like to access
e Your contact information

We will make every effort to provide you the information requested
and correct any compliance issues on our website.

WASHINGTON STATE Wl
BOARD orHEALTH \\
AN



https://s/BOH/Agency%20Communications/Website/ADA%20Webpage/wsboh@sboh.wa.gov

R

EQUITY INITIATIVES

Around the State

o
WASHINGTON STATE Wl
U BOARD o HEALTH \
OO




Office of Equity ‘

e Promote access to equitable opportunities and resources that reduce
disparities and improve outcomes

e Support state agencies in our commitment to be an anti-racist
government system

e Serve as a tool to root out racism and other forms of discrimination in
state government

e Publish and report the effectiveness of agency programs on reducing
disparities by using input fromm communities served by these programs


https://equity.wa.gov/

Equity in Public Contracting

Executive Order 22-01

Business diversity

o Root cause analysis to determine participation of minority, women,
and veteran-owned businesses in state contracting

2019 Washington State Disparity Study

o Recommended several race-neutral remedial actions agencies could
take to accomplish greater equity in state contracting activities

Equity in Public Spending



https://equity.wa.gov/
https://omwbe.wa.gov/governors-subcabinet-business-diversity/disparity-study
https://omwbe.wa.gov/state-supplier-diversity-reporting/tools-equity-public-spending

Public Employment

e State Human Resources (SHR) Directive 20-02

o Update or create diversity, equity, and inclusion plans and procedures

o Train recruitment staff on mitigating bias in job application process

o Set workforce diversity goals, conduct regular reviews of agency
diversity data, and develop pathways and connections with higher
education

o Review the diversity of candidate pools for past job opportunities

e State Human Resources (SHR) Directive 20-03

o Create policies for diversity, equity, and inclusion

o Respectful work environment

o Anti-discrimination, harassment, and sexual harassment
o Reasonable Accommodations



https://equity.wa.gov/
https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/shr/Directives/SHR-Directive-20-03.pdf

Foundational DEI Training

e State Human Resources (SHR) Directive 23-01

e Must meet standards for employee diversity, equity, and
inclusion (DEI) training and development

e Every state employee is required to take training grounded In
statewide foundational competencies that promote diversity,
equity, and inclusion to support workplace culture change and
service delivery improvements

o Who We Are: A Chronicle of Racism in America



https://equity.wa.gov/
https://www.thewhoweareproject.org/the-film

Other State Directives

equity, and inclusion

O

O

O

O

Veterans

Persons with Disabilities in State Government
LGBTQ Inclusion and Safe Places

Tolerance, diversity and inclusiveness for Immigrants
Washington State Business Resource Groups

e Executive orders and directives related to workforce diversity,



https://ofm.wa.gov/state-human-resources/workforce-diversity-equity-and-inclusion/executive-orders-and-directives-related-workforce-diversity-equity-and-inclusion

Department of Health Initiatives

e Workforce Pathways Program

o Mentorship and Externship
o Professional Development and EDI Training
o Community Investments and Funding

e Equitable Rulemaking
e Community Collaborative

e Access

o Cultural Appropriateness
o Interpretation and Translations

e Office of Inclusion, Belonging and Well-being




Washington State
Pro-Equity Anti-Racism
(PEAR) Plan & Playbook

2022-2027 Version 1.0

OFFICE OF ~—

EQUIT

Washington State
EQUITY and JUSTICE for ALL




Please email Access@equity.wa.gov to request communication or language services free of
charge, such as interpreters, written information in other languages, or other formats (such as
large print, Braille, audio, video, electronic) to access this document.

Please email your questions about the PEAR Plan & Playbook to PEAR@equity.wa.gov



mailto:Access%40equity.wa.gov?subject=
mailto:PEAR%40equity.wa.gov%20?subject=

Table of Contents

l.Acknowledgments........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieennnns 4
B RT3 e f 8858568 00560089600 00650 0568009000 0083 00505009600 7
B MG {888 66600 8000050000 900000 8 000056000800000 000005000900 8
IV. Background: Why? How? SoWhat?........................e. 9
V. PEAR Plan & Playbook DesignTeam .......cccoeeeeecnnccnns 12
VI. Executive SUMMary....cccovereeeiieeeeeenccscsccsossancnns 14
PEAREcOsystem Goals. .....oviiiiiieeeteereeeeneninesneccceesesccsssnnnnnas 14
VIl. Definitions & Abbreviations ...........ccciiiieeieennnann. 16
ViII.Introduction .....cceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeennnnss 19
IX. Washington’s PEAR Ecosystem Framework .........cccc000. 22
Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Ecosystem ..........c.cceiiiiieinniiennnnnnnnns 23
Determinants of EQUity......ccoiiiiiiiieeeeeeeerensossceccsssscccccasnnns 24
Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) ServiceLines..........cceiiiieeiiiiennennnnnns 25
Impact of Service Line Investments on Determinants of Equity................ 28
X. Washington State’s PEAR Ecosystem
Strategic Plan (2022-2027) ...ccvveveeeeecneccsecsoccsccsncans 31
A.PEAR Ecosystem Vision and MisSioNn.......cccceveeeieecsocccscsssccscnsans 31
B. PEAREcosystemValues .......cciiiiiieeeeeeereecnnncscccssssssssnsnnnss 31
C. PEAR Ecosystem Goals & Overall Strategies.........cccovviiiieernnccnensss 33
D. PEAR ECOSYstem QUtCOMeS. .. ccivvtteieereeneeesssnccsasssccsanssnnnsans 34
Xl. 2022-2027 PEAR Implementation Strategy ................. 35
Implementation Phases .......cciiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeersnesscsssssscasssnssans 36
Implementation Roadmap......ccciiiiiiiieieerecesesesscscscccscscssccnns 37
), (e i [T 1 655500090 00000 000050080900000000009000 9300000 38

Xl REf@reNCES ¢ o v ettt teteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesecesaesessesesesssnssessanenes 39



l. Acknowledgments

We acknowledge our ancestors, our elders, and those who began the quest for equity, social
justice, access, and belonging for all people long before the state of Washington put forth this
five-year Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Ecosystem Plan & Playbook
(“PEAR Plan & Playbook”). We recognize and honor the commitments and sacrifices made
by so many champions for equity in Washington state government, in our communities, in our
region, across the nation, and worldwide.

Special thanks to Representative Mia Gregerson, Representative Melanie Morgan, and
Senator Manka Dhingra for sponsoring and championing legislation that created the Office
of Equity, located in the Office of the Governor, and to the Office of Equity Task Force for
laying the foundation for this work: Governor’s Interagency Council on Health Disparities
Task Force Staff: LinhPhung Huynh, Project Manager Esmael Lopez, Community Engagement
Coordinator Hannah Fernald, Administrative Coordinator, Christy Curwick Hoff, former
Manager, and Co-Chairs Benjamin Danielson (Co-chair) Jan Olmstead (Co-chair), RaShelle
Davis (former Office of the Governor), Washington State Diversity, EQuity & Inclusion Council,
Sharon Ortiz and Laura Lindstrand (former Human Rights Commission), Elizabeth Gordon
(Governor’s Committee on Disability Issues and Employment) and Mandeep Kaundal
(alternate), Lisa van der Lugt and alternates Rex Brown and Marika Barto (Office of Minority
and Women'’s Business Enterprises), Maria Siguenza (Commission on Hispanic Affairs), Ed
Prince (Commission on African American Affairs), Toshiko Hasegawa and alternate Carrie Huie
Pascua (Commission on Asian Pacific American Affairs), Manny Santiago, Omar Santana, and
Allison Spectator (LGBTQ Commission/Community), Michelle Gonzalez and Marie Vela (WA
State Women'’s Commission), Craig Bill and alternate Mystique Hurtado (Governor’s Office

of Indian Affairs), Representative Mia Gregerson, Representative Melanie Morgan, Senator
Manka Dhingra, Representative Jeremie Dufault and alternate Alec Regimbal.

We are forever grateful to all of you who invested your time, brilliance, and energy in
developing models that Washington state could replicate, customize, and scale for use,
especially Dr. Matias Valenzuela (former Director, Office of Equity and Social Justice in
King County, Washington), Dr. Markisha Webster (former Director of the Office of Equity
and Human Rights for the City of Portland), the Honorable Dr. Janice Underwood (former
Chief Diversity Officer of the Commonwealth of Virginia, Office of the Governor), and

the Government Alliance on Race and Equity (GARE) for leading as regional and national
trailblazers for advancing equity and racial justice.

4 Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027



“We give thanks with a grateful heart.”

To each of you who completed an equity readiness organizational baseline assessment,
participated in listening sessions, shared your lived experiences with us, helped to finalize
Executive Order 22-04, or spoke up during the Governor’s Community and State Agency
Roundtable, we hope you see and hear your voice in this PEAR Plan & Playbook. We are here

because of you.

ADEFUA Cultural

Education Workshop

Arts Commission

Asian Pacific Islander Coalition

Association of
Washington Cities

Attorney General’s Office:
Kristin Lamson, Suzanne
LiaBraaten

Leadership Team
Altavia Jones (OFM)
Ayanna Colman (ESD)

Blacks United In Leadership &
Diversity (BUILD)

Black Education Strategy
Round Table

Board of Accountancy

Career Connect Washington
Statewide Team

Centro Latino
Charter School Commission

Childhood Obesity Prevention
Coalition (COPC)

Children/Families
Ombuds Stakeholder

Commissioner Cami Feek (ESD)

Conference of Minority
Transportation Officials
(COMTO)

Criminal Justice Training
Commission

Daniya Baisubanova (Arts
Commission)

Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Inc.
—Tacoma Alumnae Chapter

Denise Ross (Puget Sound
Partnership)

Department of Corrections
(DOC) Executive Strategy Team
and Indeterminate Sentence
Review Board (ISRB)

Department of
Natural Resources

Deputy Directors Group 1:
Jessica Todorovich, Heather
Bartlett, Catherine Mele,
Kendrick Stewart, David
Puente, Jr, Wendi Gunther,
Annette Meyer, Elizabeth
Smith, Cami Feek (former
Director), Annette Meyer,
Cheryl Sullivan-Colglazier
(former OFM employee)

Disability Inclusion Network
Business Resource Group (DIN)

Diversity Center of Washington

Dr. Erica Hernandez Scott
(PESB)

Carrie Basas (former Education
Ombuds)

Education Ombuds
Stakeholders

Educational Opportunity Gap
Oversight and Accountability
Committee

Emerald Cities

Energy Facility Site
Evaluation Council

Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027

Environmental & Land Use
Hearings Office (ELUHO)

Evette Jasper (former DCYF
employee)

Front & Centered

Gender and Justice
Commission

Gonzaga University

Good Shepherd Youth
Outreach

Governor’s Committee on
Disability Issues & Employment

Governor’s Executive Order
22-04 Roundtable Participants:
Josephine Tamayo Murray,
Yazmin Aguilar, Karen Vargas,
Wendy Taliaferro, Faduma
Ahmed, Nicole Franklin,

john miller, Clinton Johnson,
Ricardo Ibarra, Jan Olmstead,
Dr. Ben Danielson, Cami Feek,
Lisa Brown, Manny Santiago,
Marcus Glasper, Russ Olsen

Governor's Executive Team

Governor’s Office of
Indian Affairs

Health and Human
Services group

Helping Human Systems & The
Athena Group

Information Technology
Services Division (ITSD) of OFM

Interagency Committee of
State Employed Women
(ICSEW)



Interagency Protected
Class Network

Jessica Zinda (DSHS)

Joana Ramos and the
Washington State Coalition for
Language Access (WASCLA)

Joanne Lee (DES)

Kitsap Equity Race &
Community Engagement
(ERACE)

Larry Delgado (while at DES)

Latino Leadership Network
(LLN)

Laura Bradley (OAH)
Marika Barto (while at OMWABE)

Mark Adreon (former
Department of Services for the
Blind employee)

Microsoft Corporate External
Legal Affairs Team: Jiam Ma,
Sami Bailey, & Joanne Market

Minority Veterans of America
Nicholas Vann (DAHP)
Northwest Harvest

Northwest Museum of Arts
and Culture

Office of Equity and
Community Partnership-Public
Health, Seattle & King County

Office of Financial Management
(OFM) Forecasting Team

Office of the Commissioner of
Public Lands

Pacific Lutheran University
Executive Team

Pacific Northwest University of
Health Services

Pierce County Community
Engagement Task Force
Leaders (PCCETF)

Pollution Liability Insurance
Agency (PLIA)

Professional Educator
Standards Board (PESB)

Puget Sound Partnership (PSP)
(Laura Blackmore, Larry Epstein,
Stephanie Suter, Melissa
Schutten)

Rainbow Alliance and Inclusion
Network (RAIN)

Results Washington
Robin Vazquez (HCA)

Rodney McAuley & Charlene
Kay, Leaders in Spokane

Scott Nicholson (while at OFM)

Secretary of State
Executive Team

Serve Washington
State Parks Commission
State Treasurer’s Office

Statewide DEI Council and
State Human Resources

Statewide Deputy Director
Group 1

Statewide Deputy Director
Group 2

Superior Court
Translation Commission

Supreme Court Commission on
Children in Foster Care

Theresa Powell (DSHS)

Tiffany Lamoreaux &
Patricia Hayden

Utilities and Transportation
Commission (UTC)

Veteran's Employee Resource
Group (VERG)

Vicki Lowe (DOHi)

Washington Center for Deaf
and Hard of Hearing Youth
Executive Leadership Team

Washington Bar Association

Washington State Business
Resource Leaders

Washington State Deaf
Employees Meeting

Washington Department of
Services for the Blind

Washington State Diversity,

Equity & Inclusion council

Washington Federation of State
Employees (WFSE)

Washington Immigrant
Network (WIN)

Washington Office

of Superintendent of
Public Instruction (OSPI)
Superintendent and
Executive Team

Washington State Board
for Community and
Technical Colleges

Washington State Board of
Pilotage Commissioners

Washington State Governor’s
Office for Regulatory
Innovation & Assistance (ORIA)

Washington State
Investment Board

Washington State LGBTQ
Commission

Washington State
Transportation Commission
(WSTQ)

Washington State
Women’s Commission

Washington Student
Achievement Council (WSAC)

Washington Traffic
Safety Commission

Washington Workforce
Association (WWA)

We Are One America

Wendy T and Trillium
Employment Services

Western Washington University

Workforce Training and
Education Coordinating Board

Washington Recovery Group
(WRG)

Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027



Il. Foreword

“...equity and justice for all, now and for generations to come.”

The year 2020 ushered in a decade of both historic challenge and historic opportunity.

« January: COVID-19 swept across the earth and nearly every aspect of our lives.

« March: Blacks, Latinos, and people fully fluent in their native language experienced
significantly higher COVID-19 hospitalization and death rates than Whites.

+ April: States began to reopen the economy.

« May: The world watched Mr. George Floyd's murder by police officers responding to a call
from a store clerk claiming that he had paid for cigarettes with a counterfeit $20 bill.

Millions protested and demanded racial
justice worldwide and here in Washington
state. Racism, they said, is the real public
health crisis that must be addressed
because the distribution of privilege and
the distribution of burden, based on one’s
membership in a particular social identity
group, continues to be uneven and unjust
across society.

We remember the year 2020 as a time

of historic opportunity. The Washington
State Office of Equity, located in the Office
of the Governor, was established in April
2020 to promote equitable access to
opportunities and resources that reduce
disparities across state government

and improve outcomes statewide (RCW_
43.06D.020). The social justice movement
of 2020 demanded that government admit
and repair the harm it caused to so many
people. What was considered “normal”
before the pandemic—to serve and
privilege some at the expense and erasure
of others—was no longer acceptable to
people worldwide or in Washington state.
People across the state mobilized to hold
state leaders accountable for ending

disparities, especially racial and ethnic
disparities, in all aspects of state agency
decision-making.

We are excited to present the Washington
State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR)
Ecosystem Plan & Playbook (“PEAR Plan

& Playbook”). Co-created with input

from thousands of state employees and
Washingtonians, it recognizes that our
people and environment are both healthy
and flourish when we work together

with those experiencing inequities to
ensure that every person who works in,
contracts with, or visits a state agency for
assistance or services is welcomed, receives
procedural and outcome fairness, and is
treated with dignity, honor, and respect.

It is time for action. Join us as Washington
state leads the way in transforming
government to work in a way that achieves
equity and justice for all, now and for
generations to come.

What are you prePEARed to do in 2022
and beyond?

-Washington State Office of Equity Team
Office of the Governor

Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027 7


https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.06D.020
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.06D.020

lll. Preface

“Everyone is different. Everyone belongs here.” —Unknown

As the inaugural Director of the Washington State Office of
Equity, located in the Office of the Governor, | am honored to
present the Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR)
Ecosystem Plan & Playbook.

The premise of the PEAR ecosystem is that each and every
state employee, no matter their title or position, wants to
bring their A-game and authentic self to work, to be seen,
heard, and valued as they team up with their colleagues to
deliver superior services in a way that affirms the humanity,
dignity, and value of every person they encounter. Everyone
is different. Everyone belongs here.

What follows is a description of why this historic work is necessary, how the PEAR Plan &
Playbook was created, who created the plan, and how the PEAR Ecosystem will advance
equity and justice for all across the state of Washington, now and for generations to come.

We believe the PEAR strategy will disrupt longstanding injustice and inequity and create
sustainable change, innovation, and productivity statewide and across state government,
giving Washington a competitive advantage for becoming the first Belonging state in the
nation, the number one “state of choice” to live, learn, work, own a business, play, and stay.

The PEAR Plan & Playbook positions Washington as a national leader in partnering with
communities to transform state government to work for everyone, and as a model for other
public and private sector organizations to follow, especially those with whom we seek
voluntary partnership.

Therefore, it is with great enthusiasm that | present Washington’s Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR)
Ecosystem Plan & Playbook and online tools to help Washington and its state-supported
agencies, as well as other public and private sector organizations, achieve visible progress in
equity, justice, access, and belonging.

Equity & Justice for all,
Karen A. Johnson, PhD (She/Her/Beloved)

Director, Washington State Office of Equity, Office of the Governor

8 Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027



IV. Background: Why? How? So What?

Why? The legislature established the

Office of Equity because:

1. They found that the diversity of Washington’s population
has increased over the last several decades.

Change in race and ethnicity of Washington residents from 2010 to 2020
Source: U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey, 2010 and 2020 5-year Estimates
Detailed Tables, last accessed 12/22/2022.

Population O 1 2 3 4 5 6 The graph at left compares the Washington
in Millions | | | | | | State population of eight racial groups
w between 2010 and 2020.
Whitt s +6 25% ; The population of people who identify as:
................ 5,523,881
White alone increased from 5,199,167 in

2010 to 5,523,881 in 2020, an increase of

B|ack/ 229,885 presenenennens B
African American £ +26.26% ; 6.25 percent.
290,245 Feeeeeeeensd Black or African American alone increased
from 229,885 in 2010 to 290,245 in 2020,
) . 95,212 RO . an increase of 26.26 percent.
American Indian/ i -3.62% | . ) .
Alaska Native 91,766 American Indian/Alaska Native alone
decreased from 95,212 in 2010 to 91,766 in
2020,
VL v i/ IR . d £362 ¢
Asian L 44.81% a decrease of 3.62 percent.
662,902 Feoeeeeneennenid Asian alone increased from 457,771 in 2010
o t0 662,902 in 2020, an increase of 44.81
Native Hawaiian/ 35,706 +4316°/ percent.
Other Pacificlslander || 51177 S o Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander
| alone increased from 35,706 in 2010 to
51,117 in 2020,
Some other race I 2417 +3285‘V an increase of 43.16 percent.
0
] 360,578 e Some other race alone increased from

- 271,417 in 2010 to 360,578 in 2020, an

Two races including 30,637 grenneseeennens : increase of 32.85 percent.

Some other race } 120,428 Two races including Some other race
C increased from 30,637 in 2010 to 120,428
_ in 2020,
;?;gf;:?:ggmg I 241,502 +70 41% i an increase of 293.08 percent.
and three or more races j AN,548 B Two races excluding Some other race, and
- three or more races increased from 241,502
Legend: - 2010 E 2020 | | % Change in 2010 to 411,548 in 2020, an increase of

70.41 percent.
Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027 9


https://data.census.gov/table?q=race+and+ethnicity+washington+state&t=Race+and+Ethnicity&g=0400000US53&tid=ACSDT5Y2020.B02001
https://data.census.gov/table?q=race+and+ethnicity+washington+state&t=Race+and+Ethnicity&g=0400000US53&tid=ACSDT5Y2020.B02001

2. As the demographics of our state change, they found that:

1

People from historically
and currently marginalized
groups still do not have
the same opportunities

to experience health,
wealth, and well-being

as their nonmarginalized
counterparts.

2

Inequities based on race,
ethnicity, gender, and other
characteristics continue

to be deep, pervasive, and
persistent, and they come at
a great economic and

social cost.

How? Listening and learning

Between May and September 2021, state agencies and the Office of Equity conducted
baseline equity organizational readiness assessments and listened to thousands of
community members and state employees to better understand their priorities for the

state’s first five-year equity strategic plan, designed to bridge opportunity gaps and reduce
disparities, including racial and ethnic disparities, statewide and across state government. You
can view the data dashboards that present the results from these efforts in the Online Toolkit.

3

Work happening in agencies
to address the disparate
outcomes faced by people
from historically and
currently marginalized
groups is fragmented across
state government.

10

Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027


https://equity.wa.gov/online-toolkit
https://equity.wa.gov/online-toolkit

What we heard from community members and state employees

The following is a collection of quotes from nine different people who responded to the
listening surveys. This is a very small sampling of the feedback we received.

“Explore
“Go to the people. Listen sustainability “Do not create splitting,
early (before the process froma pitting, or divisive
community

environments for people
impacted by inequities.”

is designed or decisions
are made) rather than late
and listen often. We need

perspective: how
to build learning

to get this right”’ structures
and culture’”
“Build trust and
“Agencies need to understand relationship by hiring
differences in cultural values when people from impacted
co-creating with communities.” communities.

“Hire staff who look like
communities served and #Take the time
ensure that they are at the

“Set truth and o ) necessary to be
reconciliation tables to el by L el relational instead
lay a solid foundation of rushing this in
of trust to own harm the transaction
and begin healing.” “Intentionally make time to of work.”

hear the stories from the
community about the harm
caused by government and
own the pain caused.”

So What?

We incorporated all of this input to collaboratively create Washington’s Pro-Equity Anti-
Racism (PEAR) Ecosystem Plan & Playbook, a statewide strategy that calls for state agencies
and communities to work together to achieve equity and justice statewide and across
Washington’s 100+ state-supported agencies.

Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027 11



V. PEAR Plan & Playbook Design Team

Washington’s Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Ecosystem Plan & Playbook was developed in
partnership with a team of expert consultants who also created an online toolkit and data
maps for use by state agencies and other stakeholders across the state to collectively measure
progress toward broad goals that advance equity and justice in Washington.

PEAR Plan & Playbook Design Team

Karen A. Johnson, Ph.D. Nicole Franklin john miller

Director Enhanced Interactions, Collective Brilliance

WA State Office of Equity PEAR Strategist, Team Convener, Washington’s PEAR Playbook
Project Manager

Ricardo Ibarra, Trio Group Clinton Johnson, Northstar of GIS
Listening Sessions and Equity Baseline Dashboards, Equity GIS visualizations, performance dashboards,
PEAR Plan & Playbook PDF and web versions and online PEAR destination & playspace



“Teamwork makes the dream work.” —John Maxwell

PEAR Orientation Sessions

Former Office of Equity

Team Members:
Carolyn Cole Megan Matthews

Assistant Director Assistant Director
Equity, Access & Belonging Shared Power Design LaTasha “Tasha” Tisdel

Cynthia “Cindy” Varley




VI. Executive Summary

The Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Ecosystem Plan & Playbook outlines the
framework and tools that Washington state agencies will use to create a PEAR ecosystem in
which all Washingtonians have full access to the opportunities, power, and resources they
need to flourish and achieve their full potential.

PEAR Ecosystem Goals

1. Reduce disparities in public contracting, public education, public
employment, and public services (Executive Order 22-02).

2. Improve outcomes that benefit all tribes, communities, and employees of
Washington’s PEAR ecosystem (Executive Order 22-04).

Strategies to help state agencies to achieve the PEAR
Ecosystem Goals include:

1. Implement a pro-equity, anti-racism framework in partnership with relevant communities
and organizations

2. Embrace continuous learning, growing, and pivoting
3. Consistently assess your actions’ equity impact
4. Make values driven, data informed, upstream investments

5. Be transparent, accountable, and operate with urgency

This document contains:
+ Definitions and Abbreviations (Section VII) commonly used in this document.

« Introduction (Section VIII) describing what it will take for Washington state to transform
from its current state to a Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) ecosystem (future state).

« Washington’s PEAR Ecosystem Framework (Section IX) described.

« Washington State’s PEAR Ecosystem Strategic Plan (Section X) including vision, mission,
values, goals and overall strategies, outcomes, and 2022-2027 implementation roadmap
(Section XI).

v { Sfetall o\


https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/exe_order/22-02 - Equity in State Government %28tmp%29.pdf
https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/exe_order/22-04 - Implementing PEAR %28tmp%29.pdf

“Everything seems impossible untilit’s done.”  —Nelson Mandela

Online Toolkit

The Online Toolkit (available on the Office of Equity website) will help facilitate each state
agency’s implementation of Washington’s PEAR Ecosystem Plan & Playbook. Every leader is
expected to fully leverage all of the online resources. The resources provided are adaptable
and can be tailored to meet the needs of each agency or organization. The contents of the
Online Toolkit are listed below.

« The Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Ecosystem Plan & Playbook (this
document)

» Easy as 1-2-3: PowerPoint decks, recorded trainings, and tools provided during PEAR
Team Orientation sessions, including guidance for establishing a PEAR Team, completing
an initial Equity Impact Assessment and PEAR Strategic Action Plan, and developing a
quarterly performance tracker.

« The Equity Impact Assessment (EIA) tools: Tools that can be used prior to proposing
changes to agency policies, programs, and practices, including budgets and agency
request legislation, to assess the potential impact on communities that historically have
been marginalized and institutionally oppressed.

» Language Access guides: Guides that include best practices and resources for providing
language services (written translation, spoken language interpreting services, and sign
language interpreting services) to individuals requiring language access to agency
programs, activities, and services.

« Relational Partnership Guide: Relationships are the foundation of establishing
impactful teams that can produce deliverables. The Relational Partnership Guide provides
guidance for building relationships with community to help establish your PEAR Teams
and build and grow your community network.

» Tribal government relationship guides: Guides that include information about the
legal framework and requirements for the government-to-government relationship
between tribes and the state of Washington and resources to assist agencies in fulfilling
their legal obligations as required by Chapter 43.376 RCW.

More resources, including an entire section on the development of the Statewide Universal
Access & Belonging Plan’, will be added as they become available.

Afm oy


https://equity.wa.gov/online-toolkit

VIl. Definitions & Abbreviations

It is important to have a shared vocabulary in equity and social justice work. Below is a short
list of common terms and abbreviations used throughout this document, along with their
meanings. A more comprehensive “Glossary of Terms” intended to advance education and
awareness of institutional and structural racism and to assist in formulating appropriate
language for any formal or informal conversations about race, racism, proposed executive
action, or upcoming legislation will be provided in the online toolkit.

Anti-Racism

Anti-racism is a process of actively
identifying and opposing racism. The goal
of anti-racism is to challenge racism and
actively change the policies, behaviors, and
beliefs that perpetuate racist ideas

and actions.

“Anti-racism is rooted in action. It is about
taking steps to eliminate racism at the
individual, institutional, and structural
levels.” Source: Verywell Mind

Belonging

The Office of Equity uses john a. powell’s
definition of belonging. Belonging calls for
something more than Inclusion and Equity,
yet also includes them in meaningful ways.

Belonging is both objective and subjective.
« It can be quantified and measured,

but it is also a perception found in the
eye of the beholder. In this respect,
Belonging, unlike both Equity and
Inclusion, contains a psychological
component — an affective
component, which shapes the way
social groups regard whatever it is
they are regarding: an institution, a
city, or even society writ large.

+ If members of a social group feel as if
they belong, then belonging exists.
But if they do not, despite being
included and having few tangible
resource inequities or other disparities
between groups, then belonging
is lacking.

A core element of belonging: the
expressive or communicative message that
a group belongs.

+ It can be expressed explicitly, through
representation, or by signaling
that members of a particular group
are welcome in a particular space,
institution, or community.

+ It can also be expressed implicitly, as
when accommodations are made,
such as when special food or holidays
are provided for.

Belonging is perceptual and tangible;

it is a feeling and a practice. Belonging
requires more than accommodation; it also
demands agency. Belonging is realized
fully when included groups have more
than a voice — they are actually able to
reshape the institution together with
existing stakeholders.

16 Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027


https://www.verywellmind.com/what-is-anti-racism-5071426
https://belonging.berkeley.edu/democracy-belonging-forum/papers/on-belonging
https://belonging.berkeley.edu/democracy-belonging-forum/papers/on-belonging

“If my colleagues had the right language, it would make conversa-

tions a thousand times easier.”

—David Baboolall (they/them)

BIPOC

Black, Indigenous, and People of Color

DE&I
Diversity, Equity & Inclusion

Diversity

Building diversity in our state agencies is
only a starting point. Diversity is defined
broadly as any difference whatsoever, all
of the characteristics that make individuals
unique. It is used to describe the various
combinations of group/social differences
(e.g., race/ethnicity, class, gender, gender
identity, sexual orientation, country of
origin, and ability, as well as cultural,
political, religious and other affiliations)
and human differences (e.g., personality,
learning style, and life experiences).

Our working definition of diversity is to
foster a work environment of belonging
for every employee, recognizing and
effectively utilizing their talent, skills, and
perspectives to create a unified and high-
performance workforce.

Ecosystem

The biological community of living
beings, communicating with the physical
environment and other nonliving
components. It can also be defined as the
chain of communication or interaction
between the living organisms and

their environment

Equity

The most important construct among
DE&I, equity, refers to the creation

of opportunities for historically
underrepresented populations to have
equitable access to equitable opportunity.
Equity is also the process of allocating
resources, programs, and opportunities

to employees, customers, and residents

to address historical discrimination and
existing imbalances. Therefore, equity
requires an organizational commitment
that all employees, customers, and
residents will be provided equitable access
to opportunities, resources, and the ability
to fully contribute to the agency’s mission
and goals.

The work of the Office of Equity must
be guided by the following principles of
equity per RCW 43.06D.020:

+ Developing, strengthening, and
supporting policies and procedures
that distribute and prioritize resources
to those who have been historically
and are currently marginalized,
including tribes;

« Eliminating systemic barriers that have
been deeply entrenched in systems of
inequality and oppression; and

+ Achieving procedural and outcome
fairness, promoting dignity, honor, and
respect for all people.

Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027 17


https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.06D.020
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.06D.020

Historical(ly)

This term refers to a 10-year or longer
trend at a given department, agency,
organization, or state.

PEAR
Pro-equity, anti-racism (see Pro-Equity)

Institutional Racism

The policies and practices within and
across institutions that, intentionally or not,
produce outcomes that chronically favor or
place one racial group at a disadvantage.
The overlapping and intersectionality of
personal characteristics, including race,
color, national origin, ethnicity, religion,
gender, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, and disability, determine the
degree of disadvantage. Examples of
institutional racism can be found in school
disciplinary policies in which students of
color are punished at much higher rates
than their white counterparts; in the
criminal justice system; and within many
employment sectors where day-to-day
operations, as well as hiring and firing
practices, significantly impact workers of
color in a negative manner.

PEAR Ecosystem

Recognizing the interconnectedness
between human systems and nature
systems, our working definition of the
PEAR ecosystem is finding and fostering a
microclimate for change:

«  Community is the guiding light

+ Interconnected system of PEAR
Values, PEAR Service Lines, and PEAR
Determinants of Equity

« Outcomes: All people in Washington
flourish and achieve their full

potential, embody pro-equity, anti-
racism values, and enjoy peace,
prosperity, and possibility now and for
generations to come.

Pro-Equity

“...[TIhe proactive way of doing equity
work... the knowledge that we live in a
society permeated by racism and bigotry...
combat or control... in every action..”
Source: Caroline Hill.

Relational Partnership
Empathy-centered collaboration between
government and people groups who
have been excluded and marginalized by
government decisions and actions... to
undo harm and advance pro-equity anti-
racism (PEAR) outcomes.

Structural Racism

A system in which public policies,
institutional practices, cultural
representations, and other norms work

in various, often reinforcing, ways to
perpetuate racial group inequity. It
identifies dimensions of our history and
culture that have allowed privileges
associated with “whiteness” and
disadvantages associated with “color” to
endure and adapt over time. Structural
racism is not something that a few people
or institutions choose to practice. Instead,
it has been a feature of the complex social,
economic, and political systems in which
we all exist.

Underrepresented

This term refers to populations, of
employees, for example, that are
disproportionately lower in number
relative to their number in the national/
state population.

18 Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027


https://medium.com/228accelerator/designing-the-future-the-power-of-a-proactive-equity-practice-feb63d52ada5

VIII. Introduction

“The wrong first question is what do we need to do?
The right first question is who do we need to become?”
—Benjamin McBride

Washington state will transform from its current state to a Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR)
ecosystem (future state).

Current state:

Some Washingtonians Some Washingtonians Some Washingtonians do

question the legitimacy of question whether state not trust state government

state government because government is effective because of its history

decisions are consistently because it is not delivering of oppression and

made without them. services that meet their marginalization. People
needs. People feel devalued are left behind, hopeless,
and often cannot homeless, frustrated, and
access services. disconnected.

Future state:

Implementing Washington’s Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Ecosystem Plan & Playbook
(Executive Order 22-04) is a critical dimension of the state’s pursuit of bridging opportunity
gaps and reducing disparities, including racial and ethnic disparities, statewide and across
state government, to keep Washington a great place to live, learn, work, play, and stay.

To remain the number one place to live in the nation and to become a Belonging state, our
state government must be able to implement a pro-equity, anti-racism (PEAR) approach that
goes beyond meeting government mandates and legal compliance; it is about recognizing
that a state workplace culture of equity, justice, access, and belonging produces a competitive
business advantage and return on investment with regard to performance, outcomes, and
learning. It is about state agencies and communities that are traditionally left out and left
behind working together toward reaching our broad, shared goal of achieving equity here:
especially in public contracting, public employment, public education, and access to public
services (Executive Order 22-02).

Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027 19



https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/exe_order/22-04 - Implementing PEAR %28tmp%29.pdf
https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/exe_order/22-02 - Equity in State Government %28tmp%29.pdf

The role of leadership is to create a PEAR culture rooted in equity, justice, access, and
belonging to ensure that all people in Washington flourish and achieve their full potential,
embody pro-equity anti-racism values, and enjoy peace, prosperity, and possibility now and
for generations to come.

Success requires leaders to 1) formally assess their own biases and personal experiences in
order to listen, learn, and lead employees in this transformative work, 2) be willing to exhibit
exemplary leadership behaviors and implement the processes necessary for attaining both
short- and long-term PEAR goals, and 3) prioritize on-going learning opportunities designed
to meet the needs of the people we serve and the people who serve them.

Successful equity and belonging reform will involve ongoing experimentation, assessment,
and innovation, most of which will challenge historical policies and practices that have
presented barriers to achieving equity statewide and across state government, especially for
those facing persistent inequities and injustice.

Formalized mechanisms of assessment will serve to hold leaders accountable for increasing
and supporting equity and making a belonging environment an agency priority.

PEAR Champions, such as the agency head, the agency-level equity officer, and members of
the agency PEAR Team or PEAR Team Advisory Group will play leading roles in promoting and
sustaining an organizational culture that values and supports PEAR outcomes. Yet, achieving
equity is everyone’s work. Applying equity considerations to every law, rule, policy, program,
practice, procedure, and interaction both at agency headquarters and in the field requires the
collective action of every employee throughout state agencies and Washington communities.

20 Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027



L) -

L L !’?{ ?tii 1 q I‘}' ‘,

L

“No phenomenon can be isolated, but has
repercussions through every aspect of our
lives. We are learning that we are a
fundamental part of nature’s ecosystems.”

—Arthur Erickson



IX. Washington’s PEAR
Ecosystem Framework

“...The PEAR framework prioritizes investments in 15 determinants of equity to achieve
outcomes that benefit all tribes, communities, and employees of Washington'’s ecosystem,
and calls for investing more of our state’s resources “upstream” to address root causes where
the needs are greatest to ensure that individuals in underserved communities have their basic
needs met long term in Washington’s ecosystem.” —-Executive Order 22-04

Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Ecosystem
Community is the guiding light for
. a7 . ‘ §\ planning, implementing, continuously
‘ — improving, evaluating, and measuring
e / A government actions to achieve pro-equity
Dignity - A .
anti-racism outcomes in the state

‘ Ubuntu
f Washi .
‘ ‘ . ‘ . ‘ of Washington

é @ Equity o A
Justice ¢ D ‘ “ & 4. PEAR Ecosystem Outcomes
é Belonging @ “‘ 0 - .. All people in Washington flourish and

achieve their full potential, embody
1. PEAR Values 2N 4 ‘ Q pro-equity anti-racism values, and enjoy

< ‘ ‘ peace, prosperity, and possibility now and

Healthy and nourishing rainfall supports . " for generations to come. S\?

the growth of life on Earth. Like rainfall,
pro-equity anti-racism values create

& *
%

the possibility for all people to
flourish and achieve their potential.

o 3. Determinants of Equity
)

2. PEAR Service Lines

otential.


https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/exe_order/22-04 - Implementing PEAR %28tmp%29.pdf

Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Ecosystem

Image description for the previous page: A bright sun peeks through white clouds above a
fruitful pear tree in the center of the image. The tree’s roots are shown extending into the soil
which provides stability and nutrients. To the left of the tree, a body of water is home to fish
and aquatic plants. Flowers and other plants are visited by a bee and a butterfly as they grow
from a green field to the right of the pear tree.

Text: Community is the guiding light for planning, implementing, continuously improving,
evaluating, and measuring government actions to achieve pro-equity anti-racism outcomes in
the state of Washington.

1. PEAR Values (rain feeding the soil)

Healthy and nourishing rainfall supports the growth of life on Earth. Like rainfall, pro-equity
anti-racism values create the possibility for all people to flourish and achieve their potential.

Values coming out of clouds through rain:
Access, Justice, Ubuntu, Love, Equity, Dignity, Belonging

2. PEAR Service Lines (soil providing nutrients for tree)

Shaped by rainfall, the landscape has a foundational influence on which types of organisms
thrive. Pro-equity, anti-racism service lines are government policies, practices, people, and
systems that powerfully influence who is able to flourish and achieve their full potential.

3. Determinants of Equity (fruitful tree)

Just as a tree needs soil and nutrients, root systems, trunks, and branches to sustain its
growth, achieving pro-equity, anti-racism outcomes requires cultivating the determinants of
equity (below) through investments in pro-equity, anti-racism service lines:

+ Equity In State & Local Practices + Transportation & Mobility

+ Early Childhood Development + Economic Justice

+ Quality Education « Strong, Vibrant Neighborhoods
+ Equity In Jobs & Job Training + Housing & Home Ownership

+ Health & Human Services «  Community & Public Safety

+ Food Systems  Equity in Justice Systems & Laws
+ Parks, Recreation & Natural Resources - Digital Equity

+ Healthy Built & Natural Environments

4, PEAR Ecosystem Outcomes (flows back into clouds)

All people in Washington flourish and achieve their full potential, embody pro-equity, anti-
racism values, and enjoy peace, prosperity, and possibility now and for generations to come.

Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027 23



Determinants of Equity?

Washington will achieve PEAR ecosystem outcomes by cultivating and measuring state
agencies’impact on 15 Determinants of Equity, the social conditions that everyone in
Washington needs to flourish and achieve their full potential:

Equity in State & Early Childhood
Local Practices Development

Equity in Jobs & Health & Food Systems
Job Training Human Services
e ‘
Parks, Recreation & Healthy Built & Transportation

Natural Resources Natural Environments & Mobility

Economic Justice Strong, Vibrant Housing & Home

Neighborhoods Ownership

Community & Equity in Justice Systems Digital Equity?
Public Safety & Laws




Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Service Lines

“This is the interrelated structure of reality.”
—Reverend Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.

Washington state agencies will cultivate 15 Determinants of Equity by focusing PEAR
Strategic Action Plan Investments in PEAR Service Lines, which are 11 aspects of agency
decision making, including service delivery, program development, policy development, and
budgeting (RCW 43.06D.040), in order to achieve PEAR outcomes.

The 11 PEAR Service Lines are:

Leadership, Operations & Services: Advance
PEAR practices and systems at all levels of state
government through transparent and accountable
organizational development and adaptive change
agent leadership.

Plans, Policies & Budgets: Incorporate PEAR
values into plans, policies, and budgets to meet
the needs of employees and the communities we
serve, eliminating disparities where the needs
are greatest.

Workforce Equity: Develop a PEAR organizational
culture by building a diverse (including racially
and ethnically diverse) and culturally responsive
pipeline for employees at all levels and create
opportunities for each employee to bring their full
self to work and feel welcomed, supported,

and valued.

Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027 25


https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.06D.040

Tribal Government Relationships*: Invest in
Tribal governments and enterprises and Tribal
organizations that progressively inform our

state’s PEAR decision-making lens and cultivate
equitable, racially just and accessible participation
with recognition of the unique histories of Tribes
and American Indian/Alaska Native people, their
connection to traditional territories, and the
significance of the connection between the land
and cultural ways of life practiced since before our
larger nation was founded.

Public Communications & Education: Advance
our state’s capacity to better communicate and
educate our communities and employees in ways
that are equitable, racially just, accessible, and
cultivate a sense of belonging.

r
|

Facilities & Systems Improvements: Design and
- develop facilities improvements, public works

J ‘ L \ projects, and business diversity programs that

center the values and priorities of our employees

and the communities we serve.

Policy Agenda: Address root causes of disparities
through policies, practices, and systems to

end disparities, including racial and ethnic
disparities, and improve outcomes statewide
across state government, particularly in hiring
and promotions, state spend for public works,
goods and services (including client services),
procurement, and access to services.

26 Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027



Building a Racially Just Washington: Use PEAR
strategies and tools to eliminate racial inequities
and improve outcomes for all racial groups, with
an intentional focus on places where the needs
are greatest.

Capacity Building: Intentionally develop
organizational capacity to support the
implementation of the PEAR framework in all
agency-decision making.

Data & Strategy Reporting: Invest in data and
strategy reporting systems to ensure that we drive
equitable outcomes by investing where the needs
are greatest and hold state agencies accountable

for eliminating disparities in their business lines. -, g!

A5

Consultation and Technical Assistance

Engagement & Community Partnerships: Build
partnerships with communities and employees
that inform and support Washington state’s

PEAR ecosystem.

Within these 11 PEAR Service Lines, the Office of Equity’s Pro-Equity Consultants will provide
consultation and technical assistance to help agencies identify:

+ PEAR priorities « PEAR organizational habits
+ PEAR Strategic Action Plan + PEAR intended outcomes
Investments

« PEAR performance measures
Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027 27



Impact of Service Line Investments

. . Community is the guiding light for planning,
on Determlnants Of qu“ty §\ implementing, continuously improving,
= evaluating, and measuring government

actions to achieve pro-equity anti-racism
. ‘ outcomes in the state of Washington.

What will your agency

investments impact?

Everyone in Washington has full access to:

- Opportunity, power, and resources to
flourish and achieve their full potential .

« Health, wealth, and well-being ‘

» Peace, prosperity, and possibility for .‘

f
“Q

® e .
Q¢ () Q

Branches

Strong individual and family systems and
community investments that help people

generations to come grow and flourish.
y ) ‘ Equity in Family Support Systems
' ' «  Community & Public Safety
* ' + Health & Human Services
Trunk + Housing & Home Ownership

« Strong, Vibrant Neighborhoods

Main systems for supporting the growth of - Parks, Recreation & Natural Resources

individuals, families and communities.
Equity in Community Support Systems
. Healthy Built & Natural Environments
aildhood Development

Root System

Soil & Nutrients

ong ilnve OV

- Digital Equi

Impact of Service Line Investments on Determinants
of Equity

Image description: A bright sun peeks through white clouds above a fruitful pear tree in the

center of the image. The tree’s roots are shown extending into the soil which provides stability
and nutrients. Flowers and other plants grow from a green field surrounding the pear tree.

Text: Community is the guiding light for planning, implementing, continuously improving,
evaluating, and measuring government actions to achieve pro-equity, anti-racism outcomes
in the state of Washington.

28 Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027



What will your agency investments impact?

Everyone in Washington has full access to:
« Opportunity, power, and resources to flourish and achieve their full potential
+ Health, wealth, and well-being

+ Peace, prosperity, and possibility for generations to come.

Equity in Community Support Systems (Trunk)

Main systems for supporting the growth of individuals, families and communities.
+ Healthy Built & Natural Environments
+ Early Childhood Development
+ Quality Education

+ Food Systems

Equity in Government Policies, Practices, People & Systems
(Soil & Nutrients)

Strong investments in government policies, practices, people, and systems (PEAR service
lines) nourish a pro-equity, antiracism system.

+ Equity in state and local practices (including regional, county, city & municipal practices)

Equity in Community Infrastructure (Root System)
Fortifies and distributes opportunity throughout support systems, families, and communities.
« Economic Justice
- Digital Equity
+ Equity in Justice Systems & Laws
+ Transportation & Mobility
« Equity In Jobs & Job Training

Equity in Family Support Systems (Branches)

Strong individual and family systems and community investments that help people grow and
flourish.

«  Community & Public Safety

+ Health & Human Services

+ Housing & Home Ownership

+ Strong, Vibrant Neighborhoods

- Parks, Recreation & Natural Resources
Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027 29



“And while I stood there, I saw more than I
can tell, and I understood more than I saw;
for Iwas seeing in a sacred manner the
shapes of things in the spirit, and the shape
of all shapes as they must live together like
one being.”

—Black Elk, Black Elk Speaks



X. Washington State’s PEAR Ecosystem
Strategic Plan (2022-2027)

A. PEAR Ecosystem Vision and Mission

&2

Vision Mission

Everyone in Washington has full access to Promote equitable access to opportunities,
the opportunities, power, and resources power, and resources across government
they need to flourish and achieve their that reduces disparities and improve

full potential. outcomes statewide.

B. PEAR Ecosystem Values

Values are basic and fundamental beliefs that guide or motivate our attitudes or actions.
They help us to determine what is important to us. Values are the motive behind
purposeful action.”

The following values reflect the common themes that surfaced during the listening sessions
conducted by the Office of Equity and state agencies between May and September 2021.

Access: Creating and supporting barrier-free design, standards, systems, processes, and
environments so that all individuals, regardless of ability, background, identity, or situation,
can participate in, use, and enjoy the benefits of: employment, programs, services, activities,
communication, facilities, electronic information technology, and business opportunities.

Belonging: Values and practices that ensure no person is left out of our circle of concern.
Belonging means more than just having access, being seen, or feeling included. It means that
every member of society has a meaningful voice, that their well-being is considered, and that
they can participate in the design of political, social, and cultural structures.

Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027 31



Dignity: We respect the sacred nature of each individual’s personhood. We honor the

worth due each person by virtue of their existence as a human being. Human lives have an
unimpeachable value simply because they are human, and therefore deserving of a baseline
level of respect. That baseline requires more than the absence of violence, discrimination, and
authoritarianism. It means giving individuals the freedom to pursue their own happiness

and purpose.

Equity: Systemic, full, and true access to opportunities, power, and resources that allow all
people to achieve their full potential and thrive.® Our actions and decisions will be guided by
the following principles of equity (RCW 43.06D):

 Equity is not equality. Equity requires developing, strengthening, and supporting policies
and procedures that distribute and prioritize resources to people in identified groups
who have been historically and currently are marginalized, including tribes;

« Equity requires the elimination of systemic barriers that have been deeply entrenched in
systems of inequality and oppression; and

+ Equity achieves procedural and outcome fairness, promoting dignity, honor, and respect
for all people.

Justice: We make or do right that which has been done wrong. We embody what love looks
like in action.

Love: Sometimes defined as a strong affection for another arising out of kinship or personal
ties.” Love requires us to:

+ Fumble Forward: The idea that we are each on a journey. We recognize that while we are
on this journey, we are doing the best we can with the tools, conditions, and knowledge
we have. We will have compassion and care for one another as we grow.

« Stay committed; stay open; stay adaptive: Our collective willingness to embrace the
concept that words matter and that the labels we ascribe to ourselves are not simply
ways of being “politically correct,” they are validations of our humanity. We create and
support belonging by expressing love to one another and treating others as they want to
be identified and treated. We will check our fear-based decisions to ensure a better future
for all is achieved.

« Be humble: We own our stories, points-of-view, successes, and mistakes. We admit we do
not know everything, in fact no one does, and that instead, we all have something learn
from one another. We acknowledge there are things we do not know so we can approach
each other with love.

Ubuntu: A South African (Nguni Bantu) term meaning “humanity,” often translated as I
am because we are,’ stresses the importance of the interconnectedness of humanity. We
recognize that our destinies are linked and we need each other to survive.

32 Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027


https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.06D.020

Apply PEAR Values to Agency Work

State agencies are encouraged to tailor the descriptions for the values listed above in a way
that guides their agency’s PEAR work.

Example use of PEAR Values
Below is an example of how the Washington State Office of Equity describes the PEAR values
in all of its job announcements:

We Value

» Access: Barrier-free environments so everyone can participate.

« Belonging: The right to participate in all aspects of society with acceptance, attention,
and support from members of the society, providing the same to others.

» Dignity: We honor the sacred nature of each individual’s personhood.

« Equity: Acknowledging systemic inequalities by developing, strengthening, and
supporting policies and procedures that distribute and prioritize resources to people
in social identity groups who have been historically and currently are marginalized to
ensure everyone has access to the same opportunities, power, resources, and outcomes
to achieve equality.

» Justice: Treating people fairly. To make right. What love looks like in public (Cornel West).

« Love: A selfless and giving act of the will. We seek to out-give and out-serve the other.

o Ubuntu: | am because we are. We are interconnected.

C. PEAR Ecosystem Goals & Overall Strategies

The PEAR goals and overall strategies below guide the delivery of state goods, services,
policies, and practices so all Washingtonians can participate, prosper, and achieve their full
potential. The Office of Equity will partner with state agencies and communities to create an
annual report to the Governor and Legislature. The report will include agency strengths and
accomplishments made on PEAR expectations and the effectiveness of agency programs
and services on reducing disparities, including the agency’s action plan to address areas for
continued improvement and a timeline for the action plan.

Overall PEAR Ecosystem Goals

Reduce disparities in public Improve outcomes that benefit
contracting, public education, all tribes, communities, and
public employment, and employees of Washington'’s

public services. -Executive Order 22-02 PEAR ecosystem. -Executive Order 22-04



https://www.facebook.com/HarvardEducation/videos/cornel-west-on-tenderness-in-education/10155292829161387/
https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/exe_order/22-02 - Equity in State Government %28tmp%29.pdf
https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/exe_order/22-04 - Implementing PEAR %28tmp%29.pdf

Overall PEAR Ecosystem Strategies

1.Implement a pro-equity, anti-racism framework in partnership with
relevant communities and organizations

Partner with others to intentionally name and address implicit and explicit
bias and all levels of racism, particularly against people who are seen and
treated as Black, Indigenous, or People of Color.

2. Embrace continuous learning, growing, and pivoting

Build organizational capacity and infrastructure to continuously learn,
improve, and make adjustments to sustain meaningful policy and systems
change that achieves equitable policies, practices, and outcomes.

3. Consistently assess your equity impact

Understand and acknowledge your agency’s equity impact to inform
agency planning, decision-making, and action steps when changing
policies, programs, and practices that perpetuate inequities and when
developing new policies and programs that perpetuate equity.

4. Make values driven, data informed upstream investments
Identify and target root causes of opportunity gaps and disparities and
prioritize the people who have traditionally been excluded to improve
outcomes that benefit all.

5. Be transparent, accountable, and operate with urgency

Create and maintain a long-term commitment to change and help others
to see the benefit to them for acting immediately. Build public trust and
accountability for sustaining equity through values-driven, data-informed
decision-making and outcome tracking.

D. PEAR Ecosystem Outcomes

All people in Washington flourish and achieve their full potential, embody pro-equity
anti-racism values, and enjoy peace, prosperity, and possibility now and for generations
to come.

34 Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook 2022-2027



Xl. 2022-2027 PEAR Implementation
Strategy

“For tomorrow belongs to the people who prepare for it today.”
—African Proverb

The Office of Equity and all state agency leaders are responsible and accountable for
implementing Executive Order 22-04, “Implementing the Washington State Pro-Equity Anti-
Racism (PEAR) Plan & Playbook.”

State Agency Leaders are directed to:
1. Develop a PEAR Team;
2. Conduct an agency Equity Impact Assessment;

3. Develop and implement PEAR Strategic Action Plan; and

4. Prepare and submit a PEAR Annual Performance Report to the Office of Equity each
year to demonstrate performance, using outcome-based methodology to determine
the effectiveness of agency programs and services on reducing disparities, taking
into consideration community feedback on whether the performance measures
established accurately measure the effectiveness of agency programs and services in the
communities served.



https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/exe_order/22-04 - Implementing PEAR %28tmp%29.pdf
https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/exe_order/22-04 - Implementing PEAR %28tmp%29.pdf

Implementation Phases

The Washington State Office of Equity will provide consultation, technical assistance, and
resources to facilitate state agency implementation of Washington’s PEAR Ecosystem in
three phases.

Phase 1: Compliance

Support agencies in meeting Executive Order 22-04 to apply a pro-equity,
anti-racism lens in all aspects of decision-making (RCW 43.06D.040 (1)(a)).

PHASE

1. Establish PEAR Teams
l 2. Conduct E